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INVESTIGATION INTO MASONRY.

At the Jan'ry Session ot the R. I. Assembly, 1831,
a Memorial signed by sixty seven Delegates to an
Antimasonic Cunvention, praying for an investiga-
tion into the Masonic Corporations, created by the
Legislature, was presented, and referred to a Com-
mittee. No further proceeding was had upon the
subject untjl October Session, 1831, at which time
the demand of public cpinion for some disposition
of the Memorial could no longer be safely postpon-
ed. Accordingly, a resolation prepared hy Mr. B.
Hazard, was introduced by Mr. James F. Simmons,
to ;Xpoint & Committee to investigate the subject
of Masonry. These gentlemen were both appointed
on that Committee, after which a discussion arose
upon & motion to refer the Memorial, with a no-
tice, to Masonic Corporations. Messrs. Hazard and
Simmons, in that debate, were extremely severe
upon Antimasons, the former declaring that there
was not one among them that he would trust with
a groat out of his sight, and the latter asserting that
the principles of Antimasonry were sapping the
foundations of our political institutions. Both of
these gentlemen were known to have a command-
ing influence with the party then in power in the
State, and it was also known that Antimasonry
would probably oppose the re-election of the indi-
viduals then in office. These circumstances, con-
nected with the severe and apparently unprovok-
ed censures cast upon Antimasons, by these gentle-
men in debate, indueed an apprehension that the de-
sign of appointing this Committee might be rather
to suppress Antimasonry, if possible, and vindicate
Masonry, than to give the subject a full and fair
investigation without aay reference to political
parties. The course pursued will show whether
there were any reasonable grounds for this appre-
hension. It was also known that another of the
Committee, Mr. Haile, had on a public occasion
compared the introduction of Antimasonry into po-
litics, to a pestilence. Under such circumstances,
it appeared to some that a majority of the Commit-
tee had already given evidence that they had pre-
judged the question upon which they were ahout
to act.

Shortly afier thie adjournment-of the Legislature,
the following notice issued by Mr. Hazard, as
Chairman, without being shown to at least two
others of the Committee, was published in the
newspapers : :

“NOTICE.—The Committee named in the sub-
joined Resolution, will meet on Tuesday the sixth
day of December next, at ten o’clock, A. M., at the
State House in Providence, for the purpose of at-
tending to the duties in said resolution assigned to
them. Personal notice will be given to those, whom
the Committee may think it necessary to call before
them. And they will moreover readily attend to
all information, testimony, facts, circumstances and
suggestions in writing, which any individuals may
have to communicate, and which may in any de-

aid them in making the thorough investiga-
tion, which the General Assembly will expect from
them. For the Committes,
B. HAZARD, Chairman.

Nov. 21, 1831.
State or Ruonw Iscaxp axnp ProvibENck
PLARTATIONS.
In General A bly, October S , 4. D.1831.

Whereas the crimes and enormities within a few
Years, committed in a neighboring State bv certain

ree Masons avowedly in the cause of Masonry,
have excited unversal indignation and #bhorrence ;
and have awakened jealousies and suspicions very
unfavorable to all Masonic institvtions, and undar
the weight of which the whele Masunic fraternity,

the good and virtuouns as well as the vicious, must
unavoidably suffer: Therefore, in the hope of al-
laying the great and increasing excitement thus
occasioned, and that the innocent may be distin-
guished from the guilty, if in this State there aie
any, who can justly be charged with advocating the
criminal doctrines imputed to Free Masonry :
Resolved, That Messrs. Hazard, W. Sprague, Jr.
Simmons, Haile, and E. R. Potter, with such others

as the Honorable Senate may think proper to add, *

be and they are hereby appointed a Committee, ful-
ly to investigate and inquire into the causes,
grounds and extent of the charges and accusations
brought against Free Masonry and Masons in this
State.—And that said Committee, so far as may be

‘necessary to enable them fo perform this duty, be

empowered to administer oaths, to examine wit-
nesses, and to call for _books and papers.”

At the time of the publication of this notice, &
note was forwarded to Mr Sprague, one.of the Com-

mittee, by Mr. Hazard, in which that gentleman re-

marked, **Whatever may be said in the newspapers,
[ am very confident there will be no difference of
opinion among the members of the Committee, upon
the subject of Masonry or the course to be pursued
in relation to it.” .

This assurance led to a hope that.the investigation
would be conducted in a manner of which no per-
son desirous for a full disclosure of the truth, could
reasonably complain.

Members of the Antimasonic State Committee
had made repeated atte npts to ascertain from the
investigating Committee what course they would
pursue, and upon what points they would be wil-
ling to hear testimony ; but they were net recog-
nised as being entitled to be heard in preferrin,
charges, or proving those alleged in the Memorial,
nor could they learn any specifications to define
the vague terms of “‘charges and accuations against
Masonry and Masons,’ into which the Comumittee
were directed to ingnire. Up to the day appointed
for the examination, it was® generally undérstood
that Masons would not state upon oath, what their
Masonic oaths were ; and it is also a fact that the
Committee, though requested, declined summonin
at least one Mas<on, who though holding a mgh of-
ficial station, had declared that he would not revesl
his Masonic oaths under a civil oath. To prevent
atotal failure of the investigation by a refusal of
Masons to testify, and the neglect of the Comnmittee
to summon seceding Masons, the Antimasonic Com-
mittee took measures to procure such testimony as
the short time allowed by the notice would permit.
They accordingly prevailed upon‘the Rev. Moses
Thacher, Rev. Levi Chace, and a number of seced-
ing Masons to attend the examination in person,
and the{ procured the depositions of others, which
were taken in legal form. The intimation therefore,
that Mr. Thacher, or any other witness presented
himeelf voluntarily as has been represented in the
Assembly, is incorrect. He came at the, special
and urgent request of the Antimasonic State Com-
mittee. The investigating Committee used no com-
pulsory process, in any cuse, and their summonses
were virtually nothing more than requests.

With aview of bringing the investigation te some
point, the following suggestions were drawn up,
and presented to the Comunittee, by Wm. Sprague,
Esq. for their considoration, on the first day
they met for business, Tudsday, Dee. Gth. These
suggestions were made by an individual, in eompli-
ance with the rule prescribed by Mr. Hazard,
Chairman of the Committee. They were as !
DWE [~



. TO THE COMMITTEE.

One of the principal ““grounds of the charges
find accustions brought against Kreemasonry an,
Masons in this State,”’ and every other State, which
you, gentlemen, are appointed “fully to investi-

te and inquiré into,” is the oaths administered in
the several degrees in the Lodges and Chapters.
It is ‘deemed indispensable to establish what the
precise form and expressioh of these oaths™are, in
vrder to determitte whether they may or have, or do
Jead to an interferenice with the élvil duties of cit-
isens.

In-the first place it is™cliarged that thdse odths
are illegally administered, in solemn fdrm, by por-
sons not Magistrates, and who are liadle to indict-
ill:ent and punishment for this offence, at commbn

aw.

Thus Sir E. Coke lays it down, tiHat “All oaths
must be lawful, allowed by the Common Law, or
some statute ; if theyare administered by persons in
“a private capacity, or not duly authorised they are
coram non judice, and void ; and those administer-
ing them are guilty of a high contempt for doing
it without warrant of law, and punishable by fine
and’ imprisonment. 3. Inst. 278. 2. Roll Abr.
257, citéd in' Jucob. Law Dic. Tit. Oath.

. Blatkstgne goed so far_on this point as to say, that
It is much to be questioned how far any Magistrate
is justifiable in taking a voluntary affidavit ih any
‘extrajudical matter, as is ndw too frequent upon ev-
ery petty occasion, since it is moré than possible,
\hat by such idle oaths a2 mau may frequently in
{om conscientie, incur the guilt, and at the same

ime evade the temporal pénalties of perjnry.” Blk.
Com. Vol. 4. 137. Erventhis dogbt is expressed of
binngcessdry oaths; admjnistered by lawiul mag-
istratea. Itis certainly stronger as applied to Ma-
sonie oathad, addinistered unlawfully in secret, and
binding thé person who reéeives then to dd a mor-
al wrong if he adheres to them. ’

Should the Committee deem this a proper subjéct
of their inquiry, they can easily establish the fact,
by the testimony of seceding and the admission of
“adhering Masons, that oaths are administered in
Lodges and Chapters, by swearing on the holy
Seriptures. See Deqposition of Benjamin Russell
and De Witt Clinton, herewith presented, marked
{No. 1and 2) i

The niture of these oaths, their exact terms
and import fromd the langtage in which they are
expressed, are also important to bé learned. The
Facts theudselves, as to what thé oaths say, are deem-
od to be much mofe essential t0 a fair ander-

slanding Of thew, than the cobstruction which

porsons interested not, in explaining them away to
avoid the Chargés Drought against them, may pat
upon them:, ﬁesidés,?ﬁ.he'ﬁalhs are to he judged
of by construction, rather than their Plain and ob-
vious mcaning, would not the inferpretation of these
oaths, by Masonic works of the highest authority,
previous to Masonry being called in questioh, be

Inore_satisfactory, than the consiruction adheting |
Rasons may now contend for, whén the ¢harge is |

Wnade that these very oaths have led to the murder
of a citizen in New York, and sp‘rﬁe’hed hié manrder-
‘er's from the just infliction of the laws?

O% ‘this point, the nature of thé oaths, the com-
mittée is respectfully referred 1o a printed paper
(marked No. 3) containing the oathsof five degrees,
in nearly the same language. (with some nédt very
naterial alteratiuns in expression and noie in inean-
ing) as they have been administeted in R. [<land
Lodges 4hd Chapters, up 16 the murder of William
Maorgar, in 1826, and probably ever since. The
siune papet'conhing evidénce of the uaiformity and
‘iversality of these miasohic oaths, as do algo the
Devositions Of Mestrs. Clinton and Russell, béfore
feforred to. | )

o cstablish the apiformity of Masonic Outhsin

4

the United States, reference is further made to 4
paper marked No. 4, contaming .the trial at New

4 | Berlin, New York, as sworn to by Philip Peck, who

was present at that trial. .o
Also-paper No. 5, Affidavit of Israel Chace.

Also paper No..0, Afiidavit of Tabor Cory., .

.. The same point will be proved by. inquiry to that
effect of all seceding or adhering Masons, who may
be summoned before the Committee. i
_ Paper No. 7, contains the statement of one ot
your Hon. Committee, William Sprague Jr. Esq.
asserting the language of certain portions of the
three first oaths. It is requested that that gentleman
may be examined, with others who have certified

ith him, or who are believed to be ready to testi-

Y, if caﬂ‘ed on, viz: Wm. Sprague Jr., Rev. Hen-
ry Tatem, (who has taken tha degree of Knight

$plar.) Dr. Wm. H. Allen, Willard Ballou, Johri
Drown, Nathan Whiting, Benjamin W. Case, (Roy-
al Arch) Rev. Moses '%hacher (Royal Arch,) John
F. Greene, Arthur Potter, Anson Potter, Gamaliel
Church, (Royal Arch) Barney Phelps.

* The.above named persons, and gomne othegs whose
names may be presented if desired, are acquainted
with masonry, and it is believed will give the Com-
mittee all the information in their, possession. It is
believed that their testimony will not essentially
vary from the statement of tﬁe form of the Oaths as
given in printed paper No. 3.

_The Committee are also 1espectfully requested to
sunupon before them some known adhering Masens,
to ascertain from them the form of proceedings in
Lodges,and Chapters. If permitted tosuggest, the
following names would be offered :—

-Rev. David Pickering, Mr. Moses Richardsonj
who, it is suggested, became acquainted with the
abduetivn of Morgan, in the Grand Chapter of New
York, soon after it happenéd. Should he decline
stating on this poiiit, Walter Paine Jr. and Asa
Péarce should be summoned. Mr. Peter Gripnell is
acquainted with the same facts.

M. Peter Gringell, who in 1816 visited the Lodg
es in lg England, it is believed. Inquiry should
133.0’8 e of this gentleman as to his knowledge of
the Check degtée, established in 1826—27, 1o keep
out the book Masons, who might study Morgan's
disclosurés. On this point, see paper No. 8. con-
taining a letter signed P. Grinnell and C. M. Nes
tell. Please also inquire if this Check degree was
recoived from-the New York Grand Lodges, an
communicated to all the Lodges in this State. Ex-
amine also, Messrs. Sprague, Chase, Thacher, Bal
lou, Tatem and others on this point, which will
clearly establish the connexion between the Lodges
of Rhode Itland and New York, and the fact that
Morgan’s disclosures were true, or a special degree,
to exclude those who read his book, would not have
been required. : .

. Josiah Whitaker, William Wilkinson, Richard
Anthony, Henry Mumford, Christian M. Nestell,
Benj. 8. Olney, Johm Barton, Henry Martin, [who
administered the Royal Arch Oath to Moses Thach-
‘ar,] Satnutel Jackson, 2d, Barney Merrey, Barzillai
Cranston, Jacob Frieze, [Examine Mr. Frieze as to
anarti¢le on the 23th paze of paper No. 9. written
by him.J Rev. Murtin Cheney. ,

The Committe are alsg reqheésted to ascertain if
possible, at what time, Chipters and Lodges in R.
L. or any mgmbers became acquainteéd with the ab-
duétien of Morgan, and whether anyand what state-
ment had been made respectin& 1t, and his fate.
Oran Pickatd of Cuftaberlandy if Bummoned, (a
Royal Arch Mason,) it is believed will throw light
on this sabfeet. - !

The eXistence of Lodges of Blacks, who take the
same oaths as white Masons, ar'd work under a
Grand Lodge &t Boston, which grants dispensations
all over'the country, has excited some alarm, partic-
ulaily in coanexion with the insurrection at thé
Sauth, it being stated, that Walker, the black who
published an iscendiory pamdphlet a short Vime ogé

—
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{0 excite theSlaves to revolt,and Gen. Nat, the lead-
erof the recent Massacre in Va. were mempers of
the African Lodge.

n this point testimony may be obtained from
Honry Codding, -of Providence. Also, from the
following officers of Harmony Lodge,in Providence,
viz :—George C. Willis, Master; Thomas, Sen? War-
den ; Alfres Niger, Jun., Warden ; Northup, Sen.
Deacon. L

The inquiry whethér Masonry imposes the pe
alty of death for violation of her oaths, is certaiul
importapt. Individual ‘construction of Masons now
‘canuot be as good proof, as the terms of the penal-
ties, and the construction put upon them by the
most approved Masonic writers. On this point
leave is asked to refer to printed sheets, No. 9, a
proof sheot of a document pot yet published. Re-
ferences are there givéen to Mason'c authors, which
will be offered to the Committee if desired, for fur-
ther examination as to the correctness of tho refer-
ence. 8o far asthe Records of Lodges and Chap-
ters may be offered, the Comuiittee are requested to
receive them with the understanding that they con-
taih only what Masous deem proper to be written,
and do not record the unwritten and most important
matters in the Lodge. Oa this point of the daties ot
a Masonic Secretary, see Book of Constitutions, p.
13, Cross's Masonic Chart, p. 69, do do, 149, Temp-
lars’ Chart, 79, cited in proceedings R. I. Antima-
sonic Conventiou, p. 10. )

The several corporations were chartered by the
General Asseinbly as Charitable Societies. This
will be seen by reference to their acts of Incorpora-
tion, cited in the Antimasonic Memorial,(see paper
No. 11.) A strictjinquiry on thispoint is respectfully
suggestad, in order to ascertain what proportion of
the funds are devoted to charities, and what pro-
Jportion to useless parades. On this point see paper
No. 19, and records of Newport St. John's Lodge,in
possession of Benj. W. Case.” .

The several documents above referred to, were
presented to the Committee, but it did not appear
that any use was made of them in the investigation.
The Committee, on thé first day, frankly and readily
received all names of witnesses presented to them,
anost of whom they summoned. Those who had
‘declared they would not testify at all, were not sum-
moned. Masonic Clergymen the Committee declin-
ed summoning, on the ground, as was understood,
that it might lead to a breach, or unpleasant feelings
4n their societies. . .

Previous to the mpéting of the Committee, and
nearly every might daring their sitting in Provi-
dence, the Masonic Hall was lighted up, and it is
preswned the Masons assewbled there to determine
upon the measures they sheuld adopt to produce un-

iformity in the statements they should inake to the |

Committee. On several occasions, when the exam-
ination was carried into the évening, the principal
‘Masons retired,as it was anderstood to visit tKeLodge
Room, and unquestionably for the above purpose.
The testimony was taken at four different times ;
Jirst, before four and sometines five of the Com-
mittee sitting in Providence, from the 7th to the
17th of December-—second, before Mr. Hazard the
Chairman, sitting alone in Newport, irregularly
for several days—third, before Mr. Simmons, an-
other of the Committee, sitting alone in Provi-
‘dence,—and fourth, before Mr. Haile in Warren,
at which last examination no person whatever was
‘presefit to put cross ‘questions to the adhering ma-
sons, who were examined by Mr. Haile. Mr.
Sprague or Mr. Cornell, 'did not at any time as-
tume the right of sitting alome to take examina-
tions, without the approbation of other mem:
bers of the Cemmittee. The formyer issued one
summons, or rather request, to a eitizen residing in
another State, whose deposition was taken. .
During the only investigatioy in which the
committee acted as a body, Mr. Haile, one of the
Voimittee, officiated a8 scribe, and wyote down,

!

principally in his own language, the answers of thé
witnesses, as he construed or understood them,
which the witnesses were required to sign. In
his minutes so taken, the answers of witnesses are
put down in a condensed form; without any state-
ments appearing of the circumstances under which
the answers were given ; such as the remarks of

members of the Committee, the variation of an-

swers upon second thought, by the witnesses, and
a. variety of circumstances, without which it is
impossible to determine whether the examination
was fully and fuirly conducted, and how far the
witnesses are entitled to credit. The most Jma
terial difference between us, will be, that where
cross questions were proposed, the second answer
of the witness was generally taken by hith instead
of the first, while this Report will in most cases,
ive both answers, that the witness may not avail
Flimself of the time given for reflection 1o frame an
answer best suited to evade the question, if such
were his design. None of these and other circum-
stances connected with the progress of the inves-
tigation ; }he manuer in which the Chairman put
or refused’to put questions, or'his severe censures
upon witnesses and spectators,will be found in Mr.
aile’s Report. While therefore, we shall agree
in the main facts, there will be so material a dif-
ference in the filling out of the narrative on our
part, by stating facts which his abridged account
will omit, as entirely to relieve the State printer of
Rhode lsland from the trouble of prosecuting for
an infringement of a pretended copy right, of a
public Legislative Report, which is no ore the
subject of copy right than a speech made in Con-
gress, and taken down by a Reporter. [It might be
interesting to learn by whom this copy right of a
public document was transferred to the State prin-
ter, for what consideration, and for whose benefit.
The circumstance is believed to be unparalleled.]
This attempt to confine the circulation of this
important evidence (which is the Kroperty of the
pughc alone) by guarding it with a copy right,
and thereby preventing its republication in the
newspapers, has induced us to publish our version
of it in this form, which is free to all the world ta
republish. . .

Having thusstated the preliminaries of the inves:
tigation, we proeeed to lay before the public a full
and faithful Report, taken at the time, of thepro-
ceedings of the Committee and the examination of
witnesses. The correctness of this Report, in ev-
ery essential particular, will be vouched for by a
number of incﬂ viduals who paid strict attention to
the investigation. An appeal is also made for the
accuracy o% our narration, to the numerous spec-
tators who were present.

On the morning of Wednesday, the first day,
the Committee met for business, Kir. Héazerd an
others of the Committee, held a long conversation
in the Senate Chamber, with several of the most
eminent masons of Providence. Among them
were the Grand Master, the Grand Cominander,
the General Grand Treasuter, and others. A
art of that conversation wag' known at the time.
ts import, and that of other intetviews understood
to have taken place, it is believed is fully explain-
ed in the subsequen‘ disclosure made by one of the
witnesses, Wm. Wilkinson, Esq., that a majority
of the Committee had agreed with these Masons, that
if they disclosed their ouths, they should not be ques-
tioned as to the ceremonies, proceedings, &c. which
they considered to be the sEcRETS of Masonry, that
they hud sworn not.to reveal! The tact is simply
stated as it is borne out by the testimony. Wheth-
er it was proper for an investigating Committee to
have entered intosuch a stipulation with the wit-
nesses who were to be examined upon charges
against their own Institution, the public must
decide. . .
No Committee appeared before the Legislative
Comuittec in behadf of any body, und neither the
Al
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Memorialists to the General Assembly, or the
Antimasons were permitted to appear to make
good any charges against Masonry. During the
investigation six or eight of the highest Masonic

~ Officers in Rhode Island were constantly present,

seated on one side of the table, and a number of
members of the Antimasenic State Committee
were as frequently present, seated on the other
side. Both parties, in their individual capacity,
pr(;ioed questions in writing, which were handed
to the Committee. The examination was held in
the Senate Chamber in Providence.

Wednesday, December 7, 1831—Present of the
Commit'ee, B. Hazard, chairman, James F. Sim-
mons, Wm. Sprague, Jr. and Levi Haile; (absent,
E. R. Patter and‘;s. B. Cornell, of the Senate.)

TESTIMONY OF REV. MOSES THACHER.

Mr Hazard called the Rev. Moses Thacher as
the first witness, who proceeded to give the follow-
ing testimony, the substance of which was taken
down in writing by Mr. Haile, of the Committee,
who acted as Scribe for that purpose.

Moses THAcHER sworn in chief, in answer to
interrogatories, says. He resides in North Wren-
tham, Massachusetts; is a clergyman ; has beena
Free Mason and taken seven degrees, viz. Entered
Apprentice, Fellow Craft, Master ‘Mason, Mark
Master, Past Master, Most ExcellentMaster and
Royal Arch.

INTERROGATORIES BY THE CHAIRMAN.

In what Lodge and at what time did you take
the three first degrees? "Answer, In St. John's
Lodge, Providence, in the winter or spring of
1826-27.

When did you take the next? Ans. The sum-
mer following. .

In the same Lodge? Ans: No; in the same
Hall, bat in what is termed the Chapter, the Prov-
idence Royal Arch Chapter.

When did you take the last degree? Ans. lam
not able to designate the precise time. T took the
three preparatory degrees in 1827, and soon after
the Royal Arch degree, which took a whole eve-
ning in performing the ceremonies.

‘Before you took the degrees, was an obligation
or oath administered to you? Ans. Yes, a dis-
tinct oath, upon taking each degree.

+ ENTERED APPRENTICE'S OATH.

Mr. Hazard.—Qan you repeat the oath that you
took as an entered prrentice ? Ans. 1can re-
peat the oath substantially. I do not know that 1
can give all the language, verbatim.

Be g0 %ood as to repeat what you do recollect.
Ans. So far as { recollect it was substantially this.
1 was made to kneel and clasp the sacred writings
with the square and compass in this form. The
Master of the Lodge then addressed me in lan.
guage like this Before you proceed any farther
it is necessary for you to take an oath or obliza-
tion ; this oath will not interfere with your reli-

ion or politics. Have you any objections to take
it? On signifying my assent, he directed me to
repeat the oath after him, calling my own name.
1 would not be understood as giving the language
verbatim, which was used'in introducing the oath,
but the sense and substance. The Master then
groceeded fo adininister the oath by sentences, to

e repeated after him, as I was utterly ignorant of
it ; ignorant masonically, for as I afterwards found
1 had seen the oath before, substantially.

Mr. Hazard. Where had you seen it? Ans. In
a book called Morgan’s Illustrations which had ac-
cidentally fallen into my hands.

Mr. Hazard. [To Mr. Haile,' who was writing
down the testimony.] You need not go too fast, Mr.
Haile. It isbest to have it all down, because Mr.
Thacher has got to sign it. Well Sir, (to the wit-
ness) repeat it as you recollect it.

Witness. 1 proceeded afier the Master, sentence
by sentence, and said,
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“1, Moses Thacher, of my own free will and ac-
cord, in presence of Alngbty God and this wor-
shipful Lodge of Free and accepted Mason, dedi-
cated to God, and held forth to the Holy Order of
St. John, do hereby and hereon, moét solemnl
and sincerely promise and swear, that I will al-
ways hail, ever conceal, and never reveal any art
or arts, dpart or parts, point or points, of the secrets,
arts and mysteries of ancient Freem: y, which
I have heretofore received, am about to receive,
or may hereafter be instructed in, to any person of
persons in the known world, except it be to a true
and lawful brother Mason, (I think i4 the mode of
expression ; I am not certain as to that mode,) or in
the body of a lawfully constituted Lodge of such,
and not unto him or unto them whom 1 shall hear
so to be, but unto him or them only whom 1 shall
find so to be, after strict trial, due examination or
lawful informatfon.

I furthermore promise and swear, that I will not
write, print, stain. stamp, hew, cut, carve, engrave,
or indent it, upon anything movable or immeva-
ble, under the whole canopy of Heaven, whereby
or whereon the least letter, figure, mark, character,
stain, shadow, or resemblance of the same, shall
become legible or intelligible to myself or any other
person, whereby the secrets of Free Masonry may
be unlawfully obtained, through my unworthiness.
To all which I do most sincerely and solemnly
promise and swear, without the least equivocation,
mental reservation, or secret evasion of mind, in
me whatever, binding myself under noless pen-
alty than to have my throat cut acress, [the Master
at th's time drew the handle of his Mallet, as I af-
terwards found it to be across my throat] my tongue
torn out by the roots, my body buried in the rough
sands of the sea, at low water mark, where the tide
ebbs and flows twice in twenty-four hours. [The
oath closes with the legal form, { believe] So help
me God and keep me steadfast in the due perform-
ance of the same. :

Ferrow CrRAFT's OaTH.

Mr. Hazard.—Be so good as to state what addi-
tions there were in the oath you took, in the degree
of Fellow Craft.

Witness.—The candidate swears to obey all signs
and summons of a fellow craft Mason—to support
the Constitution, and by-laws of the Lodge, and of
the Grand Lodge under which it is held. I was told,
as in the preceding degree that the oath was not to
interfere with my religion or politics.

Mr. Hazard, { will read you the Fellow Craft’s
Oath from Allyn’s Ritual, and ask you it itis the
same you took ? [Mr Haile read it accordingly.]

Witness.—The oath I took was to support the
Constitution of the Grand Lodge ; not the Grand
Lodge of the United States; The nath read from
Allyn is the substance of the one I took.

Mr. Hazard.—What did you understand by the

length of your cable tow ?

I%’itncss.—At the time the degree was given, I
did not understand what that expression meant. [
afterwards learned fromPa Mason, that it meant a
certain distance, according tothe degree. In the
Master’s degree, it is understcod to mean three
miles. [t was not explained to me at the time.

Master Mason’s Oarm.

Mr, Hazard.—Will you point out the difference
in the Master Masons oath, with the preceeding
oaths? ) .

Witness.—The Master Mason swears to keep the
secrets of a brother of the same degree, murder
and treason excepted, and they left to his election.

Mr. Hazard.—1 believe that is the only essential
difference.

Witness.—Thero are several others.

Mr. Hazard.— Well, will you point them out?

Witness.—1 will point out some of them as far
as [ can recollect. In addition to hie former obli-

gations the candidate swears that he will not give
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the Master Masou's word, which he is hereafter to
receive, to any but a Mason of the same degrae,[I
do not here pretend to give the precise language of
the oath,] except upon the five ’Ieoints of feﬁowship,
and then not above his breath. That he will not give

Lthe grand hailing sign of distress, except be is in real
distress, and when he sees that sign given, or hears
the words accompanying it, he swears to fly to the
relief of the person giving the sign or uttering the
words, unless there 18 a greater probability of losing
his life, than saving the life of the personin dis-
tress.

The candidate in this degree also swears that he
will not speak evil of a urother Master Mason either
before his face or behind his back, but will apprize
him of all approaching danger, ifin his power.—
Another addition in substance is he promises and
swears that the secrets of a brother Master Mason,

iven to him in charge, as such, and he knowing
ghem to be such sbafl remain as secure and invio-
1able in his own breast as in that of the person com-
municating them, murder and treason excepted,and
there Joft at his election.
r. Haile—discretion ?)
itness—Election I think it is.

The penalty also varies, in this degree. It is that
the body be severed in two in the midst, and the
bowels burnt to ashes, and these ashes scattered be-
fore the four winds of heaven, that there mignt not
the least trace or remembrance remain, among

. men or Masons, of so vile and perjured a wretch as
{ should be if I were ever wilfully to violate any
part of this my solemn oath or obligation, of a mas-
ter mason. '{'hat is the substance of the penalty.
I am not positive of every word.

Mr. Hazard. Isitnot a part of the oath that
you will not violate the chastity of a Master Mason’s
wife, daughter, &ec. ?

Witness. Yes Sir,* I further more promise and
swear, that I will not violate the chastity of a Master
Mason's wife, mother, daughter or sister, knowing
them to be such, or suffer it to be done by others
if in my power to prevent it. i :

A question in writing having been banded to the
comrittee, Col. T'. Rivers, a (Mason) here asked,
“will the Committes receive questions from by-
standers ? I appear for no one.”

Mr. Hazard.—We will receive any information
from any citizen,and will be obliged to any who will
give information to aid in this investigation. We
shall be glad to receive any from yourself.

" Mr. Rivers. I have none to make. [Wm. Wil-
kinson, Esq. a high mason, and Mr. Rivers here
held some conversation aside.] .

Mr. Hazard then read the Mark Master’s oath
from Allyn, Mr. Simmons reading the conclusion.
Is that the substance of the oath? Itis so faras I
canrecollect. I believe the phraseology is different
in reference to the Mark and the Jewish She-
kel of silver.

[B. F. Hallett presented questions in writing, re-
lative to the ceremony representing the killing
of Hiram Abiffin the Masters degree, and the re-
ference it had to the penalty. The Commitete did,
not put the questions.]  °

Thomas Rivers, Esq. here presented a question
in writing for Mr. Hazard to put, but before it was
put, Mr. il said he would waive it for the present,
and it was returned to him.

Mr. Simmons read the Most Excellent Master’s
oath from Allyn, and asked if that was correct.

WM.—{‘M was substantially as I received it,
so far as I can recollect. ~

[Mr. Hazard wasagain requested to put the ques-
tion relative to the ceremony of killing Hiram Abiff,
but declined.] :

Witness here said there was a point in the Mas-
ter Mason’s oath, relative to obeying all signs and
summonses, which he belisved' he fud on'ﬁued to
n-‘ti: before. He then stated that part of the obli-
gation.

v

Rovar Arcu Oath.

Mr. Simmons.—Do you recollect the variations
of the Royal Arch oath from the preceding oaths?
It would be preferable for you to give them.

Witness,—They do not readily occurto me, and
I should probably omit some in pointing out the
differences. 1 can state them as far as my recol-
eclion extends.

Mr. Hazard.—Do you recollect any clause to
keep the secrets of a brotlier Companion, murder
and treason not excepted ? .

Witness.—1 do not recollect that phraseology.

Mr. Simmons then read the oath from Allyn, and
asked if that was correct. [The clause in the oath,
asgiven in Allyn,is to keep all the secrets, without °
exception.]

Witness.—The oath, go far as I recollect, is sub-
stantially the same as was administered to me. I
do not recollect the words “right or wrong® being
administered to me. The words murder and trea-
son not excepted, were not in the oath I took. I do
not recollect the promise to employ a (Compaunion.
Royal Arch Mason, in preference to another per-
son.

On being further questioned, witness replied, I
am confident that I was sworn to assist a companion
Royal Arch Mason when in any difficulty, and to
extricate him from the same, if within my power.—
I have no recollection of any kind of difficulty be-.
ing excepted. He was to be assisted when in diffi-
culty. The penalty I recollect distincly as read,
to have my scull smote off, and my brains expos-
ed to the scorching rays of the sun. I do not rec-
ollect any further material variation from the oath
as now readto me. .

Question put by request.—What was the form
in which you were sworn to keep the secrets of a
Royal Arch Mason ?

Witness.—To the best of my recollection it was
to keep all secrets of a Companion Royal Arch Ma-
son, communicated to me as such, and 1 knowing
them to be such.

Mr. Simmons.—Were there no exceptions as to
the kind of secrets you were to keep ? "

Witness.—No. 1recollect there were exceptions
in t}lxle pregceding degrees, but I do not recollect any
in this,

[A question in writing was here handed to the
Chairman, asking the situation in which witness
was placed to receive the oath, and the nature of
the ceremon{ of representing God appearing to
Moses in the burning bush. The Chairman did not
put the questions.] ’

Mr. Stmmons put the following question by re-
quest. Did you evertake a check degree and if so
please explain it ?

Witness.— After 1 had taken the three fitst degrees
in Masonry, which I received in one night, the
Master of the Lodge said to me, hefore you leave -
the hall it is necessary for you to take an oath, in
consequence of a book which has been published,
revealing the secrets of Freemasonry or of the Order,
I do not remember which. He fumher said that it .
was necessary for me to do this in order to yisit
other Lodges, and said “if other folks get our keys,
we must put. on new locks.” That was his ex-
pression. The oath was then administered to me,
the general terms of which were that I would not
give the word or sign about to be communicated to
me, except in a Lodge, ‘or ‘at the door of such, when
about to be examined for admission. It was in-
tended as a key for admission into Lodges. Inever
made use of it but once.

Mr. Hazard.—1 dont see but they will have
their hands full of making new secrets.

Question by request. Was there any penalty
attached to this oath? ‘

Witness. No corporeal penalty. 1 think the
penalty was to be disgrace or expulsion for dis-
closing this sign.

. Question by Thomas Rivers. (Mason.)
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After taking thege several obligations, did yon
not receive a charge, and did you not consider it
binding ?

Witness.— After taking each of the two first
degrees, a charge wasread to me [Mr Moses Rich-
ardson here handed to Mr Simmons Webb'sMonitor
and referred to the charge.]

Mr Simmons —1f I read the charge to you frem
Webb, will youa reccollect if that was the charge
you received in the(first degree.

Witness.—I presume I can.

Mr. Simmons here read the following trom Webb’s
Monitor a book published to the world by Masone.

Charge at initiation into the first Degrce.

Brother, As you are now introduced into the first
principles of Masonry, I congratulate you on being
accepted into this ancient and honorable order; an-
cient as having subsisted from time immemorial;
and honorable, as tending in every particular, so to
render all men, who will be conformable to its pre-
cepts. No institution was ever raised on a better
principle, or more solid foundation; nor were ever
more excellent rules and useful maxims laid down,
than are inculcated in the several masonic lectures.
‘The greatest and best of men in all ages have been
encouragers and promoters of the art, and have
never deemed it derogatorz from their dignity to
level themselves with the fraternity, extend their
privileges, and patronise their assemblies. There
are three great duties which, as a mason, you are
charged to inculcate, to God, your neighbor, and
yourself. Fo God, in never mentioning his name,
but with that awe and reverence which is ever due

.from a creature to his ereator; Lo implore his aid in
all your laudable undertakings; and to esteem him
as the chief good;—to your neighbor; in acting
upon the square, and doing unto him as you wish he
should do unto you:—and to yourself; in avoiding
all irregularity and intemperance, which may im-
pair your faculties, or debase the dignity of your
profession. A zealous attachment to these duties
will ensure ‘public and private esteem. In the
state, you are to be a quiet and peaceable subject,
true to your government, and just to your country;

ou are not to countenance disloyalty or. rebellion,
{ut patiently submit to legal authority, and conform
with cheerfulness to the government of the country,
in which you dive. In your outward demeanor be
particularly careful to avoid censure or reproach;
and beware of those who may artfully endeavor to
insinuate themselves into your esteem, with a view
to betray your virtuous resolutions, or make you
swerve trom the principles of this institution. Let
not your interest, favour, or grejudice, bias your in-
tegrity or influence you to be guilty of a dishonor-
able action ; but let your conduct and behaviour be
regular and uniform, and your deportment suitable
to the dignity of your profession. Although your
frequent appearance at our regular meetings is
earnestly solicited, yet it is not moant that masonry
should interfere with your necessary vocations;
for these are on no account to be neglected, neither
are you to suffer your zeal for the institution, to
lead” you into disputes with those who, through
ignorance, may ridicule it. Af your leisure hours
you are to study the liberal arts and sciences; and
that you may improve in masonic disquisitions, con«
verse with well-informed brethren, who will be
always as ready to give, as you will be to receive,
instruction. Finally ; keep sacred and inviolable
the mysteries of the order, asthese are to distinguish
you from the rest of the community, and mark your
consequence among masons. If, in the circle of
your acquaintance, you find a person desirous of
being initiated into masonry, be particular by atten-
tive not to recommend him, unpless you are con-
vinced he will conform to our rules ; that the honour,
glory, and reputation of the institution wmay be firmly
established and the world at large be convinced of
ate good cffects - t T

o
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After reading the charge from Webb’s Monit

in the first dogree, Mr. Simmons inquired of 1

witness if that charge was delivered to him ?

Witness. I think that was read to me, or the st
stance of it.

Mr. Simmons. Did you consider it binding ¢

Witness. 1 paid but little attention to it at t
time. Iknew it was printed,-and I could read it
my leisure.

Mr. Simmons. Did you consider the charge bin
ing on you as a Mason ?

Witness. A portion of it I considered binding .
me before I was a Mason—so far as it enjoined mc
al obligations.

Mr. Hazard. You paid but little attention to
but considered it was binding on you as 2 Mason

Witness. 1 do not recollect I Lad any distinct ir.
pression of the charge. I received it as advice .
connexion with the oaths. My aitention was mon
particutarly turned to what were ¢alled the secre
of Masonry, than to what I knew had been publis ]
ed, and could be examined another time.

Mr. Simmons. Was a Lecture read toyou in th
Fellow Crait’s degree?

Witness. I distinctly recollect rpceiving a charg
in that degree to be always ready to assist in seein,
the laws and regulations of Masonry duly executed

Mr. Simmons then read the charge from Webb
ip the Fellow Craft’s degree, p. 71, and also th
charge in the Master Mason's degree, from Webb
p- 79, as follow — '

Charge at Initiation into the Sccond Dagree.

BrorHERr,~—Being advanced to the second degrec
of Masonry, we congratulate you on your prefer-
ment. The internal, and not external qualifications
of a man, are what masonry regards. As you in-
crease in knowledge, you will improve in social in-
tercourse. It is unnecessary to recapitulate the
duties which, as a mason, you .are bound to«lis-
charge ; or enlarge on the necessity of a strict ad-
herence to them, as your own experience must
have established their value. Our laws and regu-
lations you are strenuously to support; and be al-
ways ready to assist in seeing them duly executed.
You are nqt to palliate, or aggrayate the offences of
your brethren ; but, in the decision of every tres-
pass against our rules, you are to judge with can-
dour, admonish with friendship, and reprehend with

ustice. The study of the liberal arts, that valua-

le branch of education, which tends so effectually
to polish and adom the mind, is carnestly recom-
mended to your consideration ; especially the sci-
ence of geometry, which is established as the basis
of our art. Geometry or Masonry, originally sy-
nonymous terms, being of a divine and moral nature,
is enriched with the most- useful knowledge ; while
it proves the wonderful properties of nature, it de-
monstrates the more important truths of morality.
Your past behaviour and regular deportment havo
merited the honour which wu have now conferred ;
and in yournew character, it is expected that you
will conform to the principles of the order, by steadi-
ly persevering in the practice of every commenda-
ble virtue. Such is the nature of your cngagements
as a fellow craft, and to thesc duties yoyare bound
by the most sacred ties.*

Charge at Initiationinto the Third Degree.

BrorneR— Your zeal for the Insitution of Mason-
ry, the progress you have made in the mystery, and
your stedfast conformity to our regulations, have
pointed you out as a propcr object of our favor and
esteem. You are now bound by duty, honer and
gratitude, to be faithful to your trust, to support
the dignity ot your character on every occasion :
and to enjoin by precept and example, obedience to
the tenets of the Order. Exemplary conductis
expected from you, to convince the world, thar
merit is the title to our privileges, and that on you
our favors are not undeservedly bestowed. In the
character of a Master-Mason, you arc authorised to
corgect the errois and irrogularities of your uniu-




formed brethren and to guard tham against a breach
of fidelity, and every allurement in vicious prac-
tices. To preserve the reputation of the fraternity
unsullied, must be your constant care ; and for this
purpose, it is your province,to recommend to your
inferiors, obedience, and submission : to your equals,
courtesy and affability ; to your superiors, kindness
and condescension. Universal benevolence you
are always to inculcate ; and, by the regularity of
your own behaviour,afford the best example for
the conduct of others less informed.  The encient
lard-marks of the Order, entrusted to your care,
you are carefully to preserve ; and while you cau-
tion the inexperienced against a breack of fidelity ;
never suffer them to be infringed, or countenance a
deviation from the established usages and customs
of the fraternity Your virtue, honor and reputa-
tion, are concerned in supporting, with dignity, the
respectable character you now bear. Let no mo-
tive, therefore, make you swerve from your duty,
violate your vows, or betray your trust, but beirue
and faithful, and imitate the ezample of that cele-
brated artist, whom you this evening represent,
Thus you will rerider yourself deserving of the hon-
or which we have conferred, and merit the confi-
dence that we have reposed.*

The question which had been previously handed
to the Chairman of the Committee was again writ-
ten and handed to Mr. Sprague, one of the commit-
tee, the first question having been torn up by
the Chairman. Some conversation passed between
Mr. Hazard and Mr. Sprague.

Mr. Hazard. - It seems to be insisted on that this
question must be put.  What celebrated Artist is
referred to in the Master's Charge just read to you
whom you represented, and in what manner did you
nlepn:-ent him, and has it any reference to the pen-
alty ?

_ Witness.. 1t refersto Hiram Abiff, ar Hiram the
Widow's Son, who was said to have been slain, for
refusing toreveal the Master Mason’s Word, and
whom the candidate is made to represent by being
knocked down, and laid out as if he were dead,and
is then brought to lifé. Tbat is'a part of the histo-
ry of the degree as explained to me that evening,
in connexion with the penalties of the three first
degrees. ’

Mr. Moses Richardson (Mason) here turned to
another charge in Webb.

Mr. Hazard. Here is another charge, 1 read it
fo know if it was read to you. It iy in Webb's
Monitor, page 99. ’

You agree to be a good man and true,and strictly
toobey the moral law. You agrec to be a peacea-
ble subject, and cheerfully to conform to the laws
of the country in which you reside. You promise
not to be concerned in plotsand conspiracies against
government, but patiently to submit to the decisions
of the supreme legislatnre. You agree to pay a
proper respect to the civil magistrate, to work dili-
gently, live creditably, and act honourably by all
men. You agree to hold in veneration the original
rulers and patrons of the order of masonry and their
regular successors, supreme and subordinate accord-
ing totheir stations; and to submit to the awards
and resolutions of your brethren in general chapter
convened, in every case consistent with the consti-
tution of the order. You promise to reapoct genu-
ine brethren, and to discountenande impostors, and

1

—_—
* The ahove charges, upon which much stress was
Jaid by Masons in this investigation, are given verbatim,
(except a part of the first charge,) in Bernard's Light on
Mnsourx, pages 25,52, and 74. In the account there
given of the three first degrees, it is said, * the following
charze is, or ought to be delivered to the candidate, but
he is generally told, “it is in the Monitor and you can
Jearn it at your leisure.” Thus it will be seen that Ma-
sonry has had the credit of all the maxims conveyed in
*hese charges, from the time of the first disclosures of her
deromonies and obligations, made i this eountny.

-
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all dissenters from the eriginal plan of masonsy’
You agree to promote the general good of society,
to cultivate the social virtues, and to propagate the
knowledge of the art. You promise to pay homage
to the Grand Master for the tine being, and to his
officers when duly installed ; and strictly to confornr
to every edict of the Grand Lodge, or General As-
semhly of Masons, that is not subversive of the prin-
ciples and ground work of masonry. You admit
that it is not in the power of any man, or body of
men, to make innovatien in the body of masonry.

You promise a regular attendance on the com-
mittees and commaunications of the Grand Lodge,
on receiving proper notice, and to pay attention to
all the duties of masonry, on convenient occasi.n-.
You agree that no visitors shall be received into
_your Lodge without due examination, and produc-
ing proper vouchers of their having beén initiated
in a regular lodge.” ) -

Witness. 1 do not recollect hearing that read to
me.

[The above charge is given to the Master of a,
Lodge, on his installment as such, by the Grand
Master, and not toindividual members.]

Mr, B. F. Hallett, here requested' the bommit-‘
tee to notice the Masonic qualification given to the’
\injunction to obey the civil laws. He referred

r. Hazard to Dermott’s Ahimman Rezon ({he book
of Constitutions so highly extolled by Deputy’
General Grand High Priest Poinsett, at his inangu-
ration in Washington) On page 81 of that book,
the following qualification is given of the Masonic
injunction to obey the civil Magistrate, which Mr.
Hazard read.

“Of old, kings, princes and states encouraged the’
Fraternity for their loyalty, who ever flourished
most in times of peace; but though a brother is not
countenansed in his rebellion against the State, ver
IF CONVICTED OF No OTHER CRIME, his relation
to the Lodge remains indefeasible.”

The same principle is fuily recognized in the fol-
lowing extract from a book of . the highest Masonic
authority in Rhode Island and Massachusetts.

Secrion Il. Of Gevernment and the Civil
Magistrate.

“So that if a brother should be a REBEL
AGaINsT THE STATE, he is not to be counte-
nanced in his rebellion, however he may be pitied’
as an unhappy man, AND IF CONVICTED OF NO
OTHER CRIME, though the loyal Brotherhood must
and ought to disown bis rebellion and give no um-
brage or ground of political jealonsy to the gov-
ernment for the time being, THEY CANNOT EXPEL
HIM FROM THE LODGE, ann mis riratTidk 1o
IT REMAINS INDEFEASIBELE."—S8ee Massachusetts
Book of Constitutions, p. 166. Edited by Thad
deus M. Harris, and published by the samction of
the Grand Lodge. )

So says James Hardie, in his Masonic Mouitor,
p. 163, of the distinct duties of a Mason as a citi-
zen and a Mason. “In civil government, he is to’
be firm'in his allegiance, yet steadfast in defence
of our (the Masonic,) laws, liberty, and constitu-
tion.’

Note. [It will thus be seen, that by the constitution®*
and the practices of Masonry, TREASON AGAINST THF
STATE, and the MURDER of a Mason who violates his
oath, are not accounted crimes of sufficient magnitude,
to authorize expulsion from a Lodge!! It well becomes
a Society, avowing and practising such ?rincip]es, to
talk of ‘“submission to the civil magistrate,” and requir+’
ing its members “ to be true to their government, and
just to their country,” when they have the full sanction of
the Lodge to rebel against that government, and retain’
entire f«ﬁlbwship with Masonry. It will also be seen by
the above extract that the loyal brethren only are re-’
quired to disavow the rebellion, but those who desire te?
be dislayal, are left at entire liberty to aid the traitor, and;
join in 4is treason, without any censure from Masonry !

P
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Mr. Hazard (after reading the extraet from Der-
mott.) Yes I see how it is. To the witness. Is
this beok of Constitutions by Laurence Dermott,
ealled the Ahiman Rezon a standard authority in
the New England Lodges ?

Witness. 1 have never known it Masonically to
be a standard authority in the N. England Lodges.
It is an authority highly respected by Masons.

Mr. Hazard. Is the Free Mason’s Monitor by
Thomas S. Webb, a standard authority among
masons ? .

Witness. I understand it to be so, but supersed-
ed, in some measure by

used in the Lodges. Webb and Cross are under-
stood to be used by Masous as authority, indiscrimi-
nately without preference.

Ahiwan Rezon, to be an authority, masonically,
what do you mean ? '

Witness. 1mean I never was informed as a Ma-
son/ by a Mason, that it was such.

Mr. Hazard. Here produced several newspa-
pers and pamphlets. 1nthe Providence American
of Sept. 17, 1831, 18 an Address to the Grand Lodge
of Rhode Islaud signed Moses Thatcher. Were
you the author of that Address ?

Witness—after examining it. 1 was. A

Mr. Hazasd. Here is a pamphlet addressed te
the Chureb of Northk Wrentham in 1829, published
in Bostofi. 1s that yoars ¥

Witness—Rt is. -

Mr. Hazard—Here are Letters addressed toa
brother, in the €hurch on seceding from Masonry,
signed Moses Thacher 1829.

Witness—F published those letters..

Mr. Hazard. Inthe American of Sept. 27, 1831,

is a letter to you signed Claleb Sayles,jtaken from |.
“Wrentham, the last time 1 was in the Lodge, this

the M?uonic Mirror. Have you seen that state-
ment

Witness. I haveseen it in the Masonic' Mimror,
and I believe in the Microcosm.

Mr. Hazard—1 have alluded to these papers, be-
cause the Committee may wish to ask you some
questions in explanation of these statements.

Witness. I will give the committee all the infor- |

mation in my power. )

Mr. Hazard. The testimony in this invesﬁi‘-
tion is of immense importance to every body. To
the Mascns themselves and to the community. It

amination so that no one shall have cause to com-
plain, and with that understanding it is desirable
that no more questions should be suggested in writ-
ing fgg the Committee to put, than are absolutely
necssary.

Question by request. Are the statements of the
ceremonies of imitation, &ec. give in Barnard’s
Light on Masonry, and Allyn’s Ritual, correct so
far ag you have taken the degrees ?

Witness. They are substantially the same I
have received and seen administered in Lodgen. 1
have been in the Lodge in Providence where I re-

ceived the lower degrees, in St. Albans Lodge, | P

Massachusetts, and once attended the Graod Lodge
in Boston. The Lodges I have examined agree in
their ceremonies and mode of working.

Inever attended the Chapter after } was initiat-
edin the Royal Arch degree.

Question by request. Was the declaration that
your oath was not to interfere with your religion or
politics made to you, previous to taiing the Royal
Arch oath.

Witness. 1have no recollection whether itwas
or was not used in that degree. I recollect it dis-
tinetly in the first degree.

Mr. Simmons. Did you have Morgan's illustra-
tiens in your pocket or ahout you, when you went
isto the Lodge at Providence to take the degrees ?

the Chart of Jeremy L. |t
Cross. 1 do not know Masonieally that Cross is |

* is the intention of the Comnmittee to conduct the ex- |,

Witness. 1 had not.
gan’s book, after I was propounded, but on being
assured by a Mason of good standing that it was
not true, I paid but very little attention to it.

['Fhe above question appeared to have beenasked
by Mr. Simmons,. at the verbal suggestion of ‘one
of the by-standers,who was a Mason. It being &

uarter before 2 o’cloek, the Cominittee adjourned.
?n the course of the examination this forenoon that
art of Mr. Thacher’s testimony, as taken down by
‘h’rlr. Haile, as far as the inquiry into the check de-
ree, was read to witness by Mr. Haile, but no fa-

r.

W;ldmda a) , Dec. 7—The Committes
met at 3 o,clock, and resumea the examination of
Mr. Thacher. -

[Mr. Hazard handed to Mr. Simmons a number

Mr. Simmons. When you speak of not knowing lof “interrogatories, in the hand writing of Thomas

Rivers, Esq. a Mason. They were put as follow :

Mr. Simmons. Were all the degrees eonferred
on you, on aceount of yous profession, (as a cler-
gyman) gratuitously ? )

Witness. They were. I paid no fee for them.

Mr. Simmons. Did you ever consider yourself
bound to favor a mason to the injury of others, in
consequence of your masonic obligations ?

Witness. I never considered myself so bound.

Mr. Simmons. While & member of the Lodge,
did you know of any higher punishment being in-
flicted, for a violation of Masonic obligation, than
expulsion ?

Witness. Npo; nor had 1 any personal knowl-
edge of any memboer having beeniexpelled.

Mr. Simmons. Did you ever hear the question
of higher penalties than expulsion discussed in the
lodge ; if so, when and whkere, and uader whet
circumstances ?

Witness. Yes 1 did. 1n St. Albans Lodge, in

subject was talked about. The members present,
who had taken the higher degrees were silent on
the subject, except one. Those of the lower de-

-grees expressed tieir opinions. They were vari--
ous.

My. Simmons. At what time was this ?

Witness. The 13th of May, 1829, in St. Albans-
Lo%e in Wrentham.

[Witness here referted to a note he had of the
transaction.]

Mr. Stmmons. Was'it a meeting of the Lodlge ?

Witness. It wab a regular Lodge meeting, I do
not know if there was a Tyler at the door. Ithink
on reflection that Esquire Fiske,a high Mason,who
was present, was the orie who exprsssed an opin-
ion on the subject. The question was proposed in
this form. In what'light are Masonic penalties to
be considered, not whether they had been inflicted,
but in what light they were to be considered..
There was no vote taken.

Mr. Hazard. Did you notsay just now, that you-

knew of no higher penalty than expulsion ?
Witness. Persopally I did not, nor was I ever

resent when any one was expelled. 1 have been-

informed that I have- been expelled myself.

Mr. Hazard. Who were present when this mat--
ter was talked about,and was it notafter the Lodge
was closed ?

Witness. Tt was in open Lodge. There were
present, Josiah J. Fiske,* Rev. Luther Wright,
Anson Mann, Samuel Druce, Esq. and Asa Ware,
Jr. Secretary, or acting as such. Others werey
present. -

* Mr. Fiske is the second member of the Hanorable
Council of the State of Massachusetts. He was chosen
the present year. having the highest number of votes,
while Russell Freeman, Fisq. charged with the erime of

ition to the Masonic candidate for Congress from:.

Bristol District, was not re-elested.

T had can’nlg reen Mor~




-~

Mr. Hazard.. That ig sufficient. How was the

subject introduced ? )
itness. As a matter of discussion and inquiry.

No motion was made. The semse of the Lodge

was not taken. ‘

Mr. Hazard. Was any member of the Lodge
ﬂresent who expressed his opinion that the Lodge

ad power to inflict any penalty but expulsion ?

Witness. No sir. 1 do not reealleet that the term
expulsion was used at nll. The explanation was
%i‘ven by one member that the candidate swears
that rather than reveal, he will suffer thus and so,
according as the penaltiesread ; and I do notrecol-
lect that any other definite opinion was expressed.
Idid not understand it as the prevailing sentiment.
No other explanation was given. itness here
suggested to Mr. Haile, who was writing down the
substance of his answers, that he wished to be un-
derstood as saying that the Mason referred to, who
explained the penalty, said, that rather than reveil
Masonic secrets he would syffer his penalties, so
and so.] )

Mr. Simmons here resumed the standing inter-
rogatories. While a Mason did you ever give your
vote for a Mason, on account of his being sue

Witness. 1 did not, nor do I remember if I ever
was placed in that situation. I do not know any
clause in the Masonic obligations 1 have taken
that literally obliged me to vote for a Mason.

Mr. Simmons proposed the following, by request
of Mr. Rivers.

Did you ever know a political question to be
discussed in & Lodge, or 2 nomination for a politi-
cal office to be made there ? ’

Witness. 1 did not. '

Question. Did you ever know a public officer
release or discharge a person accused of crime,
tipon making himself known as a Mason ?

Witness. 1 never did, of my own personal
knowledge. I suppose this question has reference
to my personal knowledge of the fact. Otherwise
I should state differently.

Question. Atthe time of taking the oaths, did
you consider that there was any tﬁing in them in-
consistent with your civil duties? c

Witness. After I had examined the oaths, I be-
came satisfied that 1 could not conform to them
literally, without violating my duty as a citizen.

Mr. Simmons. What, at the time you took
them?

Witness. I have previously stated the-circum-
stances under which the oaths were received, and
have said I had not the means to consider them
properlg'.

Mr. Simmons. How long after did you make this
discovery ?

Witness. Sometime after, [ cannot state precise-
1y, circumstances led to my examining the oaths,
and after giving the subject a thorough investiga-
tion I came to the deliberate conclusion that they
would interfere with my civil and religious duties,

Mr. Simmons. How many degiess had you taken
before you came to that conclusion ?

Witness. I formed this conclusion-after 1 had ta-
ken all the degrees I ever took. 1 had never thor-
oughly examined the subject before,and relied up-
on the faet that conscientious men had taken these
oaths before me.

Mr. Hazard. ‘'Will you explain for what reason
you considered these oaths to conflict with your
civil and religious duties?

Witness. 1suppesed that the oaths were in them-
selves unlawful, and so far [ understood them as
conﬂictir:f with my religious duties. I considered
that I had no moral right to bind myself under a
barbarous penalty to keep such secrets as those of
Masonry. I supposed too that my Masonic odths
might in certain circumstances conflict witha ju-
dicial oath, particularly in regard to that part of
the oath where the candidate swears to keep a Ma-

son's secrets, murder and treason only excepted,

and these lefl to his election. If brought upon the
stand as & witness in a Court; 1 might be called
upon to testify against a brother, under my civil
oath, where I had sworn Masonically not to testify,
and where my Masonic oath expressly bound me
not to testify. Also that part of the oath which
bound me as @ Mason to warn a brother Mason of
all approaching danger, if in my power. He might
be in danger of being arrested as a thief, and my
Masonic oath would bind me to warn him of the
approaching danger, so that he might escape.

[A question was here handed to Mr. Simmons,
whether the Master of the Lodge explained these
oaths at the time they were given, or any other.

Mr. Hazard. Can you point to that part of your
Masonic oath which is intended for the purpose of
screening a thief from justice, or may be used for
that purpose? .

Wuness. 1 have reference to the clause I have
repeated in the Master Mason’s oath.

Mr. Hazard. What part of it.

Witness. This part, * I furthermore promise and
swear that I'will not speak evil of a brother Master
Mason, neither behind his back nor before his face,
dut will apprise him of all approaching danger, if
in my power.”” I consider the plain import and
meaning of that oath, would bind me to aid a brother
Mason to escape from justice or screen him from
punishment, if I could do 8o by warning him of bis
danger.

Mr. Hazard. You say your Maronic oath would
oblige you to aid a Mason to escape from justice.—
Am I also to understand you to mean that your Ma-
sonic oath would bind you to conceal any crime
a brother Mason should communicate to you?

Witness. IntheMaster Mason’s oath murder and
treason are the only crimes excluded, which I un-
derstand toinclude all others.

Mr. Hazard. That is true. All crimes less than
murder and treason are certainly included by that
phrasoology. That is true. It should be so stated—
turning to Mr. Haile.

Witness. Another part of the obligation J had in
my mind ‘was,that I will not give the grand hailin
sign of distress unless I am in real distress, an
should I see that sign given, or hear the words ac-
companying it, I will fly to the relief of the person
making that sign or uttering the words, if there.isa
greater probability of saving his life than loosing
my own. If I'were ona juryand the criminal on
trial should make that sign, it would be iz my pow-
er to afford him relief, and my Masonic oath would
literally bind me to do so by preventing a verdict, or
using my influence to cause a verdict in his favor.
[It wag here rsmarked to Mr. Haile (the Scribe of
the Committee) by a by-stander that he had not.
written down Mr. Thacher’s explanation. The wit-
ness, on hearing Mr. Haile’s note read on this point,
said that wasnot as he stated it. Mr. Haile finelly
wrote it down in this form, ¢ by pteventing a ver-
dict or influencing others to give a verdict in his fa-
vor.”

Witness:—My meaning is that if I was a juror,
and a biother Mason on trial should give the Grand
hailing sign of distress, my Masonic oath would re-
quire me to answer him, and afford him relief it it
were in my power.

[T. Rivers, Esq., (Mason) here presented a ques-
tion, which Mr. Hazard looked at, observing it 1s
the same thing he has said before. He however
put the question, the purport of which was to in-
quire whether he received his Masonic oaths as lit-

erally binding.] . .
W?tms.—l did receive them under their literal
construotion, as far as [ understood them, and I know
of no other standard by which to construe than ex-
cept by their plain import, in the same manner I do
the civil oath 1 have taken to day, literally to tell
the truth, the whole truth and notbing but the truth.
Mr. Hazdrd. If you had beenappointed a judge ofa
court while you were a Mason, or drawn on a jury
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)
4o try a ease between a Mason and one not a Ma-
son, should you have considered, or do you now
consider, that there is any oath that would require
you as a judge or a juror, to.favor a mason to the
injury of one not a mason ?

Witness. 1 do nat consider there is any oath
‘that would bind me so to act, becanse I would not
s0 be bound; but if | were to receive the oath, and
were to construe it in the samne manner I have the
oath you have administered to me aga witness, [
vsho]tlxld be required so to act if called upon mason-
ically.

Mr)". Hazard. Did you so consider it when you
took it.

Witness. 1did when I examined the oaths, and
for that reason I renounced them, because I found
that [ must either conformn to them, if required, and
violate my ciyil duties, or violate my masonic oath
if I complied with my civil oath. :

. [A question was here handed to Mr. Hazard from
Masons., Mr. H. said, 1t comes back to the same
thing he has answered before. Mr. Haile said,
that s tully explaingd before, and he then read to
the witness what he had taken down on that point.]

Mr. Hezard. Did you ever know any instance
of a masonic judge or juror or Sheriff, or other offi-
cer, practicing upon that iniguitious construction
of Masonic oaths, which binds him to favor a mason

“to the injury of one not a Mason, or to screen him
from justice ? .

Witness. No such transaction ever passed under
my personal knowledge, There are many things
which 1 have been informed of, and have good ovi-
d:nee to belicve, but | presume the inquiry is made
in reference to my personal knowledge.

Mr. Hazard. Did you ever know the Grand
huiling sign of distress to be given under trial, to a
judge, juror or sherifi ?

Witness. I uever did. Ido notknow that I have
been in a Court of Justice, since I was a mason,
wheu there was a trial between a Mason and one
not a Mason.

Mr. Simmons. One of the Committee (Mr.
Sprague) wishes this question to be put: Did you
ever hear the oaths, at any time, explained to you
masonically, to mean any thing other than what
thoir terms import 2 [This question had been pre-
viously handed to Mr. Simmons, and laid aside.]

Witness. I never heard themn explained inany
;v?_y. They are administered literally, and there

oft. .
Mr. Simmons. You said you had charges deliv-
ered to you, and did you not consider them bind-
ing?2 Hereis one, ‘ you agres to bea good man,
and true, and strictly to obgy the moral law.”

IWhitness. 'To what dogree does that appértain ?

Mr. Simmons. Mark Ma,sters,[ believe.

[Thischarge is not given in any degree," but to
the Master of n Lodge, on his installation.]

" Witness. 1 have no recollection of having it giv-
en to me.

Mr. Moses Richardson—(a Mason) I ought to
kuow something about it. That was given to me.

[The Masonic Chart by Jeremy L. Cross, Grand
Lecturer, was here handed to Mr. Hazard with a
request that be wonld ask an explanation of the
symbol on page 33, which represents God appear-
ing to Moses in the burning bush. Mr. H. handed
the baok to the witness.and asked what that meant.]

Winess. It represents one of the ceremonies as
performed when I received the Royal Arch degree,

he candidate is lead round the chapter blind fold-
ed, and a passage of scripture is read. ‘ Now
Moscs kept the flock of Jethro his father in-law,the
priest of Midian ; And the angel of the Lord ap-
pearéd unto hum in a flamp of fire, out of the midst
of the bu<h ; and he looked and behold the bush
burned with fire, and the bush was nlot consumed.”
The bandage is then removed from the eyes of the
eandidute, and he sees a representation similar to

prepared, so that it was made to blsze up, witho:
burning the bush. A pexson who is made to repr:
sent the Deity, stepped behin. the bush, and calle
out ¢ Moses, Moses.”” The conductor of the caix
didate answers  Here am I.” The person behin
the bush, says, “ draw not nigh-hither : put o
thy shoes from off thy feet, [the candidate’s shoe
are here taken off| for the place whereon tho
standest is holy ground. 1 am the God of thy fe
thers, the God of Abraham, the God of Isaac,an
the God of Jaceb.” The bandage is then put ove
the eyes ofthe candidate, and the person says, “An
“l:\;lo:e,s hid his face, for he was afraid to look upo
od,’

[Mr. Hazard here turned to Allyn's Ritual,
143, and read a part of the description of this cere
mony. Witness said he believed it was accuratel;
described in that book. Mr. Haile had not writte:
down any of this description. Mr. Hallett reques
ted thatit might be made a part of the deposition
He said, we consider it as a blasphemous exhibitio:
degrading the character of the Deity, and therefor
wish it may be known to the General Assembl)
that Masonic bodies are guilty of such practices.]

Mr. Hazard. Very well; but is there any way
we can get it before the General Assembly. We
can’t make these books a part of the deposition? 1t
was replied that the hooks could easily be referrec
o, and could be-produced in the Assembly, if ne-
cessary.

Mr. Huzard. Are these emblems in the Mason-
ic Chart of Cross, correctly explnined in Allyn’g
Ritual ? The witness examined both, and said they
appeared to him to be subst.ntially a delineation and
explanation of the ceremony he had witnessed, as
described in Chart, p. 33, and Allyu p. 148. I wit-
nessed the exhibition in St. John's Chapter, Provi-
dence, as described in Allyn, when J was admitted
to the Royal Arch degree, except being requested
to kneel, which I do not recollect. The other parts
I do recollect. ‘

Mr. Simmens. How long did you continue a
member of a Lodge or Chapter?

Wituces. 1 am unable to say how long 1 was
considered as a Mason. I believe about two years.

Mr. Huzard here observed, that this wasan inves-
tigation fnstituted for the information of the Gen-
eral Assembly. It was important to understand
the circumstances and feelings under which the
witnesses testified, and the committee were bound
‘to inquire into these facts. He had prepared somo
questions, himself, with this view, and ihe rest of
the committee could prepare what they pleased.—
He then proceeded to read the following interro-

atories. ) :

1. Before the several oaths were administered to
you, did you take all the means in you power ta
ascertain whether an oath would be administered,
and what you would be required to swear to ?

I made no inquiriesinto the nature of the oaths,
nor did | understand ] could be permitted to do so.
The Master of the Lodge said they would not in-
terfere with my religion or politics. The oaths in
the three first degrees were administered to me in
one night. T had no understanding in regardto the
oaths, at'the time they were administered.

Mr. Hazard. Did you not know that anmoath
would be administered ? . L

Witness. It did not occur to me before I was in-

roduced 'to the L.odge, whether an oath would be
required. I say this in reference to the first degree.
I afterwards inferred thatan oath would be adminis-
tered in all subsequent degrees.

2d. Interrogatory. When taking the oaths did
you strictly attend to them, and endeavor to compre-
hend their meaning, and what were the obligations
you were subjecting yourself to ?

Witness. ]‘did, as fu:ly as the circumstances un.
der which they were administered would admit.—
It requircd an effort, situated as I was, b renea

\

chis, (in Cross’s Chart) When X saw it a bush was

thum after the Master. :

h
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8d. Interrogatory. Did you at the time when
vou had taken the oaths, think you understood
them* Did you immediately make any inquiry to
learn how they were understood ? .

Witness. 1 did not suppose that I understoed the
oaths. I did not at that time for this reason, that |
had no [Mr. Hazard—let him get that down]] that 1
had ne opportunity for reflection, and was sensible
it would take considerable time to render the oaths
familiar. When I left the Lodge I did not immedi-
ately reflect much on the meaning -of the oaths I
had taken.

Mr. Hazard. Had you any doubts, and did you
make any inquiry ? )

Witness. 1 had some doubts, and I conversed
with a Master Mason relative to some clauses in
the oath. 1 took it for granted, without understand-
ing the oaths, that they must be harmless.

Mr. Huzard. How ? From the fact that men
of principle had taken them before me and from the
assurance of the Master that it would not interfere
with my religion or politics, and I did not turn my
-attention to them particularly for some months af-
ter.

Mr. Hazard. On what particular account did
you do so?

Witness. 'The circumstances that led me more
particularly to examine the subject were theintelli-
gence received from the West respecting the Mor-
gan ontrage, and the disclosures at Le Roy of se-
ceding Masons, at the meeting held there in-the
summer of 1823 [July 4th and ath, 1828.]

Mr. Huzard. Upon having then recpnsidered
the oaths, did you immediately announce to the
Lodygo that you were dissatisfied and should secede?

Witness.” 1did not. [ proceeded to examine
the subject, but did not announce my intention till
1829, when I delivered an address on the subject.—
1 had some scruples n regard to the vaths, before I
xvas aware they were so exceptionable, but did not
communicate my views, until I proceeded thorough-
1y to examine them. I then stated to the Lodge
the principal reasons I had at that time in my mind,
why I wished to withdraw. - .

4tl. Interrogatory. Did you refloct after taking
each oath upon the nature and extent and force of
it,and if you had any objections, did you state
those objections to the Lodge ?

I¥itness. Thatquestion I have already answer-
ed. -Mr. Hazard assented.

5th Interrogatory. Was it your understanding
when you took the oaths, that thereby,as far as was
in your power, you gave jurisdiction to the Lodge,
o execute upon you the penalties,or to take your life

- in the manner described in the penalties, and did
you consider that you shared in the same power and
jurisdiction with t{e Lodge, oyer others?

Witness. When I took jthe oaths I did not so
consider them, for as I have before stated, I Had no
opportunity to form a correct conclusion, but when
1 took the subject seriously into ¢onsideration, I
Qgrtainly came to that conclusion. .

Mr. Huazard. Butdid you when you took the
oath consider you gave jurisdiction to ‘the Lodge
over your life ? :

Witness. 1say no, in the form the question is
pul to me. The circumstances under which the
oaths are given, render it jmpossible to understand
them at the time, but when I came to give my at-
tention to a consideration of the oaths, I received
that impression of their import.

Mr. Hazurd. You have said that ne man can
understand the oath when;he takes it. 1 should
think softoo.

_Mr. Huile, I understand Mr. Thacher (o say he
did not then consider when he took the oath, that
he gave jurisdiction to the Lodge to inflict the pen-
alty, because he had not time to consider the oaths,
bt when he did oxumine thew, he came to' that
youclusgion.

Mr. Hazard. And because it was not yntil zome

time after, he gave attention to the import of the’ .
oaths as expressed.

Vitness. That is correct, as I have before stat-
ed. - The circumstances under which the oaths are
administered, render it impossible for the candidate
to take the real sense of them without farther re-
fleetion. !

6th Interrogatory. What do you consider the
secrets or mysteries of Masonry to be? "Do you .
know of any others than those disclosed in Bernard
and Allyn? ' ‘

Watiiess. I consider that those. works contain all’
the secrets to the 7th degree inclusive, so far as I
was instructed. I know of no others that are called
Masonic secrets.

Yth Interrogatory. Are the Constitutions and
By-Laws of Lodges printed and published ?

Witness. The Book of Constitutions so called
ja published. There is also a Charter which each
Lodge holds from the Grand Lodge, and each
Chapter from the Grand Chapter. T never saw
them published. The Cbarter in St. Alban's
Lodge is engrossed on parchment, and the By-
Laws are in writing,and were read at stated times
I know of no other By-laws in any otber Lodge.

Mr. Hazard. When you were initiated herey
did you not sign the By-laws?

Witness. 1 do not recollect writing my name.

8th Interregatory. Do vyou know of any other
oath or obligation up to the 7th degree, except those
you have specified ?

Witness. 1 know of none.

9th Interrogatory. Did you understand the oaths
you had taken were in conflict with your civil and
religious duties ?

Wilness. That question I have answered before.

Mr. Hazard. You say in your address to the
Grdnd Lodge of Rhode Island, * that you had g
conversation, just before you joined the Lodge,
with an intelligent Mason in Providence, concern-
ing reports from the West, who assured you that it
was nothing but a political manceuvre, and that
there was nothing of Masonry in Morgan's Illustra-
tions.”” Who was that gentleman?

Witness. Is it necessary for me to answer that
question ?

Mr. Hazard. Itis. . . .

Witness. My only objection arises from personal
feeling.

My. Hazard. There need be none. You are
called upon under your oath. . )

Myr. Moses Richardson, who -was standing near
the table, said, There is none on my part.

Witness. 1 had that conversation with Major
Moses Richardson, my uncle, who stands before
me, and from whemn I received those assurances
and was perfectly satisfied with them at the time.
E[t should here be observed, that the remark made

y Mr. Richardson, before the name of the indwvid-
ual with whom Mr. Thacher held the conversation
had been mentioned by any one, furnishes conclu-
sive evidence that Mr. Richardson koew of that
conversation, and anticipated that Mr. Thacher
would name hiwn.

Mr. Huzard. Youalso say in that address that
on coming out of the Lodge, you expressed your
surprise to some one that you'had received thres
degrees in one night, and that he replied you could -
not have got off very well without. Saidthey did not
formerly give but one in an evening, but since the
Morgan book came out, the Grand Lodge had issu-
ed a dispensation to all its subordinate Lodges, that
they hould not confer the first degree, without the
second and third the same evening. Who was that
person ?

Witness. My cousin Wm. E. Cutting, of Prov-
idence.

11th Interrogatory. In that same address you
say, “Masons of high standing in Lodge and Chap-
ter have repeatedly declared thatif Morgan was
put to death, he had met his deseryed fate,und had
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paid 0o more than thelife he had forfeited by the
mfraction of his Masonic vows.” All men must
consider that you should not have made so heavy a
charge as this, of a justification of murder by your
fellow citizens unless you were fully warrantod in
it. It {3 a very important charge.

Witness. 1 stated that, ‘as one of the considera-
tions which brought me to the conclusion that it was
a principle in Masonry that the violator of Masonic
oaths ought to suffer death. I stated it from what
1 had heard from ethers, and believed, as I consid-
ered, on sufficient authority. . I did not say I had
heard it myself.

“Mr. Hazard. You made that assertion then on
information from others, upon whom you thought
you could depend ?

Witness. I stated iton the ground I should any
other historical fact I believed.

Mr. Hazard. Who were these persons from
whom you derived this information ?

Witness. Mr. Warren, a clergyman of Plymouth,
Mass. told me he had heard the High Priest ofa
Chapter express an_opinion that Morgan had met
his deserved fate. He did not give the name of the
High Priest. ‘

Mr. Haile Was Mr. Warre:f a Mason, or a se-
ceder ?
Witness. He said he was a Mason. I never sat

in a ‘Lodge with him. He is now a seceding Ma-
son. He was not 8o considered at the time he told
me this fact. I bad no knowledge of his being a
seceder at that time.

Mr. Hazard. Do you recollect any other per-
son ?

Witness. 1 have heard it spoken of by others,
whose names do not now occur to me,-and I have
geen evidence of such opinions having been
avowed by Masons, sufficient to satisfy my mind.

Mr. Hazard. Had you reference to what this Mr.
Warren had said, in your address ? 5
" Witness. 1 had, and also to publications from
the West, and other statements in newspapers, that
Masons had made use of similar expressions.

12th Interrogatory by Mr, Hagzard. In your Ad-
dress to the Grand Lodge of R. I. you state a con-
versation witha Mr. Sayles respecting the alleged
murder ofa man who illegally made a Mason, some
years ago, in or near Providence. The conversa-
t,u;;)n alluded tois stated in Mr. Thacher’s address,
thus :-

In the summer or autumn of 1828, a Mr.
Sayles, a gentleman of high standing in the masonic
fraternity, who is considered what is technieally
ealled a ‘bright mason,’ riding with me on my er-
turn from St. Alban’s lodg'e in Wrentham, related,
substantially, the following circumstances :—A
member of the masonic institution,some years since,
whom I will call A. B., and who lived in one of the
back towns of Rhode Island, took C. D. and made
him a mason, as the masons would say, “illegally;”
giving him such instructions that he ““worked him-
self into a lodge.” C. D. retajned this illegal stand-
ing for some time, and rendered himself so familiar
with the ‘work,’ that he obtained an office, I think
that of junior or senior warden. By and bye, how-
ever,it ‘leaked out’ that C. D. had been madea
mason illegally, and by whom ; when the lodge
¢made him over again,” and he was suffered to re-
tain his standing with the fraternity. Soon after
this, A. B. who had thus violated his masonic obli-
gations, happened to be in Providence at the time
the grand lodge was in session, which summoned
him to appear before them. A.B. obeyed the sum-
mon, and was by the grand lodge ‘put out of the

_way,’ so secretly, that his friends thought he bad

absconded, and this was the general report. The
manoerin which this last act was conducted, I un-
derstood Mr. Sayles to be this: The grand lodge
appointed certain resolute masons to act as execu-
tioners, who inflicted upon A. B. the penalty of his
abligation, and consigned his body down the river.

‘The narrator of these circumstannes] expressed his
regret that the ‘Morgan affair’ had not been con-
ducted as secretly, and thereby prevented all this
noise and commotion.

Mr. Hazard inquired if this was correct ?

Witness. The conversation was in substance as
there stated. I related it, not as any thing I knew
myself, but as a conversation I heard. I stated it
deliberately to the best ot my recollection.

13th Interrogatory. You say you have seen
Caleb Sayles’ address, purportinf to be a denial of
your statement, in some material patrticulars. Did
you address Mr. Sayles on this subject, or have any
explanation with him. ,

itness. I never addressed Mr. Sayles on this
subject, except through the medium of the press.

Mr. Hazard. You say that Mr. Sayles com-
municated this circumstance'to other persons be-
sides yourself : did you ever have any conversation
with those persons ?

Witness. I did not confer with them, after Mr.
Sayles came out with his reply. I conversed with
them sometime before. One of them is a Physician,
Dr. Wm. W. Pride, and has removed to Gibson,
Pennsylvania.

Mr. Hazard. Well, wherever he is, we will have
that man’s deposition.

Witness. Rev. Luther Wright was the other
1 particularly referred to. He now residesin Hol-
liston, Mass.

Mr, Hazard. Were these persons Masons ?

Witness. Yes,

Mr. Hazard. At what time did you converse
with them?

Witness. The conversation with Dr, Pride was
in the Summer or Autumn of 1828, and with the
others subsequently.

+ 14th Interrogatory. Did you immediately after
your conversation with Sayles, communicate what
you had heard him say to the Grand Lodge, and
did you make any enquiries of them, in relation to
this transaction ¢

Witness. I did not. I do not know that I was
acquainted with any member of the Grand Lodge,
except Moses Richardson.

Mr. Hazard. Did you place any reliance on the
account Sayles had given you ? .

Witress. I did.

Mr. Hazard. How long did you continue a
Mason after this? .

Witness. Perhaps four or five months after. I
dissolved my connexion with the lnstitution pub-
licly iu May. Iam unable to state the precise time
of the conversation with Mr. Sayles.

16th Interrogatory. You have stated that the
Royal Arch Oath taken by you,.did not contain the
exception in the clause as given in the Master Ma-.
son’s oath, requiring you to keep the secret of a
brother, murder and treason excepted, and that at
yourelection, This exception being omitted in the
Royal Arch oath, did you construe it you were ta
keep all secrets, including murder and treason ?—
Did you of course construe that natb that you had
not the privilege of any exception ?

Witness. That was my impression and inference
when I came to consider the oath. At the time of
taking it, I had no distinct understanding or opinion.
There were several circumstances that,led me to
an examination. One was that it was stated to me
by a Royal Arch Mason, that the oath was adminis-
tered to him as it is given in the disclosurés by the
Le Roy Convention, murder and treason not ex-
cepted. [ was satisfied I had not teken it in that
language, but on subsequent examination I con
sidered that the oath as [ had taken it, required the
concealment of murder and treason.

Witness here objected to the langnage Mr. Haile
(the Scribe of the Committee) had used in putting
down his answers. Mr. H. then wrote it over
again in this form. At the time the oath was ad-
ministered to me I had no distinct impression or
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opinion, but on subsequent examination I supposed
that the literal expression of the oath required the
concealment of murder and treason.

Witness.” The word construction would be pre-
ferable to expression. Mr. Haile then added it so as
to read expression and construction. g

[This and similar occurrences are noted, toshow
the difficulty the witnesses against Masonry found
in having their answers put down in their own lan-

‘usg‘e.]

16tk Interrogatory. Were you called before an
Ecclesiastical %ouncil on account of excluding Ma-
sons from your Church ?

Witness. I never was called before an Ecclesi-
astical Council on that or any other account.

Mr. Hazard. ‘1 ask did you exclude some of your
Bociety from your communion, who were masons ?

Witness. No Sir, I had no power to exclude. A
dissatisfaction arose in the Church. The offender
was a mason. The Masonic part of the Church
favored him, or joined with him. It was a matter
of Church discipline, but I have no objection to
stating the particulars if it 18 desired.

Mr. Hazard. Every thing that goes to show the
feelings under which the witness testifies is impor-
tant. The inquiry is made without intending any
impeachment of your conduct.

itness. The circumstances alluded to was'a
case of Church discipline. A member of the
Church, who was a Mason, was dealt with and tri-
ed before the Church upon three charges. They
were not brought by me, but {by a brother in the
Church.

Mr. Hazard. What were they. )

Witaess. Ons wus for abuse of me in my family.
It related to Masonry, and was abuse of me on that
acconnt, in the presence of my family.

Mr. Hazard. What were the other two charges ?

Witness. One was for assisting in preparing and
publishing a report of St. Alban’s ge, which
was considered slanderous. The other was for be-
coming angry in Church meetin$, and uttering
there improper and contemptuous language.

Mr. Hazard. That wasactually a Church trial
of strength between Masons and Antimasons.—
‘What was the resnlt ?

Witness. He was tried and found guilty by
a small majority of the Church, on two of the char-

es, and to the other he plead guilty. I would state

ere, that if it is necessary for the Committee to
go into a case of Church discipline in my Church,
there is @ pamphlet published, which-contains a full
statement of the transaction.

Mr. Hazard. We have nothing to do with your
Church discipline. My object is to ascertain wheth-
er there has been a Masonic quarrel in your Church,
that would have an effect upon the feelings under
which the witness would testify.

Witness. The offence related to Masonry, but
the same offences, in reference to any other matter,
would have been examined,

Mr. Hazard. 1 don’t pretend to juige which
party was riiht. . Whether your party was right or
not, it may bave impressed you with feelings that
may have some bearing at this time.

Witness. The Church of which [am pastor have
published the proceedings in this case in full, which
the committee can examine, if they please,

Mr. Hazard. What took place after he was
found guilty ? -

. Witness. He requested an Ecclegiastical Coun.
cil. He was not.excommunicated, but required to
make an apology ; he had plead guilty to the charge
of becoming angry and using improper language in
Church meeting. The Church, however, complied
with his demand for an Ecclesiastical Council.

Mr. Hazard. 'What was the result.

Witness. It would take half an hour to state it
fully. Both parties have published their account of
the proceedings. The comuuittee, I presume have

. euc on the other side. It it is not material, [ should

i this time,  will

a little rather not go inte this sabject, lest I might
do the Church an injury by not stating the matter
correctly.

[The witness alluded tb a pamphlet which had
been handed to Mr. Hazard, bK’Moses Richardsong
a mason, at whose svggestion Mr. Hazard appeared
to have gone 4nto_this examination of matters of
Church disciplinea'

Mr. Hazard. ell, let us know the result.

Witnese. The result was, that he was required
by the Council to make an apology, with which the
Church could not be satisfied, and they regarded it
as virtually an acquittal. I the committee will
listen to it, I am perfectly willing to go over thie
whole case, -though it relates exc usively to a mat-
ter of Church discipline. The only objection I have
to stating it in this form is, that unless the whole
ground is gone over, it may leave a Wrong impres-
sion.

Myr. Simmons inquired if all this controvefsy was
published on both sides *

Witness. Yes, but I perceive you have nothinF
there on our side. [Referring to Mr. Hazard’s
pamphlets.}

Mr. Hazard, Will you furnish me withit?

Witness. | will with all sy heart, when I get
home. . . .

Mr. Hazard. Did this lead to a division in the
Chureh between Masons and Antimasons ?

Witness. Those who went with me, were nowe
of them Masons. Those that went with the mem-
ber were pert Masons and part not.

[In the course of this examination, there was =
pretty clear indication of disapprobation from the
spectators, at this_inquiry into a matter of Church
discipline. Mr. Hazard saw it, and said]—Now Mr.
Thacher, as to this, I did not intend to go at all into
the subject.- There shall be no use made of thay
trial by the Committee, 1 assure you, to prejudice
you or your Chureh in any way ; but I should be
obliged to you if you will furnish me with the
statement on your side. .

Witness. | will, sir, with pleasure. )

Mr. Hazard here had some conversation with the’
rest of the Committee. He then said, that he was
willing for one, to strike out of the deposition alk
that part relating to this affair in the Church. The:
Witness said he had no objection to its being either
retained or stricken out. Mr. Hazard then directed*
Mr. Haile to erase all from and after the I6th Inter-

rogatory.

ﬁ few days after the examination, Mr. Thacher
forwarded to a friend, the pamphlet referred to b
Mr. Hazard, and it was placed in his hands. A ref
erence to Mr. Hazard's report, will show the very
special pains he took to proctre every thing ho
could, connected with Mr. Thacher,in his private or
ministerial relations, in order, if possible, to dis-
credit his testimony against Masonry. Mr. Hazard
after the examination, avowed his hostility to Mr.
Thacher, and his determination to serve him up in
his report, though proféessing great candor and re-
spect, while he was before the Committee. A very
considerable portiow of that report, as presented to
the General Assembly, was dbvoted to a personal
attack upon Mr. Thacher. These facts are not un-
important in forming a fair opinion of the proceed-
ings of the Committee, especially the Chairman.)

17th Imrrogat‘of{-. Before you made your ad-
dress to the Church, and communicated your in-
tention to secede from Masonry, had it been inti-

mated to you that it was expected of you tosecede ? -

Witness. No, sir, I did it of my own accord.—
The members of the Church did not intimate to me
that they expected or wished me to secede, nor was
it intiinated or expected, to my knowledge.

Mr. Hazard. You are desirous of giving the
oaths accurately, and here is one part I suppose is
considered imaterial. Furthermore, I promise and
swear, that if any part of my obligation is omitted

Rold myself amenable, wheneves
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AS
informed. )

Witness. 1have no recollection of that olause in
the oath adwinistered to me.

M>2. Moses Richardson, [who has held some of
the highest Masonic -offices in Rhode Island, and
was a delegate fromn that Grand Chapter to the Gen-
eral Grand Chapter which assembled in New York
in 1826, just about the time of Morgar’s abduction,]
here addressed the Committee verbally, and said
that as his nameé had been mentioned by the wit-
ness, ho asked the liberty te ask him a few ques-
tions, without writing them. .

Mr. Hazard. Our rule has been that if any
citizen has questions to ask, he should do it in writ-

ing. Mr. Richardson considers his case different,

as he has been personally alluded to. 1 have no ob-
Jjection. .

Mr. Haile. I have none.

Mr. Hazard, to the Witness, Did Mr. Sayles
mention the name of the person who made a mason
illegally in one of the back towns in Rhode Island ?

Witness. He did not. .

Mr. Hazard directed Mr. Haile to go back and
put that answer in-its proper place.

Mr. Moses Richardson here commenced asking a
question, relative to the number of timnes witness
had stated his conversation with Sayles.

Mr. Hazard interrupted him. He considered 1t
improper for a bystander to put a question verbally.
The witness had referred to many persons, and 1f
‘they were admitted to come and question the wit-
ness, they would take the examination out of the
hands of the Committee. He was perfectly willing
on his own part, but there was a propriety which
must be observed. If Mr. Richardson wishes to
state any thing, he can become a witness, or present
it in writing. - .

Mr. Richardson said he submitted, but he de-
clining reducing his questions to writing. Mr. Haz-
ard said if Mr. Richardson would suggest to the
Committee any relevant question, he would put it.
Bome side conveysation here passed between Mr.
H.& Mr. R.

Mr. Hazard. Mr. Richardson wishes that you
may be asked whether you have stated the conver-
sation of Sayles with you, in print, on any other
eccasion than your address to the Grand Lodge?

Witness. Yes. It is mentioned in a note inmy
renunciation.

Mr. Hazard. Have you related your aforesaid
aonversation with Mr. Sayles, in any other publica-
tion, and in what? ’

Witness. 1 made it in my address to my congre-

ation. It was contained in a note to that address.

t was also published in the proceedings of the An-
timasonic Convention at Philadelphia. That state-
ment did not pass under my examination before it
was published. I made the statement verbally in
the Conveantien, .
[Mr. William W kinson (Mason). here made
some remark to Mr. Hazard which was not heard.
Mr, Hazard replied,that will show for itself.

Mr. Hazard. Did you makeé that statement at an-

Antimasonic Convention in Providence, in May
1830, *

Witness. 1 have no recollection of it. Do not
think I did. '

Mr. Hazurd. Did you make it ata Convention
- in Bosfon? )

Witness. Did not recollect that he did. He
had gone over so much ground in this examivation,
it was possible he might not .be able to recollect
whether he had or had not so stated.’

‘Mr. Hazard said it was not material. Notof any
consequence. [It being now 10 o’clock in the
evening. Mr. Hazard inquired if no other gen-
tleman of the Cemmittee wished to ask any more
questions. M. S8immons asked if witness had seen
the Koyat' Arch degree administered to others.—
Witnessreplied he had not, except so far as he had
seen it given to-the persors who-took it with him.-

r. Hozard handed the paper Mr. Haile had
written on, to Mr. Thacher and requested him to
signit. Witness said he did not precisely know
what the paper contained. Mr. Hazard told him he
muyst sign it, or they should-consider it very extra-
ordinary. He asked if it was not satisfactory ?

Witness replied he did not know but that it was,

but he was so' much exhausted with an examina-
tion of twelve hours,that he did not feel entire confi-
dence in his powers to discriminate,whethei the evi-
dence was taken down correctly or not. He should
prefer having an opportunity to examine it. Mr.
Hazard insisted upon his signing it, and used lan-
guage of intimidation toward witness, giving him
to understand it would be considered a contempt of
the Committee if he did not sign it, and he would
be treated accordingly. Mr. Thacher replied that
he certainly should not sign it, unless he heard it
read in connexion. Mr. Hazard said it bad been
read sufficiently. C .
' Mr. Hallett {ere said thdt the witness ought not
to be pressed on this point. It was apparent to
‘every one that in many instances Mr. Haile bad not
taken down the answers of the witness in his own
language, nor in his meaning fully. It would be
very extraordinary to press a man to sign a
paper he did not know the contents of, under such
circumstances. Mr. Hazard said he did not thank
Mr. Hallett for his interference. The Committee
understood their duty. Mr. Thacher said he was
obliged to Mr. Hallett for the suggestion, and felt
that he ought to be protected against signing the
paper, in ignorance of its contents. He certain-
1y should not sign it so. Mr. Hazard said very
well. The Committee Would puta proper con-
struction upon such a refusal. He then asked
-the witness if he would hear the testimony rcad
all through, and then sign it? Witness replied that’
his mind was not in a proper state for such a task,
but he would listen to it as well as he could. Mr.
Haile then proceeded to read the testimony he
had taken down. It was found to be incorrectly
stated in many very essential patticulars, which
were generally corrected, though in very many
instances the witness could not succeed in having
his own ideas expredsed in his own words. The
reading was not finished until after twelve o’clock at
night.  Mr. Thacher then put his name to the pa-
per, with a written reservation, that it contajned
the substance of his statement, to the best of his
knowledge and belief. ] .

CommenTts.—[This attemptto force Mr. Thach-
er into a heedless “signature of a statement drawn
up in this manner, was obviously made by the Chair-
man with a view to involve the witness in some
contradiction, which might furnish him with materi-
als for discrediting this witness, as he afierwards
labored hard to do, in his report, A candid exami-
nation of Mr. Thacher’s testimony as it is here pre-
sented almost verbatim, is invited. It is believed
that on looking it through, it will be found that few
witnesses have ever sustained so long and close an
examination, with more uniform accuracy and con-
sistency. At the close of the examination Mr.
Thacher was excused by the Committee from tur-
ther attendance, for which act of courtesy ho
thanked them.

The next day, after Mr. Thacher had left the
State and relurned to his residence, some Masons
were busy in cifculating an infamous handbill,
assailing his character, which had been published
some time before in Massachusetts. They took this
Masonic method to discredit the witness, not daring
te attempt to touch his character while he was un-
der examipation. The disposition uniformly evinced
by Masons, to traduce the character of Mr Thacher,
and their declining to bring any testimony to dis-
credit him, which they had full opportunity to do,
whilz he was under examination as a witness, hur-
nish conclusive proof that his enemies have ne

-grounds for their aspersions;- whish- they dave te:-
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by leghl investigation. Amother attempt was made
to discredit Mr. Thacher’s testimony, by declarin,
in Masonic newspapers and elsewhere, that he ha
stated a great many things' in his speeches and
writings on Masonry which he did not dare to swear
to under oath. The. reason is obvious. In his
speaches and writings Mr. Thacher had “used facts
which he believed sufficiently proved by others,
as he had a perfect right to do; but- when under
oath, he was bound to assert nothing that was not
within his own personal knowledge. Thecare and
caution with which'he confined himself to this rule,
in his examination, will give to any candid man, an
additional confidence in the truth of his declara-
tions.

Another attempt to evade the force ‘of Mr. Thitth
ers’s testimofty, was maide by representing in the
Masonic papér at Providence, that he had really
stated nothing against Masonry, in his examination.
The reflection will' readily” occur, that if Mr.
Thacher had really testified to nothing against Ma-
ronry, for what reason has he been soseverely villi-
fied by Masons for stating when not under oath, the
very sane facts touching- Masonic oaths and princi-
ples which he swore to in this examination ?

PESTIMONY OF REV. LKVI CHASE.

‘Thursday morning, Dec. 8.—The Investigating
Committee met at 9 o’clock: Preseut the same as
yesterday. The gecond witness, -

Levi Chase, was called, and sworn to tell the
whele truth. In answer to general-interrogatories,
says— .

reside at Fall River,'town of Troy, (Mass.) am"

‘by trade a mechinist, now the opsrator of a mill—
a manufacturer. Am an ordained minister of the
Gospel. Ihave been 2 Mason, but am hot pow.—
Have taken the six first degrees. I was a Most Ex-
cellent Master. 1 was made 2 mason'in Manchester
Lodge, in Coventry, R. L. in the year 1815 :'I think
in December, or first of 1816. I took'three dogrees
-in that J.odge-—all- that Lodge was authorized to
confer. The other three I received in Warren, at
the Royal Arch €hapter, in the fore part of the
year 1822. 1 was never made a member of a
Chapter. I continued a Mason" up to’1828, in the
tall, I think, when I publicly seceded, There was
an obligation adiinistered to me at the-time of tak-

ing each of thage' degrees. I could not repeat the’

obligations verbatim. I could the penaltiss. 1could
write the oaths out, on reflection. .o
(Mr..Simmons read the Entered Apprentices’ cath
_from Bernard’s Light on Masonry) page 20. ..
Witness. That is correct as administered to me
by John Greene, Agent of Warwick Manufacturing
Company, in Warwick,.who was at that time Wor-
-shipful Master of the Lodge.
Mr. Simmons then read the Fellow Craft's oath,
from Bernard, pages 44 and 45. *
Witness. It agrees with the oath I took—except
I was not to wrong a Brother one cent, (not two)
dispersed (not disposed) over the globe, and so
help me God—(not keep). Otherwise it is substan-
tially the same. The words “square or angle of my
- work,” I am confident were not administered to me.
Mr. Hazard: Keep instead of help; that, must
be a typographical error. .
Mr. Simmons than read the Master Mason's eath
from Bernard, page 61. .
Mr. Simmons. Was any explanation given?
Witness. Ne explanation or intimation was given,
until'] was brought and placed in a proper situation
to teceive the oath: I hadno knowledge till then,
that an oath-was-administered in the Lodge. 1 was
first prepared by being stripped of my apparel.
Mr. Simmons here suggested that that part of the
coremony-was immaterial.
Witness. With the permision of.the Committee
I will give it in my own way. My apparel being
. taken off,— ) .
. Mr. Hazard. 1 would suggest to the witness that
it is not necessary for” him. to relate the ceremony.
Aitie

YThe Committee -have no objection, but you- will -

be asked if all the previous ceremonies-are correctly
stated in-Bernard, which will embrace your whele’
answer. . . . )

[{Vote. The gdesign of this ingenious suggestion:
was apparent., It would obviate giving a detail of
the degrading ceremony in the deposition, which it
was then expected would be apenly read before:

emonies in Bernard would .not be understood, be-
cause not one_ip fifty of the members had evet
seen that book.]’ )

Witness. } was placed in a very curious position
toreceive the oath and shouid like to explain it, ay

" a reason why I took it, and others affer it, without

proper 1eflection. _
Mr. Hazard.
in Bernard's Light on Masonry ?* ,
Witnesg. Ido not know butit is just as I received it.
In the first place I was informed that it was neccs-
sary | should be prepared. I was prepared by being’

of drawers provided and put on. ] was then hood-
winked by a bandage acroes my eyes, a cable.tow’
or rope round my neck, and— L

Mr. Hazard. 1 sHOULD BE ASHAMED TO AC~-
KNOWLEDGE THAT! ., v

Witness. | am willing to confess how de
a situation I was placed in to receive the oath, and
you mustreimember I' am swern by you, to tell the
whole truth. My shirt was stripped off my left arm,
and my left breast'naked. [Grand Master Cook,
and Past High Priest Wilkinson,who were sitting a
the table,gave indications of great uneasiness here.j
In this situation I was led into the Lodgs Roomr,
and made to.kneel, ‘at the altar, on my naked left
knee, my hands clagping the bible. Then I wasin-
formed by the Worshjpful Master, that I was placed
ib ‘a‘liléo;ieuithaﬁon to receive the oath or obligation,
which he informeéd me was not to infringe upon m:
religions not pofitical sentiments. (
I was willing to receive it on that condition. My
answer was, that I was. Then he ordered me to
repeat my own name, Lovi Chase, and répeat after’
him the ~oath that has been read to me. A'‘similar’
adsurance was given before each’ of the three
first degrees he conferred on me, only the phraseol-
‘ogy may be a little different. He would assure me’
as before, &c. o .

Mr. Thomas Rivers, here said it was very easy
for the witness to learn the oath'or write it out of’
Bernard. L )

" Witness. 1never saw Bernard's Light on Mason-
ry, until last Friday (six days before) when it was*
handed me by Mr. Shove. I wrote out the oath
long before I ever saw Bernard’s, as itis given in-
my Address t6 the Grapd Lodge of Rhode Island,
published in June 1831: I could not therefore have
written it from Bernard, as you say. °~

Mr. Haile. 1s that substantially the oath you
took?

Witness. It is,excepting two variations. Murder

will and choite, was the way 1 took'it.

Mr. Hazard. Ttis immaterial whether it is elec«
tion, or free will and choice. Theé meaning is the
same. . .

Mr. Rivers, said he wighed- tu exphin. He

taken the cath wholly fromr Berpard, but he (Wit~
ness) gaid that he could not remember the caths,and
be inferred the witness had written them from Ber»

nard: .

Mr, Halleti remarked that witness said he' could
Dot repeat the oaths verbatim at once, but could
write them out, on reflection. B

Mr. Fazard said this intorferencd was improper.

Mr. Hallett replied that he was aware of it, but
if Mr. Rivers was permitted to make ‘aninsinuation.

against the witness, he had aright to repelit..

.

the General Assembly. The reference to the cer- |

18 not the ‘whols of this contained ,

divested of my apparel except my shirt, and a pair’ .

od

y .
He asked me if’

and treason excepted, and they left to-my own freeé

did not .mean to intimate, that the witness: had -

t
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* Witress. ‘The words ‘“and they- left at my own
{ree will and choice, or election” instead of ‘““at my
.own election,”” were used in the oath I took. Then
as to the penalty—*“wers I to prove” %nllty, instead.
of “ever to prove” guilty. [ recellect distinctly
_ recelving the words “if any part of my obligation is
. omitted at thip time, I promise to hold myself amen-
able thereto whenever informed.”

Mr. Simmons then read the Mark Master’s oath,
from Bernard, gnge 8.

Witness. That is substantially the same. I have
no recollection that the word swap was used.

Mr. Simmons then read the Past Master’s oath,
from Bernard, page 109. :

Witness. That is substantially the same, except
0 help me God and keep me, instend of “make me.”

My. Stmmons then read the Most Excellent Mas-

- ter’s oath, from Bernard, page 120.

Witness. That is substantially the same—(no
variation was medtioned.) After 1 was initiated, a
charge was read. ~

Mr. Simmons read from Webb's Monitor, p. 41,
the charge at initiation in the first degree, (the same
as given in the testimony of Mr. Thacher.)

Witness. - That was read to me from Webb’s Mon-
itor. ‘

Mr. Simmons. Did you consider it as binding
as youroath?

Witness. 1 did not.

Mr. Hazard. 1shell begin to think Masonry is
worse than I ever thought it was, if Ministers will
take these oaths and charges, and then not consider
them binding. - R

Witness. 1 did not consider the charge as bind-
ing in eveéry particular.

Mr. Hazard. Who gave the charge to you in
the Chapter? )

Witness. 1have no recollection of any charge

iven tu me in the upper degregs, in particular. I
5id not consider this charge binding, where it came
in contact with my religious principles, in saying
that no institution was ever raised on a better foun-
dation than Masoury, none ever established baetter
tules, &e. I considered the christian religion a
better institution. That was the only part which

‘When y&u first replied Jesus Chﬂoi, was it your

intention tb exclude God and the Hely Spirit?
Witnesg. 1t was not.
Mr. Hacard, (considerably excited.) It don’t
fay well, Mr. Witness. :
Witness. Well 8ir, I am willin% on should
make it fay as you-please. It fays with Masent'y.

[Note. If Mr. Hazdrd had studicd Masonry in her
own constitutions, he would have fouud no difliculty in
understanding the witness. Masonry is designed to be
universal, to include Turks, Pagans, Jews, and Gentiles.
Consequently she excludes all religions but natural re-
ligion.  She acknowledges & God, it is true, but he may
be J maut, Brama, Allah, a Chinese Josh, or the
God of the Christian.. 1t is all the same in her unive
creed. Mr. Hazard should have recollected too, that
Moses Seixas, a tho;?ugb professed Jew, was long
Grand Master, Hi riest, &c. of Masonry, at New-
port, Rhode Istan , and cquld he have presi over a
society that professed belief in Jesus Christ, whom he
regarded as an impostor?]

Mr. Hazard. Do you consider that the words
Jesus Christ, include God, the Father, and the

Holy Spirit?. .

Witness. Do you wish to know ney, belief re-
specting Deity? . ‘

Mr. Hazard, (vehemently.) Do you consider

that the words Jesus Christ, the Son of God, include
God the Father, and the Holy Spirit?

Witness. 1do not, Sir, in every sense of the
word. If the Chairman is 5:aipg’ into an investiga-
tion of my belief of divine things, 1 shal] wish an
opportunity to explain.

Mr William Sprague, (senicr) here remarked,
that he believed it was unusual in this state, to
press witnesses on their religious opinions.

e numerous spectators present, evinced no
little surprise, at the course the Chairman was pur-
suing. Mr Hazard said, that some persons might
think that the witness was hardly pressed. His
object was to inquire if he meant to charge Masons
with being Atheists. The witness said he had
made no such charge.] .

My. Hazard—with empbasis—Do you or do you
not counsider that the word God also includes
Christ and the Holy Spirit ? )

struck me as objectionablo at that time.

Mr. Hazard. Did you make any protest against
it at the time.?

Witness. N osir, I did not. .

Mr. Hozard. Then you left it to be understood
‘you had no objections to it?

Witness. 1 would observe that I was brought in
that situation where I was like a slave, with a rope
around my neck: I felt a fear to protest.against
any thing, situated as I was. L
. Mr. Hazaerd. What was your objection to that

- part of thé charge?

Witness. I had embraced the religion of the Son
of God, an Institation I considered far superior to
that of Masonry. A circumstaice impressed my
mind much. I was asked, * whom do you believe
in? My answer was, in Jesus Christ, the Son of
God. [ was clrecked, and ordered to say, in God.
This impressed my mind that the Institutjon wished
to exolude the religion of the Son of God.

Mr. Hgzard. You were checked by the presiding

. officer? t

Witness. The onductor told. me to say, in God.:

Mr. Hazard. I want to go to the bottom of this
business. It seems to be an imputation upon the
religious belief of this whole class of yourTellow

-citizens. What I wish to know is, did you infér
that they were deists, and wanted to exclude Jesus
Christ? . -

. Witness. I de suppose that they wished to ex-
clude the name of Jesus Christ, the Son of God,
and the religion of the Savior, as being no part of

v. .
Mr. Hazard, to Mr. Haile—Put that down, and

Witness. 1donotin every sense. If you will
give me &n opportanity, I will explain. First,
as to the reasons why I do not understand that
Jesus Christ does not, in every sense compre-
hend God the Father. :

Mr. Hazard. It is a short question, and requires
ashort answer.

Witness. 1 must answer it my own way.

Mr. Simmons. How long will it take you ?

Witness. It may take me three hours; I will ex
plain my reasons if the Comnnittee wish it.

Mr. Hazard You dont frighten us. We will
sift this matter to the bottom.

Witness. You have placed me in a situation to
n;nke me out an Unitarian er Trinitarian, as you
please. ‘

Mr. Hazard, You have undertaken to impeach
your fellow citizens as heathens, and it 1s our du-
ty to protect them. L

Witness. Yery well Sir. You' can protect them,
if i;m choose, only allow me to explain.

r. Hazard. Youhave placed yourself in this

situation, and you must take the consequence. |
My. Sprague, Jr. One of the Committee; oh-

ted to going into an investigation of a man’s ré-
gious creed. L

Mr. Hazard persisted, and the witness said he
was ready to proceed, as fast as Mr. Haile would
take down his explanation. Mr Haile said bhe had
written it down, thus—The reasons why I do not
consider that Jesus Christ includes God and the
l-i'oly Spirit, ave, first, because he is called the son
of ‘'man.

Mr. Simmons. Would you prefer to explain this,
:n:re,, or to write out .your reasons, some other

me |

-

let us ses what it all comss to. To the witness—

1
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" Witness said it was immaterial to him which.—
He only wished not to be left in a sitnation for the
spectators to draw an unfavorable inference from
his not being allowed to explain. When he receijv-
ed the degree, he was as_he hoped, a christian.—
Had he first been told to say he believed in God,
he should not have thought of it, but their rejec-
tion of his use of the words Jesus Christ, brought
an impression to his mind, that they meant to make
a_distinction, unfavorable to the christian religion.
He could not see the difference, but they evidently
memt to make ane. He was willing to leave it

ere. - : :

Mr. Hazard—(Here began to soften a little.)—
. That will do very well, if you will say you dont
believe sonow. You ought to extend charity to
yow brethren. - :

Witness. 1 will say, in all charity, that I do not
believe they were ‘Deists, but that such is the ten-
dency and design of the Masonic Institution, 1
find by searching the six degrees administered to
me, that the word Christ or Son of God, is exclud-
ed, and I believe there was- a design in it, to ex-
clude his religion.-

Mr. Hazard (with warmth.) ' Then you mean to
call them Deists. . .

Witness. No Sir. 1 do not wish to condemn
any man’s opinions. I do not speak of the individ-
uals, but I say the Institution is founded on Dxisx.

Mr.>Huzard. 1 nbw understand you jo say that
it is the fault of the- Institution and not of the indi-
vidugls ?

- Witness. 1 did not intend to imsench the meg-
bers, but the Institution as designed to exclude tre
christian religion.

Mr. Hazard. The design to exclude the Chris-
tian religion you impute to the founders of the In-
stitation, not to those who aré now its members?

Witness. To the Institution, as well as it found-
ers. .

M. Simmons. Would you prefer at your leis-
ure to Write oat gou: apnswers to the guestions Mr.
Hazard has asked you, or will you have them ta-
ken down now. ' .

Witness. Either. way. [Up to this time Mr.
Haile had not written down the answers of witness
to the question touching his belisf in the distinct
existence of the different persons in the trinity.—
He now wrete it down in the following form.]—
¢¢ The desigd to exclude Jesus Christ and the
Chrlstian religion, I impute to the Institation (of
Free Masoory,) and not to the members of it with
whom I am acquainted, many of whom I believe to
be christiens. 1 also find, on examination, as far as
1 have gone in the six degrees, that Jesus Christ
and his religion are excluded.

[Mr. Moses Richardson, a Masoa here made some
remarks to Mr. Simmons,] upon-which Mr. 8. in-

nired. Did you ever hear it éxplained that the

criptures were to be the rule and guide of your
whole life ? -

Witnass. Does not remember ever to have heard
it so explained. 1s confident he never did in the
Lodge. Has heard portions of scripture read
there. -

Mr. Hazard. Did
ina Lodge? - B

Witness. 1never did, except the
the opening and closing of a Lodge.

Mr. Hazard. 1'am certain I have seen lectures
in which the hol{jlcriptures are acknowledged to
be the guide for Masons. . .

Mr Hazard. Do you know if at the meeting
of I.odges for Lectures, &c.; do yon know if the
scriptures are referred to ?

Witness. ' 1 do not, for the reason ‘that I never
attended or heard of such lectures. I never heard
it sxplained in any Liodge, that the scriptures were
to be the guidg of Masons. 1 of no lectures
given there for that purpose,

Mr Hazard—(turning to Mr Joseph 8. Cooke

- ’

you ever attend the lectures

parts used at

. .
Grand Master of the Grand mf., who waa sitting
at the table,) how is it, Mr Cooke ? Dont you have
lectures. v

Mr. Cooke replied that the Lodges were in the
practice of holding meetings for lectures. I do net

scriptures are read or not.

Mr. Hallett here asked whether Grand Master
Cooke intended to say that nfeetings of the Lodges
were held for the delivery of lectures upon morals,
science, the drts, or any subject othat nature ?

Mr. Cooke said, they were_in the habit of having
lectures in the Lodges. . 7

Mr. Hallett asked : did you ever know lectures
given in Lodges for any other purpose than to ex-
plain the signs, grips, and ceremonies ?
~ Mr. Cooke said he could not precisely tell what
the lectures were.

" Mr. Hazard said the examination was not to bs
taken out of the hands of the Committee in this

way. e .
My, Hallett veplied that Mr Cook had intimated
that meetings of es were held for scientific and

understand what these lectures were,
held up an old
Masonic sanction, containing the lectures and oaths
inthe three first degrees. This bock was after-
wards proved to have been contrived by Masons,
and used in Rhbode Island Lodges, for studying the
lectures.] Mr. Hallet said, tha pamphlet contained
the lectures in the three first degrees. + They taught
how to tuck up and tuck down the apron; and how
to kill Hiram Abiff, but they contained meither sci-
ence or morals. He challenged the Grand Master
to show that any other description of lectures were
delivered in Lodges. Mr. Hazard here inte;poud,
and the examination proceeded. The Gran
ter was afterwards personally requested by Mr
Hallett, to furnigh evidence, if there was any, that
any other lectures were delivered in Lodges ex-
cept those that related to the cerembnies of initia-
tion, and.those read to the candidates from Webb’s
Monitor. The G. M. did not pretend there wege
any others. . - .
[Communrs.—Thesubstance of these pretendedly
scientific and moral lectures, as delivered in Lodges,
will be found in Baroard's Light on Masonry. The
Grand Master (if net corrected) would have con-

[He here’

entertained, that regular courses of lectures from

givenin Lodges and Chapters; and the Investigating
Committes not only permitted this jnference to be
dfawn from his statement, but the Chairman was
evidently displeased at an explanation which de-
monstrated tge fact that these lectures, instead of

 conveying information, are made up of questions and

answers about the childish ceremonies and profane
oaths of the degrees.] , .
Mr. Simmous inquired of the witness if the charg-
es read from Webb, in the three degrees, were de-
livered to him, and if he considered them binding?
Witness had not read Webb for fifteen years, but
thinks the charges were read to him! ~Without
giving them much attention at the time, it occurred
to him that there were some things not altogether
systematical. He considered them binding as a man,
so far as they did not interfere with his religious
oplnions, and as a Mason so far as they did not in:
terfere with his more solemn.obligations.
* Mr SimmBns. What part did you consider not
systematieal? . . :
Witness. Ialluded there to the first sentence,
‘your zeal for the institutionof Masonry,the progress

to our rules, have pointed you out as a proper ebject
of our favor.’ I was burried through the degrees.
I took the first degree on Cuesday evening, and the

have made much progress in the mystery.

- . Y

know whether in opening and closing Lodges the -

phlet printed in characters, under -

Mas-

which valuable information could be derived, are

you have made in the mystery, and your conformity -

two next on Saturday following, so that 1 conld not -

literary lectures,and he wished the Committee might = -

veyed the impression which is so often falsely




{Mr. Hazard had spent some time in Jooking over
Webb’s Monitor, which had been handed to him by
'Mr. Rjchardson, a Masen, for some purpose. Hav--
in A apparently found what he was looking for, he

" Here:is the clause. Have you ever read from
Webb,—trom the Masonic Monitor, in an Address
to Master Masons the following section‘in the Mon-
itor, * The Holy -Writings, that great lightin Ma-'
gonry, will guide you to all truth; it will direct
your paths to the somple of happiness, and point out
te you the whole duty of man.” Now, Mr. witness,
. it is truth we want. It is the duty of the Committee
to protect their fellow citizens, who are charged in
this loose manner with exchuding the christian re-
ligion. Waa that charge given to you? {It will be
observed that Mr. Hazard was particularly close in
his cross 3nesﬁons when Masonry or Masons were
implicated by the testimony. 1t will be useful to see
-Bereafter, how-he applied this rule when adhering
Masons were under examination.] ’

In reply to Mr. Hazard’s question, relative to the
Holy writings being the guide of Masons, witness
said he did not remember to have heard that sen-
tence inthe Lodge.

" Mr. Hallett proposed a question in writing,
4t were you ever preseat at the installation of the
Master of a Lodge?”

Witness said no.

Mr Hallett then referred Mr Hgzard to page 97
of Webb’s Monitor, showing that the addrees from
awhich he had read the expression abont the ¢ Holy
Writings,” was not made to a Master Mason, but to
the Master of a Liodge, on bis installation, by the
Grand Master.

- [Mr Moses Richardson here whispered to Mr Sim-
- mons.] .

Mr Simmons (addressing the witness,)—Ts it not
usual, to give the same charge in the Past Masters
degree as at the Installation of the Master of a
{.0dge ? : . .

itness. 1 do not know. -

[This could not be the case with the Address Mr

. Hazaid 1ead from, because that commences, ‘You
are now to be inatalled Master of this new Lodge.]

[Nore. AsMessrs. Hazard and Simmons were
80 anxious to prove that Masonry was, as she has
pretended to be ¢ the Handmaid of religion,” and
censured Mr. Chase so sternly for aHedging that
Masonry exclnded the christian refigion, it may not
‘be out of place here to refer to what the Masonic
‘Book of Constitutions understands by Holy Writings.
We quote from the original charge at Initiation into
the first degree, p: 175 of the Massachusetts Book
of Constitutions, edited by alearned and pious di-

wine, Thaddeus' M. Harris, D. D. and approved by
¢As a gentleman and a Mason, |
you are to be u strict observer of the moral law, as |
eontained in the Holy Writings.* Note by Br Har- '
ris . “The Bible, and jn countries where it is not |

the Grand Ledge.

known, ANY OTHER BOOX, WHICH 14 UNDERSTOOD
¥O CONTAIN THE WORD oF Gob.’
MR. HAzarD's INTERROGATORIES.

‘Mr Hazard here proposed to witness the interrog-
atories, with gone variations, he bad put to Mr.
Thacher. ¢ the first whether he inquired as to
the nature of the eaths, before he took them. .

Witness said he did not, because ke did rot under-
stand even that an oath was to be administered,
before he took the first degree. 1f he had known
and understood the nature of the oaths and what he
svas to go through, he should not have taken the

- degrees. After taking the firgt degree, ho did en-.
deavor to find out if there were any more oaths,
but he could not. He asked a brother Mason when
going up to ‘e Lodge to take the 2d degree, and he
replied. ¢O, you go forward and take the other
degroes and you will be satisfied.” He was dissatis:
fied on taking the first degree, but he went forward.
. 'The Comnmiites hsre adjourned at quarter-before

'n 0’clock, ) ) .

PN . -

'

ifternoan December 8th. Met again at

-3 o’clock, and continued Mr. Harard's interrogato-
ries. Wilness was confident he did not understand
the oaths,when he took them, as he did afterwards.
The reason was they were ‘given one word or sen-
tence at atime, and he did notknow what was com-
ing next, and could not keep up the connexion in
his mind. The mallet was drawn across his throat,
to remind him of bis penalty. The oath was given
to him the same as a master learns a child his letters,
who don’t know what is coming fof bim to repeat.
1 can only compare it to this. -

Mr. Hazard. How-old were you?

Witness. About 29 years of age. -

Mr. Hazard. How long did you remain in a
Lodge? T )

itness. 1 was a Mason from 1816 to 1828.
- Mr Hazard. Were you a okild all that time 2

Witness. 1am a child yet I hope, of the Son of
God, and I wish all men were the ‘same.

Mr Hazard. It is very well for the community
to know what kind of ‘Masons there ate who come
here to charge their fellow citizens with being athe-
ists. '

My Simmons. Have {lou answered that part of
the st Interrogatery, whether you made inquires
Yefore taking the oath ?

Witness. I bave answered that befores
not. .

" Mr Stmmons. Did you reflect, after you had ta-
ken each oath, upon its nature, force and extent ?

Witness. 1 had no chance to reflect. 1 have
gigen the reasons before.

Mr Simmons. If not satjsfied with the oaths, did
you complain-or object ?

Witness. I have answered that 1 made inquiry
ot a brother.

M7 Hazard. The question I ask is, whether-af-
ter you took the first oath, you reflected on it,
before you toek another? | : .

Witness. 1 did so far as' I have stated, and ask-
ed'a brother, but could get no explanation.

Mr. Hazard. Were you satisfied with the oath,
upon the reflection you did give to it ?

Witness. I was not. That is answered before, if
I understand language. -

Mr Hazard. Did you then make any inquiry of
the elder Masons, as” to how they construcd their
oaths, to remove these doubts?

' Witness. All the inquiry I made was of the
brother when going up to the Lodge, between
Tuesday and Saturday.

Mz Hazard. Ifthese people come here to run
down their fellow citizens, let us see what the y
know abowt it,

Mr Sprague, of the Commijttee, here objected to
this course of examination. Some observations
passed between him and Mr Hazard, which were
not heard,

Mr Simmons. Upon taking thé other oaths,
were you satisfied ? i

Witness. | was not. Mr. S, did you eomplain
or ohject to the Lodge 2 .

Witness. 1 never complained or objected in the
Lodge, because I never afierwards attended that
Lodge, and 1 should have feared the consequences
if ¥ had complained.

Fhursday Afternoon December Bth. The Com-
mittee met at 3 o’clock, and resuimed the examina-
tion of Mr. Chase.

. Mr. Hezard. Was there any thing in your Ma-
sonic oaths which made it dangerous for you to se-
cede, or dissoive your connection with the Lodge?

~ Witness. If you mean not to attend the Lodge,

I did not so understand them. I did diseontinue visit-
ing the Lodge, but I considered if I seceded or dis-
closed the secrets, my Masonic obligations would
not tolerate nie io so doing, and ] was afraid the
penalties of the obligations might be jnflicted on

Thursday 4A)

1 did

me. s
. Mr. Haile repeated the question, - .
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‘Witness. 1 did not consider the quitting of the
Lodgo, ¢dngerous, but I did consider it dangerous
1%o socede and renounce Masonry. .

Mr Hazard. I will put the question, which yon
don’t seem to understand. Was there any thing
that rendered.it dangesous for you fo disselvee your
connection with your Lodge? ™ N

Witness. Nat in qoitting the Lodge in the way
1 did, but I ‘did consider it would be dangerons to
secede. There isa difference between leaving the
1,0dge and seceding.. .

Mr Simmons. ’Fhe question is whether you con-
sidered it dangerous to dissalve voar connection?

Witness. | have answered that.

Mr Simmons. Do you perfectly comprehend the
meaning of the question? . -

‘Mr Hazard. No matter. We have gotit. (To
the witness.) Did you think there was any thing
danhgeroul in complaining in the Ledge {of your
oaths. . X . .t

Witness. 1 did at that time. Equally #s much
80 as complaining out of the Lodge.

Mr. Hazard. ‘This is a serious examination, and
I ask you to point out what part of ‘your Masonic ob-
hgations forbid Kou to complain? '

Witness. | thought that part which bound me to
keep the secrets inviolable and et to speak evil of a
brother in the Lodge or out of it, neither behind his
back nor before his face, rendéred it dangereus, for [
could not speak against the Institution without
speaking against those who support it. L.

Mr l-{azard. Well. Was there any thing in
your Masonic oaths that cempelléd you tb go on,
taking further degrees.

Witness. No, Sir, there was not.

‘Webb's Monitor was here handed to the witness
by Mr. Turner, open at page 80, and this question
was put to him by request. Previouste taking the
.oath in the fifst degree, while in the preparation
room, were you required to give your assent to
several declarations one of which was, ¢ Do you se-
riously declare upon your honor,that you will cheer-
fully conform toall the ancient established usages
and customs of the Fraternity?

Witness. These questions were asked before 1
took the Entered Apprentice’soath,and I was bound
to submit. '

Mr. Hazard. But what part of this did you
consider would prevent youtr complaining to the
Lodge 7 .

Witness. That part where I have bound myself
to conform to the-usages of Masonry, withoutknow-
ing what thoy were.

Mr Hazard. Was obedience to the Lodge in-
consistent with your right to complain.

Witness. 1 considered that complaining to the
Lodge would be complaining against those who up-
‘hold'the Lodge, and I had submitted myself to the
,usnbgel of the Lodge and could not complain.

r Hazard. Isaid nothing about that, but I will
ask iou whether you had that on your mind before
the book was handed to ypu?

Witness said he had owned that book, Webb's
Monitor, since 1816, and that the preparatory obli-
gation in the Entered Apprentice degree, together
with his other obligations, certainly did occur to his
mind, as reasons wby it would not be safe to com-

lain. The Chairmanp, he said, had treated him as
if he were achild, in this examination.

Mr. Hazard. [ asked you if you were a ehild,
because you represented yourself so, as learning
your letters, when taking the oathe.

Witness. . In one respect I was like a child when
taking the oaths; an ‘infant is naked, and 1 was
anearly so, © - : '

Mr Simmons. Did you consider these prelimina-
+y objections, and the oaths and charges to be all
connected, and all binding upon those who took
them, and did you s0 masonically consider them
when you took thew ?

E N -

Witness. - After ‘reflection I so considered them
Masonieally, s all in connection, and do at this
time. I considered the charges were the trap 1ald to
draw per3ons in to hold and bind them by thre oaths.

Mr Hazard then proceeded with the interogato-
ries, as propounded to Mr Thacher. ln answer to
5th, whether witness considered he gave the Lodge
jurisdiclion as far as he could, to inflict the penal-
ties, if he violated his oaths, &c. Witness says af-
ter mature reflection he did consider them of that
nature. He came to that conclusion about a year
after he took them (say 1817.) He then censider-
ed that he ought to be cautious as to what he said
against the Institution.
in the Lodge. .

In answer to the 6th, 7th'and 8th Interogatoriés,
witness says he knows of no secrets except such as
are explained in Bernard. ‘Has not seen Allyn's
Ritual. He did consider his Masonic oaths con-
fiicted with his-civil duties, immediately upon re-
flecting on them. C ’ -

10 answer to 10th Interogatory, what induced
him to secede from Masoury,

Witness says he seceded in 1828. Various cir-
cumstances lead to it. - The principje ohe was the
following which he wished to have taken down.—
In thre latter part of September, 1827, going from
Dighton ta Pawtucket, 1 stoppg‘(: at the house of
Capt. Baker, I do not recollect his other name.—
Elder Daniel Greene of Pawtucket came in and af-
ter the first salutations said he wanted to speak with
me. . '

[Note. Mr Greene isa respectable Baptist Cler- -
gyman. He hasgoneas high asthe Knight Tem-
plar's dogree,and has been,andis still believed tobe,a _
strenuous advocate of Masonry. He stopped the °
R. I. American, which he had taken for a long time,
immediately after that paper opened. its columns to
investigate Masonry. ~Aside from Masonry, he isa
very respectable citizen.] . :

Witness proceeded to state that they then retir-
ed into a room by themselves: and he asked
me if I had visited a Lodge lately. {1 told
bim no, and did not think I'ever should again. He
then asked me if I knew that I could not get into.
a Lodge. I observed to him that I thought I could
work in, as my memory was good. He obserred
that Lie had reterence to a particular circumstance
that had taken place. [ asked, what circumstance ?
He observed, he had refereace to Morgan’s Illustra-
tions, a book so called. That on that account the
lodges had passed another degree or check-word, I
think he styled it, in order to stop book masons,
having refarence to the book before mentioned; but
observed, if you had been here last evening, I counld
have vouched for you, and you could have took
the check word or degree, I don’t recollect which
heusad. I then asked him if that book was true?
He answered by a nod of his head, giviag assent in
that way. I then asked him if Morgan was mur-
dered? ~ He said he dara not answer me upon that
subject no further, (having reference to my ‘mot
having taken the check degree) nootherwise than
he wauld there say to mé, no doubt he has suffered
his just deserts, according to his obligations. He
then took me so, (gtaeping both arms above the
elbows) and said, I suppose ke had his choice. This
was what first led me to serious meditation to seek
for a fit opportunity to secede. I then went home,
‘and secretly borrowed that book, (Morgan’s.) The

‘owner would not let me have it, except in secret,

under a promise to refurn it. He was not a mason.
1 rea? it through and fund in it substantially.the
penalties and oaths that had oeen conferred upon
me. This was the final cause of my nceding.
In the Fall River Monitor I published my first pub-
lic renunciation, in 1828 in the fall 1 think.

Mr Hazard. Were youa memberof a Lodge
then? .

.
'

The word caution, is used .
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* Witness, - I conclude I was considered a member
of Manchester Lodge, from the notice I received
from the Secretary of the Lodge, summoning me,
after my renuuciation, to show cause why 1 should
ot be expelled. I understood 1 was expelled.

Mr Hazard. Did you make any communication
to the Lodge-—they were your brethren for many
y:;u before you seceded—of your intention to re-
cede. ’

Witness. [ made no communication to the

. T.odgc, because I was afraid to do so, before I came

out publicly.
r. Hazard. How, many did the Lodge con-
sist of ? i -

Witness. 30 or 40, or perhaps more, when 1 w
initiated. Among them were Dr. Allen, Dr Knight,.
John-Green, and a Mr. Merrill.

Mr Hazard. Were your brethren of Manches-
ter Lodge, with whom yeu associated, men of such
character thet you should have been afraid of your
ife, if in their power, when you seceded?

Witness. 1 could not say what they woyld feel
bound to do, as Masons. In their moral character I
considered them as good inen, as other men, and
some of them I hope are-christians. They showed
ma in the Lodge what they did to traitors,in the mur-
der of the ruffians whe killed Hiram’ Abiff, and I
thought I had some causé to fear, from the nature
of ‘the penalties. J could not tell what their Ma-
sonic obligalions would lead them to, as far as they
adaerod to their oaths, and I stood in fear, masoni-
cally. . .

Mr Simmons. Did you as a Mason, consider

" you were bound to execute such penalties upon

others? . . -
Witness. I considered myself masonically bound

to perform all oaths and obligations to the Lodge,

" if adhering.to them, but not morally and virtually

bound to execute such penalti¢s.

In answer to 11th, 12th and 13th Interrogatories,
witness says he never heard the nature of Masonic
‘penalties discussed in a Lodge, and that he knows
nothing about the deliberations of the Lodge on
politics or religion, but never knew these subjects
discussed in the Lodge. Mr. Bliss, a Mason, oace
ri;qluse;;ed him to vote for Mr Hodges for Congress

' 14¢th Interrogatory. Did you consider or be-<
lieve that there was any thing in your Masonic ob-
ligations binding you asa Freemason to vote for a
Freemason,in preference to a better man,not a
mason. . .

Witness. You say as a Freemason. I answer
in two capacities. . If the grand hailing sign were.
given, I should consider myself bound as & Mason -
to support a Mason for office, in preference to a-
nother not a mason, but as a citizen bound by my
¢ivil obligations, 1 should disdain the idea.

Mr- Hazard repeated the question. You can

- evade it or answer it as you please. :

Witness said if Mr Haile would take it down he
believed it would be a full answer. [ considered

“ myself standing in a two fold relation, and that if I

were to see the grand hailing sign I .should be
bound Masonicatly to aid nim with my vote asI
was bound to obey the sign, and to go on a master
mason’s errand bareheaded and bare foot, and to re-
Jieve him if thege was more probability of saving

-his life than lossing. my own. I say this as a Free

Mason. Asa frea man and exolusive of Masonic
sigus I could not do jt. Ae a seceder I should not.

In answer to 15th Interrogatory, whether he
would give a preference to a Mason, witness says
he should ‘ masonically be under obligation by his
oath, to favor a mason in preference to’ those mot
Masons. He had never practiced so, for he had
never had the grand hailing sign used to him Ly a
Mason jn distress,

16th and 17th Interrogatories— Witness knows
nothing about.

-

' 1‘

18th, Have ‘y‘w frequented Lodges in other
States, and are they the same as in this State ?

Witness. Was never in -any Lodge out of the
State. He had been present at a funeral when ths
Attleborough Lodge buried Dr.’ Ballou, and thers
were Masons present from seven different States,
who passed the same signs. :

Mr. Simmons. What induced you to apply for
the higher degress, if you considered the three first
irreligious and Deistical ?

Witness.—When Lapplied for the three last de-
grees, I considered the three first irreligious and
deistical. The reason of my ap&lyi’rln‘g was this : [
was informed by Rev. Thoinas W. Tucker that he
had been dissatisGed in the lower degrees, but was
informed that the upper degrees were more agree-
able to a christain’s feelings, and he was going tod
take them, and thought I had betler. A k was
also placed in my hand,-the purpert of which ap-
peared to be_more agreeable to the Christian religa
jion. I®was a poem in praise of Masonry. He
observed, if T would join he would recommend mey
and they would not charge mnye;hihf, as I was
Mipister, and I should be satisfied. I bad expres-
sed to him my dissatisfaction on account of its
irreligion, and he told me the Methodist brethren
" in Bristol were considerably engaged in religio:
and were mostly Masons—and he was satisfied, an
rather urged me to come in, and pee bow pleasant
it was. Iwas a minister of the Methodist order at
that time, and Mr. Tucker was the same. I went,
and they opened a Lodge on the Mastei’s degree—
they satisfied my mind some—and seemed to have
a very .})lenwt time—talked some about religion,—
but I'afterwards rather doubted if it was pot alla
catch, as they did not seem to close the lodge in
very regular order. I had also conversed with
ElderCase about my dissatisfaction about the three
first degrees—he made but vecy little answer to it.
I worked into the Lodge in Bristol. I never knew
before then that clerﬁgymen were admitted gratis.—
1 paid for my three first degrees. Was not then a
minister. . . .

Mr Simmons. You have several times qualified
ﬂmr answers by saying you considered your oaths

asonically binding, but not morally or virtoally.
What do you mean by it?

Witness. I have explained that sevéral times.
In the oaths I promise and swear such and such
things, withoat any equivocation or mental reser-
vation, &c. I cannot get rid of that in any way
Mascnically, but to do just as the oaths direct.

Mr Simmons repeated the question. .

Witness again said he did not consider the oaths
morally or virtaally binding.

Witness.” -1 i

bave given a Masonic answer,
without self evasion or equivocation. -

" Mr Hazard: How long after you determined to
withdraw from Masonry, before you did so ?

Witness. About one year. I made my mind
known to my wife, soon after my interview with
Elder Greene, and she persuaded me not to secede,
from fear that 1 should be exposed to injm-g{i

Mr Hazard. I bave a poor opinion of Masonry,
but I have a good opinion of Masons.

Witness. I have no eamity against any Mason
in the world. It is the lInstitution is all I have
any thing against. I would do a good turn to a Ma-
sqn as s0on as an{ other man.

Mr Hazard. 1If on any occasion whena Mason,
your Masonic obligations had conflicted with your
civil, religious or social duties, which should you
have obeyed.

Wilness. 1should obey the obligation'due to
-my Maker, even at the sacrifice of my life, if re-
quired. In other respects I cant tell how 1'might
have been influenced as a Mason.

o Mr Hazard. Did you ever hear a Mason justi-
i

the murder of Morgan except Elder Greene?
80, when and where? [asked by request]
Witness, Ihave. Atthe time of the Dedham

£
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Antinasonic Convention, three years ago, ata tav-
-ern about 10 miles this side of ‘-Dedbam, I heard a
Mason say, if there ever was such 2 man as Mor-
an, and he had taken such oaths as he had pub-
ished, he was a damned perjured wretch, and de-
served to be killed ! This man said he was a Ma-
son. He was a stranger to me. Messrs. Brayton,
Slade and Luyther Lincoln ef Norton, were present
at this conversation. Mr Lincoln said to the man
he onght,tq be careful what he said for there was a
geceding Mason present. He repliéd- he did not
helieve there was a seceder, but if' there was k¢ was
a perjured wretch and deserved to die.
«~ Mr Hazard. 1 wonder you. staid in such com-
as that, - S

Witness. 1 did not. I leftit. .

Question from Mr Paine. (Antimason.) Had
any person deceded from Masonry in this quarter

" before you did, and did this circomstance add to
your fears respecting the penalties of the oaths?

Witness. Yes. I believe I was the firgt Mason
who seceded from a Lodge in Rhode Islaid. No
one had doneso publicly. I seceded abdut a year
after the conversation with Elder Greene. [The
examination of Mr. Chase, which had occupied
from 9 o’clock, A. M. to the same hour P. M. was
here closed the notes of Mr Haile wore read to him,
and by him signed, and the Comniittee adjourned.]

i COMMENTS.

[It will be observed that the interrogtions put to

M7 Chase, were varied considerably from those put
. to Mr Thacher. The ingenuity of Mt Hazard, who
is one of the most acute cross questioning lawyers
in the country,was exerted to its utmost to entangle
Mr Chase in his examination. Tho latter, as will
be apparent from his answers, is a plain_conscien-
tious, pious, single minded man, with no reproach
on his whole life, but secession from Masonry; with
no guile in himself and suspecting none in others;
and yet it is obvious that straight forward common
ensewund truth,enabled him successfully to baffle all
the Chairman'’s efforts to involve him in contradic-
tion, or render him ridiculous. Those who witness-
ed the anger and occasional fierceness of Mr Haz-
ard toward this witness, and the perfact coolness
and good nature of the latter under wanton insult,
were well “satisfied that the former felt himself
eompletely foiled at his best weapons.

Another point in the examination of this witness,
should nof escape remark. Mr Hazard and Mr
Simmons attempted to call this witness in question
as to his relﬁlous croed, with a view to discredit his
testimony. No people on earth are so jealous of the
slightest interference in matters of religious concern-

- ment,as the people of Rhode Island, and but for the
protection given the Committee by Masonry, this
attempt to call a witness to account, for his religious
belief would have roused an universal indignation.
To prove this assertion,and also to show how far Ben-
jamin Hazard, Esq. could act inconsmstently, eveu
ith himself, in order to uphold Masonry, and brow
beat Antimasonic wifnesges, we will relate one
fact.. At the November term of the U. 8. Circuit

- Court in Providence, 1828, Judge Story presiding,
the old commcn law objeetion to the competency of
two witnesses was taken, on the nd of their
disbelief in a future state of reward and punishment.
The Judge examined testimeny touching the irre-
ligious belief of the witnesses, and being proved
to be deists, If not atheists, they were both set
aside. This decision, though jn-strict conformity to
common law precedents, was'declared to be an in-
Sfringement oF the rights of conscience secured by
the Bill of Rights of R. I. The press ofthat State was
universally roused against the decision of the Jud

- in this case, and a general indignation pervaded the
community, At the subsequent session of the
Legishature of Rhode Island, in January, this same
Benjamin Hazard, Esq. Aimself introduced a bill,
explanatory of the bill of rights, declaring that no
witness shall be called in question in any Court in

" mittee would admit, the Antimasonic

this State (Rhode 1sland) fouching hisbelief or dis.
belief in matters of religious concernment. Mr,
Hazard advocated this bill, (which passed unani-
mously) at the same time ing the_conduct of
Judge Story, toward the witnesses in the case ve-’
ferred to, with no tittle severity. Not a word was
uttered in the House of Assembly in vindication of
the Judge, who had just cause to complain (and we
understood at the time did comzlain) that not one of-
his friends would explain to the Housé the prece-

dents of common law, upon which the Court had -

telt bound to exclude the witnesses. The reason
they did not do so, is the o/d reason that usually
E:vems the conductof politicians : it would have

en very unpopular to kave done so ! Ms. Hazard
availed himself fully of the popular feeling. ‘He
introduced the bill, he censured the Judge, and ke,
himself, was the “first one, after that act passed, to
call In question the religious opinions of a witness
under civil oaths before him, sitting as a Judge !—
With this glaring fact before them, the candid
portion of the public will not be surprised at 4ny
inconsistency ; any outrage upon the feelings or

opinions of witnesses; any bargains with.Masonic .

witnesses; any perversion of tastimony ; any se-
verity and bitterness of denunciation, which they
may find in the deportment and report of Benjamin
Hazard, Esq. touching’ his connexion with this in-
vestigation inte Masonry.]

-With a view to establish the identity of masonic

oaths throngheut the country,as far as the notice giv-
en previous to the meeting of the Legislative Com-
X te Commit-
tee took measures to procure depositions fo that

effect. They accordingly forwarded to the proper °

officer at Worcester, Mass. a commission signed by
Mr. Sprague, Jr. one of the Committee, to take the
deposition of Pliny Merrick, Eu{ His deposition
was accordingly taken, sealed up by the officer, and
placed in the hands of the Legislative Committee,
with the seal unbroken, on December 8, at noon,
In the afternoon of. the same day, Mr Hazard, the
Chairman, handed the deposition, after he had ex-
amined it, to Mr Joseph g Cook, Grand Master of
Rhode lsfand,with permission to take it home.—
THe Preparation Room of .the Masonic Hall was
lighted up that evening, and this deposition: was
unquestionably discussed there. A similar indul.
gence to take papers and documents for examina.
tion, was extended to the antimasons, at first, until
the Masons began to hand’ in written statements,
which were not permitted to.goout of the hand«
of the Committee. .

Other depostions were taken, and presented fo
the Committee, None of them were read aloud, and
all were handed over to the Grand Lodge. )

DEPOSITIONS.. ‘

This may certify whom it may concern that I,
Tasxd CoRy, in the town of Troy, and county of
Bristol, have taken seven degrees in masonry, I
received them in Porthand, state of Maine, in the
iem Eighteen Jftndred and fifteen and sixteen. I

ave perused Bernard’s Light aqp Masounry, and .

can certify the obligations and penalties are the
same as those conferred on me. .
.TABER CORY.
Bristol, ss. December 8, 1831. Then personall,
appeared the above named 'Taber Cbry, and made
oath that the foregoing certificate by him subscribed
is true, before me, JOSEPH GOODING,
. Justieg of the Peace.
This may certify whom it mnay coacern that I!
Israxr CrAcE, in the Town of Westport, State of'
Massachusetts and Coun!

taken three de¢ s of Freemasonry. I received

them in North Carolina, Hyde County Mattamus- . .

keet,Frankhn wﬁ in Feb.or ‘March 1827. I have
perused Bernard’s Light on Masonry and can certify
the obligations and penalties are the same ag those
conferred on mo, excepting the words angle and

square of my work, mentioned in the Fellow - Craft

+
’ .

of Bristol, That I have .
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obligation: N. B. Bernard’s Light on Masonry,
pnﬁe 45th. ISRAEL CHACE. .
vistol, 8. s.. Westport, December 3d, 1831.

Then personally appeared the above named Isracl
Chace, and made oath that the foregoing state-

ment by himr made and eigned 1s true.

Before me, ABNER B. GIFFORD,

Jastice of the Peace.

Drxrosition 6r Prixe MERRICK, Esq

.1 Pliny Merrick of Worcester, in the State of
Massachusetts, Counsellor at Law, do testify and
sav, that sometimme in the course of the winter of
1820--21, as nearly asI can recolleet, I was admit-
ted a member of the Masonic Lodge held in the
town-of Tdunton in the county of Bristol, as I an-
derstood by virtue of a charter from the Grand
Lodge ot the State of Massachusetts. That until
my removal from Taunton, which was‘in the sum-
mer of 1524, 1 occasionally attended the meelings
of the Lodge ; and during some_part of the time,
frequently, I was admitted in‘the Lgdge to-the de-

rees of Entered apprentice, Fellow Craft, and
giaster Mason. In-the summer of 1824, as nearly
as I ean recollect, 1 was admitted to the degrees of
Mark Master, Past Master, Most Excellent Master,

and the degree of Royal Arch Mason; in Adoni-

ram Chapter in- Attleborough, in the County of
“Bristol in this state ; that I took the four last men-
tioned degrees in one afternoon and evening, and
and have not since, to my recollection, been in any
chapter in the county of Bristol. "I removed to
the town of Worcester, where I now reside, in the

suminer of 1824, and afterwards attended occasion- |;

ally the meetings of the fraternity in this place.—
During my absence from town on one occasion, I
was elected to the office of High Priest, which is
the highest office 'in the Chapter: On being in-
formeg of my election to that place, which was
wholly unexpected, I consented to accept, and Dr.
Benjamin Chapin of 'Worcester, who had been the

"+ former High Priest, agreed to make me acquainted

with all the forms, ceremonies,oaths and obligations

"6f the several degrees of the Chapter, and Iac-

eordingly. visited him several times and learnt the
same trom him, and committed the same to meme-
zy. I attended saveral meetings of the chapter dur-
ing the first part of the year, and discharged the
duties of my offite. Besides the communications,
made to me by Dr. Chapin, I have heard him re-
Baat the oaths in the chapter as its presiding officer,

uring the last half year while L waselected to of.
fice, I believe I was not once present at any meet-

.ing : and I have not been, I believe, in any meet-

ing of the. Masonic Fraternity since, execept that 1
once went in for a few moments for the purpose of

‘seeing a gentleman who I understood was there.—.

On one oceasion, after my admission to the chap-
tor,] heard Mr. Gleason,who-wasintroduced tome as
the Grand Lecturer, employed by the Grand Lodge
of the state, to teach the Lectures of Masonry, re-

" peat the Royal Arch Mason’s oath. These are all

the opportunities which I have #8d by attendance
on lodges and chapters, of ascertaining what were
its oaths or obligftions. I was however once pres-
ent at a meeting of the Grand Chapter of this state
in Boston, but I do not recollect that the oath of
the degree was repeated. .-

The several obligations of the three first degrees
of Freemasonry were formerly quite familiar to

_me,from having frequently heard them repeated in
" the Lodge meetings at

aunton. These obliga-
tions are faithfully given in a Book called ¢ Light

" on Masonry,” by David Bernard. Idonot mean to

state that the exact expressions which I heard in
Lodge mebétings,are given, because the words used
were not precisely the same on different oecasions ;
But I mean to state, that the caths as given in the
Book referred to, are substantially the same with
thiose which ] often heard administéred to initiates
Uy the presiding officer of the Lodge. I do not
mean herein to specify all the variations which on

«| headed, if within the length of my cable-tow.”

e

" thereto whenerer informed.”
. oaths of these three degrees as I' formerly hemd

"before referred to, which seem to mein any way
. essentially to affect the sense.

- and heard them administered , as I have before men-

the perusal of that Book have occurrec to me ; bul
I state those which seem to me in any way material.
I do not recollect to have heard in the Lodge any
such part of the Master Mason’s oath as the follow- |
i:f, viz : « I will go on a Master Mason’s errand,

henever required, even should I harete go l/ar}
@ ]
any part of this my solemn oath or obligation be
omilled at this time, I will. hold myself amenabls
With these excep-
tions, I do not know of any. variations bétween the

them in the Lodges and as I find them in the Book

I do not distinctly recollect the oaths and obliga-
tions of the four degrees of Mark Master, Past Mas-
ter, Most Excellent Master, and Royal Arch Ma.
son, as they were administered to. me, at my
initiation at the Chapter in Atitleborough. Owing
to the great variety of the ceremonies through
which ¥ passed on that day, and the great numbor
of the parts of- the several oaths, it was impossible
for me to retain a distinctrecollection of the whole.
Besides this, when the Royal Arch degree- was ad-
ministered to me, I was very much overcome, both
by the previous fatigue I bad undergone, and the
nature and character of the obligation; ard becom-
ing faint, was removed from the room before its ad-
ministration was finished. On my recovery, I
retdrned to the Chapter, and passed through the
remainihg ceremonies; but I have no recoliection
that the remaining part of the oath was administer-
ed. Among the persons present on that ogcasion, I
recolléct Mr. John Baylies of Taunton.

I believe that the oaths and obligations of the four
degrees of Mark Master, Past Master, Most Excel-
lent Master, and Royal Arch Mason are gives in
the book before mentioned, substantially, as I learnt

tioned. The words are riot i every particular
sreclsely the salne in that book, as I reeollected to
gnv‘e heard them in the chapter; but I do not Enow
of any variation, which materially affected the sense
in any other particular than those which 1 shall
mention herealtér. . -

I distinctly recollect that the following expression
was made use of in tho Chapter as part of the Roy-
al Areh oath, viz: “ 1 WILL ESPOUSE THE CAUSE
oF A RovaL ArcH COMPANION WHEN IN ANY
DIFFICULTY, SO FAR AS TO EXTRICATE HIM FROX
THE SAME, IF IN MY POWER, WHETHER HE BE
RIGHT OR WRONG.” [I'never heard any explana-
tion of that clause in the Chapter. Onone occasion,
when that part of the oath was repeated to a person
then passing through the ceremonies’ of initiation,
he hesitated and asked if it could be so? A Rever-
end companion standing by replied, that it was, and
advised ll)lim to go on, and 1t would be explained to
him. He did go onbut I heard no explanation
given.. )

1 do not reeollect to have ever heard the following
words, or any similar thereto, introdieed into any of
the obligations of any of the degrees of Freemason-
ry as_they were administerdd, viz: “I.will promotc
a companion Royal Arch Mason's political prefer-
ment :’n' prefsrence to another of equal qualifica-
tions. o

The following clause makes lm-t of the obliga-‘
tion of a Royal Arch Mason as I have heard it ad-
ministered, viz: “A compaNion Rovar ArcH
MASON'S SECRETS GIVEN ME IN CHARGE AS 8UCH,
AND | RNOWING THEM T¢ BE 8UCH, §HALL RE-
MAIN AS SECURE AND INVIOLABLE IN MY BREAST
As 1N His. owN.” To these words I beliave are
also added, “murder and treason not excepted.”’—
With respect to these last words, I must say, that
at this time, my recollection-is not-so perfect, 2s to
enable me. to speak with. absolute certainty.” For-
merly, after I l‘;ad left visiting the Chapter, I had

.no doubt on this point. But in.conversations which
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T have not unfrequently aince had with adherin
members of the Masonic Institation, their frank ad--
mission of the accuracy of the disclosure of the
masonic obligations as contained in the book T have
referred to,on other points, and their.earnest and ap-
arently sincere denial of its accuracy on this point,
gave lead me to doubt whether iny recollection wag
perfect. I have taxed my memory to the utmost
of my power; and I can now only say, that while I
&'o not feel certain,] yet believo that the words
¢ MURDER AND TREASON NOT EXCEPTED’ were
used; but the belief is founded on a variety of con-
siderations distinct from a precise recollection of the
fact. All those members of the Masonic Fraterni-
ty who denied the use of the words last quoted in
the conversations to which I have alluded, stated
that the following words are used in their stead,
viz : “ murder and tr only pted, and they
Left to my election.” -
"~ The check degree, as if is sometimes called, and
I believe usually, I never hearll repeated and ex-
lained but once hy any member of the Masonic
raternity. Being in Boston, I accidentally met
Dr. John Homans, now resident in that city, near
the old Court House. He asked me to walk into
the office_of Mr. Powers, the Grand Secretary of
the Grand Lodge of Massachusetts. After some
conversation, Mr. Powers proposed to communicate
and explain this degree or ceremony, to us, and ac-
cordingly did so. El‘he explanation was the same
which is given in the eighty sixth page of Ber-
nard’s Light on Masonry. [ havegsince it was
communicated to me, heard it apoken of by mem-
bers of the Institution as a matter added to its cer-
emonies; but I have never since heard it repeated.
And further this deponent saith not.
. PLINY MERRICK.
WORCESTER, ss. On the fifth day of December,
in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred
and thirty one, the aforesaid deponent was examin-
ed, and cautioned and sworn, agreeably to law, to
the deposition aforesaid, by him subscribed, taken
at the request ot William Sprague, Junior, and to
be used before a Committee of the Legislature of
Rhode Island.—The residence of the deponent in
the state of Massachusetts is the cause of taking this
deposition. ISAAC DAVIS,
Justice of the Peace.
[Among the documents presented to the Investi-
gating Committee, to 8id their inquiries, was a re-
port of the New Berlin trial, in which the Sheriff
of the county, Generat Welsh, and Mr. Pike a Jus-
tice of the Peace, both adhering Royal Arch Ma-
sons, had sworn to the oath of that degree in the
form it is given in Bernard. Accompanying the re-
rt was an Affidavit ef Phillip Peck, who was pres-
ent at the trial, certifying to its correctness in every
particalar ; with a view to present further evidence
on this point, and to elicit other important facts
which had been stated, but, as we believe, never
before been sworn to, interrogatories were forward-
ed to New York, and the following affidavit re-
ceived in reply, from Jarvis F. Hauks, a high re-
nouncing Mason of eighteen degrees, and an unim-
peachable citizen of New York.
ArrioaviT oF Jarvis F. Hawxs.
Gentl :—]n compli with your request, I
proceed to narrate such.facts and circumstances as
come within my knowledge, on the subject of Free-

. masonry, and such as will accumglate the testi-

\

mouny of which you are in pursuit. o far, howeyv-
er, as my experience goes, in relation to its oatbs,
eeremonies, &c. I canoot speak with certainty, of
more thar eightéen degrees, into whose mysteries I
have been introduced. Of its usages, as a society
my remarks will illustrate the conduct of Lodges
and Chapters only. In this communication, I wish
it to be distinctly understood that when I relate a
Jact, or make an ussertion, I intend it to assume the
character-of positive tastimony; but when an opinion
is given, it s to be taken only as the judgment of

one whose etperisncs is large, and whose formcr
standing among the fraternity was honorable, ang,
thHerefore, is not-to be received as absolute evi.
dence. . ’

‘Betnard’s Light and Allyn's Ritual, in the ae-
count of the degrees [ have taken, are substantially
correet. The genuine book of the first three de-
ireeo by Williain Morgan, and the publication of tho

e Roy ‘Convention, up to and including the Royal
Arch degree, are true revelations of the first seven
degroes of Freemasonry as they existed in 1825,
throaghout the United States. I siy genuine, be-
cause a spurious book, purporting to be the work of
Morgan, has, 1 believe been introduced into tha
market. Verbal variations did ever exist in the
phraseology of the masomic lectures and work ; but
as great a similarity has prevailed as could be ex-
pected or hoped for, in oral traditions; yet the sub-
stance was the same in all places, among all Masons.
I would here state that I received the first three de-
grees and Union Master, in Cburleston, Katiawha
county, Virginia; the l\ffuk Master,” Past Master,
most excellent Master, Royal Arch, Royal Master,
and Ark and Dove in Philadelphia ; the Select
Master at Point Pleasant Virginia; Secret Moni-
ter and Knight of Constantinople at Zanesville,Ohio;
Heroine of Jericho, Mediterranean Pass,and l‘night
of the Kound Tahle, in Cleaveland, Ohio; Knight of.
St. Jobn at Eaclid, Ohio, and Intinate Secretary in
Warren, Ohio. 1 was High Priest of Webb Chap-
ter No. .13, and Worshipful Master of Concord
Lodge No. 15 at Cleaveland, Ohio, each during the
year 1826. Within this period I presided at the in-
stallation and advancement to the Royal Arch de-
gree, of about twenty five persons, whose names [
could furnish, if expedient, and one of whom atfeas:
resideg in this citg. 1. have visited various Lodges
and Chapters in New York city and State, in Phil.
adelphia and numerous towns in Pennsylvania ; in
Ohio and in Virginia ; probably fifly in all. 1 have
conversed with intelligent Masons from nearly
every State in the Union, as well as from many,
parts ot Great Britain and . am well satisfied that the

of Fr is everywhere the same.

The oath of the Entered Apprentice binds the
recipient to keep all the secrets of the whole system
from the world. The words are “I will always
hail, ever conceal, and never reveal,; any part or
parts, art or z2rts, paint or points, of the setret mys-
teries of ancient Freemasonry, which I have re.
ceived, am about to receive, or may bs hereafter
instructed in, t6 any person or persons in the known
world, except it be to a true and lawful brother
Mason,” &c. . N

The Master's oath contains two or three clauses,
the force of which adhering Masons have,lbelieve,
uniforly denied. “I will fly to the relief of any
person giving the grand hailing sign of distress of
a master mason, or uttering the exclaniation belong-
ing thereto, and relieve him if in mny power, if there
is not more danger of losing my lifé, than hope of
saving his.” - I understand this obligation to be _
capable of influencing a master mason to do for a
brother, many things which would be illegal. For

| instance, & masonic Sheriff hasin custody a brother

who has commiitted a capital crime, and is sentenced
to death,—he gives the grand hailing sign of dis-
tress—-the Sheriff is bound to ‘relieye bim if in his
power,” and suffers him to escape, as if by accident.
A jailor turns the key upon a brother. At a con-
venient time, the potent sign is displayed—the
huge iront doors, massive gates and impassible bar-
riers, are overcome, with the facility of magic, and
the culprit is let loose to commit new depredations
upon socioty, 2d—“I will warn a brother master
mason of ell approaching danger.” [ quote only
parts of the oath ; not, however, destroying or per-
verting the real sense. Refoerence may be easily.
had to standard revelations, This warning may
mean that one is obliged to give notice to a brother,
of any fmi about to be practised wpou him by a



swindler a«ssuming the character of an honest man,
and therefore not suspected of evil ; or it may equally
bind a mason to notify a criminal who has sworn
the same oath, of his danger of apprehension by an
officer of justice,and urge his immediate flight to
regions beyond his jurisdiction. If the points be
capable of such interpretation, bad men will always
be ready fo take advantage of it. Indeed there
seems to be ample proof that masons have under-
stood these obligations as constraining them to ex-
tend relief, if possible, to those of-their brethren
who have violpted the laws of the land, ahd have
not only become obnoxjous to the penalty of those
laws, but also deserving the indiguation of all good
men. .

But the Royal Arch occupies an elevation which
Mr. Webb calls “the summit and perfection of an-
cient masonry.” It is sought as thie ultimatum of
the mystery by the votaries of secret societies.—
Those who advance beyond this, are as a drop of
water to the ocean. Twepoints in this obligation
are worthy of remark. The first runs thus :—«]
WILL AID A COMPANION, RovaL Arci Mason
WHENEVER I SEE HIM ENGAGED IN ANY DIF-
FICULTY, SO FAR AS TO EXTRICATE HIM FROM
THE BAME IF IN MY POWER, WHETHER HE BE
RIGHT 'OR WRONG.”’

Mr. Strong, late editor of the Amtimasonic In-
telligencer, at Hartford, Conn. has explained this
clause as it was explained to me when I took it,~-
[The explanation is this : Suppose a companion is
engaged in a dispute or quarrel, you are to tuke
him by the left arm, graeping him with both your
hands ; sayiog who are you ? I am that I am, come
along with me.” When thus accosted Be is bound
to leave the place and accompany you.] But I have
always understood it was capable of a wider lali-
tude, and verily believe most American Masons
have s0 understood it. Nodoubt, in many instan
@es, it. has been construed in a manner prejudicial
to the wholesome regulations f society, and favor-
able to the niost unrestrained commission of crime.

The second is thus: I wiLL KKEP ALL THE
sECRET8 OF A CosranioNn Rovar Arcu Ma-
SON WHEN CONFIDED TO ME AS SUCH, OR KNOW-
ING THEM TO BE SUCH, AS SBCURE IN MY BREAST
A8 THEY WERE IN HIS OWN, MURDER AND TREA-
SON NOT EXCEPTED ;' or sometimes, *without ez-
ception,” but most froguently in the first form!—
- Now, although the. candidate in the master’s oath,

is taught to keep the secrets of a master mason,

given in confidence, “murder and treason only ez-

cepted, and those left at his own discretion,’’ yet it

is reserved for the Royal Arch to require men-to

conceal the highest crimes, known to human laws !
. A master mason opce told me, in confidence, of a
criminal trangaction, which made him a father, be-
fore his mairiage, béing assured that I would never
mention it, but that it was as secure in my breast
as it was in his own. His name has never been
mentioned in connection with the fact.

I am in possession of another masonic secref,
poured into my ear by a Royal Arch Mason, which
1 have never made known ; and I reveal it circom-
stantially, now, not only to shew the nature of the
seorets entrusted to the brethren, bat also to illus-
trate the influence of masonry upon the course of
justice. In the year 1826, Miss N. of Cleaveland,
Ohio, living in the family of W. O. a relative by
marriage, was charged with stealing a sum of mon.
ey, and, I think, a number of silver spoons. By
some means or other she was removed for trial to
Canandaigu§,N. Y. Mr. O. wasa Royal Arch Ma-
son, and attended her. R. W. the Attorney em-
;l{oyed to defend her, was a Mark-Master Mason.—
- My informant, R..S, a Royal Arch Mason, was
Hesent at the trial as a spectator. The guilt of

iss N. was clearly proved. R. S. remarked that
‘¢ she was guilty in the opinion of every person in
the Court House.” It was a trial of great interest,
and attracted crowds of persons anxious to' know

L4

tke result of it, The verdict being * rot guilty,”
she was honorubly acquitted. The conclusion was
irresistable in my migd that the jury was corrupted
through the influence of masorry. R. W. the
young lady’s advocate, -and R. S. are now, both
judges of Courts of Common Pleas, one in Cuya-
{Aogn county, and the ‘other in. Me&dina coanty,
Obio. : . /

The proportion of charitable donations to the
whole disburscinents ot the order, so far as my
knowledge extends, will be best illustrated by re-
lating a few facts. 1 was a member of Kanawha
Lodge, No. 104 Virginia, about three years, during
which tim~I do not recollect that more than twenty
dollars was paid eut for tharitable purposes : —that
wad in a single sum, to a brother’s widow. It was,
however, the semi-yearly practice of this lodge to eat
adinner, which was paid for outof the lodge funds,
and cost frorh 80 to 150 dollars each. A brother
was paid 66 dollarg out of the same funds, for
transcribing thie records into & new book.

The Lodge and chapter, at Cleaveland,spent sev-
eral hundred dollars to erect a hall for their meet-
ings, for furpiture, dress, &c. 1do not remember
any charitable appropriation within 1826, except a
loan to Mr. Witliams of New York;on his note, for
a few months. There was a small‘amount paid for
the funeral expenses of a poor brother, who died
friendless, and without the means of interment.

I visited Royal Arch Lodge, No. 2, of this- city,
(New York,) in 1827. During the evening,three or
four petitions®or charity were presented. and read.
The applicants were represented as members of
that lodge, 1n sickness and extreme poverty, and
worthy men and masons. All the petitions were
rejected, but one, on the ground that there were no
disposible funds in the treasury! The gentleman
occupying the senior Warden's seat, proposed to
lend tie‘poor lodge five dollars, forthe relief of
one of the applicants, which was accepted. It was
afeceived opinion among the masons, that Royal
Arch Lodge was the richest in the city, baving, at
that very time, invested in stocks, 20,000 dollars.—
The regular meetings of this loddge were semni-
monthly, ateach of which Mr. Pardessas, lessee of
the masonic hall, furnished a supper at the stipulat-
ed prices of sixteen dollars !!

One more fact will suffice. Sometime in the

autumn of 1827, 1 visited Jerusalem Chapter No. 8,
of Royal Arch Masonry, of this city, in company
with a mason from Cleaveland, Ohio, with whom-1
have since had a conversation on this subject. We
concur in the following: During the meeting, a
resolution was adopted by said Chiapter, To PAY OouT
oF 178 FUNDS 500 DOLLARS, FOR THRE RELIEF OF
THE WESTERN SUFFERERS, OTHERWISE THE X1b-
NAPPERS oF WiLLiAM Morean ! The money
was to be placed in the hands of a worthy compan-
ton, destined to Rochester, who it was said, was
also to be the bearer of considerable sums from oth-
er masonic bodies jn the - city, for the same pur-
pose. . . ,
Thus, I have given you a brief account of such
of my experience of masonry, as will probably bs
of service to you, in your investigation of this sub-
ject,and am ours Respectfully,

JARVIS F. HANKS.
New York, Dec. 9,1831. - .
City and ggunty of New York,s.s. Jarvis F,

Hanks of said City being duly sworn, says that the
foregoing statement is in all respects just and true.
: . JARVISF. HANKS.
Sworn before me this 10th day of December,1831.
WILLIAM 8. SEARS,
. C. of Deeds.
CoMMENT. . .
[The last fact related in this important deposition,
is sufficient .in itself, to establishnthe character of
Masonry, as it is now disclosed to the world. The
same fact was stated in Mr. Whittlesey's report on
the Abduction of Morgan, made at the Philadelphia




National Convention, 1830. See proceedings -of
eaid Convention, page 17.. It has never since heen
attempted to be disproved by the members of Jeru-
salem Chapter. It is now stated under the sanction
of a civil oath, and another person referred to who
will testify to the eame fact, thus confirming the
statements ofthe able and convincing «eport above
referred to. "It was also stated in Mr. Whittlesey’s
report, that there was reason to believe that the
Grand Chapter of New York, in 1827, placed con-

learn previous to initiation, if he was,to take an
oath, and what the nature of it was.

Witness.
appeared to me to be a principle with the Fraterni-
ty to keep every thing in perfect darkness. It
would have been no use to inquire.  About twenty

ears ago I left the Lodge, ceased going, and I have
een told that since my views have been expressed
of the transaction in New York, I have been ex-
pelled. I never had any notice to appear. I did not

siderable sums of money, for lTike purposes; at the
disposal of their Grand Scribe. This has since been
. proved to have been the fact, ‘in the trial-of Gould
.and Weed, and it has also been proved that $100
were voteci to Eli Bruce, and a similar sum to oth-
er masons implicated in the Morgan conspiracy.
In the same report by Mr. Whittlesey, (a docu-
ment, the most minute statements of which have
since been established b{ legal testimony, in & re-
markable manner,) another important fact is related
in this connection; viz. that “Richard Howard (one
of the supposed murderers of Morgan,) came to the
city of New York, in February or%;arch, 1827, and
attended a masonic meeting at St. Johns Hall, in
that city, where he confessed in open Lodge, that
he assisted in putting Morgan to death, and that he
was furnished with funds by the Knights Cempan-
jons, then present to escape to Europe, and that
afler being secreted from pursuit by membeis of
the fraternity, he did escape. Certain it is, that he
iiformation has been received of this Howard,
since he absconded, and that the officers of justice
have never been able to penetrate the veil of secre-
8y, which coacealed his flight. Page 13.] '
Friday morning December 9.—%he Committee
met at 9o'clock, Messrs. Hazard, Simmons,Sprague
and Haile, as before. The third witness, Anson Pot-
ter, a Friend, whose name had been handed to the
Committee on the list of witnesses, was called.

'I‘zs'rmonr‘ oF AxsoN PoTTER.,

Mr. Hazard jput to this witness some of the gen-
esxal interrogatories, which had been put to the two
preceding witnesses, but with material variations.
This witness was not a Friend during his connexion
with ‘Masonry. By a printed rule of the Friend's
Maeeting, of many years standing,no person can
belong to the society called Freemasons, or visit
their parades, feasts, &c. and at the same time re-
tain his connexion with the Society of kriends.

Ireside in Crgnston, R. I. am a farmer by occupa-
tion. [ have been a Mason of three degrees. Took
the degrees in St Johns Lodge. Providence.’ Tdid
not consider myself a Mason 20 years ago; I have
not known any thing of the movements of Masonry
in a Lodge since that time. At the time of taking
each degree an oath or obligation was administered
to me. '

In answer to 3d Interrogatory, if he was told,
previous to taking the oaths, that they would not
interfere with his religious or political opinions,
witness says—I have no recollection of such being
the case, I may possibly have forgotten it as it is so
long since, nearly twenty years. )

In answer to 4th Tnterrogatory whether he could
repeat the oaths, witness says—1I think not literally
correct, the substance of them is in my mind.

In answer to the 5th, if charges were delivered
after cach oath,and if he cossidered them equally
binding with the oaths, witness says—That I eannot
answar strictly. I have some faint knowledge of
one or more charfet. I did not consider the charges
binding. I considered it as fatherly advice. The
oaths fconsidered of a different character.

Mr. Hazard read the charge from Webb, in the
1st degree ; and inquired if that was read to him?

Witness. A portion of it I recollect. I should
think a part of 1t was used. My impression was
that the charge was good. 1 think the principles
and duties inculcated were similar to those. \

In answer to the 6th, whetber he endeavored to

ider myself a Mason twenty years ago. It was

a quiet withdrawal. Not notified to the Lodge.
Mr. Hazard. }think you showed your sense. |
To the 7th, if he comprehended the force and ef-

‘fect of tho oaths, when taking them— -
Witness.
can’t say that I did, for under thecircumstances the
oaths are administered, the mind is occupied in re-
peating the oaths as they are deaconed off,and look-
ing for something wonderful to come. .

- . Mr. Hazard. Did you find it?

" Witness. I found nothing that I wished to eon-
tinue with. There are perhaps some men of firm-
ness enough to attend exclusively to the moral im-
ort of the oaths while taking them. Baut very
;w can. .Had I done so, I should not have taken -
them. . .
In answer to the 8th—if he had any doubt of the
meaning of the oaths, &c. I had but little doubt of
the meaning of the oaths, after I looked them over.
I considered I had placed my-life at stake, if I did
not comply with the oaths. I'took the three.degrees
within about six months, from the first to the last.
In answer te the 9th—if he applied to the Lod
to satisfy his mind respecting the nature of the
oaths, and if he examined them immediately after .
taking them, for that purpose ? N ]
Witness. 1 should think not. I some time after
studied the Lectures with a friend, and then I did
ot give them so much weight as 1 have since. I |
had a sense of the awful penalty I had incurred : -1
did not read them, because they are not aowed to
be written or printed,and are transmitted from one
to another by memory. . ’ ,
In answer the 10th—if he considered he gave
jurisdiction to the Lodge to take his life if he vio-
*ated his oath, and also shared in the same jurisdic-
tion over others ? : Voo
Witness. Not particularly at the time of taking
the oaths, for at that time theré was not a clear
perception, in consequence of the circumstances
under which the oaths were taken. On examina-
tion, they appeared to be framed for that object.

Mr. Hazard here held up a written paper in his
hand, (the first intimation given from the Commit-

I cant say I labored much, because it -

1 did not at first. I presume few do. F

tee to any but Masons, that such a document would . -

be or had been furnished by the Masons)—and said
—1 will read you an oath furnished to the Com-
mittee at their request, by the Grand Lodge of
Rhode Island, the Rhode 1sland oath, as it is admin-
istered in'Lodges in this State and no doubt as
you received it. 1 will read to you the Enteredgy
Apprentice’s oath, and you may then say if it is
the same you took. » Mr. Hazard then proceeded to
read the Entered Apprentice Oath from a written
sheet of paper, marked A.

CouMENTS. ' .

[This paper bore no date, nor the name of any
person, or any certificate where it came from, and
no one knew the hand writing, except the masouns,
and probably a majority of the Committee. It will
appear in the course of the Investigation, and it is
known from other sources, that the masons, on the
first day of the meeting of the Committee, Dec. 7,
were very earnest to persuade Mr. Hazard not to
require them to state th:ir oaths, because they had
generally been considered among masons, as a part
of the secreta they were bound not to disclose. Mr.
Hazard was resolute on that paint, and insisted that
they should hand in their oaths, as it would be
worse for them to have their oaths proved by e-

’

’



eeding masons, thaa to give them themselves.
.Doubtless this consideration had much weight, for
it was well known to them that there' was a suffi-
cient number of seceding masons summoned as
witnesses, in addition to those who had aiready tes-
tified, fully to substantiate the oaths of the three
first degrees. The resunlt of this negotiation be-
tween Messrs. Hazard, Haile and Simmons of the
Committee, and the principal masons, was, that
the latter were to hamr in thelr oaths on condilion
that they should e protected by the Chairman, from
ing any tions respecting their secrets and
ceremonies. r. Sprague, one of the Committee,
had no knowledge of this bargain, and was not con-
sulted. Mr. Cornell, another of the Committee. Rad
not taken -his sezt with them, until after the nego-
tiation was coucluded. Mr. Hazard, efter the.
first examination at Providence was concladed, said
to one of the reporters of this testimony, on the 18th
of December, that the masons would have fixed
themselves, if they bad refused to give their obliga-
tions, as they talked of doing at first, or words to
that effect. It also will be seen, in the future tes-
timony, that these oaths were prepared and written
_ont in the preparation room, by an agreement as to
the severat points among a number of leading ma-
sons, acting 2s a committee. Some difficulty was
experienced in inducing some of the committee
to consent to giving io their oaths at all. Col.
John Andrews, a high mason, and an honorable
man, said to the writer, in the presence of John
Hall, Esq., that he was on the committee relative
to handing in the oaths to the Investigating Com-
mittee. e was for giving them in, and wrote
some himeelf, Sowe of the eommittes were op-
posed to it, and one said he would have his arm
cut off sooner than he would tell the oaths. Col A.
addded, "a great many masons consider the oathg
as much the secrets as any part of masonry.” The
masons, however, finding Mr. Hazard resolute to
- get the oaths, (the only point on which he pressed
them through the whole investigation) and perceiv-
ing that they would be proved by others, suddenly
_arrived at the conclusion that their oaths wers not
a part of their secrets, and that they had no where
sworn to keep the terms of the oaths themselves,
,secret. Under these circumstances, the paper con-
taining the oaths of the three first degrees as agreed
upon by the masonic committee, wis- handed in on
Friday.]

[The following is a correct transcript of the three
oaths in the three first degrees of Masonry, as fur-
nithed by a Committee of the Grand Lodge of
Rhode Island, in the manner heretofore stated,;and
delivered to the Chairman, Mr. Hazard, by Grand
Master Cooke. .

OBLIGATION OF ENTERED APPRENTICE.

“f, =, of my owa free will and accord, and
in the presence of Almighty God and this Right
Worship(ul Lodge, erected to him and dedicated to
‘holy St. John, do hereby and hereon (that is on the

sHoly Bible, square and comnpass) solemnly and sin-
cerely promise and swear, (or affirm) that I will
always hail, forever conceal and never reveal, any
of the secret arts, parts or points, of the myasteries
of Free Masonry, to any person, under the canopy
of Heaven, except it shall be to a true and lawful
Mason, or within the body of a just and [Jawful]
regular Lodge of such ; and not unto him or them
untifl after due trial, strict examination, or by the
lawful information of a brother, I shall have found
him or them as Juutliy and lawfully entitled to the
saing, as [ am myself. 1 furtherwore promise and
swear,  (or affirm) that [ will not write, priut, eut,
carve, paint, staiu, or engrave them, [or cause the
same 1o be done by others] uponany thing moveable
or immoveable, wheveby the least letter, figure or
character may become legible or intelligible, so
that the secrets of the Cralt may at any time be
unlawfully abtained. i
», All this I promise and swear (or affirm) with &

N

just a

. .

-

\
fixed and steady purpose of mind in me to perform
the same, without any equivocation, mental reser- |
vation or secrect evasion of mind in me whatever—
BINDING MYSELF UNDER NO LESS PENALTY THAN
THAT OF HAVING MY THROAT CUT ACROSS FROX
EAR TO EAR, MY TONGUE TORN OUT BY IT$ ROOTS,
AxD THAT BURIED IN THE ROUGH SAND OF THE |
SEA, AT LOW WATER MARK, WHERE THE TIDE
EBBS AND FLOWS TWICE IN TWENTY FOUR HOURS,
So help me God, and keep me steadfast in the per-
formance of this my Entered Appreutice’s Oath and
Obligation.” !
FELLOW CRAFT'S OBLIGATION.
1,—— ———, of my own free will and accord,in the

presence of Almighty God,and this Right Wor-
shipful Lodge of Fellow Crafls, erected to Ged, and
dedicated to St. John, do hereby and bereon, in
addition to my former obligation, solemnly and sin-
cerely promise and swear, (or affirm) that I will
always hail, forever conceal, and never reveal, any
of the secrets of Freemasonry appertaining to the
degree of Fellow Crafls, to any person under the
canopy of heaven, unless it shall be to a true and
lawful Fellow Craft, or within the body of a just
and [lawful] regular Lodge of such, and pot unto
him or them, until after due trial, strict examina-

ion, or by the lawful information of a Fellow Craft,
i shall bave found him or them to be as justly and
lawfully entitled to the same, as I am myself.

I furthermore promise and swear, (or affirm) that

I will aid and assist all worthy distressed Fellow Y
Crafts, so far as I can do it without injury to my- |
self. I furtheimore promise and swear, (or affirm)
that I will answer all lawful signs or tokens, which
may be given or sent unto me from a true and
lawful Fellow Craft, or from the body of a just
and lawful Lodge of such, if within the first angle
or square of my work, :

§All this I promise and swear, (or affirm) with a firm
and fixed/resolution to perform the same, BINDING
MYSELF UNDER NO LESS PENALTY THAN THAT OF
HAVING MY LEFT BREAST TORN OPEN, MY HEART
TAKEN FROM THENCE, AND GIVEN A8 A PREY To
THE BEASTS OF THE FIELD AND FOWLS OF THE

AIR. . .

So help me God, and keep me steadfast in the
performance of this my Fellow Craft’s oath or obli-
gation.

[The words “If within the first angle or square
of my work,” are understood to have an sllusion to
operative masonry, and to mean & straight line from
one corner of a building to the other.

MASTER MASON’S OBLIGATION.

¢}, —— ——, of my own free willjand accord,
and in the presence of Almighty God, and. this
right worshipful Lodge of Master Masons, erected
to Him and dedicated to St. John, do hereby and
bereon, in addition to my former obligations, sel-
emnly and sincerely promise and swear (or affirm)
that I will always hail, torever conceal, and never
reveal, any of the secret mysteries of freemasonry,
appertaining to the degree of Master Mason, 10 an
person under the canopy of Heaven, except it shall
be a true and lawtul Master Mason, or within the
body of a just and [lawful] regular Lodge of such,
and not unto him or them until after.due trial,
strict examination, or by the lawful intormation of
a Master Mason, I shall have found him or them to
be as justl; ang lawfully entitled to the same'as I
am myselfl ~

1st. I furthermore promise and swear, (or affirm,)
that I will answer all lawful sigrs and summonses,
whick may be given or sent unto me from a true
and la:éful Master Mason, or fram the body of a

lawful lodge of such, if within the length

of my cable-tow.

2d. ThatI will aid and assist all worthy disttes-
sed Master Masons, their widows and orphans,so far
as | can do it without injury'to myself or family.

8d_ Tuat I WiLL BEEP A BROTHER'S SLCRETS

-
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AS NY OWN, WHEN COMMITTED T0 ME IN CHARGE
. A8 SUCH, MUKDER AND TREASONK EXCEPTED.

4th. That I will abide, by and support the by-
laws of the Lodge of which I may become a mem-
ber, the constitution of the Grand Lodge uader
which the same is holden, and the general regula-
tations of Masonry. ,

5th. Ifurthermore ise and swear (or affirm)
that [ will not be at the making of a woman a Ma-
%00, & young man under age, an old man in detage,
aa atheist, a mad man, or a fool, knowing them to
be such.

_6th, Thet I will not wrong a -brotheror deprive
him of his good name or suffer it to be done by
othérs, if in my power to preventit ; BuT WiLL
APPRIZE MIM OF ALL APPROACHING DANGER, 80
FAR AS IT SHALL COME TO.MY KNOWLEDGE.

7th. That I will not vivlate the chastity of a
brother's wife, daughter, sister or mother, knowing
them to be suck,

8th. That I will not give the Master Mason’s
word, except on the five points of fellowship, and
not then above my breath, unless absolute necessi-
ty shall require it. All this 1 promise and swear
éor alfirm) with a firm and fixed resolution to.per-
orm the same, BIn»ING MYSELF UNDER NO LESS
PENALTY THAN THAT OF HAVING MY BODY SEV-
ERED IN TWO, MY BOWELS TAKEN OUT AND
BURKRT TO ASHES, ASD THOJE ASHES SCATTERED
TO THE FOUR WiINDs or HEavewn, My BoODY
QUARTERED, AND DISPERSED TOWARDS THE FOUR
CARDINAL POINTS OF THE UNIVERSE, 80 THAT
THERK SHOULD BE NO MORE REMEMBRANCE HAD
OF ME AMONG MEN OR MASONS FOREVER.

So help me God and keep me steadfast in'the per-
(gnm’u,nce of this my Master Mason's oath or obliga-
tion. .

[Nole. Appended to this obligation was the fol-
lowing sentence, but it was not read or sworn to by
any one,during the examination, nor was there any
evideuce as to the source from which it came, or
the authority on which it was founded.]

“‘3ucceeding each obligation a chirge is given
which may be found 1n  Webb’s Monitor, and
which ox&‘lain. the duty of a Mason under the obli-
gation. ‘The Monitor is used as a bpok of refer-
ence by Masons, and is always depended on, for cor-
rect information respecting the seven first degrees.”

[Note. In the samne manner the fllowing sen-
tence appeared, appended to the engered Apprenti-

. cesoath. No witnesy testified that thia explana-
tion had ever been made in any Lodge, or by what
Masons it was ever so explained. The Committee
did not read it or ask any question respecting it,nor
was it known except to those who furnished it and
theCominittes, (o be attached to the oath, until some
time after. It should therefore be understood that
this explanation is in reality no part of the testimnony,
bYcause no inquiry was made respecting it, and no
witness vouched for its accuracy. On the contrary
every Masonic witness as well as-seceders, swore
that the oaths were no where exEIained different
from what they read, in or out of the Lodge. This
paragraph was thrown in, as a mere supposition of
the opinion of Masons, without stating what Ma-
sons ; an explanation got up, without 8 shadow of
Masonic. authority, to sofien the anth, since the:
murder of Morgan. The only explanation of this
sort ever given by Masons, was given in the Ad-
dress of the Rhode 1sland Grand Lodge, put forth to
quiet the jealous inquires of the peeple. The ref-
erence to the by-laws has nothing to do with the
oaths, as will be shown by subsequent testimony,
the ¢ transactions of the Lodge” not meaning the
oaths, but the ordinary business concerns. The
Chairman of the lnvestigating Committee stated
himself that he so understoud it.]

[“The explanation given by Masons of this penaity
is ¢that I would ratber have, or sooner have
throat cut, &c. than to reveal, &c. And there is

_an asticle in the by-laws of the Lodgesin Provi-

Al

denes, which provides # that if any member: ghall -
disclose any of the transactions of the Lodge, to the
disadvantage of the Craft, &c. he shall be admon-
ished or expelled.” (See 15th article of the by-laws
of 8t. Johu’s Lodge, and the L4th of Mount Vér- -
non Lodge.) :

TesTiMoNY oF AxsoN PorTER.  [Continued.].

_ Mr. Hazard, after reading to the witness the
entered Apprentice oath, lrom- the manuscript
marked A. inquired of the witness ifthat oath was
administered to him in the first degree.

* Witness. That I presume is about literally cor-
rect, as it was delivered to me. There may be
son:ie alterations that do not strike me on hearing it
read. S

Mr. Hazard. 1 now read from the same Lodge
the form of the Felll(ow Craft Oath.

M:r. Win. C. Burker, (Master of St. Johns Lodge,
and most Eminent Commandér of the Encampment
of Knight Templars) said, the first part is all the
same as in tho eutered Apprentice oath. Mr. H.
then read the Fellow Craft Oath, from the manu-
script form.

Witness. I presume that is the substance of the |
oath I took. I do not recollect the expression
“square and angle of my work.’

r. Hazard. I will read theMaster Mason’s oath
furnished me by the Grand Master, and Mr. Wil-
kinson, and Mr. Grinnell. He then read that oath
from the manuscript, and asked if it was correct.

Witness. 1 should think it was substantially the
same. Thereare some omissions and verbal alter-
ations. Amiong those to be excluded, in the oath I
took, was a hermaphrodite. There was somethiug
in the oath relative tothe graud hailing sign of
distress., .

[The clause in Bernard was landed to Mr. Haz-
ard, which he was requested to read to witness.)

Witness. Something of that kind was in the
oath. 1 mever read the oaths in Bernard. So far
as the expression, “furthermore do I promise and
swear that 1 will not give the grand hailing sign of
distress, except I am in real distress, or for the be-
nelit of the craft when at work,””[ amn pretty con~
fident it was in my oath. At present it strikes ma
that was about.all relative to the grand hailing
sign.

L:Mr Hdzard. Wehave been also furnished by the
saine Lodge with a copy of the charge adminis-
tered before taking the oath, which I will read to
yous .

To the oandidate. *Before we proceed to give
you the secrets of Freemasonry, it will be neceasa-
Ty for you to take an oath or obligation such as al}
Masons have taken before rou; wherely you will
bind yourself to keep inviolable all the secrets that
may be communicated to you. This obligation is not
intended to interfere with your religious or palitical
opinions. And sometimes the form is changed and
put in this manner: ¢ This obligation is not intended
to interfere with your duty to yourself, your neigh-
bor, yout country or your God.’ Have you any
objection to taking such an obligation?

“ To the candidate who has no objection, the fol-
lowing obligations are administered.””—Was thatde-
livered to you?

Witness. 1 have no recollection of any such
eharge before taking the oath.

The 11th laterrogatory was put to witness; if he
knew of any secrets in Masonry, except those dis-
closed iri Bernard’s Light and Allyn's Ritual?

Witness. 1 never read Bernard's Lighton Ma-
sonry or Allyn's Ritual. I have Morgan’s [llustra-
tions. The three first degrees in Morgan are sub-

stantially correct. [It was here stated that Bernard
was a copy frgm Morgan, in the three first de-
grees.] N

12th Interrogatory—1f the By iaw:s were pub-
lished, snd if he knew of apy secret by laws ?
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Witness. 1 think the'ly laws wera written, but
not printed, I think. I'knew of no secret by laws.

In answer to the 13th Interrogatory, wilness says,
he knew of no other oaths, than those he has stated.
'T'he 14th Interrogatory, he thinks he has answered
before. | .

To the 15th—If he ever heard the subject of Ma-
sonic penalties discussed in a Lodge ?

Witness. I don’t recollect that I ever did in a
L.adge. I recollect after the Lodge was closed, as
itis called, in the sitting room of the Lodge, where
we met to eat_and drink, as we usuully did every
night, hearing Masons on more than one occasion
say, that the author ot Jachin and Boaz, published
in 1767,’or 8, had heen put to death by Masons, for
divulging Masonry. This book I remember hearing
talkeﬁ of by Masons, twenty-five years ago. The
circumstances under which I received it are faintly
on my mind, but I am clear as to the fact. [Note.
+ Mr. Haile wrote down this question, leaving out
¢by Masons for divulging Masonry.” Mr. Turner
insisted on having it put down in the words of the
,witnese. We believe it was finally done so0.]

Mr. Hazard asked if he understood them to say
that the author of Jachin and Boaz was murdered ?

Witness. My impression now is clearly that they
did not consider it as « murder, but a necessary

seq of Masonuc obligations. It was mention-
ed,as I presume, as a CAlleON to show the bind-
ing nature of our obligations, and the importance
0jg not divulging the secrets.

{Remark. —Some difficulty here occyrred about
* writing down this answer. Mr. Haile made some
observation, about the witness wishing to have his
answer written down, which was not distinctly un-
derstood, and it is therefore omitted. The witness
explained “that he meant that in the conversation
- atter the closing of the Lodge, respecting the killing
of the author of Jachin and Boaz, the suggestion was
it grew out of his Masonic obligations ; not that he
was murdered, but that he was put to death, ae-
cording to Masonic law. Witness was satisfied
‘with leaving out this part, but that .was his under-
atanding.” It isa fact that the above answer,
which is here stated in the precise language of the
witness, was entirely omitted in Mr. Haile's min-
utes. The witnbss added further—*I considered
it then as generally understood among Masons that
the author of Jachin and Boaz- was put to death in
consequence of publishing the book disclosing Ma-
sonic secrets, in violation of Masonic obligations.”

Mr. Hazard. Was the subject talked of openly,
among the members ? and do you undertake to say
they Justified the murder ?

Witness. It was never a subject of public con-
versation. It would be difficult to tell at this time
how I'received it, but it was never a subject of
public remark. I do npt remember ever to have
heard that circumstance discussed as to its crimi-
nality. It was mentioned as a circumstance that
had happened a long time ago, and probably never
would happen again.

16th Interrogatory. Did you ever hear the sul-
ject discussed of the power of the Lodge to inflict
any higher penaity than expulsion, and did you ever
know of any higher punishment ?

Witness. 1 don’t remember ever hearinf that
subiect touched'upon at all, asto what power they
had. I never knew of any punishment inflicted by
the Lodge, unless the notice I had of being expel-
Jed, is such.

17th Interrogatory. Were politics or religion
ever discussed in the Lodge ?

Witness. Politics nor religion was never the
subject of deliberation in a Lodge, when I was
present. The charges appeared: to be of a religious
nature. My cxperience in a Lodge was probably
not more than twenty evenings. | presume it was
a principle of the Lodge at that time to exclude
politics and religion from the Lodge while it was
®pen. .

18th Interrogatory. If witness ever felt bound
to give his vote for # Mason, in preference to a het-
ter man nol a Mason? . .

Witness. No. For myself perhaps I have been
under 18 little of that influence as any one. I have
nodoubt it has an influence, but I never considered
it as growing out of the praofessed principles of
Masonry. There was nothing in the professed
obligations or principles of Masonry that imposed
upon me any political duty. Nothing in that duty
as ] considered, which had the least bearing on my
politica! opinions. [ speak of it as it was as I un-
derstood it, twenty yearsago. I know nothing of it
gince then in the Lodge.

Mr Huzard asked what influsnee
it had? \ :

Witness. I meant to be considered that there
no doubt was a iderable infl arising from
a brother being at the head of a Liodge and making
. Masons, or from a brother being liberal and furnish-
g a supply of refreshments. It was a general in-
fluence obtained by such means. In this state I
do not recollect any iustance of a mason treating a

£6. i

19¢h Interrogatory. If witness, when on a jury,

would have been influenced by his masonic obliga-

he u;ennt to say

tions to give a verdict for a brother mason, in pref-
erence {o one not a mason? '

Witness. It never would have had that influ-
ence on my mind, I trust. 1 considered the obliga-
tions as leading to that; pointing that way, but they
never had that influence on me.

20th Interrogatory. If witness everknew a judge,
juror, or other officer, practice upon this construc-
tion of masonic oaths? .

Witness. I have been but little in” courts. I
never saw any thing of that kind. .

21st Interrogatory.—If the forms and ceremonies
of Lodges in this and other states are vlike?

Witness. They are, as far as my knowledge ex-
tended. 1 remewnber in visiting a Lodge in Nor-
folk, Va., the Senior Warden came out to examine
me. I thought I was but an indifferent mason, but
I found him so rusty, I had to instruct him in the
pass sigas, and I was praised for my being so bright
a mason. It was praise I did not covet, for I never
felt much desire to become acquainted with the
science of masonry as it was called.

Mr. Hazard. Masonry is the only science I know
of, in'which the greater the ignorance the greater
the merit.

Question from Mr. Turner..—~What was the na-
ture of the suhjects usually discussed among the
members, after the Lodge was closed?

Witness. After the Lodge was formally closed,
the subjects discussed in the Eating Room were
various. There was no reEIulnr subject. Desultory
convorsation and songs. Usually sung about our-
selves, showing what werthy men we were.

Question from Mr. Paine.—Did you promise in
your Master’s oath to obey. the grand bailing sign
of distress? .

Witness. 1 think that in my Master  Mason's
oath, I did promise to answer the grand hailing sign
of distress. I am not positive it was in the cath;
[ think it was. 1 am confident it was in the oath,
or that1 was so charged.

Question from Mr. Paine.—If that sigh was made
to you, how did you consider it bound you as a
mason? .

"Witness. 1 believe I never made up my mina
fully ‘how 1 ahould act in that case. I never made
it, nor had it made to me. I wish to convey the
idea that I never felt myself much boand by my
masonic oaths. If It had been to the extent of a
quarter or half a dollar, to a worthy brother, and
perhapsmore, I should have answered it; hut not at
the expense of principle. ] trust 1 never should
have done that. ) .

Question from Mr. Paine.—Did you ever hear a
mason justifly the murder of William Morgan?




\

.

31

Witness. 1 never heard a mason fully justify the
murder of Morgan. Ihave heard them use expres-
sions which seemed to imply a sentiment that way.

Mr. Hazard here spoke up with same warmth.
~—The Conmnittee are not desirous of hunting up
scandal. I consider it no better than scandal, to sit
here to hear our fellow citizens cha:ged with justi-
fying murder. o

Mr.- Turner said he presumed the Committee sal
here to get at the tryth, which he had always under-
stood to be no slander. ° "

The testimony of Anson Patter here closed, and
the minutes taken by Mr. Haile, were read to the
witness, and by him signed.

WiLLARD BaLvLov.—Fourth Witness.

Resides in Warwick, R. 1. Is a throstle spinner.
I am now a Mason. Have never publicly seceded.
Have taken seven degrees. I was admitted and
took the four first degrees in the town of Paris,
county of Oneida, State of New York, in Federal
Lodge No. 80. Took the other degrees in a Chap-
ter at New Hartford, New York. I have been mas-
ter of a Lode in Rhode Island, Warwick Lodge. I
think it was in 1828.

Mr. Hazard read the Entered Apprentice Oath,
from the Grand Lodge paper. ' .

Witness. ¢ My body buiied,” as I received it:—
(instead of that, the tongue buried.) The substance
is the same as the oath I received in N. York.. It
differs some in phraseology. .

The Fellow Crafts oath being read. Witness says
that part stating I will always hail and never reveal,
&ec. is included in the Entered Apprentice oath, and
vot given in this. The same oagls I have taken in
N. York, I bave heard administered in Lodges in

- this State. I took the six first degrees as laid down
in Bernard substantially. I have examined that
book and the oaths as there given are substantially
such as Ireceivedin N. York, and have seén admin-
istered in Rhode Island, up to the three first de-
grees.

The Entered Apprentice oath is the same, as in
Bernard. The Fellow Cralt is the same except
square and angle of my work. 1 have seen the
three first degrees administered in Manchester
Lodge, Caventry, and Warwick Lodge, R. I. [At
the request of Mr. Paine, Mr Hazard read the Mas-
ter Maeon’s oath from Bernard.] Witness says that
part, I will fly tothe relief of the person giving the
grand hailing sign of distress should there
groater probability of saving his life than loosing
my own, is in the oath. -He is certain that be swore
in his Master Mason’s oath to support the constitu-
tion of the Grand Lodge of the U. States which is
not in Bernard. He also distinctly remembers that
clause, that if any part of this obligation be omitted
1 will hold myself amenable thereto, whenever in-
formed. That is substantialy correct as I received
theoaths. I have heard the oaths in the three first
degrees administered in this State, in the same form
in %hnchester and Warwick Lodges, except some
elauses in the latter oaths were left out. The omis
sions are, * that I will remember a brother Master
Maszon when on my knees offering up my devotions
to'Almighty God.” This is left out in the Rhode
Island Ledges.  Also, That 1 will go on a Master
Mason's 2rrand when required.” No other materi-

" al alteration in thg oath,

Mr F 1ine requested that witness might be asked
guestion relative to the memb of Manchest

odge having used Morgau’s book to initiate a can-
didate. ' - ) :

Mr. Hazard evaded it, and among other offensive
remarks, said, ¢ The Masonie dugghill has produced
a great many Antimasonic vermin.” ’

. Mvr Turner, (aside)—* And you think you are
the cock ot the walk to.gobble them up, but you
will find yourgelf mistaken.”

Question from Mr Paine. Did you ever receive
aletter in Masonic cypher, Lf s0 ntate it

a | 8 Mackinist.

~

Witress has recoived a lotter in the Royal Arch
cypher addressed to him at Warwick, post marked,
Mididletown, Uppor Houses. ‘There was nothing in
the letter but the following signs. '

FL>L9L OV
- VALLVL:

The réading of the pizns was REYENGE IS
SWEETE, when interpreted by the explanation laid

down in Bernard,p. 138. 1 have never taken the de-

gree of R. A. Mason. 1 never have formally with-
drawn from Masenry. 1 certifred a paper that Ray
Potter gave the penal clause of the Entered Appren-
tice oath correct. 1gave the certificate 25th July last.
I'have no means of ascertaining ‘whether the Royal
Arch signs I received came from a Mason or an An-
timason. I can merely give my supposition.

Question from J. S. Hurris, (Autimasgn.) Will

you state what you believe to huve been the occa-
sion of your receiving that letter?  °

Witness. In 1827 I thiik, I was at_Manchester
Lodge, Coventry. There were two candidates to
be initiated that night. There was no one present
that belonged to the Lodge, that felt competent to
give the obligation. Several of the membersin-
quired, if any of them had got- Morgan’s book, and
they could give tho obligafions out of that, I told
of it afterwards. That I supposed was the reason
of my receiving that letter. I know of no other.

" The last degree I received was Most ‘Exce}lent

Master. The fourth degree which I took was called
the Union degree. ’

In answer to question from Mr Hazard. I bag
seen the R. Arch Chapter cypher some years before
I saw it in Bernard. ‘

In answer to question from Mr Wm. Harris, (An-
timason) if there was a penalty in the Union degree?
There was a penalty in the Unior degree. It was to

‘have my body severed ffom shoulder to hip, diago-

nally. -

Question from’the same. Was the word affirm

ever used in any Masonic oath you ever heard ad- -

ministered.

self.

: BarNEY PuELYSs.—Fifth Witness. .

Resides in Mansville Smithfield, R. Island. Iam
I-have taken three degrees im Ma-
sonry. 1 have mnever publicly seceded. I am not
an adhering Mason. I took iny degrees in Colum-
bia Lodge, No. 34, in Brattleborough, Vermont.—
The oaths administered to me were-substantially the
same as those in Bernard. There is no material va-
riation. I received the degrees in the Fall of 1826
1 think. I was convineed that the obligations were
not binding on me, after about two years.. I con-
sidered them binding for about two years.

Question put by request. Did you.ever hear any
Mason in or ont of the Lodge, justify the murder of
Morgan ? :

Witness. I heard a Mason say’ that allowing
Morgan had got his throat cut from ear to ear, and
the ﬁ:ok he had published was true, justice was
done him, or words to that effect. - -

Mr Hazard here began to look sternjand proposed
a number of queries to the witness. ‘

Witness. %he Masgon was Timothy Bracket of
Guildford Vermont. 1t was sometime in October,
1880, in the highway near the doer of ‘his House.—
His wifes was present, and a sister of mine. Don'}
recollect thal any body else was present. I stopped
at his house in a wagon, and he came to the door.—~
The subject of Masonry was introdaced among us.
{ thought it was not justice to murder Mergan.” He
did .not appear to be angry. We were on friendly
terms. I never hearg aiy thing but that he wasa
respectable man. o :

r. Hazard. Were you ob good terms ?

| Witmess. Yes, wo were always friendly.

Witness. 1 never heard it used or used it my- )

,



Mr. Hasard. Ah! He was your friend then
was he ? :

Witness. 1 considered it 89, .

Mr. Hazard. Well, this is a pretty office to do

Yyour ¥RIEND, to slander him in thi§ way. (Mut-

t‘:alring.) These kind of tell tale things—contempti-
o ! . .

[The witness who was an entire stranger, and a
difident and very respectable young mechanic, here
seemed greatly distressed at the treatment he re-
Geived. Recovering himself he said [ was asked
sir, and I thought 1 must tell because 1 had sworn
to teil all the truth.] ,

" Mr Hazard. The Committee have no desire to
listen to these slanders. .
© OraN PAxcCARD—Sizth Witness.

R esidee in Cumberland. Is a Blacksmith by pro-
fession: I suppose I am a Free Mason. 1 have ta-
ken five degrees. Took three in Massachusetts in
Pacific Lodge,at Amherst. Took the other two in the

- Mark Lodge, at Cumberland, R. 1. I think in 1827.

[ A question was put by request,what had occurred in
the Grand Lodge in 1827, when he was present,
relative to the murder of Morgan.] At the thne
they chose officers of the Grand idge,ata regular
Lodge meeting in Cumberland, R. Island, I think

* in 1827, it might have been in 1828. Richard An.

. thony was Grand Master at the time.

There was
present Mr Peter Grinnell one of the officers, Bar-
ney Merry, if I am not mistaken, and I believe
Samuel Greene, and some other gentlemen from
Providence I do not recollect. Richard Anthony
:roke about the killing of Morgan. It was the first
me I heard of the death of Morgan. Mr Anthony
said there was no doubt that Morgan wnas killed.
Hx 5A1D PROBABLY 1T WOULD COME QUT iN PRINT
shortly, AE §AID HE SHOULD READ IT IN HIS FAMILY
THE SAME AS ANY QTHER PRINT, AND LET IT PASS,
or words. to that effect. Nothing else passed upon
that subject in the Lodge, as I recollect. .
Mr Hazard. Are you a political Antimason.
Witness. No. =~ -
Mr Huzard. Are you a Mason then ?
Witness., 1 have not set in any Lodge since

-then.

Mr Hazard. Have you seceded.

Witness. No 8ir. .

Mr Hazard. Let us know whether you are fish,
flesh or fowl. After a pause Mr H. said do you
consider yourself bound by any of the obligations
of Masonry ?

Wilness. 1 do not. _

' COMMENTS.

[Several questions had been prepared to ask Mr.
Packar, who had reluctantly obeyed a special
suminons, obtained from the Committee 'by the re-
quest of Antimasons. Mr. Packard had "never se-
ceded, and though disposed to tell the whole truth,
he evidently labored under strong apprehensions of
the consequences of displeasing the Masons. Pre-
vious to his examination he hat said to an individ-
ual that the understanding of the Grand Master and
others , respecting the killing of Morgan,
seemed to be that it was the duty of Masons to pass
itover and say nothing about it. Questions were
prepared to bring out this fact fully,but at this time,
it being after dinner, Mr Hazard had become so
stern and almost savage in his manner toward the
witnesses, that it seemed’ cruel to expose them to
his sarcasms, by proposing any question. The com-
mittee shew ho disposition to get at all - the witness
knew on thia subject, and it is a remarkable fact
that Past Grand ter Anthony was not called to
explain away this: singular circumstanee, nor (to
our knewledge) wes any other person named by the
Witness, as present in the Grand Lodge in 1827,

_quentioned at all on that point by the Committee.—

he faot,as.it stands unexplained, is this. That the
witness, a Mason, heard the Rilling of Merjtan first

mentioned, in & Grand Ledge, by the Grand Mas-

and.this too, long before it was at all believed, in
Rbode Island, out of the Lodge, that Mergan had
been murdered, and at the very time Masons out
doors, were pronouncing the accounts from the
West to be abominable lies, and declaring in their
papers,that Morgan was travelling about the coun-
try, or up in Canada, selling his bocks ! The Grand

aster told the Masons then, s this witness depos-
es, that Morgan was killed, and probably it would
come out in print shortly., Even he, doubted the
power of Masenry to kcep tie murder out of
print, but says he, it they do print it 1 shall read it
in my family the same as any other newspaper sto-
ry and let it pass! Without a word of censure,
though he knew the penalties Morgan had sworn
toand that he had been killed, by Masons, in literal
couformity to those penalties. This fact shows too,
that the Grand Lodges in different states, knew of
the murder of Morgan, long before it was believed
by the public.” They could only have lelirnt it, at
that period, from the Maspnic bodies in N. York,
and yet they did all in their power to keep the
people in ignorance of that crime. Such is the mo-
rality inculeated in the Lodge Room ! To illus-
trate the baleful influence of ‘Masonic oaths,still far-
ther, it should be stated here, that Past Grand Mas-
ter Anthony, alluded to by the witness, is a highly
respectable manufacturer, and a citizen whose
character has always commanded the highest re-
spect. He knew of the murder of Morgan, it ap-
pears in 1827, and yet he stopped the Rhode Island
American, some time after, when that paper came
out Antimasonic, and endeavored to aid in-bringing
the murderers of Morgan to justice, merely be-

,cause it published what he knew to be facts re-

specting Masonry ! Such facts defy comment !]

Friday Afternoon, December 9.
ABranAM WIiLKINSON—/Afirmed.

Resides in North Providence. Never was a Ma-
son, and does not think he ever shall be.

Question. Have you ever heard any Mason or
Masons express their approbation of the killing of
Morgan ? 1f so, who were they, what did they say,
when was it, and on what oecasion.

Witness. 1 have a number of times, soon after
the news of the abductionof Morgan. Some Ma-
sons would justify it and some would not. I recol-
lect but one at this time, who justified the killing.
That was Samuel Greene, then of N. Providence.
He said that if Morgan had disclosed the secrets of
Masonry, he did not see why any body need com-
plain, for he had suffered nomore than his just de-
serts, or what he had agreed to. Either one or the
other of these expressions. It was made in the N.
England Patific Bank, or by the door. There were
several present. It was sometime in 1828, I think
William Harris was one who was present, I do not
recollect any other. The subject of the abduction
and murder of Morgan, led tothis conversation.—
It might have been commenced by me. Itook an
early interest in the subjeet, and was considerably
exoited aboutit. There was an argument between

ter, who said thare was no doubt be was killed,

me and Mr Greene, at the time.” He appeared to
be some considerably exvited. The argument was
not of great length. Mr Greene spoke with his usual
warmth, when in argument. Not any more as I
knowof. 1have found in a great many couversa-
tions on this subject, same Masons justify the mur-
der, and some not. Bat I never found any who did
not seem to get over it very easy, with a smile at
the excitement. I cannot recollect when or where
I have heard other Masons express this ;rinion, but
bave frequently heard them say that Morgan was
a poor, dissipated, perjured rascal, and if he was
killed he had met with his just deserts, and that I
was meddling with what was none of my business.
And when I said what a serious circumstance it was,
and mentioned his wife and children, Masons have
said, she was not his wife, only a prostitute picked
up in the streets of Philadelphia. I have been




] was in the Roger Williams Bapk, Providence, in
1828, I think. Nathaniel Smith and Wm. Harris
were present. Samuel E. Gardaer, of Smithfield,
Cashier of Lime Rock Bank and Master of Mount
Morlab Lodge, camne in. After salutation he said to
me, I understand you are a patron or encoupager of|
that Free Prass, at Pawtucket. Suppose | am, said
I, is there any thing iz it anlawful, that I have not
arighttodo? Why, says he, it will do you more
injury than every thing you ever didin your life.
Says I, yon alarm'me, be good engugh to tejl me in
what way I 3. to beinjured for doing that, Says
he,it will be done WiTl AN UNSELN HAKD.

Mr. Hazard. Are you well acquainted with Mr
Gardner, and did yeg consider hin a hot headed
young man, who would otter such expressions with-
out any meaning, and \did you consider what he
said in character as a raere bravado, ar did you be-
lieve it was intended as s warning, or a threat ?

Witness. I have known him for fifteen years.—
He i pretty free (rifted)* in conversation, 'talks
freely, and speaks his mind without the fear of any

ody, and never saw any thing in him but wbat I
considéred him to be a correct young man. [ con-
sidered what he suid to be in exact accordance with
the principles of Masoury. I éould not tell what
he meant, but his countepance looked white, as il
he spoke the sentiments of his beart. 1 was impres-
sed seriously with my danger upon reflection, and
‘bave remained so ever since, having seon nothing
20 alter, but much to add to my cause for it.

‘Mr. Hatard. Were your opinions lormerly
Jriendly 10 Masons ?

Witness. Yes. I did not withdraw my con§-
dence from them, until this Morgan business.

" Questinns handed in by Masons st the table.
lat. Whether you have called the Masonic Hall
in Pawtacket, the slaughter house? Ans. Yes.

24. Did you ever say you did not doubt that five
!knlm:dnd'pomm had been put to desth ip St. Johns

all? : ’

Witness. A bave go recollection of ayer saying
Ahat I believed any person had been murdered in 2
Lodge in Rhode Island. I may have said that 1 be-

M;d’fogﬁy:mmm ® lnvesﬁgu; this mbjo;t.

- lieved the Institution had been the cause of the

death of hundreds. I meant fo couple it with the
gbligations of the institution which enjoin death.
Here Mr. Hazard went into a long cross exami.
.nation respecting the r witness had for believ-
ing that the-author of Jachia and Boag was killed,
angd for his belief that other masons who had reveal-
ed the secrets,had beon put to death. Mr. H. particu-
Jarly pressed the witness as (o the date of the pub-
Jication of Jachin and Boaz, &c. Witness wished
to have time to consult the publieations in which
he had seen these stat-menpts. His impression was
that it was Samuel Pritchard whowas found mur-
dered in the strects of :London, sbout a hundred
years ago, or wore, and that Misonry dwindled to
Mothiug in consequence and becamo the laoghing |
.stock of the boys. )
The doposition was here left for the witness to
produce documents on this point. '
WiLLias HaArris of N. Providence, Manufactur-:
oraffirmpd. Was preseat on an occasién when Sam-
uel Greene, (named by fordier witness.) of Paw-
Atucket,a high Mason, said
uilty of disclosing the secrets as had been charged
‘oo him, he had suffered justly. ,
Mr. Hazand, Have you heard any other Mason
;nsuf ‘the murder?
valncu. 1 believe [ have heard one other Ma.
son justify the murder of Morgan. It was Mr Bar-
ney Merry, of North Providence, recently Grand
Master of the Lodge. He ohserved that if the ac-
count was correct, if Morgan had. revealed the se-

'Th{a was explained tohave reference 1o a term com-
. won in the hmb‘:rb\uimu. - A board is firee rﬁ,wm

0 splitsspsy’ '

that if Mqrgan had been

| bright mason,
| Masonry and I think he goes

o ~
” .

crets'of Masonty, he desarved hisfate. Famnet ¢
mason and peyer have been. Some ten or twelve
ears since I was encouraged by Mr Hezekish
Howe, then of Pawtucket, a Royal Arch Mason, tg
join the Lodge. 1 asked him this guestion, whethep
if by any means, sleeping or waking, I should be"
weak enough to disclose aay of the oaths or secrets
of Masoary, what would be the uence? He
said, pery solemnly, it would bs pxarn. Heo resides
now in New York, near Albany, is a manufacturer,
at the establishment of David Wilkinson, as I have
understood. . Said Howe is a Royal Acch Mason, ss
I am jpformed, and was at that time. He was &
pretty free spoken man, He was most open on
Masonry,of any man I knew at that time. '
Witness. Has not had. any other material con
versation. About two years §go, was in conver-
sation with a person who is a captain of -a vessel.—
‘Witngss would prefer not to state his mame, but
could do it if it were necessary. )
Mr. Hazard insisted on the name.
Witness He had been 3 high Mason. His name -
was Chase, Joseph, 1 think. He now resides in
Pawtucket.” He stated to me that in a voyage he
had made, some years before, about 25 perhaps,
they were in distress, and saw a French veesel ap-
proaghing. ~ His captain gave the French' vessel a
Mauonic signal,but could ngt bring fer to. Hecame
to Mr. Chase and stated that he could not bring the
vessel to. He then undertook it himself as being
higher Mason, from what 1 could draw from bLiwm,’
and after hailisg the ship, gave a Masonic signal.— .
Said Chase in relating this circumstance, suited
the action to thob;votd. and magc t'l:‘sl ‘I: my
resence, probably not supposiog that I would un,
Scmand it? 1 then said to himofknow how he did"
it, by giving the grand hailing sign. [Witness here
poiuted oyt the sign in Allyn's Ritual dn 152. angd
eaid that yas the sign he made.] Capt. C. then beg-
ged-of me not to mention the circumstance to any
one, for he was fearfu) that the Masons would serve
him as they did Morgan. It struck me that he was
alarmed. 1 siated to him that I wopld ‘ot injure
him. This was my reason for do,eli_pfug S0 giyé the
name. I then stated to him what I had seen in Sol-
omon Southwick’s pager, (hat he had {or some tiine
felt himself in jeopajdy, but there was one consola-
tion that Masous had already killed ome too many,
to attempt the like again. .
Mr. Hozard asked if this reipark was made by
Southwick when he was a candidate for Governor?
Witness. 1 thiok before.
Mr. Hazard.

It js tlie first time l'ovot heard
any body quote Solomon Southwick, except Joha
Howe.

Qyestion by Mr Simmons. .Was Samue] Greene
pptto be excited when arguing on Masoniy, &e. .

~ Witness.- It is my impressioj that he was, and,
he was pretty zealous. The same remark would
not apply 1o Barney Merry. He is a very cool man.

I think there was no arggment between us. " I think
it was produced by one question slone, and that, I
thiok eame from me about the kidnapping and prob-
able snurder of Morgan. The conversation with
Merry might have beep g year after the news of
Morgans murder or more. :
- Question by Mr. Hazard
edge of masonic gigns.)

Witness. 1 am troubled with rather a short
memosy=but at that time could give a npmber of
them. ~ It reqgires a retentive memory to be &

?bave studied’ Barbaid's Light on

to 44 degrees includ;
ing French and Pryssian.” My inducementin study-
ing the signs was to wateh the operation ree-
Masoory---which I have done for the lagt i2 years.
L Question by do. Were you a siguer of the late
Anti Masonic memorial, and a-member of the late
State Conventitn?

Witness. 1 was. | earl
and was ot thoﬂ;ltAnd puic

(respecting his know)-

fo this subjeet
veation in this.




34

State. For that act in eeming forward and being a
member of the Anti Masonic State Committee.
(Mr Hazard here interrupts witness and says—
“then you are a party”)—I was accosted by a friend
ot mine,a high mason,who stated to me with a great
deal of earnestness, that [ had better keep back’ in
the back ground—that he- was persuaded that it
‘would be very much to my injury to have my
name made use of in that way—he -said I might do
as much in the hack -ground—I might push the
thing ashard as I pleased against magonry, but as
a friend he prayed that I would not come forward
again in the way that T had. -
This was Crawford Titus,with whom I have been
intimately acquainted for 12 or 15 years. ° ]
Question by da. . Were Juu present in the late
Antimasonic Convention—did you vote on the ques-
tion declar'ng the Anti-masons a_political party—-or
did you approve of that vote and are you attached
to that party > Ans. I believe you may say all
- that—I was present—I think I did so vete and I
approve of the vote und am attached to that party.

Question by Mr. Simmons. .At what time did
Mr Titus give you that advice > and what did you
suppose was his object ? It was about two years
since, I thiok, betore Anti-masonry assumed much
of g political character in this state. I cannot say

.. . positively what his object was —but supposed it was

Eecuuse he was fully acquainted with the operation
of masonry and out of purely friendly feelings to-
wards-me.

Mr. Hasard here weht into a vexatious.examina-
tion about the state of parties. Sargeant’s trench
law suit and quarrels in Pawtutket where Mr Wil-

.- kinson was interested against Masons.

-Witness. There was a'strong party feeling in
Pawtucket—there was bitternessof feeling in the
community there. There was such a suit. David
Wilkinson was a Mason. ,

Mr. Huzard. Were you present at the R. W.
Bank when the conversation between Mr Wilkinson
and 8. E. Gardner, mentioned in tha deposition .of
Mr Wilkinson, took place; if so what part of it did
you hear? )

IWitness. 1 was present and heard the Intter part
of it—that part of itin which Gardner said it would
be dene by an unseen hand. -

It being late in the evening, the Committee ad-
journed. . .

Saturday Morning, Dsc. 10.—The Committee
met at 10 o’clock, present as yesterday.

Dr B. W. Case of Newport, was called and
sworn, and the Committee examined him for about
an hour. In the mean time Rev. Daniel Greene,
who had justified the murder of Morgan, as stated
by Mr Chase, appeared and requested that he might
be examined in regard to the conversation with M
Chase. Whether he hid bcen summoned by the

¢ Committee, or had appeared voluntarily, was not
explained. .

Mr. Hazard directed Dr Case a (seceding Ma-
son) to suspend his testimony, and- Mr Greene, (an
adhering Mason) took the stand. ‘

Revp. Dysier Grewne, (Mason.)—7th. Witneps.

. Mr Haile read to witness that part of the deposi-

. tlori of Leevi Chase, which allages that witness de-

clared to him, Morgan had suffered accordingly to

his obligations, and  he was asked if he recoliected
that conversation ? . :

Witness. | recollect if my memory serves me, of
having three conversations with Mr. Chase in pri-
vate, on the subject of Masoury. The first was at
Captain Bakers.

wr. Hazard here said, “ Mr Coeke, we shall want the
other oaths.” Mr Cooke, the Grand Master then handed
a paper t6 Mr Hazard. Tt should be borne in mind that
Mr Greene was the first Royal Arch Mason exam-
ined, and it was necessary to avoid having to recur to
she oaths in Bernnrd,ahould’;ny question be asked.)

Witness The conversation is not all correctly
tated by Mr Chase. Afer some other eonvsrsation,

~

et

U asked of the psople ef the house the liberty to
step into some other room, by ourselves. We went
into another room. I asked him if he had visited a
Lodge lately. He said he had not. 1 told himit
was dogbtful whether he could get into a Lodge at
that time, if he had not visited one for some time, as
there was a great deal of excitement in conse-
quence of many books that were abiout, and some
imposters The Grand Ludge had taken great pre-
caution, and instituted something new among them
to check these impostors, when they should appear,
and that if he had not learnt that, he could not be
able to visit a Lodge until ho had; and I should ad.
vise him to get it inmediately, if he intended to vie-
it the Lodges. I don't remember that any thing
articular took place after that. I told him if he
ﬂad been there last night, [ could have vouched for
him and he could have taken the degree, and that
he could not get it except at the Lodge of which he
was a member, or by being vouched for by a brother.
There was no conversation at that time, that took
place with us, reapecting the murder of William
Morgan. I don’t remember particularly.
r. Hazard. Wasthere ever any conversation
between you relating to the murder of Morgan?
Watness. 1 would like to be asked a question on
that point. Ihad a conversation with him on that

subject, alone by ourselves, in my keeping room, .

after eleven o’clock at night. I can’t remember just-
Iy how the conversation was introduced, but the
substance, I think was this. He asked me if [ be-
lieved that Morgan was murdered, or his life been
taken. I told him that according to the accounts I
had received, the best I could get, 1 believed he was.
He then asked me if I believed the Masons did it |
told him I believed they had, according to the ac-
counts I had received in the papers I redd. My ex-
preasions were these, that I thought it was an a®ful
thing before God, yet we were not to blame for what
others did, and that there was no society but what
had its bad membars, and that he we!l remembered
that our Congregational brethren in Salem hung
the Quakers, but we were not to be Llamed for it.
I never justified the murder of Morgas, no further,
and never meant to be understood so.

[Note. A question was here written by Mr. Hal:
lett, and handed to the Committee, ‘ If a Congrega-
tional Church should retain at its communion, mem-
bers who had hung the Salem Quakers, and all other
Congregational Churches in the countty should con-
tinue to fellowship that Church and be bound to re-
ceive the murderers at their communion table,
should you excuse them by saying they were not to
blame for what others did?” While Mr. H. was wri-
ting this question, Mr Greene said that he was very
unwell, and wished to be excused from having
questions put to him. He had only come to explain
what he understood Mr Chasc had said about him.
He should prefer being examined further, if peces-
sary, some other time. The Committee did not pat
the question, nor was it put aflerwards.] o

The witness here entered into an earnest de-
fence of himself. He said, it was the injunc-
tion of my father in law, whose ashes ate now
in the grave, that I was aboat to take an obli-
gation which was not tointerfere with my politics

or rcligion. ¥ wae a witness in a case in Boston be- -

fore Judge Wilder, in which A. Wilkinson was
Plaintiff and Benson Defendant. It was between a
Mason and an_Antimason, and I told the truth in
favor of Mr Wilkinson, (the Antimason.) lama
Mason. Ihave gone to the orders of Knighthood. I
took the three first degrees first, then up to the Roy-
al Arch, and then to the Knight Templar. I took
them inclusive’ to the Knight Templar, in the
Lodge of Pawtucket and Chapter and Encampment
of this town. I do not recollect the names of the
persons who gave mo the degrees.

Question by request. Are the oaths and obliga-
tiens that were taken by and administered fo you,
the same as those contaived in Allyn angd Bernard?



.

Witness. 1 ;ould not tell you.: 1 bave mever

wead Allyn or Bernard. - .
Question by request. Can you repeat the Knight
Templa’s oath ? -

Witness. The oaths of the higher degrees, I|

could not remember if it was to gain a Kingdom.

The oaths of the Entered Apprentice was then
read to witness, as furnished by the Grand Lodge.

Witness. I should think in amount about the
saine.” I thought there was some variattons in
some of the words. [The witness was not asked to
point them out.] ° : .

The Fellow Craft’s oath was read and Master
Masons from the same paper. ’

Witness. Accerding (o the best of my informa-
tion or memory, they scew to me to be substantial-
1y the same.

Witness does not recolleot that part of the obliga-
tion, that he will hold himseit amenable thereto if
any part of the obligation is omitted, whenever in-
formed. Never heard any thing of the kind.

Hitness was asked, by request, if hé remember-
ed the following clause i:, the Master's oath. ¢Fur-
thermore do I promise and swear should I'ever hear
the grand hailing sign of distress,and thé person giv-
ing it being-in distress, I will fly to his relief, &e.’

Witness. My miemory does not serve me, so as
to be able to state correctly, whether I recollect any
thing about it. He begged to-be excused at this
time. .

M7 Hazard here said that the Committee did not
contemplate ‘examining him in full extent. The
Comumittee had prepared interrogatories, embraeing
the whole subject.

Witness said as to the higher degrees he' could
not attempt to give them.

"Fhe witness was here excused, with the under-
standing that he would be called again, if wanted.

[Note. It was thought remarkable by some, that
the witness should remomber his three first degrees
pretty accurately, which he took many years ago,
and yet could not remember the higher degrees,
which he had taken much more recently, ¢ if it
were to gain a Kingdom.” It should be remember-
ed that no masonic witness, at this time, had been
examined as to any degrees above the Master, nor
was it known, while he was under examination, on
Saturday, that the Masons had handed in any oaths
abuve the third degree. Several questions were
written by Antimasnns, with a view of drfawing out
the oaths in the higher degrecs. The witness, how-

evaer, plead indisposition, and pressed the Comnmittee |

to excuse him, until some other tine, and he was
excused. He was called again several days after,
and examined further. Id this report the order of
time in which each witness was examimed, will.be

preserved, unless where it "is stated to be other- |

wise.] .
Nataax WHiITING.—8th 'Witness.

Rosides in East Greenwich. Is an Attorney and
Counsellor at L. Is a Mason, has taken three
degrees together with the check degree.  Took
them in King Solomon’s Lodge, at East Greenwich.
Tas been Master of that Lodge. Hardly thinks he
can repeat the oaths from reeollection. The Grand
Lodge oaths in the three first degrees, were then
read to witness. ' - : .

Witness They are substantially the same, with
some variations as | took,and have adininiatered,them
in said degrees. It sometimes used tobe administered
in the Fellow Craft, ¢ within the length of my ca-
ble tow,’ instead of ‘square and angle of my work.’

- Yo the Master’s degree after ¢ murder and treason
excepled,’ is added, AND THAT AT MY OPTION.—
This was the usual form. In other respects this
Master's oath read is substantially the same witness
has been acquainted with. )

he Chairman was here requested to read the
oaths to witness from Allyn, but he refused. He
was then requested to put to him the clauses in the
oath ia Allyn not given in the wiitten oathehanded

.

N
.

N LT e
fn by the @rand Ledge. “This was finally don in
a very rcluctant manner.] . )

Witness was asked by request if in the Mastor’s
oath he recollects this clause, ¢ That I will not give
the grand hailing sign of distress, unless I am in
real distress,” &c. T :

Witness. 1 think I never heard it in the oaths,as
administered. : :

Question by request. Is it taught in the Lec-
tures? S

Witness. 1t isas a matter of instruction.:

Question by request, 1s the duty of obedience
to this sign taught at the same time, as a Ma-
sonic duty? .

Witness. The use of the sign and tke duty to
obey it are also taught, and pointed eut.in the Lec-
tures. .

The several clauses in the oath given in-Allyn,
not jncluded in the Committee’s oaths,were marked
off, and the committee requested to put them to

witness. Mr Hazard inquired if the committee
saw any importance iu putting the questions to
show the difference? me eonversition took.

place betwsen the Committee, on this point.

Mr Huzard, said he considered that the.wvaria-
tions wefs wholly immatérial. :

Mr Sprague considered that it was
portance. . . R :

Mr Hazard insisted it was whelly immaterial ; he
said the differénce between the oath, was metely
verbal. As the oath is repeated from memory, it is
impossible it should always be alike.- Dr. Case has’
testified that. : : A

Mr Hazard here complained of the- trouble the
Comunittee-were put to, by these questious. Mr.
Hallett offered to take the written oaths. and com- .-
pare them with the printed, and prepare questions,
and point out all the differences: Mr Haza:d wished
he would do so, and the written oaths of the 3 first
degrees, were afterwards handed to him for that
purpose. - , :

Mr Turner said it was useless to prepare ques-’
tions for the Chairman to tear up. - Mr- Hazard
said-he had tore none up that ought to be put. Mr
Turner said he thought differently. - Mr Hazard
replied that he should "tear them up, if they weré
not considered waterial. Finally Mr Hazard agreed
to put the omitted clauses to witness, and the fol-
lowing clauses from the Master’s oath in Allyn's
Ritual were read. 1st. « That 1 will not be at the
initiation or raising a candidate at one communiea-
tion, without a dispensation.” 2d. That 1 will go
on a Master Mason's errand even barefoot, to save
his life or relieve his necessities, .

Witness. The first is given in some instances,but
not generally. The second. No.
~ 3d. ¢ That if any part of my obligations is omit-
ted at this time, I will hold myself wnswerable
thereto, &e.”

Witness does not recollect that it was ever so

administered. . :
* Question from B. F. Hallett. Did you ever, as
Master of'a Lodge, expldin the peunalties in the three
first oaths, and if so at what time, and in what
manner. )

Witness.- I never gave any explanation of the
penalties. .

Questionfrom the same. Did you ever deliver
Lrcturesin the Lodge, and it so, what subjects did
they treat of ; Were they designed to explain the
signs and ceremonies ? '

Witness. 1 have delivered lectures. They treat- -
ed of moral subjects, and were in explanation of {he
mode and manner of initiation, and working in the
Lodge. - ) T

Question fiom the same. Did you ever receive’
a check degree or oath,'and by whom, and for what
reason was it instituted. '~ "~ - .

Witness.. 1received a degree, called the check '
degree and understood it fo have been adopted on ™
account of Morgan's disclosures, , . ¢ .

of some im-

P
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‘Mbuh o ,frondo. Wheré did you understand it
. Sriginated ?
_ Witness. 1 understood it origimated in and was
escribed by the Grand Lodge of New York; and
scommended toother Lodpés. 1 do not remember
whether I took an oath in that degree, or not. _
. At3o’clock, P. M. The Committee adjourned
- tntil 100’clock Monday morning.

Monday Morning, Dec. 12.

.. Committee met at 10 o’clock, Messrs, Hazard,
8prague and Hdile present Simmons absent.

Journ Brown—Ninth Witneis.

. Resides in East Greenwich, (is Clerk of the
rt of Common Pleas for Kent County.) 1 have
beeri @ Masoh. Was initiated in North Carolina
rising twenty five yoarsago. Took five degrees in
the samp winter. Never have tdkén but five de-
rees. I was told that one of the two last degrees
took,was wrong, (the Mark Mastérs,)as I réceived
them. Have not been in a Lodge of Mark and Past
Masters siricé. Have been a member of East Green-
. qich.LodE: (and Secretary of it) for many years.
. Ldo not censider mysell a secading Mason. 1 was
expelied as I understond. I had violated no obli-
gations of Masoary. I had even avoided readirg
iiorgan’s book that I iﬁht avoid belrig questioned
s to its fruth. I had given my opinion freely of
the Institution s to it antjquity, and the traths of
{ts traditions—that they were unfounded. I bad
- stated to the Lodge that at the expiration of the
office of Seeretary, which I then held, I should no
longer frequent the Lodge. 1 considered the obli-
gations binding on me to conceal the seérets, until
the Grand Lodge gave what I ¢onsideted a dispen-
#sation, in their Address tn the people in June last.
My Hasard inquired whether he was a political
Anti- Masoni. ,
. Witness. {do not understand Antimasonry to
be political 2 Yuch-; but1 consider that it is oblig-
vd to act politieally to aceamplish its object in put-
ting down thé [dstitution of Free: Masojiry. I
cannot repeat the obligatibng verbatim. 1 recol
lected enough of thém to avoid the violation of them.
.. The Entered Apprentice oath from the G. Lodge
. paper was read. . .
Witness. That is substantially the same I think,
‘except the body butied, instead of the tongue.
Fellow Craft's oath fead from ssme form.
_ Witness. The Fellow. Craft's oath,] thirik is sub-
tantially the sume. Italmddt earries me back to
the scenes 1 passed through., -
- The Master's oath was then réad.
Witness. Inthe Masfer's degre$,' AND THAT AT

uy owN oPTION,” [ recollect was used after * mur-
der and treason excepted. Witnets .refers’ to the
ractice of -adininistering the oath iy the Lodge at
“sst Greenwich [a Lodge subordinate to the Grand
ige, and but 13 miles distant from the Lodge io

rovidence.] I think in the penalty it read that

here should be no more remembrancs had among:

Wen and more especially among Masons, of so vile
‘8 wretch as 1 shall be were I ever to violate my
bligation, &e. . : g

Mr ata l Have you not confounded the oaths
received i ofie Liodge with those you have heard
in another. L

Witness. I received all ihe deogress [ ever took in
North Carolina, gnd I'may tave blended thesoaths
1. thers received with those admimstered in East
‘Greenwich Lodge. ‘L
. Question by raguest.—In the Leéctures whatin
‘&e an‘l’v'ver 1o the guestion ¢ what rilkes you a

ason? 73 . -

The ooly answe T sver heard is « uy oavLiaa-

‘rion,”
. Quastion by do., DM you ever hesr’sn afirmi-
Won in the da.. ? ) '

. B

S * T |

Witnesa. 1 never heard the word afirm usedis
any oath. . |

Mr Hazard. There appears tobe a haekling
about that word. DJid you ever know any one {0
refuse to swear in a Lodge.

Witnres. 1 neyerdid ? }

Question Ly request. Were yoit ever asked in
the Lectures why you had a” cable tow round
your neck orbody ? - .

Witness. 1 remeniber but liltle of the Lectures.
My impression is the quostion was asked.

Question by do. Was the answer that it was de-
signed to show that @ you advanted in Masonry,
the oaths become more and moré blrding ?

Winess does not recollect. .

Question by Comnmitter. Before taking the oath
were you told thiat it would not interfere with your
religion .of politics ? . Co

itness. . [ have heard the question ufually ask-
ed by thé Master whether the candidate is willing
to take an obligation that is not to interféte with bis
religion or politics. My impressio is, itis invaris
bly asked in the Master’s degree. I am not cestain
as 1o the other degrees.

Question from B. F. Hallett. Did you ever
know tha pendities in the oaths to be explained ins
Lodge to mean any thing but death ?

itness. Only as they were given. T mever
kmew any other than the LITERAL CONSTRUCTION,
as they read. I mever heard them explained to mean
any thing but what they say.” * .

auest on preppsed by Masons. Did not the by-
laws of the Lodge provide for the expalsion of 2
member who should disclose any of the transactions
of thed,odge ? ) -

Witness. Thete was no article in our by-laws
te expel a membet for disclosing the transactions of
the Lodge. There was an arlicle in the by-laws
for expeiling n member who should. violate them.

Question frofn W. Paine, Jr. Were the Oatls
incorporated into the by-laws ? o .

Pitness. They were not. They were not te be
written. . .

Question from B. F. Hallett. What is un-
derstood by the transactions of the Lodge Room?
Do they include the oaths and penalties, or merely
the business. .

Witness. They do not include the oaths or pen-
alties, as I have said before, and relate only to the
bukiness of the Lodge. .

{Mr. Haile did not put down eithef the above
question or answer, saying it was unnecessary, be-
cuause the witness had answered it befora

Y

Me. Hazird was here requested by, Waﬂter-l‘aine,
Jr. 1o question the witness as to the variations be-
tween the Master Mason's oath, as handed in by
‘the Grand Lodge, and the printed oath in Allyn.
Mr Hazard said this was puting the committee to
a great deal of unnecessary trouble.. }f M. Paine
wanted these Questions put, it was his business to
have then there in writing. °

B. F'. Hallett—You_ asked mé*the other day,
(Friday) to prepare the variations bstween ¢
written and printed baths, and I went without iy
dinner in order to do 0, while the committee ad-
journed at noon. When they met in the after-
voon, I handed you the varistions, with all -the
%uestions‘ve wished to have asked respecting them.

ou took the paper, and without reading it, imme-
diately strippéd it vp so, (making the motion of
leisurely tearing up papet in small strips) and thfc#
the pieces under the table:

Mr. Hazard. Did1? Well, well.—Can’t you
write them out again? He was told that they
could be written out again, and that in the
mean time the witness could be ?ked ‘respecting
the variations, as they’ were marked off in pencil, in
Allyn’s form. . .

Mr. Hazard theii read from Allyn the first clause

 omitted ip the Grand Lodge oath; viz, “I will not
Five the ot

sign;-except 1 .am in rest



) . . -
distross, ot for the beriehit of thie Cfift, when at
work; and should I des that sign given; or hear
the words aceompanying it, I wiﬁ fly to the relief
-of the person oogivinﬁ it, should thore be a greater
probability of saving his life than lusing my own.”
Witness. [ remember something abontit. I re-
member | was chargel to obey that sign as far as 1
(iould see it by duy, or hear the explanation by night.
do not recolléttL the words ¢ for the benefit of the
Craft when at work.” ] : ‘
Mr..-Haiard next read this printed clause I
will not be at the initiating, pasfing or raising a can-
“didate at one éomimunication, without .a dinrénsa-
tion from tho Grénd Lodge flor that putfose.’
Witness. 1 donit recollect any such thiog.

. COMMERTS. :

[Mr. Haile has put this down wrong, and made
the witness contradict himself by putting the
Wrong answer to No. 2 of the questions marked E.
This witness was questioned out of Allyn, from
variations marked in pencil, belore the written
variations were used by the Committee, they hav-
ing been torn up, as above stated. The second
question Mr. Hatard asked, himn on the variations,
wiat as above, to which Witniess answered ' No,
Mr. Haile in his minutes here, calls the 2! varia-
tion as follows, ‘I will apprize him of all approach-
ing danger,”” and then puts the witness down as
saying ** I do not recollect any such thing,” when
{aat before he has sworn to these preci#t words in

he written form of the Master's oath, prepared by
the Grand Lodgé. This blunder of Mr Haile was
not corrected By witriess, because the questions and
answers were not read ovér to him directly togeth-
er. It however furnished a valuable Aint at the
time, toa looker on, by which Mr. Haile whs after-
wards unconsciousl ymade to put questions in a form
that caused several adhering Mdsons to swear to a
maﬂn expredsion when told it wds in the Grand
iédge dath, and then afterwards te swear they
never heard it, when it was read 1o themn from a
. paper marked E., as one of the variations, in Allyn's
printed form! This striking fact will be shown in
its proper place.]

.&r. Hazatd, then proceeded to put the variations
to witness, vix. “I will apprize a brother Mason
of ail approaching danger.”

Witwtess., Yes.:

&“Will go on a Master Mason’s errand barefoot,

c"'

Witness. Don't recollect that. ‘

“]f any part of this my solemn obligalion is omit-
ted at this time, I will held myself answerable
thereto, whenever intormed.” o

Witness. Recollect that, and think the oath is so
administered.

Mr. Hazard here putthe 10th standing interroga-
tory, whether witness considered e gave and took
jurisdiction, »s far as he could, aver life, by assum-
ing the penalties?

itness. 1 think I. did understand the oaths,
that 1 Five the Lodge juriediction over my life, as
Yar as | Bdd the power. I nnderstood that I sub-
jected myself (o these pennities, .aed that I was to
share it the Same jurwediction. That was the con-
struction as I then understood it. 1 thought from
the antiquity of the Institution, and that every
thing that was dons having been sanctioned by king
Solomon and both the Holy 8t. Johns, it must be
right. Moreover Nathan Whiting (master of the
Lodge) was the first Mason I dver heard say that
the penalties were not 10 be so understood aud in-
flicted; and that was qfter the murder of Morgan.
do nut now so considér them. :

[Most of this answer is left out by Mr. Haile.]

14th Yaterrogatory. If when he took the oaths,
he considered them iicompatible with civil duties.

Witness. 1 nevér expected they would come in
conflict with my religious, moral or ¢ivil obliga-
tions. . } did not bestow much tia'u&ﬁ‘t_ upon it,
but a5 I have before said, considered aatiquity

‘.

‘knowledge.

annd character of membere of ‘the Institation to bé

-8uch as would sanction what it enjoined. ‘1 was to
koep the secrets, I considered, subject to,the penalty. °

1 dit not exercise any private judzment about it,
but considered trom the antiquity ot tue Institution;
and its beiug sanctioned by euch names thiat its ob-
ligations must be correct. . And were 1 foiivinced
of the truth bf its traditions and ils antiquity, as
taught in thé Lodyes; I should feel that § had done
wrong' in answeiing any interrogatories. - That
there wae no powét that could be higiret than such
a power, to make me depart from my vow of se-
creey. ’

241h Interrogatory. What Jo you consider the
objeet of Masonry to he?

Witness. 1 have had different views of it. [
have in foriner times, when-I believed its {raditions,
and the date of its origin, bad an exalted opinion of
it. Atother times 1 considered it as a mutual in¢
surance, not as a benevolent Instituation. What

they call clfdrity is nol such, but merely a right of "

elaiming what is one's due. .

16th Interrogatory. Did you ever hear the na: -

ture and extent of the penaltias discussed in any
Lodge. ‘. )
Witness. 1 think 1 never heard the nature and
extent of the penalties discussed in a Lodge. Theré
is perhape some explanation in the Lectures. Wg
sometimes had lectures after the Lodge was closed.
The explanations are laid dow in the Lectuies.
. 1%1b Interrogatory. Did yott ever hear a Lodge
claim the power to inflict a higher punishment than
expulsion? . .
Witness. 1 do not know that I ever heatd it
mentioned in a Lodge that they had- power to ins
flict any higher penalties than . expulsion, nor event
expulsion except as it is mentioned in the- by-laws
I never knew personally of any punishment by a

ge. | S
. 18th Interrogatory,. relative to politics and religs
ion, \ M

Witness. 1 never heard the subject pf religiort
of politics discussed in a Lodge, and I think the
by-laws prohibit it. I never knew a Lodge 13
nominate a candidaté for political office, or combiné
as a Lodge, t8 eltct him. -

In answer to 21st Interrogatory. .

Witness. I never practiced on the consttuctiofl
that my Masonic oaths bound me to favor a Masoft
tothe mjnr{ of one who was not. 1f | had a favof
to bestow I considered | had a right to select who
I would bestow it on. . - __

Question by request. Did you believe that yourt
Masonic oaths houind you to assist a Mason to thé
injury of one not a Mason ?

Witness. | considered if I conld assist but ons;
I showld give a brother the preference..

In answer to 22d. .

Witness. 1 neverknew Mu’onry to be used as a po:

litical engine, or to obstruct the course of -justice st

far as my own observation has extended, but I am
satisfied it bas been I now answer from my own
1f the question was put to me
do I know if General Jackson is President of the
U. 8. 1 should answet not .of my personal knowls
edge. Witness wishes his answer that he nevet
knew the grand hailing sign 1o be given or praé:
ticed upon by a Judge, &e. in a Court of law to be
understond as speaking of his own persofial knowl-
edge. The grand hailing sign, as stited in Bersic
ard. witneds recollects to have received part of.
Queajion from Walter Paine, Jr. What is. the
mannefr ¢r motion with which a Mason entersand
leaves & Lodge ? - . -
Witness. By giving the due guard of that de-
gree, a sign which he gives en entering and leaving.
Thre 'Vﬁtncn was asked by Mr. Paine o explamn

what that sign is ?

Witness besitated. 'T'he principal Mesons at the -

tabl ared asy. . .
W Hasard. If you bave any deliesey shout



disclosing those signs, we Leve no idea of lurden-
sng any man’s conscience. :

Witness. 1 do not know that I have gone so far

as that. 1do not know that [ have ever vjoluted
my obligation of se¢recy. I never took any obliga-
tion to conceal the oaths. [When the witness was
asked to disclose the nature of this sign the Ma-
8on3 silting at the table evinced a feeling something
like horror at the sacrilege they seemed to antici-
pate would be comiiitted. They were eyidently
much relieved by the reluctance of the witiess to
answer. The witness was readily excused by the
Committee. The circumstance is worthy remark,
as illustrating the wonderful power Masonic oaths
iave to bind down their victims. Even this re-
spectable witness, though he was convinced Ma-
sonry was a wicked institution, and had entirely,
renounced it, yet (such was the force of the ille-
gal and criminal oaths he had taken) he telt a re-
Juctanco to reveal the secrets he had improperly
sworn to conceal.] . .

Question from' W. Paine, Jr. Did you consider
yoursel " bound as a Mason, to give a preference to
a Mason, over a personnot a nason, under the same

. or similar circumstances?

)
COMMENTS. -

[Mr Hazard had uniformly put this_question,and
he continued to do so ufterwards, in this form, which
rendered it entirely nugatory, viz.—* Did you ever
vote for & candidate you least liked, and thought
least qualified, because he was a brother Mason, in
preference to a better man, not a Mason, of your
oion political sentiments.’ ' o

Mr. Paine and other Antimasons, insisted this
Wwas-an unfair question, because it Masons preferred
one another over all other men, in like circumstan-
ces and acted accordingly, then men not Masons,
who were just-as good citizens as Masons were, did
nof stand an equal chunce in society, and this was
one of the evils of the Institution we .complained of
as interfering with equal privileges and equal rights.
The Mason steod with those not Masous, precisely
as if he was-not a Mason, while with those who
were Masons, he was sure of a preference. This
gave him a decided advantage. It was not imended
to confine this question touching Masopic prefer-

ence, to politics, but to extend it to trade, business

misfortunea, or any other situation where a prefer-

- ence could be given to a Mason, by Masons, t6 the

disadvantage or- neglect of one not a Mason.—
Instead of paotting it in the form it was present-
ed by Mr. Paive, Mr Hazard proposed it in his own
way—thus.,

\
' Iftwo men, one a Mason and the other mot, of

- equal qualifications, were placed in precisely the

same situation as political candidates, is there any
thing in your Masonic obligations which would
oblige you to vote for the one who was a Mason, in
preference to the other? .
Witness. If men of equal talents both stood
equally in my opigion, and the brother solicited me
as a brother, I can't, say but I should consider my-
self bound as.a Mason to have preferred him. The
nature of the connection is such. It was a case
that never happened with me, for in almost ever
instance, there has Leen sowmething to distinguis
between candidates for office. - . .
Mr. Hazard. Do you belong to any other society
except the Masonic ?
Witness. Becret Society, do you mean?
Mr. Hazard. No. Religious seciety.
Witness. Yes. -
Mr Hazard. Well, in- cases where every thing
was equal, would you not ect iy the same manner,
between a brother in the Church, who was a
;an:ihtda?te for office, anda person who was not-a
rother -

)fiiuh. I presume I should. T

| oaths oy the lectures.

- -
*
’

' COMMEXTS.

.[A fucther attempt was made to have this question
put in the form Mr Puine had proposed, but with-
out effect. .}t may here well be remarked that the
preferences in society, arising {from moral, religious
and other organizations, though in many cases inja-
rious to equal rights, by leading to combinations
of one class of citizens against all others, are fully
atoned for by the great good' which these associa- -
tions effect in community, to the preservation and
improvement of which, they are.essential. Besides,
the members of such societies are openly known,
and they have no means of secret concert and. co-
operation, unkaown to other men. Every man, not
of their society, consequently knows how to antici-
pate their preferences. But Masons exercise this

 preference in secret, even without it being known

that, they are Masons. They are bound to cbey se-
cret signals, with which persons who are perfect
strangers to each other may be brought to cd-oper-

‘ate secretly at any moment, and in any place. Thus

aman not a Mason constantly labora uuder disad-
vantages that he knows nothing of and cannot coun-
feract, and whenever he comes in contact with a
Mason, though he stands on precisely equal footing
with him,he must be the looser,because Masons will
turn the scale against him. Thus when the evi-
dence is balanced before a ‘jury, between a mason
and one not a mason, masons on the jury, how-
ever honest as men, will feol a sufficient bias from
their Masonic relation te turn the scale in favor
of the brother. ‘These are every day situations
in which persons not Masons, may be placed, with
Masons, without refereuice to politics, which go to
show that a man not 2 mason, has not a fair chance
in a community where some are masong and others
not. He is therefore compelled, either to become.
a mason, or to_continue to labor under these disad-
vantages.] ~

Question by request, from Antimasons. Did you,
ever know u Mason or his family to. recsive in
charity as much money, as he had paid into the
Lodge for fees and quarterly dues? .

Witness. I think there has been one instance,
since | have been a member of King Solomnon’s.
Lodge, in which-a person did receive as much and
perhaps more than he had paid jn.. He was sick
sometime. I think he received more. )

Question by request, from do.” How much mo-.
ney was paid out of your lodge for charity to dis-
tressed members, while yau were Secretary ?

Witness. I never knew any money paid out.in
charity during the four years I was Secretary-of
the lodge. I knew of no applications for charity,
in that time.

[Allyn's Ritual, with variations from the written
outh of the Grand Lodge, marked off in pencil, was
again referred to by Mr. Hallett, and Mr. Hazard
was requested to put these variations to the wit-
ness. Up to this time the paper wmarked E., cca-
taining these variations, was not in- possession of
the Committee, Mr, Hazard having torn up the firat
copy Mr. Hallett handed tehim." Of. course this
witness could not have been questioned from in-
terrogatories. markéd E. as is represented in Mr.
Haile's minutes. He was questioned in part from
the Master's oath in Allyn, viz: 1st. “ I will mot
give the Grand Hailing sign of distress, except I
am in real distress, or.for the benefit of the craft
when at work.”

Witness. 1 recollect that part, except the words
“for the benefit of the crafr when at work.” I
do not- recollect positively whether it was in the
I am positive that it was
imposed upon me as a duty which I was_to per-
form, that I would not give the Grand Hailing
sign, except I was in real distress. 1 recoltect hav-
ing heard this inculcated in substance, I cannot re-
collect whether it 'was in the oath or lecture. 1
considered it obligatory. ¥ have mever refreshed




- .

my memoryar bave avoided reading Bernard on
the lower degrees. : : "

2d. « And should [ see that sign given, or hear
the words accompanying it, 1 will fly to the relief
of the person so giving it. should there be a greater
probability of saving his life than losing my own.”
Witness was asked if he remembered that injunc-
tion ? '

Witness, 1 think [ have heard that injunction

given rather stronger. ‘¢ As far as I could seo the
sign by day, or hear it by night,” I was required
to obey it. ‘
__The part relating to\passing and raising of a can-
didaté, withess does not recollect. * To keep a Mas-
ter Mason’s secrets, murder and treason excepted,
and that left at my option, witness distinctly recol:
lects, as he has before stated. The clause relating
' to going on a Master Mason’s errand, is not recol-
lected. Witness says, I think it is not in the ob-
ligation, but I have heard it somewhere inculcated
as a duty. )

Mr. Hazard, inquired if he might not ¢onfound
what he had” heard, with what he had read in
Bernard or Allyn?

Witness. I never read Bernard or Allgn.

he -clause was read to witness from Allyn,
¢ That if any part of this obligation (Master’s oath)
be omitted at this time, I wiﬁ hold myself amen,
ble thereto, whenever informed.”

Witness. It appears to me that is done on some

occasions when the person administering the oath-

is not perfeot in it. I cannot be positive..
The examination of Mr: Brown here closed.

Tuesday Morning, December 14. The Commit
tee met at 9 o’clock. Present as before. WiLLIAM
WirLkinson, Esq. was called and sworn to tell the
whole truth. .

(03 The testimony of this withess is entitled to

articular attention from his high standing both as a
Rﬂason and an.individual. He has held the highest
Masonic offices in the State, and many out of it,
and is a citizen of great respectability of character.
Beiog one of the oldest and most intelligent mem-
bers of the Order in this country,and most zealous-
1y attached to it, it is eertain that if he eannot de-
lind and explain its principles when on his oath, so
as to remove all doubts, and show Masonry to be a
valuable and excellent Institution, no Mason living
cando s0. The examination of Mr. Wilkinson oc-
cupied one whvleday,and yoi Mr. Haile has com-
pressed it into four or five pages, suppressing by
far the most important answers given by this wit-
nes+. Throughout the examination, Mr Haile; un-
der the direction of Mr, Hazard, persisted in not
putting down the questions and answers considered
most material by Anti he excalpations of
Masonry, were carefully recorded to the letter, but
the confessory, contradictory and confused answers
of the witness on his cross examination were as
carefully excluded. Not only so, but the witness
was requested by the Commitiee to allow Mr Haile
to erase an answer already written down, which had
an unfavoable bearing upon Masonry. This was the
first Masonic witness fully examined touching the
oaths, &c. The grossly partial conduct of a major-
ity of the Committee on this day, put an end not
only to all confidence, but to all kope that they
would conduct the investigation as honest men, in
search of truth rather thun political partizans in

- pursuit of the best means to secure an election. ]
TrstiMoNy or WiLLiam WiLkinsox, Esq..
[10¢k Witness. ]

Mr, Hazard commeneed with the general inter-
rogatories.

Iitness,in answer to 1st. Iam a Freemason —
Have taken twelve degrees, viz. Entered Appren-
tice, Fellow Craft, Master Mason, Mark Master,
Past Master, Most Excellent Master, Royal Arch,
Knight of the Red Cross, Knight Templar and
Kuight of Malita, generally considered one degree.
The Royal Master 3nd the Seleet Master's degress

.

Iafterwardseceived. Tknow nothing about them,
and i could not work myéclf jvlo a Lodge of these
degrees, (meaning,as was understood, the two last.)
[ was initiated intothe firet degree in this room,
(the Senate Chamter of the State House, where ths”
Committee were holding their investigation,) by Sr. *
Jon'’s Lodge, Providence, No. 2, on the 24th of
June,1792. " [Thus it will be scen that Masonry
began with taking possession of ¢ the Halls ol Leg-
islation,’ ag Orator Brainard says, and transformed
themn into her Lodges. To this day the Senate
Chauaber of the State House' in Kent county, R.
Island, is alterrately occupied, by the Masons of
King Solomnn's Lodge, and the Senators of the
people, and we beligve is jointly owned, as far as its
occu;intiqn is concerned, by the State and the Ma-
sons! ’

Witness. Dantel Stilwell was then Master of the
Lodge,but Moses Seixas [a Jew who disbelieved the
christian religion] performed as Master at my initi-
ation. I received the two next degrees, the same
year, in the same Lodge. -. The CRapter was first
opened in this town, (Providencs,) in' 1793, aad I
was initiated into the three next degrees in the
same room, in November the samp year and the R.
A. in the same year. I received tha other degrees
except Royal and Select Master,in St Johns En-
campment, Providence, and the Royal and Select -
Master in-the Council of Royal and Select Masters:
in Providerce. [ was among the fust who were
made Royal Arch Masons in Rhode Island, having
received the 'degrees on the first evening a Chap-
ter was opened iu this State,and this Chapter I-think
was the 2d Chapter opened in New England.,

2nd Interrogatory. .

Witness. There was an oath administered to me
when taking each of these degrees. '

3d question in relation to what is said to the can-
didate before taking the oaths.

Witness. ltisso long since I received the Eo-
tered Apprentice degree, that I cannot say whether
there was, but my impression always has been that
there was from the fact that when Master of a
Lodge I always stated the same to the candidate. I
have presided in Lodge and Chapter as high as the
R. A.degree. It was merély verbal; and might have
differed. The precise words I ‘cannot -remember,
butthat was the substance ; that the'oaths are nos
to interfere with religion or politics; thatevery thing
relating to religion or politicsis excluded. . We
receive the Jew as well as others. I should have
rejected an Atheist. Further than that we did nog -

0—-and this practice has I believe been invariable.

e considered we had nothing to do with his reli«
gion, further than to require a belief 1n God.

In answer to the 4th Interrogatory.

Witness. 1 cannot state the obligations. I nev-
er was a k Mason. 1t is nearly twerity years
since I huve heard them. When we gét old we
fencrally drop off, and only go oecasionally to the

.odge.™ There are two degrees, Royal and Select
Master, of which 1 can give no actoant. I have
examined the throe first degrees handed in by
the officers of the Grand Lodge: They are I be-
lieve the same without variation; as I tooksand have
usially administered myself, and which I took. —
Tle reason why I cannot repeat them is, it is twen-

ty years since I have been much where the lower
degrees are administersd. Wo have hitherto re-
frained from giving our obligations. Atthe request
of the Committee they have been given in wriling
now.' I know of noinjunction to keep the oaths se-
cret. Isaw the obligationsin Jachin and Boaz about
40 years ago,but except that,1 have never seen the
obligations printed or written until a8 read tome-
now: :

Myr. Hazard. 1t is unnecessary to explain that
farther. - )

Witness. 1 would wish to give some reasons to.

the wgﬂd. , It has pever come tomy knowledge:




Y

that the obligations were ever wiitten or printed,
bat handed down by tradition. I have never seen
them written till now. - .

E.Mr Huile here procecded to read the written
oaths of the higher degrees, as furnished to the
Committee by the officers of the Royal Arch
Chapter. The Royal Arch oath was first rend to,
witness, then the Mark, Past and Most Excellent.
Masters, and the Knights of the Cross, Knights
Templars and Royal apd Select Masters. A request

* was wade thatiba witness should first be examined
from the priated gaths in Allyn, before the oaths
ngreed upon by the Masons, were given to him, ns
Jeaders, to inform him what he wasexpected to say,
‘but Ms Hazard peremptorily refused to permit the
witoess to be questioned in any other way, at first,
than by reading to him what he took care toinform
him wasthe oaths agreed upon by the R.Island Ma-
sons, il‘he oaths thus furnished in writing, are as

Allow. .
MARK MASTER’S OBLIGATION.

1 —— ——, of ny own free will and pocord,
and in the presence of Almighty. God, and this
lodge of mark master masons, erected to-him, and
dedicated to 8St. John, do hereby and hereon, in ad-.
dition to my former obligations, solemnly and sin
perely promise and swear (or affirm) that, 1 will al.
ways hail, forever conceal, and never reveal any
of the secret artg, parts or paji.ts of the mysteries
of freemasonry appertaining to the degree of a
mark master, to any person under the canopy of
Heaven, except it shall be to'a true and lawful mark
master mason, or within the body of a regularly
constituted lodge of such,and not unto him or them,
patil after due, trial, strict examination, or by the
lawful igfarmation of a mark master, § shall ‘have
found him or them to be as justly and lawfully en-
fitled to the same as [ am mysclf?

I furthermore promise and swear (or affirin) that
{ will answer all lawful signs and sumpons which
may b& given or sent unto me from a trye and law-
ful mark master mason, or from u regularly con-
stituted lodge of such, if within the length of my
pable tow. .

24. That I will aid and assist all worthy dis-
dressed mark master masons, their widows and or-

, 80 faras I' cau do it without injury to my-
self or family. > .

84. That I will rot pledge my mark a second
dlme without redeeming it the first, neither will I
-Fyeceive a brother's mpark in pledge without grant.
dng him his request if in my power, if not I will re-
gurn him his mark with the value thereof, which is
one quarter of a dollar.

4th. That I will not alter my mark nor suffer it
o be done bi.olh.an, if in my power to prevent it,
after it has been once recorded on the lodge book
kogt for that purpose.

th. That | will abide by and suppart the by-
Jaws of the mark lodge, of which I may hecome a
memmnber, the constitution of the general, and state
grand chapters under which the same i holden,
and the general regulations of masonry.

All this | promise and swear (or affirm) with a
fixed and steady purpose of mind to perform the
same, without any equivocation, mental reserva-
tion, ar secret evasion of mind in me whatever—
bind ng myself under mo less penalty, than that
of having my 1ight ear smote off, s0 as mot to be
gbls Lo kear the sord, my right hand struck off, 30
a8 not o be uble to ‘fiva the sign ; so help me God.
and keep me steadfast to perfortn this my mark
master’s obligation.

PAST MASTER'S OBLIGATION.
- d emem ——, 6f my own free will and accord, and
- 40 the presenge of Almighty &d. and this lodge
of past Master masons, erected to Him, and dedica-
tod to St Jabn, do hereby and hereon, in addition

-

to my former obligations, solemnly and sincerel
n,n&-hml nu:‘ (er affirm) tlmyl will ;i:::y{

B

hail, forever eonceal, and never revesl, any of the
secret arts, purts or points of the mysteries of free-
masonry appertaining to the degree of a past master,
to any perwon under "the canopy of Heaven, except
1t shull be to-a true and lawtul past master, or withia
thé body of a regularly constituted lodge of such,
and not unto him or them until after due trial,
strict examination or by the law \@I information of
a past master | shall.have found him or ghgm to be
as justly and lawfully entitled to the same as I am
myself.

I furthermare promise and swear (or affirm) that
| will answer aN law(ul signs and summonses which
may be given o ‘sent unto ine from = true aud law-
ful brother of this degree, or from a regularly con-
stituted lodge of such, if within the .length of my
cable tow. .

2d. That I will aid and assist all worthy dis-
tressed past masters, their widows agd prphans, so far
as I can do it without injury to myself or fawmily.

3d. That I will not rule nor govern the lodge
over which I may be appointed to preside,’in an
arbitrary or ilegal manuer, but agreeably to the
by-laws adopted by-a majority of the mewbers for
the 'government of the same.

4th. That I will abide by and support the by-
laws of the lodge of which I may become a mem-
ber, the constitution of the general, and state grand
chapters under which the same is holden, and the
general regulations of masonry.. ) :

Al this [ promise and ewear (or affirm) with 3
firm and fixed purpose of mind to perform the same,
without any equivocation, menlal reservation or
secret evasion of ining in me whatever, binding my-
self under no less penalty than that of having my
toungue cleave ta the roof of mz mouth so as not
to be able to give the word, so help me God and
keep me steadfast to perform this my past master
mason’s oath or obligation.

MOST EXCELLENT'II‘ MAS'I‘E‘R’S OBLIGA-

I —— ——, of my own free will and accord,
and in “the presence of Almighty. God, and this
Lodge of most excellent masters, erected to Him,
and dedicated to 8t. John, de hereby and hereon, iy
dddition to ‘ny former obligations, solemnly and
sincerely promise and swear (or affirm) that I will
always hail, forever eoncesl, and never revosl, any
of the secret arts, parts or points of the mysteries
of Freemasonry, appertaining to tho degree of a
most excellent master, to any person underthe
canopy of heaven, except it shal be to a trne and
lawful most excellent master. or within the body of
a regulaily eonstituted Lodge of such, apd not unto
him dr them, until after due triil, strict examipation,
or by the lawful information of a most excellent
master,l shall haye found him or themn to be as justly,
ml‘;‘ lawfully entitled to the same asl am my-.
self.
I furthermore promise.and swear (or affirm) that
I will answer all lawdul signs and summonses, which
mdy be given qr segt unto me, from a true and
lawfut most excellent mastet, or from a regularly
constituted Lodge of guch, if within the length of
my cable tow, : :

That I will aid and aesist all worthy dis-
tressed most excellent mmsters, their widows an
orphins, so far as I can do it without injury to my-
self or family. ’

3d. That 1 will not derogate’ from the name
now, aboyt to be conlerred upon me, being that of &
T ST e s s 8 Lo

dth. at § will' not n an e ge,
over which § may. be lp:Zi‘nted to preside, without
first working a lectyre, or a yection of 8 lecture.

5th, ‘That I'will abide by and suppart the by-
lawg of the most excellont master’s Lodge of which
I may becomne a member, the constitution of the
general, and state r&u.‘ shapters, under which the
ilﬂ,!'q i hldng,_ngs genera] yegulations of my-
sonty, | g L

N
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All this 1 promise and swesar (or affirm) with »
fixed and steady purpose of mind to perform the
same, without any equivocation,mental reservation,
or secret evasion of mind in me whatever, binding
myself under no less penalty, than that of having
my flesh torn from my ribs, and my body exposed to
rot en a’dunghill, so help me God, and keep me
steadfast to perform this my most excellent mas-
ter’s obligation. .

. ROYAL ARCH MASON’S OBLIGATION.

“f , of my own free will and accord,and
in the presencé of Almighty God,and this Chap-
ter of al Aréh Masons, erected to Him and-ded-
icated to King Solonion, do hereby and hereon, in
addition to my former obligations, solemnly and
sincerely promise and swear, (or affirni) that 1 will
always hail, forever conceal, and nevér reveal, any
of the secret arts, parts or points of the mysteries
of freemasonry appertaining to the degree of Royal

the Knights of the Red Cross, to nny person utidor °
the canopy of hedven, except it be to a true aud
lawful Knight of tite Red Cross, or in the body of
a just and lawful councit of the vrder. -

I furtherinore promise and swear, that I will an:
swer and obey all lawful signs and summonses giv-
en or sent- to me from a regular touncil of Knighta
of the Red Cross, or given me by the hand of a bro-
ther 8ir Knight if within the distance of forty miles, -
natural infirmities and unavoidable accidents only
excusing me. :

I furthermore promise and swear, that I will not
be at the ppening of a Council of Knights of the
Red Cross, except ‘there shall be present five reg-
vlar members of the order, or three Knights of the
Red Cross being also Knights Templars and hailing
from three different commanderies, with a warrant
or charter empowering them to work.—I further-
more pronise and swear, that I will not be present
at the conferring of the degree of-the Knights of the

Arch Masonry, to any pefson under the canopy of
Heaven, except it shall be to a true and lawful
Royal Arch Mason,or within the body of a regalar-
ly constituted Chapter of such ; and not unto him
or them uatil after due trial, strict examination, or
by the lawful information of a companion, 1 shall
have found him or them {o be as justly and lawful-
1y entitled to the same_as 1 am myself. .

1st. 1 furthermore promise and swear (or affirm)
that 1 will answer all lawful signs and summonses
which may be given or sent unto me from a true and
lawful Companion, or from the bady of a regular-
ly constituted Chapter of such, if within the length
of my cable-tow. .

2d. That I will aid and assist all worthy distressed
Royal Arch Masons, their widows and orphans so
far as I can do it without injury to myself or family.

3d. That I will not be present at the opening of
a Chapter of Royal Arch Masons, unless there shall
be present nine regular Royal Arch Masons.

- 4th. That 1 will not be present at conferring the
degreeof R. A. Masonry upon any one who has
not ucoordinF to the best of my knowledge and be-
lief, regalarly received all the preceding’ degrees,
viz : entered apprentice, fellow craft, Master Ma-
son, Mark Master, Put,Maslar, and most Excellent
Master—and not then unless he is deemed a wor-
thy -man. . -

5th, That I will not shed the blood of a Royal
Arch Mason unlawfully, knowing him to be such.

6th. That [ will not reveal the key to the mys-
terious chardcters of Royal Arch Masonry to any
parson under the canopy of Heaven, except. it be
to a true and lawful Royal Aréh Mason, or within
the body of a regalarly conetituted Chapter of such

7th. That I will not give the grand Royal Arch

word in any other manuer except that in which I
may receive it.
¢ 8th. That I will abide by and support tha by-
laws of the Chapter of which I may become a
member, the constitution of the General and State
Grand Chapters, under which the same is holden,
and'the ;ieneral regulations of Masoncy.

All this I promise and swear (or affigh) witha
fixed and steady purpose of mind to perform the
same, without any equivucation,mental reservation,
or secret evasion of mind in me whatever—BispiNG
MYSELF UNDER NO LESS PENALTY THAN THAT OF
HAVING MY SEULL SMOTE OFF AND MY BRAINS EX-
POSED TO THE 8CORCHING RAYS OF THE sUN. So
help me God, and keep me steadfast in per‘orming
this my Royal Arch Mason’s oath or obligatien.”

OBILGATION OF THE DEGREE OF
. ENIGHTS OF THE RED CROSS.

1, — —, of my owH free will and accord, and in the
presence of the Supreme’ Architect of the Universe,
and these compaunions, do hereby and hereon, most
solemnly and sincerely promise and swear, That |
will always hail, forever conceal, and never reveal

Red Crods upon any person who has not, according
to the best olP my knowledge, received all the preced-
ing degrees, viz. Entered Apprentice, Fellow’ Crafls;
&o. &e. &c.—I furthermore promise and swear, -
that I will vindicate the charactot of a whrthy Sic
Kni;ht, when wrongfully traduced, ‘and will assist
him®n all lawful occasions with my purse, counsel
and sword, so far as truth, justice and honor may.
warrant.—I farthermore promise and swear, that [
will abide by and support the bylaws of the council
of which I may become a member, the Constitution
of the General Grand and State Encampmenpts;
and the general regulations of Knighthood.—All
this I promise and swear with a fixed and steady
purpose of mind to perform the same; binding iny-
selt under no less penalty than that my house may
be pulled down, and timber taken from thence, and
being set up, I may be hanged thereon, and, until
the last trumpet shall sound, I may be eacluded
from the society of all courteotis Sir Knights of the
Red Cross, should I wilfully or intentionally .violate
this obligation—So help me God, and kcep me
steadfast to peifornt the same. '

KNIGHTS TEMPLAR'S OBLIGATION.

1,—— ——, of my own free will and aecord,,
and in the presence of the Supreme Archltect o
the Univetse, and these Sir Knights present, do
hereby and hereon, wmost solemnly and siucerely _
promise and swear, That 1 will forever keep and
conceal, and never reveal a;lcy of the inysteries ap-

rtaining to the orders of Knights Templars and
&enighu of Malta of the order of St. John at Jerusa-
lem, to -any person under the canopy of heaven,
except it 'be to a true and lawful Sir Knight of these
orders, or in the body-of a just ard regularly con-
stituted Encampment.—I furthlermore promise and
swear, that I will answer and obey all lawful signs
and summonses, given or sent unté me fro: a tiue
courteous Sir Knight, ot from .the body of a just
and regularly constituted Encampment.—1 further-
more promise and swear, that I will aid and assist
all worthy Knights Templars, their widows and
orphans, go far as the same can be done without in-
jury to myszlf or family.—1 furtherinore promise
and swear, that I will not be at the opening of any
regular constituted Encampment, unless theic
shall be present seven regular Knights Templars,
or three Sir Knights, hMiling from three diflerent
commandeiies, with 8 warrant or chartér from some
regular Grand Encampment empowering them 1o
work. Ifurthermoie promise and swear, that I wijl,
not be present at conferring the order of Kniyhts
Templars upon any person who has not, accotding
Lto the best of my knowledge arid belief, received alt
the preceding degrees.—I furthermore promise and
swear, that I will travel forty miles baretoot on fro-
zen ground te rehieve the necessities of . worthy'
Knight Templar, should I be convinced his situa-
tion reqmred it, and I have no other way of commu-

any of the mysteries appertajning to. the degree §f

-

nicating to his relief.—k fur(lnrmore‘prqmise and
6 A
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Swear, that I will wield my sword in defenes of.
nnocent maidens, destitute widows, helpless or-
phans and the Christian religion.—1 furthermore
promise and swear, that [ will abide by and support
the bylaws of fhe Encampment of which 1 may
become a member, the Constitution of the General
and State Grand Encampment under which the
same is holdem, and the general regulations- of
Koighthooa. All this [ promise and swear, with a
ﬁxeg and steady pufpose of mind, to perform the
same, binding myself under [no less penalty than
that my head may be siricken off, and placed on
the highest spire in Christendom—Se help me God,
and keep me steadfast to perform this obligation.

SELECT MASTER’S OBELIGATION.

1, —— ——, in the presence of this Council of

rlect Masters, erected to God, and dedieated, to

ing Solomon, do svlemnly and sincerely promise
and swear, That I will stand te, and abide by, all
the laws, rules and regulations of the. Council of
Select Masters of which I may become a member,
and ever maintain the general regulations of the
order.—I further promisa and swear, that 1 will
answer all due signs and summonses given or sent
unto me from a true and lawful Select Master, or

from the body of a just and regular Council of such.

—That I will not assent to nor confer the degree of
8elect Master upon any one, except he is a Royal
Arch Mason, and has taken all the preceding de-
grees, and has also been admitted & Royal Master

i a regular Couacil.—That 1 will not enter_ the

8th Arch without permission of the three Grand
Masters, neither will I penetrate beyond the one'in
which I am employed. All this I promise and
swear without any equivocation, mental reserva-
tion, or secret evasion of mind in me whatever
binding myself under no less penalty than that of
having my eyes torn from their sockets, my hands
. ehopped off to the stumps, my body quartered and
thrown among the rubbish of the temple—So help
" me God, and keep me steadfast to perform this my
Select Master’s obligation. )

ROYAL -MASTER'S OBLIGATION:.

1 —— ——, of my own free will and accord, in
resence of Almighty God; and this Right Worship-
ul Council of Royal Masters, erected to God. and

. dedicated to King Solomon, do hereby and-hereon
singerely and solemnly promise and swear, That [
will keep and conceal all the mysteries appertain-
mg to the degree of Royal Master and will not re-
veal the same, except it be to a true and lawful
eompanion of that order, or io a just and regular
constituted councjl of such.—I further promise and
swear that [ will not be at the opening of a couneil
'cf Royal Masters, unless. therno be severr members
of that degree present.—That I will riot be present
at conferring-the ‘degree of Royal Master-upon any
ono who has not, according to-the best of “my
knowledge and belief, rogularly received the pre-
ceding degrees of Entered Apprentice, Fellow
Craft, Master Mason, Mark Master, Past Master,
and Most Excellent Master, and been exalted
to the cublime degrees of Royal Arch Masonry.—
That I will abide by and suppoit’ the by-lawa of the
gouncil of which I may become a member, and the
general regulations of the order.—That I will not
give the words, grips and signs of this degree in
sny other manner than that in which I may receive
them. , - .

All this T prownise and-swear; with # firm and

fixed ‘rosolution ta perform.the same, binding my-
self under the penalties of my preceding obligations
with this addition, that I would sooner be buried

‘alive, atd my memory forgotten among the Craft—
#0 help me God, and keep.mo steadfast to perform
the same. .

The oaths of Mark, Past and Excellont Master

and Royal Arch Mason, having been read,

Witness said, T have no kind of doubt of the cor-
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rectness of those obligations,substantially. It wil
be recollected, as was well said by Rev. brothes|
Thacher, thata person at his initiation, if in the
description they give you, they tell you the truth,
it is difficult to remember what passes, especially,
as it took place many years agq when I was a young
man. Thesubstance was precisely the same. Soms
variations, perhaps, but not material. The three fit
degrees belong to the Master’s Lodge. The Ropl
Arch contains all above up to that degree, whichar!
administered in Chapters. The obligations of Mar
Master up to and including Royal Arch, are suh
atantially such as have always been administered s
far as my knowledge extends. That was the sun
and substance, but to say they are the words used!|
would not. There may be gomne verbal wvariation:,
but no substantial difference. - ‘

The oath of Knight of the Red Cross was rea!
Witness said it was correct.

Question by request —Is the word ¢ when” .o
until the last trumpet shall sound may I be sep
rated from the society of all courteous Sir Knights-

Witness. Thatitis the perféct substance of it!l
believe. ItisallI can say respecting it.

A candidate for the higher degrees must have re
ceived all the preceding degrees, from entered Ay
prentice up. The Knight Templar’s oath was thza
read.

Witness. That is substantially the same,except—

Mr Hazard. Did youever have any occasion t
make use of your sword in defenee of distresse
damsels ? [A laugh. Witness did not smile no:
reply.] ; : o .

The Royal and Select Master's oaths being read,

Witness says I know nothing about them above
the Knight Templdr,

Question by request.~ Did you ever "kmow the
word affirm substitated for swear?

Witness. 1 do notrecollect. I never knew any
person to apply. I was told that a Mr. Nichols
once took the affirmation. As a Master of a Lodge
I should not have refused to give it. I know of
nothing in the principles of Masonry to prohibit i

Mr Hazard. There are some clauses in the oaths

iven in Allyn's Ritual, which are not contained in:
the written oaths that have been read to you, ant
which we are requested to ask you, if you ever
took. I will read them to you frem this paper
which has béen prepared for that purpose.

[WNote. Mr H. then proceede to read these clauses,
apart of whigh it will be recollected had been hand-
ed to him once before, and torn up by him. A sec-
ond. copy had been prepared by Mr Hallett, at M:
Hazard’s request, and handed to him. They wen
prepared from a comparison of the printed oaths in
Allyn and Bernard, with the written oaths handed
in by tha. Masons, and embraced every thing in
which the meaning nnd import of these oaths dif-
fered in any essential particular. An examination
of them, will show how nearly ths writ(en forms
correspand with the printed,and will excite surprise
that men who now came forward and swore to the
truth of the former, should for five years have per-
sisted in a positive denial that there was one word
of trath in the latter ! [7One of these variations,
No. 2, is in fact no variation, the same version
belng given almost literally in the 6th point of the
Master Mason’s obligation, as written out by the
Masons. ‘It was purposely inserted to mislead the
Masonic witnesses, in order to test the question
whether they really swore to the written oaths from
peifect recollectign, or because they were told they
were the Rhode Island oaths ; and whether4hey did
not deny the printed variations, rather because
they were told they were.in the seceder’s books,and
not in the written oaths, than because they were
sure thef never took or heard them. Mr Hazard
having refused toput the oaths to the Masons fiist

outaf Allyn, and persisting in: telling every wit



.

ness, what were the Rhode Island oaths as he cal-
led them, and what were the Seceder’s oaths, it
seemed perfactly fair to set thia trap to catch them.l

VARIATIONS
Between the written and printed oaths, [on paper
marked E.}

[In the Master Mason’s Oath.]

1st. ¢ Furthermore I do promise and swear,
that I will not give the grand hailing sign of dis-
tress of this degree, exeept [ am in réal distress,
or for the benefit of the eraft when at work4 and
should I see that sign given, or hear the words ac-
companying it,.1 will fly 10 the relief of the person
#0 giving it, should there be a greater probability of
saving his life than losing my own.”’—Page 71.

24. “Furthermore 1da premise and swear, that
1 will not speak evil of a brother mason, neither
behind Ris back or before his face, but WiLL AP-
PRISE HIM OF ALL APPROACHING DANGER.—p.
72, .
3d. ¢ Furthermore 1 do promise and swear, that
a master mason’s secrets, given to me in charge as
such, shall remain as secure and inviolable in my
breast as in his, before communicated, murder and
treason only -excepted ; and they left to my own
election —p. 72.

4th. Furthermore
will §° on a master mason's errand, even barofoot
and bareheaded, to save his life or relieve his
necessities.”"—p. 72. .

Sth. ¢ Furthermore do 1 promisé and swear,
fpat it any part of this obligation be omitted at
this time, 1 will -hold myself amenable thereto
whenever informed.”—p. 73.°

In the-RovarL ArcH OaTH.—Gth. <1 further-
more promise and swear, that |, will not speak
the g-und omnific royal arch word, which I shall
hereaftor receive, in” any manner, except in that
in which I shall receive it, which will be in the
presence of three companion royal arch masons,
myself making one of the number; and then by
tbhreehli’mes three, uncer a living arch, and at low

reath,” -

Tth. «1 furthermore promise and swear, that
I will not speak evil of a companion royal arch
mason behind hie back or before his face, but
will apprise him of all approaching danger, if in
my power.” N .

8th. «[ furthermore promise and swear, tha
I will assist a companion royal arch Mason.when |
see him engaged in any difficuity, and will espouse
his cause so far as to ez¢ricate him from the same,
whether he be RIGHT or WRONG !!"

9th. <] farthermoie promise and swear, that 1
will keep all the secrets of a comnpanion royal arch
mason, when communicated to me as such, or I
knowing them to be such, without ezception.

10th. ~In the obligativn of the rayal arch dogree,
as read to you from paper marked B. is this
sentence :

7th, ..« That I will not give the grand royal arch
word in any maaner except that in which 1 pay
receive it.” ’

Is the mannor there referred to the same de-
scribed in this obligation as given in Allyn's Ritual,
Viz: “in the presence of three companion rayal
arch masons, myself making one of the number,
and then by three times three under a living arch,
and at low breath ?*’

Past MasTiEr’s OsrigaTion.—11th. Is the
penilty in this degree ever given thas :—Binding
myself nader no less penalty than to have my
toague split from tip to raot "%,

Knigar oF Tae REp Cross.—12th. Is this
a part of the -obligation :—¢ That I will.agsist him,
on alawlul occasion, in preference to any brother
of an mferior degree, and so far as truth, honor and
Justice may warrant?'™ -

13th. In the obligation of knight of the red
#coss, is the gxpression used in ths penalty, * until

do l‘promi'e and swear, that }

.

a3

, .

the'last trump shall sound,” or * when the last
trump shall sound 2”* .

14th. In the knight templar's obligation is this
expression used : ¢ with a fixed and steady purpuse
of mind to perform the same, without any hesita-
tion, equivoeation, mental reservation or self sva-
sion of mind in me whatever ?"’* ’

15th. ‘Do these or similar .words occur.in any
part of the céremony or initiation' of a knight tem-
piar: *This pure wine I now take in testimony of
my beliéf in the mortality of the body and the immor-
tality of the soul, and may this libation appear as
a witness against me both here and hereafter. And
as the sins of the world were laid upon the head of
the Savieur, so may all the sins committed by the
person ‘whoss skull this was, he heaped upon my
head, in addition to my owa, should I ever know-
ingly or wilfully violate or transgress any obliga-,
tion that I have heretofore taken, or take at this’
timey in relation,to any degree of masonry or order
of knighthood. So help me God ?” &e.

, The witness was questioned separately on each
of the variations in the three first degrees. )

The first rélative to the Grand hailing sign,—he
says I do not recollect any such thing in”the obli-

ation. .

The second, “ I will not speak. evil of a Master
Mason, behind his back, or before his face, but will
apprise him of all approaching danger.” Witness
entered into an explanation at some length of this
and the preceding clause without making any
definite answer. :

Mr. Hazard. Why cant you give a plain angwer.
We dont want a great long harangue.

Witness. 1 doat recollect any such thinq in the
obligation. '

Question by request.
loctures. . .

Witness. - That is the general rrinciple, that we
have gone upon in, Masonry. dont recollect .
where it is. It is the general principle of Masonry
to assist a worthy brother in all his laudable un-
dertakings.

3d.” And that left to my election ?

Witness. Those are words I never heard,

4th. Go on a Mason's errand,&c. ‘

Witness. 1 never heard it in. or out of a Lodge
till I came here. 8

5:h. It any thing is omitied in this my obligation,

F will hold myself amenable thereto,when inl{ormed.

Witness. ThatI neverheard. It is so inconsis-
tent, | think it must have been put in to make us
ridiculous.

Mr. Huzard here usked the witness to explain
some parts of the oath (Master Mason’s.) A great
maany phrases, ho said, were not understood. What
are the lawful signs and summonses you are to obey,
when called upon by a brother, if within the length
of your cable tow ?

Witness. Within our convenience. That we
were bound as far as suited our convenience or
wishes. Ve dont profess to be any thing but mea
in our charities. It is left entirely optional that we-
will assist abrother if in our power. ltis-left to our
will or option. Within the length of my cable tow
is within my wishes and abilities. 1 never unders
stood it further. It means nothing more. -1 look
upon our first charge to be a fair exposition of the
duties of Masons. L.

[Thuseven according to this witness, adesigning
nan may masonically go to the extent of Lis wishes
and abilities to obey the summons of a brother mason,
to do wrong, or assist a brother, right or wrong.]

M Hazard. What do you understand to be the
lawful sings and summonses you are to obey ?

Witness. Al lawful signs or summons I consid-
er to be the summons sent to attend the Lodge,and |
also applications for assistamce, from a brot.her.

* Tha, Committee scarcely pat these questions to x
single witness.

Do you in the charges, or
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A wrillen request was bhanded to Mr Hazard to
inquire what these signs and summonses were.

r Hazard. We dont wanbt them. The question
was, not put by the Chairman.

Witness continued. A brother is bound to obey
the signs and come if he is summoned before a
‘Lodge, and if he refuses to come he is liable to be
expelled, according 'to our by-laws. This has al-
ways been my undeystanding and practice, and I
believe it to be correct.

Mr. Hazard. 1¥ THAT 18 THE WMEANING |
DONT BELE BUT YOUR CABLE TOW, 18 A TOW
CABLE. : . 3

T'he witness was asked to explain that part of the
oath relative to assisting the widows and orphans
of Muster Masons. . oo

Witness. Thut is explained above.
we have done it, the world must judge.

Mr. Huzard. The 8d point, to keep the sgorets
of a biother Master Mason, myrder and treason ex-
cepted ; how do you understand that ? . 1

Witness. My idea on that is simply this. Ifa
brother communicated a secret we were not to tell
«f it .
fQ,uestion by request. But if a crime less then
murder and treason, had been communicated to
you, what would yon have done.

Witness. 1dont know how I should have acted,
but I was never tried. Ifa man'who was a mason,
had communicated to me that he had committed a
crime, I should have said to him you are no longer
a:nsson. I wiil repait yon to the Lodyze, and you
shall be expelled. . .

Mr, Huzard. But how do you explain it ?
~ Witness. Why, that we should not unnecessa-
rily or lightly reveal the secrets of a brather.

Mr. Huzard. It seems to me that the expres-
gi0n MURDER AND TREASUN EXCEPTED iIIC udes
all othérs, among the secrets to be kept.

Witness. That is not my conagruction.

" Mr. Hazard, (becoming rather esrnest) We
dont want your pasticular case,but how it is under-
stood among masons. :

Witness. I ghould.consider it not to extend to
crimes.

Mr Hazard. But if a crime had been communi-
eated, would you have felt yourself bound not te
ake it public ?

Witness. After he had been ezpelled, 1 should
have done eo ; and | might have done 8o before.—
1 can’ttell, for I nevér was put to the trial.

Question, from W, Paine, Jr. What would you

have done, befure the Mason was expelled from the
Lodge. $Should you havoe felt yourself authorised
to communicate a crime, less than murder or trea-
son. given to you as a Mason'ssecret 7'
. #Vitness. 1 haveanswered that Gentlemen will
recallect that it is hard to tell what T should have
done. [ dv not think, J should have concealed a
crime agaiist the laws of my country.

Mr Hezard. It 1s VERY CLEAR THAT YOU
OUGHT NOT TO HAVE TAKEN THIS GATH. IT 181N
DIRECT VIOLATION OF YOUR DUTY TO YOUR COUN-
TRY !

Witness. If it was such a crime as ought to be
revcaled, my idea i we should have revealed it, but
if’ any small offence, perhaps not. )

[Qurry. If this highly respectable and moral
man balanced his Masonic obligations so nicely, as
to the quality of fhe offences he might conceal,
what wouwld a man .whose moral principles hung
rather lnosely about him, do as a mason ?]

Mr IHazard. How do you explin the clayse,
*“will apprize him of all approaching danger, so
far as it shall come to my knowledge.”

Witness. These words got into the obligation as

. woids of course. 1 never warned one in my life.
I never saw it practived upon, and 1,am sure that I
nuver should apprise a person, to prevent his being

How far

apprehended for crime. We have bad men and
' good menameng us. Seme might have done it, and

. ’

plead theirobligation, but 1 think they cannot have
done it as good Masons. g

Mr Hazard. Do you understand it to apply to
crimes, or are we to understand that you never
considered it as binding you to communicate any
warning that would prevent the execution of the
laws ? * :

Witness. I never put any different ‘construction
uponit. I never heard any other given, or practis-
ed upon orknew it to be done. I should consider
it applied only to a worthg brother Mason, and that
I was only bound to consider it in that light. 1
never knew it .to be extended .to crines—I speak
for myself. I cannot say what some may have
done. . .

Question from B. F. Hallett, By saying a wor-
thy brother, do yau not mean that he is « worthy
mason ?

Witness. 1 s0 understand it. Deciding for my-
self, I should always inquire for myseif, andif 1
found him unworthy I.should have acted aec-
corwtur.v.  Ido not protend to sav that this is Ma-
o%nic. I have never considered it, or thought imnuch
about it. -

Mr Huazard. How do you construe the " penaity
of the obligations? : .

Witness. I construe the penalty merely as
personal; binding.on my honor as a Mason, aud 1
never heard it otherwise among worthy Masons.—
Permit mg to add there is nothing in our by laws
which recognizes any punishment but expulsion.

Mr. Hazard. [ have looked over your by laws,
and fing they only apply to punishments for the viola-
tion of those by laws.

Witness. The by laws speak of expulsion &3 the
punishment for disclosing the transactions of the
Lodge.

Mr Huzard. 1 know it. Here is the clause—
‘“that if any member shall disclose any of the tran-
sactions of the body, to the disadvantage of the
Crafty &c. he shall be expelled.” But that don't
cover the whole. - :

[Vote. Mr. Haile has orhitted the most essential
parts of the above very important explanations by
this witness, which are here given verbatim, fromn
hig own mouth. Instead of giving the langnage of
the witness, Mr Haile, in his minutes, has merely
taken down the conclusions he ititerred the witness
ultimately arrived at.]

Mr. Hullett here offered to Mr. Hazard the
Knight Templar’s Maonic Chart, by Grand Lec-
turer, Jeremy L. Cross, a work approved by all
Masons, and requested himn to question the witness
as to_the aymbol on page 17, representing the head
of @ Knight Templar, stuck upen the top of a lofty
spire ; with a view to ascertain whether this was
not the Masunic construction intended to be given
to the penalties, by holding up this symbol, as a
warning to deter Masons from revealing the sccrets.
Mr. Hazard, after some hesitation, handed the book
to witness, and asked if he'’knew any thing about it.

Witness. I never read it. I considered I knew
as much of Masonrsy as was necessary, without study-
ing it in books.

His attention was here particularly called to the
head, on the spire,

Witness. 1 should look at it merely as a picture.
It may do to amuse childron.

A remark was made by an Antimason, that it
seemed to he a curious picture for such a purpose.
The following question was then put by request.
Has it not a direct reference to the penalty, as ex-
pressed in the Knight Templar's cath? -

Witness. In our obligation we have expressed
that qur heads should be struck off .and placed on
the highest spire in christendom, and I suppose this
is a picture of it.—I dont say that it is emblematic
of it. 1only say that our penalty says they shall
be placed there, and that is a picture of it. It will




do to pleass children with, I never examined Cross’
Chart one hanr in my life.

A request was made from Antimasons, that Mr
Hazard would examine the witness ielative to the

clauses in the printed®Royal Arch Oath, which,

bad been omitted in the written oath, handed in by
the Masons, bul the witness had grown wiser than
to risk any further attempt at explanation or con-
steuction. ‘ ;

Mr Hyzard—Here are some clauses in Allyn,
which are not in your Royal Arch oath ?

FVitness. Perhaps the general answer would
best be, that what is there written is the whole as it
was given to me :

Mr. Hazard. Bat it is particularly requested
that we should put these questions. He then pro-
posed the variations in the Royal Arch oath. 1st.
¢ will destroy the key to the ineffable ¢haracter of
this degree, whenevér it comnes to my sight?”

Witness does not recollect .it.- 20d. The grand
Omnific word, and manner in which it is to be
spoken ?

Witness.
Omnific.”

M7 Hazard was requested to ask what was the
_manser slluded to in the wrilten oath, in which
the Royal Arch word was to be received and spo-
ken; with a' view to see if it did not‘conform td the
oath in that respect in Allyn. He refused to put the
question !

3d. « Will apprise of all approaching danger if in
my powei?”

Witness. The Master’s oath gives all the obliga-
tion that we are bound to assist a brother.

4th. “ [ will employ a companion Royat Arch Ma-
son, in preference to any other person, of equal
qualifications?”’ :

Witness.. I never heard it.

5th. “ I will espouse his cause, 8o far as to extri-
_cate him from any difficalty, whether he be right or
wrong?”’

Witness. 1never heard it in my life. .

{Mr Hazard was here referred by Antimasons,
to the following authority, but he took no notice
of it. .

“{N WHATEVER BITUATION YOU MAY BE PLAC-
ED, sit not at a brother’s call. I he be in danger,
FLY TO His RELIEF. If lie be calumniated, Just1-
FY HIS CHARACTKR. Bear his burdens, allay his
sorrows, and ESPOUSE HIS CAUSE *  Freema-
#ons’ Monttor by James Hardie, p. 185. ¢ The ob-
ligations imposed upon the Order is that each mem-
ber is to protect a brother, Ar FAR AS ME CAN!”

1bid, p. 190. ¢ To stretch forth your hands to as-
sist a brother,whe it is in your power; tg be always
ready to go any where to serve him ; to betray o
cogfidence he 1cposes in you ; to support hin with
your authority—in short mutuully to support and
assist egch other, and EARNESTLY TO PROMOTE
ONE ANOTHER'S INTEREST, are duties which (well
*you know) are incumbent on you. Ye are govenant-
ed by solemn promises.”’— General Address to Ma-
sons.]

6th. “ I will keep all the secrets of a companion
Royal Arch Mason, without exception, or murder
and treason mot excepted?”’ Did you ever hear
that? :

Witness, “ No. Never to my hearing murder
and treason. [ should say that,” [as to keeping se-
crets,] ““that being included in the Master's oath,and
referred lo, it wus unnecessary to repeat it in the
Royal Arch.” [This is the precise langaage of the |
witness ] R .

Mr. Hazard. - Was the charge in Webb’s Moni-
tor, delivered to you at your initiation?

Witness. Webb's Moaitor had not been publish-
ed when I_was initiasted. We then had verbal
eharges. Short ones. They were usually the same
as in Webb's Monitor, with an addition by him.—
Webb was not published till { had received the

I never heard the expression ¢ grand

.

.

. ’
was in 1797 or 8. Isaw itin 98. I received the
tharge or address, before the oath, and a charge af-
terit. 1 considered them as embodying the true
spirit of Masens,which ought to govern the conduct
of every'good brother. Binding upon me for my
rule or governmerit. The charge alter the abliga-
tion is given in the course of conférring the degree,
not immediately. -

Question by request —Was the address inade pre-
vious to taking each oath that it was not to interfere
with yeur religion or politics? , -

Witress. I should say it was considered as a part
of Masonry; that isthé idca we have always incul-
cated on Masons, that it was not to interfere. ‘I can-
not say whether it was administered before every
oath or not. My impression is it is.

Question by request. —Are you certaiff that this
address was always made previous (o initiation?

Witness. 1 have no distinct recollection on the

I have always felt so, and acted accordingly.

Mr. Hazard proposed the 10th Interrogatory. 1f
witnees considered he gave jurisdiction fo the
Lodge over his life? -

Witness. I never had any such idea. I consider-
ed it as personal, as 1 hive before stated. I never
heard it so explained by any Lodge or Masons.

The 11th Iuterrogatory, relating to the secrets of
Masoniy,Mr Hazard passed over, and put the 12th,
If the By-laws are published, and it theie are any
secret By-lawsy ° Co .

Witness. ‘The constitution and By-laws of Lodg-
os are frequently published, and also kept in Rec-
ords.. I never knew of any secret By-laws. I have
teen Muaster of a lodge, Grand Master, High
Priestand at the head of an Encampiment.

In answer to 13th Interrogatory. - .

Witness. Knows of no other abligation in Ma«
sonry, than the ones he has stated.

Question from W+ Paine, Jr. Do you know of
any new degree in Masonry ?

* Wilness. 1 know of no degree but such as I
have stated. ’

Quéstion trom the same. Do you know of any
degree established since the abduction of Morgan ?

Witness. I know of nothing as appertuining
to Masonry. i .

Mr Huazard permitted the evasion to pass, and
proposed the 14th Interrogatory. If witness con=
sidered the oaths incompatible with religious, mor.
al or civil duties ? |

Wi,tnes:. - 1 did not consider that they interfered
at all.

Mr Hazard. What do you consider .the origin
and objects of Free Masonry to be ?

consider the object of Masonry purely a social com-
pact for our social comfort, and from which those
were excluded we did not wish to have associated
withus. Where no indecent word or oath was al-
lowed to be uttered, nor religion nor politics allow-
ed to be introd No di on.

Question by request. At what time did Free
Masonty commence ? * -

Witness, When it was instituted I know not or
care ! Tknew it was aspciety widely extendedall
over Europe. N

CoMMENT.

[E3 Mr. Wilkinson hiere assertsupon his oath that
he does not know wken Free Masonry was institat-
ed! In connexion with this assertion, reference
was had to Webb’s Monitor, in which is a certifi-
cate signed by William Wilkinson R. A. S. where
in he says ¢ that the snid (Monitor) is repelete with
useful Magonic information, and fully entitled to
the sanction of the Grand Chapter.” The first
Chapter of that book, thas unconditionally approv-
ed by Mr. Wilkinson, says, *“From the commence-
ment of the world, we may trace the foundation ot
Masonry. Ever since symmetry began, and har-

Royal Arch degree. I should say the first edition

.

mony displayed her charms, our order Ras had a

subject. My impression is it was, but’l cannot say. -

Witness. I have been a Mason forty yéars. I°
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being” Mr, Wilkinson certified to the truth of this
ussertion, and yet on his civil oath, he declared that
he knew nothing about the origin of Masonsy !—
1s not the inference plain, that respectable men who
wre Masons will certify to what they know to be
fal=e, in order to sustain Masonry by imposing upon
public eredulity 2 Either Mr Wilkinson's testimo-
uy is false, or Webb isfalse: and yet we have Mr.
Wilkimson's name for the truth of both assertions,
one of which caunot be trae.]

IWitness tontinued Y:is answer. I never was much
of a book Mason. We werk bounl to assist all
mankind, but our breth:en in particular. We had
no ties in politics. 1 speak from my own practice
and feelings.  Astoour being ‘a blood stained in-
stitution, it is. arsurd. ~ That "'we should have a
+ Cain isvot surprising, for we have had ouY Jupa-
sES among us. W ¢ have also had our ALEXANDER,
the coppérsmith, who attempted to do us much evil.
I can say the Lord reward him according to his
works. : ‘
+ [ Query. Did the witness heye allude to the
Emperor pf Russia, who prolibited Fiec Masonry
in his dominious, and whose rather sudden death,
after that decree, has Leen involved im.some little
doubt. Was ke rewarded by Masoory, according
to his works ?]

1Gth Interrogatory. Did yon ever ljear the na-
fure and extent of the penaliies, discussed ina
J.odge ? or khow any higher than cxyulsion, to be
inflicted ? . A, ) :

Witness. 1 never .did. 1 neve :heard of any
penalties being inflicted, higher than expulsion.

In answer to 10th Interrogatory, witness says,

1 never knew any Lodge to combine to take any
ueasures to supporta candidate for ofiice,
" In angwer to'20th, If he ever voted for a Mason,
in prefercnée to a belter man, of his own political
sentiment ? witness says, I never did, and 1 never
favored a Mason to the injury of another person.

In answer to 21st, respecting the grand hailing
- pign being given, hesays, I never knew the grand

hailing sign given in any Court, to. any Judge,
juror or officer. ]

In answer to 22d, whether hie would obey his Ma-
sonic or civil obligation, if brought in conflict. Wit-
ness‘saysl think that qrestion is answeted, I do
consider that my Masonic obligitions do not conflict
with my civil dutie ) o

Inanswerto 23d, If he has visited Lodges in
other statdsfand if their signs, ceremonies and work
are the same, or similar ?  Witness says, I have in
the Slate of New York, at the meeting of the
Grand Lodge in N. York, and 35 years ago I visited
& Liodge iz Boston and one in Charlestown. I know
of no difference in the ceremonies, and presume
them to be the same. I do not know any differ-
ence between their Masonic practices, signs and
mode of wérking, and those in thig state. -

The following question, which Mr. ITazard had
neglected, was again handed to him, by W, Paine,
Jr.. After turning it over some little time, he put
it.thus. ! ’ .

Mr. Hazard. Tt is ®ished to vary the20th ques-
tion in addition to mine. If you had a vote to give,
or.a favor to bestow upon but one, should you pre
fer a brother mason, to oue who was not, under the
same circumstances? .

Mr. Moses Richardson, a Mason, who was stand-
ing near the witness, here'said aloud—Thatisa
case that never ocould occur. The witness inade
no reply, nor was he required fo do so. Mr. Haile
has not put daown in his minutes, the question or
the refusal of the witness to answer. - )

24th Interrogatory. Is there a chain of connexion

- between Giand Lodges and Masans of higher order
in this and other states? Do the higher Lodges or
Chapters in all other states, forin one Masonic body
or order under cue head or Chief, called the Grand
High Priest of the U. States? Is there any con-
=exion bptween the higher Masonic powers in this

country and those in Burope? Please state fally
and minutely all you know of any such connexion,
communication, government and subordination.

Grand Lodges, I presume it is kept up regularly
thronghout the U. States. The Grand Lodge has
the supremacy of the three lower degrees of Ma-
sonry. - . - .

.Mz. Hazard. [am very anxious to get at that—
:he connexion between these Masonic bodies in the
U. States and al3o in other eountries. -

Mr. Hallett. You will find it laid down in these
authorities—refarring to the the Constitutions of the
U. States General Grand Chapter, and the U. States
General Grand Encampment, in Webb’s Monitor,
pp. 167, 243. Also to Vinton's Masonic Minstrel,
p. 399, in which is given a communication to ths
Grand Lodge of R. Island from the Grand Lodge
of S. Carolina, setting forth that a -communication
had been received from the Grand Leodge of En-
zland, *‘felative to the union of Freemasons in En.
zland, lreland, Scotlan.l and Auwmerica, by which
events the Dlasonic Fraternity throughout the
world have been cemented, into one happy fam-
ily.* At the same time the Grand Lodge of South
Carolina voted, ““that the Corresponding Grand Sec-
retary shall congratulate the Grand Lodges in this
country, upon the happy union of the whele Ma-
sonic family throughout the world, and particularly
that this ‘grcat and happy cvent has been effected
without the smallest dereliction of principle, and
‘that the words, passwords, signs, grips, working,
Sforms of initiation, §c. are PRECISELY THE SAME
IN ALL THE DEGREES, as hay beep che case from
time immemorial.”’ -

When these references were handed to Mr. Haz-
ard, Grand Master Cooke suggested to the witness,
if he wounld not prefer to write it out, and hand bis
answer to the Committee. ~ '

Witness said he should prefer to have Mr. Haile
btake it down. Mr. Hazard proposed to adjcurn till
afternoon, which was done, tbus giving the witness
an opportunity to consult with otﬁer Masons, as te
the best mode of meeting this important question.

Tuesday Afternoon, 3 o’clock.

Messrs. Hazard, Sprague and Haile -of the Com-
‘mitleg, met at 3 o’clock, and resumed the examina.
tion of Mr. Wilkinson, in reference to the govern-
ment of Masonic bodies. )

In answer to 26th Interrogatory, Witness says,
The several Lodges in this State are under subordi-
nation to the Grand -Lodge of the State. Each
State has its Grand Lodge. The Grand Lodges in
the U. States are independent. They communi-
cate to each other their officers, &c. We write a
circular after the elections of officers, to all the
Grand Lodges, and a communication .is kept up.
The communications between them are compli-
mentary, or we can write on business. They com-
municate any Masonie matters as they think neces-
sary. They communicate with each other as equals,
but not as superiors. .

There is a higher order of masons who form a
community. There is no connexion between Chap-
ters and Lodges except this, that a person can-
not receive the higher degrees, unless he has
taken the lower. The same men compose both,
but there is no contral in point of government. I
state this from what 1 knpow in practice. 1
bave not been a book reading mason, The two de-
grees of Royal and Select Master,4 do not know to
what branch they belong, though 1 have taken
those degrees. )

Mr. Hazard. Does the Grand Lodge admit hon-
orary members? S b

Witness. When the Grand Lodge was first es-
tablished in this State, there were but two Lodges,
and they then elected eight honorary members,

to jnevgase the number. But many years aftor the,

.

Witness. As to the communication jetween the
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Grand Lodge voted not to add to that number, but
zontinue to elect those during lifs, who had been
~-elected. C .

The several Royal Arch Chapters met in 1798,
and a General Grand Chapter was formed, for the
Northern States, by a Convention held at Hartford.
Afterwards this was extended thbroughout the U.
States. They formed at first a Constitution for the
Northern States, which now extends cver the U.
States. This'General Grand Chapter elocts a GEx-
ERAL Granp Hieu Priest, to which all look up
as the usAp. [Mr. Haile did not like this last ad-
mission, and got the witness to go over his dnswer
again. He then stated it in this tarm.]

In 1798, the Royal Arch Chapters ia the North-
ern States and New York, formed a General
Grand Chapter for those States, which was after-
wards extended over the U. States, all the Chap-
ters having adopted it. ‘'This Association is now
called the General Grand Chapter of the United
States, which is
General Grand High Priest. .

Witness. | wish that to be corrected, so as to read
presided over. Our Government is too Republican
to say governed. .

Mr. Hails. Then your Government is mors Re-
publicanthan your titles? *

. Witness. You will find it so. We are governed
by no body but ourselves. i
}& [Mr. Haile wrote down these precise words, but
afterwards suggested to the witness they had hetter
be struck ouf, to which the witness readily as-
sented.] . co

. Mr. Hazard. . When did the higher degrees orig-
inate, and when weré they introduced here?

Witness. I have no knowledge of the time
when the_degrees including the ﬁoyn] Arch and
above, originated. The Royal Arch was introduc-
ed into Rhode Island in November, 1793. 1 recol-
lect the difficulty we had to find seven Royal Arch
Masons, to open the first Chapter. Mr. John Car-
lile and myself are the only ones now living, who
took the degroe at that time. The higher degrees
were introduced afterwards. I do not recollent
when.
ous of taking the higher degrees; Daniel %Lil_well
went to N. York and got a dispensation; but it re-
quired seven Royal Arch Masons te be present at
the opening of 2’ Chapter; there were ptesent Me.
ses Seixas, Peleg Clarke, Thomas W. Moore, (Brit-
ish Consul at Newport) Daniel Stilwell, Jonathan
Donnison, Samuel Stearns, (a foreigner) and I be-
licve Daniel Dailey. 1do nat like the expression
«thay introduced it,”” (as Mr. Haile had writtén it
down.) [It.was introduced by them. [Mr. Haile
altered it to, was introduced.] . .

A question was asked relative to the government
of the subordinate Chapters.

Witness. There is ong question you have not
asked, which will explain this. Each State hasa
Grand Chapter, -to which all the chapters in that
State are subordinate. They objected to give usa
Grand Chapter in Rhode lsland, we wore so small,
but we would not join, unless they did.
Reppublican we are not governed by any body but

ourselves. Our government is more republican |

than any civil or religious, under Heaven. The
~several Chapters in each State form a Grand Chap-
ter presider over by a Grand High Priest, to which
the Chapters are subordinate, and the Grand Chap-
ters of each State are subordinate to and under the
jll;risdic_lion of the General Grand Chapter of the
nited States. | have never known of amy com-
munication vith any foreign Masonic body, other
\than that of a brother comiag along for charity.- I
believe that once or twice Masonic letters have
passed between the Grand Lodge and the provin-
cial Lodges in U. States. [ say positively that tliere
is no subordination or conrniexion between - any body
of Magons -in this State and_Europe.. They may
keep up a friendly interdourse. :

.

. Witness.

overned by an officer called the |

A number of Mastey Masons being desir-|.

We are so|.

In angweb to the 27ih. If Lndxes in othcr statc
give nolice of the expulsion of members 2 o

Witness. Itis the custom of Grani Lodggs in
each_State to communicate to each other the names
of members expelled - Especially if it was suppos-
ed that a person ‘was fraveliing abroad where hs
might do mischief as an unworthy brother. :

[Query? 1loward, the miurlercr of Morgan,” .
travelled to Europe, by the help of & Chapter in N.
York,but was never expelled. There was no fear, it
seems, that ke was an unworthy*brother.] .
~ Mr Hazard. Has your Lodgo ever receivel any -
communication from ths Graud Lodge, Chapler or
Encampment of New York refative to the expul
siomof any member of either of those bodies.con- -
corned in the dbduction and-murder of William
Morgan ? N L .
1 can give you a gencral answer. That
I have no knowledge of any. ibing of the kind in"
any Masonie body. : .

29th Interrogatory. When the expulsion of a
member of another Lodge is communicated, what
order is taken by your Lodge, if it comes from
another State? :

Witness. .1t is entered on the Rezcordas, so that he
may not b received in that Lolge.

80:h. Hasany Lodge, Chapter or Encampment
in this Stata to your knowledgo received any com-
munication fromn any Masonic body in New. Yorl,
on the subject of tha killing of Morgan, and if so,
what was its impoit. . )

[ A written request was here sent to Mr.Hazard *
from Antimasor®, that he would summon the Granf
Master, Grand Aigh Priest and Grond Commander
of 1826-27, and question them on this point He
asked Mr Cook who they were, but neitker of them
was sumirioned!] .

Wiiness. I bave no knowledge of any such com-
munication ever having been made. -

Question fso'n B. F. Hallett. Is itnot according
to Masonic usage that every Mas>n who has not
been expelled from his Lodge, Chapter, &e. is en-
titled to admisgion in the Lodges or Chapters, of aif
other States, asa'worlhy visiting brother ?

{Mr Haile has perverted this question by putting
in a qualification not in the original.]

Witness. It is,if the Mason makes himself knowre
as such, and the Lodgoe is satisfied that his preten~
sions are such as he represents them, and they aré
satisfied he has taken the degree of that Lodge.

Mr Haoeard. When any Masons in other States,
especially if conspicuous, are convicted of any
crime of 1 serious nature, 13 it not usual for Lodges
to pass some order to guard against the intrusion of

‘such guilty Masons ?”

Witness. To ansiver your question 1 should say
that [ think it woulll be” their duty todo so,but {
have not known’such a case precisely. If 2 masdn
has done any tling for which he is expelled, itis
communicated to us, and we should pot admit him.
Wo know no difference between great men and lit-
tle men in Maconry, exce
ourselves—men ot straw I suppose. )

Mr Haile. Butsupposc a Mason had committed
a high crima, should you receive him, as a Mason ?

Witness. . If he was not a membor of our pod;;{e -
we should consider we hdd mothing to do with his
crimes. He must go to his own Lodge. 1f wo
knew that he had been convicted of a heijoud.crime,
wa should nat'admit him, but we should mnot under-
take to juidge of his guilt or innacénce. 1f he had
been convicted of a great ciime, 1 suppose we should -
not adit him whether he had bees expelled or not.

I speak. this from my own_feelings, never haviog
had any knowledlg‘e of such acase.

Mr Hazard. Have you ever heard any Mason of .
‘reputable standing in society, justify the killiog:
»of Morgan? . -

Witness. I never heard it justified atall in no

case. by any Mason. l‘su.pgose they would not have
comununicated it to me, if they bad. 1 expressed
L]

,

the great men we maka .

N
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my opinion against it, if it was done by Macons. It
waw a very unwarrantable act if it was done, a very
unwise and foolisk one, as well as wicked.

WMr. Hazard. Has your l.odge, or any Masonic
body, passed any vote disapproving of the conduct
of the persons concerned in the Morgan husiness,
and forbidding their admission as visiting brethren ?

Witness. 1 know of no proceedings about it;
1 always considered we had nothing to de with it.

,We had nothing to_say whether he was killed or
not, or murdered or not. We were entirely inde-
pendent of it, and that Masons of this State had no
1ore to do with it as such than citizens of thig State
had. It belonged to another jurisdiction.

Mr. Hazard was requested to put the 11th Inter-
rogatory, which he had passed over. He put itin
this form: What do you consider the secrets o1

-Imysteries of Masonry to be? We dont ask you to
point out the signs. Do you know any secrets,
- except those disclosed in Bernard and Al{yn ?

Witness. 1 consider them to- be merely personal

matters, by which one Mason knows another. They
. serve to distinguish ps from other folks. I never
thought of it before, but such is my impression. -

Mr: Hallett. Do they not enable Masons to co-
operate secretly, and combine against all other

* smen? and may they not be used tp the injury of
other men ?

Witness. I say asa Masen and an old man, that
the secrets of Masoury as imparted to me,have tend-
ed to make me a bhetier inan, and more charitable
to 41l men, and particulirly to Masons. We never
gave the secrets under the Inguisition, and we ne-
ver shall givé them. .1 shall not say whether those
pointed out in thie books are the secrets or not. Let
those who think they have got them try, and they

* will find their mistake. . . )

Mr. Haile. Are not these secrets such as cannot

-affect any but Masons ?

Witness. There is nothing in the secrets of Ma- |

~sonry which can affect any person, but Masons.
The following question was here pioposed by
W: Sprague Jr.—When you enter-or leave a Lodge
‘or Chapt:r, do vou make any sign or motion. If
%0, to what does it allude. Is it intended to impress
‘upon the mind, the penalty of that degree ?
-Mr. Hdzard. This relates to one of the secrets
‘of Masonry. -
" Mr. Sprague said that'was the reason he wanted
the question put. 1t would explain the penalty.
‘Mr. Hazard read the question _ aloud, ds if to sce
what it was, and not as putting it to the witness.
_ Witness. I should not like to answer that ques-
tion. It relates to the paris of our ceremonies
which your honor has said you woyld not tion

‘| swer. I considered that to be 1greed upon by the

cludes 81l other crimes, says Mr. Hazard, and y
Masons aré 1o be protected from disclosing what
they have sworn not to betray ] We have exam-
ined Mr. Wilkinson to our satisfaction, and we
have ‘no curiosity on this point. Mascns considet
themselves bound in honor not to divulge the se
crets, ceremonies and signs, and I cant consider
that any such question can be put with any good
object. . -

Witness. I do hot intend to answer mor dem
any thing in reference to the secrets and ceremoniu
of Masonry. 1 do not mean to say whether an
such sign is made or is not made. .
[0 This respectable witness was under a citi
oath to tell ¢ the truth the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth.” He was under a Masonic oath, nd
to téll the truth, in reply to this question. Which
oath did he consider superior ? And yet he test:
fied & few pages back, that he nevet considered hie
Masonic oath could come in conflict with_his civl
duties, and, if it did, he should give the latter the
preference. :

Is not the Masonic practice of this witness mor
conclusive of the binding naturé of Masonic oath:
than of the force of civil fobligations upon the
subjects of Masonry?]

Mr Paine Jr. requested Mr. Hazard to put the
following question, which, after somé delay, and a0
evident.reluctance, was read to the witneps as fol-
lows:

Are the ceremonies of initiation in the Knight
Templar's degree in Allyn’s Ritual, page 250, drink-
ing from the scull, &c., and the reprgsestation or
plate, called the 5th lhibation, are they torrect
The book was here handed to the witness, who de-
clined taking it. ' .

Witness. 1 never saw this book, I never read i,
and I uvever shall; nor shall I answer whether they
are correct or not. )

Mr. Hazard. To put an end to this kind of ques-
tioning, I will ask, Have you made vp your mind
that you will not answer any quesfion rchl?i'g 10
the form of initiation, ceremonies and secrets of Ma.
soary? .

Wyitncss. I have made wp my mind not fo &n.

Committee. [(T Civil oath, 1 swear to tell the
truth, the whole truth!]

Mr. Sprague (of the Committee) here made some
suggestions, dissenting from any such agreement
on his part, and insisting on the quéstion Leing pat.

Mr. Hazard. Are you willing to amswer any
questions relating to the forms of initiation and se-
crets of Masonry?

Witness. 1 am not. I consider them: merely

us about! You must be sensible that it is one of
Tthose questions you agreed-not to ask us about! It
8 no bearing on the subject and is merely an en-
tering wedge to draw some admissions and” contra:
dictions out of us  Therefore I should decline
answeriug it. I consider it merely a piece of idle
curiosity to gain advantage. -That you may state.
[This was the first intimation givén of an under-
slanding between Mr. Hazard and the Masons, as
to the nature of the questions he should ask them.
Mr. Hazard did not deny the bargain, which was
thus unexpectedly disclosed, though he evinced
much-chagrin and vexation at the imprudent dis-
closure made by the witness, and he aftefwards
#aid to two individuals, that he was an old fool for
oing 80, or words to that effect.
Mr, Paine Jr. informed Mr.Hazard thete were sev-
_eral other questions we should want to ask, such
as an explanatlon of the burning bush, and the 5th
Libation. Recovering in part from his confusion at
the unexpacted disclosure made by the witness)
Mr. Hazard ssid, 1 have oxpréssed my opinion
that it is improper to call upon Masons to disclose
their secrots. It is improper 10 make them forfeit
their honor by disclosing the secrets they have sworn
Bot (g betray. (15" Mdrder ard treason excepted,in-

~

personal. If we are guilty of crimes hang.us, but
if we are not, I do not consider the question proper
to be answered. [JiF”A Masonic oath can never
interfere with e civil oath.]

Question from Mr, Paine.—Do yow know any
thing about a check degiee or pass word, given to
yourself or any Mason, sinco the disclosures made
by Williain Morgan? B

Witness. There was no new acgree. . There
might hige been something to prevent those Jo-
pasgs, who had béen among us, from getting
there again. It was never called a degree. It was
to keep out those TRAITORS as we called then:, the
seceders and intruder3or spies; people that we don’t
want 'should come there. .

[Some conversation not heard d between
Mr Sprague and Mr Hazard. The latter seemed
xneasy. Mr Spragu? turned to the 5th libation in
Allyn, and insisted on having the obligation as there
given read to the witness who had refused to look
at it in the book. Mr Hazard was thus placed in
an uncomfortable position, between his bargain
with the witness and other Masons not to ask these
questions, and the right elaimed by Mr Sprague,
one of the Committee, who objected t6 the bargain

and insisted upon having the question put. A sud.

]
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den thought appeared to seize Mr, Hazard, which
presented a mode to extricate himsslf, and also to
:unish the witness for. disclosing the bargain that

ad exposed the partial eperations of the majority
of the Committee.] e

Mr. Hazard—(holding Allyn in his hand.) Mr.
Wilkinson, it is suggested that this part of the cere-
mony, at this page of Allyn’s book, is a part of the
Koight Tomplar’s obligatiori which he swears to.
If is is so you ought to state it. It comes under

your obligations. .
Witness. We have given yon 2ll the obligations
wq were required to.
r. Hazard—(a little touched.) But come to

think of it, this is an obligation. It is given in the
form of an oath. I will read it to you from Allyn,

page 250.

“ Thid pure wine I take from this cup, in testi-
mony of my belief of the mortality of the budy,
and the immortality of the soul, arldy as the sins of
the whole world were laid upon the head of our
Savior, so may the sins of the person whose skall
this once was, be heaped upon my head in addition
to my own; and may they appear ini judgment
against me,.both here and hereifter, should I vio-
late or transgress any obligation in Masonry or the
orders of Knighthood, which | have heretofore ta-
ken, take at this time or may hereafter be instruct-
ed in. So help me God. [Drinks the wine.]

Mr. Hazard. That appears to be anoath. 1s that
correct? Were these words a part of the obligation?

Witness. They do not belong to the obligation.
We have ";iven you the obligation entire, as we
take it. We gave them asyau asked. THAT 13
CONTRARY TO WHAT HAS BEEN USUALLY CONSID-
RRED 0UR DUTY ; but the ceremonies we consider
as personal, belonging to us, and shall neither affirm
nor deny. I shall not for one.

r';rhi' answer was made, while Mr Haile was
writing down the quéstion. After he had written

it out, he read the form of the fifth libation asabove,
and asked] was this administered to you, or did you
ever see it ? ' . )

Witness: I say thatis our particular secrets and

' teremonies, which I sHALL Nor rrEL MysxrLr
~BOUND, USDER ANY SITUATION TO DISCLOSE.

[05There is no Masonic obligation incompatible
with any civil obligaiion 7 ..

Mr Hazard. But I consider this n part of the
obligation of the Knight Templar, if these words
are true.

Witness.
to me. L L

A question was{heﬁre,handgd’ to Mr Hazard, which
he readily put. Do you know any thing about these
words ? 3 o : .

. Witness. Iknowaboutd great many things in

Muonr‘&,, which I shall not tell you or any other
man. Whether it did or did not make a part of the
ceremonies, I neither affirm or deny. )

Mr Hazard. Astheanswer now is, it may leadtoa
wrong conclusion that it isso. I think you might
@s a Masonanswer in the negative, if it is not true ?
.. Witness. | think thit would be un unfair ques-
tidn.” You have said it might be answered as a ma-
soil. It is whatas a mason I will never submit to.
[Thé witness here lifted up both arms

M¢ Hazard. That is right, Mr
There is nothing improper in your secrets,, that is
proved. All socleties have their secrets. But ¢ .n't
You anawer if these words were-or were not used in
the ceremidny or initiation of a Kight Templar ?

Witness: As to the secret céremonies of that or
any other degree, I will neither affirm or deny.

Mr Hazdrd. Wont ‘that leive an impression
rather that it isin the ceremonios-?

Witness. That would be an urinecessary question.

Mr Haile, then put it to witness in this form.—
Were these words used in any partof the cere-
mo;y r initiation in the degtreq of Knight Templar?

itness. In regard to the ceremonies in-this

I had no such obligation administered

.\l’ilkinson.— -

or any other degree of Masonry, I aeither “affirme
’,nor eny. . . v ‘

Mr Hizard‘ Mr Wilkinson, that Jooks very much
as if it was so! . _ .

Witness. (Rather out of patience) I can’t help
how 1t looks ! .

Question from B. F. Hallett. Is there any thing
in the Koyal Arch Oath, which refers to keeping
the secrets of a brother companion ?

Wetness. 1do not now recollect of any other
than the penalty of our former obligation, i the
Master's oath, to keép edch other’s secrets. Wheph-
er that is again expressed in the Royal Arch oath, -
I do not know. It strikes me not, he being consid-
ered already bound by reference to his former ob-
ligation as a Master Mason. It may bé incorporat-
ed again by some. : ) K .

. Question from’ the same. But how is a Royal
Arch Mason-bound by his oatli to keep the secrets
of a brother compaunion ? )

Witness. There is that which obligates him in
addition to his former obligation to keep the Mastet
Mason’s oath. N N

Mr. Haile. ‘That don’t meet the question. He
then read the written Royal Arch oath, as handed
in, which had no reference to keeping secrets, oi'
to the Master’s cath. *

Witness. There is nothing different in QIe oath
as I received it or heard it. The Master’s dath.

Mr. Haile. The Masier's oath has nothing td do
.with it. You do not uinderstand it. 1t is no an
swer at all. The question is whether you dre. bound
in any way, to keep the secrets of & Royal Arch
Mason ? ’ . :

Witness. No further-than the other clausé in the
Mauster’s degree. That we should not reveal the
secrets of a Royal Arch Mason, we are bound in
the same way,; {ut nothing isi addition. [JFThat
is murder and treagoh excepted. , el

Mr. Huzard. Doeg thit comprehend the whofe
oath ? [pointing tp the written oath.] .

_ Witness. It does. You ses we bind ourselves
ribt to give the  degree except to dne who is a Mas-
ter Mason. . L

Mr Haile. From whenaa, are dispensations ob-
tained for Grand Lodges,» Grand Chapters and
Grand Encampments. -

Witness. Vghile we were under the British gov~
ernment, we had a Deputy Grand Lodge derived
from their Grand Lodge. ~The higher orders wera
not introduced then, and a Convention was called,
and the General Grand Chapter formed. ~The
General' Grand Encampment was fermed in the
same manner. . '

The Grand Lodges in-the States we?c form!d by
the subordinate Lodges in each State, without any
foreign dispensation:.

ow were the Chapters formed ?

I have told in this State. In other States I do
not know. . . . .
After the Getieral Grand Chapter was formed,
that constitution provided {hat there shonld be
Grand Chapters in each State, reptesented at that

time. y

Question by request. Have you' ever known a |
Mason to give - the secrets to one who was not a
Mason, or to one of an inferior degree *

Witness. 1 never have Rnowa it. .

Have yon4s a Mason ever been told any (hing
respecting Morgan, or his dificultics.

Witness. I never have.

Did you ever know Lewis C. Brown of Cumber-
land, having beon tried in the Grand Lodge for an
offence dgainst Masonry.

Witness: 1 have some faint recollection of such
atrial. 1remember there was a difficulty. I can.
not state respecting it. There was a dificulty bo.
tween him and his .Lodge. and an appeal to the
Grand Lodge. I cannot recollect the proceedings.
Ip reply toi’lr Hazard, says he presumes the rec-

erds will show. I donot remember how long aga

vl
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» 3t was, whether ten or twenty years. 1 had no cone
cern with it. It was after [ was active in the
Lodge. Ha was not tried in the Grand Lodge. If
1 recollect right a Committee was appointed.

[The testimony of Wm. Wilkinson here closed,
and the Committee adjourned till Wednesday morn-
ing. We again invite 3 careful examination of this
testimony. Mr Wilkinson has evidently given his
testimony with a"high degree of conscientiousness.
He appears doeply sensible of the importance of a
civil oath, and yet Masonic obligations were strong-
er apon the mind of even such, a man, than civil
or conscientious obligations.]

Wednesday Morning, December 14. The Com
mittee met at 9 o’clock. Present Messrs. Hazard
Sprague and Haile. Barzillai Cranston, Esq. was
called by Mr. Hazard. Mr. Cranston is 16H
Priest of the Providence Royal Arch Chapter,
and at the same time Secretary of Mount Vernon
Lodge; a practical illustration of the 1ntimate con-
nextion between Chapters and Lodges; for whatev-
ecthe President of the Chapter should desire to
have done in the Lodge, respecting its funds, &c.
the Secretary of the Lodge could carry into effect,
and vice versa. Mr Cranston is a printer, and re-
cently attempted to get up a Masonic paper, which.
he issued proposals to puplish, but without success,
He is a very respectable and nnimpeachable citizen-
a man of prudence and circumspection, and consci-
encious in his dealings, but very ardently attached
to Masonry, in which he has attained more distine-
tion than under any other circumstance.

The embarrassments under which Mr. Wilkinson
labored in giving his testimony, viva voce, seemed
to have suggested te Mr. Hazerd and the Masonic
wit , the ity. of obviating the like expos-
ure, by coming prepared with a written statement,
the result of careful examination and ¢‘caution,”’
by a comparison of it different parts so as to avoid
contradiction. Thus, to the surprise of all not in
the secret, Mr. Cranston appesred with a written
reply to certain interrogatories with which Mr.
Hazard had privately furnished him the day belore,
as the only interrogatories the Committee would put
to hiin, thus giving him ample time to answer them
circumspectly in writing._ [A similar indulgence, it
is belioved, was never before granted to a witness ]

- 12th Witness. BarziLLai Cranston, Hig

* Priest. Mr. Cranston was called by Mr. Hazard,
and instead of being sworn to tell the truth, the
whole truth, and nothing but the truth, as had been
done with all the preceding witnésses, ho was af-
Jormed ““to make true 8 o such questions as
may be asked!” Under this oath, he handed ip his
written statement, drawn up by himself, in answer
1o the interrogatories privately -furnished him.

These facts Mr Hailesuppresses in his minutes.]
WRITTEN STATEMENT DRAWN UP BY BARZILLAI
CRANSTON, WHEN NOT UNDER OATH.

Buarzillai Cranston, in answer to questions, says he
isa Printer in Providence, ‘s a Mason, a member
and Secretary of Providence Mount Vernun Lodge
in Providence, Providence Royal Arch Chapter,
Member of Council of Royal and Select Masters in
Providence and member of the Grand Lodge.
Tookthe three first de, rees, in 1814, in St. John’s
Lodge, and others, including Rayal Arch, in 1817,
and the Select Master, in 1826. Is at present

ich Priest in the Chapter. Oaths were ad-
ministered in each degree, and were received in
good faith by him, which oaths deponent says have

een written out in full, dnd laid before the Honor-
able Committee. A good deal of pains have been
taken to give the precise words of the obligations
s they have been given most, in the different
bodies, by consultation among the present and past

" officers. ~That form which the most of the officers
had nsed, was agreed upon as the most proper form.
Witness is certan that these obligations are correct,
that is, ag he learnt them; and he did learn them of
““e officets who administered them to him.

His view of the obligations is that they are an
cieat forms and solemn asseverations ; that they
have been kept In use as much for their antiquit
as for any other reason except the want of confi-
dence in the members to frame better ones, as the
Charter of this State has been clung to. The de-
claration that the obligation is not intended to inter-
fere with the candidates religieus or political duties,
as well as the Charges delivered or read from the
Monitor, to every candidate, I consider proper qual-
ifications of the obligations. I have known the af-
firmation to b:,fi“'n to candidates, and should al-
ways have considered it my duty, while rresiding,
to administer it on being roquested to. I know of
nothing in Masonry, against giving or taking the af
firmation. ‘My construction of the point in the
Master's obligation which says ¢ I will keep a broth-
er’s secrets, &c.’ is, that the word worthy ought w0
be understood, as it is expressed in a preceding
point, AND THAT THEY ARK BINDING ON MK 80 FAR
THAT | WoULD SUFFXR THE PENALTIES RATHIR
THAN REVEAL WHAT | HAVE THEREIN PROMISED
TO CONCEAL, AND NO FURTHER. So I mave 1n.
sTRUCTED oTHERS. Had the obligations been framed
to suit modern times, the explanation and qualifica-
tions, which our improved moral semse has given
them, would be unnecesiary. As a consequence
of the Masonic compact, I can state that money has
been appropriated by the Lodge I .belang to for
charitable purposes in every yesr since it was
chartered by the State. I never visited a Lodge or
other Masonic body out of this State but once, and
that was in Seekonk, Mass. for the purpose of giy-
ing them information respecting conferring the de-
grees and the lectures.

I have never heard a Mason justify the murderor
killing of Morgan, and never heard one epeak lightly
of that transaction since it has been believed at all to
be true. Before it was thought to be true, I heard
Masons and others speak lightly of it, as a story got
vp for some other purpose—that of making sale for
his book, &e.—rather than because it was true,

I consider the Masonic Institution a charitable
one, not merely a mutual insurance company, be-
cause a member or his distressed family may draw
out more than he ever paid in. If a Mason s in
distress his claim for relief is good. (See by law
and abstract of charities.)

The by laws (of Mount Vernon Lodge) previde
for the expulsion of a member for dise osing ¢ any
of the transactions of the Lodge to the disadvan-
tage of the Craft, or any individual brotker,’ or if
he conduct himself disorderly or by vicieusness and
immorality of conduct act unworthy the character
of a Mason. I know of po other punishment than
expulsion. - :

The by laws are generally written and kept in a
book subject to the inspection of any member. The
constitution and by laws of the Grand L are
printed, and lay on the table. T have prinfed by
lawse for 8 Lodge. 1Iknow of ro secret by laws.

dmount of money ;;agd for charitable purposes from

799 o 1830.
1799.  ¢I8 1815, 45
1800. - 10 67 1816. 57
1801. 18 1817, 106 69
1eg§.ﬂ 30 50 1818. 46 15
1803~ 1325 1819, 48 50
1804. 13 1820. 63
1805, 15 75 1821. " 85
1806. . 2836 1822, 56 75
1807. * .38 62 1828. 107 25
1808, 1512 1824, 107 75
1809. .. " 15 1825, 97 04
1810. 28 50 | p7189%. 182 50
1811. 48 06 | g3-1827. 100 92
1812. 84 25 1828, 97
1818. 29 1829, 71
1814, 68 1830. 74 50

e
91,705 13
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Exclusive of nioney raised by subsoription which
probsbly amounted to several hundred dollars. )

(Signed,) JASON WILLIAMS, Com
Providence, May 1830

A true copy from the records of Mount Vernon
Lodge. B. CRANSTON, Sectretary.
Providence, June 8, 1831.

After Mr. Cranston had handed in his written
statement, Mr. "Haile, by request of Antimasons,
read the variations in the oaths trom Allyn’s Ritual,
omitted in the written oaths handed in by the Mw
sons. ’
1st. As to the Grand Hailing Sign, witness was:
asked if he éver heard it in the oath.

Witness. I am confident 1 néver did.

2d. * [ will not speak ill of a brother mason, nei-
ther behind hig back or before his face, but will ap-
prize kim of all approaching danger.”’ Did you
ever hear that ? ) :

Witness. I never did! [Alter a pause, witness
added] There is a point in the obligation similar
to that, * that I will not wrong a brother, or de-
prive him of his good name.” - '

[0IT"Mark the prevarication. The witness en-
deavors to carry an impression that there is a mate-
rial difference in the 2d point between the Rhode
Island oath and Allyn’s, and he so answers as to
mllge it appear that the most objectionable -clause,
“ will t&xrlu him of all approaching danger,” is not
in the Rhode Island oath! To show kow nigh the
wind Masons can swear, touching their oaths, who
are couscientious men in all other respects, refer-
ence is here made to the terms of this point as given

in Allyn's oath, and in the Rhode Island oath,.

which this witness had just previously sworn was

literally correct, hut which he almost denies, when

it is put to him as a variation in Allyn’s form.
From the Master's Oath in Allyn’s Ritual.

“ That I will not speak evil of a brother Master
Mason, neither behind his back nor before his fucé,
but will apprize him of all approacking danger.”
From the sume oath written out by theGrand Lodge.

“That T will not wrong & brother, or d&prive
him of his good’ name, or suffer it to be done by
others, if in my power to prevent it, but will ap-
prize him of all approacl:ing danger, so far as it
shall come to my knowledge

The latter is in reality stronger than the first,
and yet the witness worded his answer so as to
convey an impression that the obnexious clause was
not in the Rhode Island oath. Other witnesses it
will be found went farther, and flatly denied that
the clause, ‘“ apprize kim of all approaching dan-
Zer,” was in the Rhode Island oa(g at all !] .

84. Keweeping a brother’s secrets, murder. and
treason excepted, and they left to my election.
Did you ever hear it so administered ?

Witness. No 8ir. ‘The form is, I will keep the
secrets of a brother Master Mason, murder and trea-
son excepted. :

4th. Relative to going on a Master Mason’
errand? -

WWitness. 1 nevar heard that sdministercd.

bth. If any part is omitted, &c.

#itness. I never heard that. !

Variations in the Royal Arch oath.

6th. The Grand Umnific word ?
Witness. 1 never heard it in that form.

[Mr. Hazard did not ask in what form he had
he;rd t. 1 . ving d " ,
th, ill apprize of approaching danger
Witness. Imur heur';pthnt! g ok
8th. I will assist 8 companion Royal Arch Ma-
son, when I see him engaged 1n any difficulty—and
will espouse his cause sp far as to extricate him
from the same, whether he be right or wrong —
Did you ever hear that ? :
Witness. Not the latter part 8f it. Thereis a
clause in the Royal Arch oath, embracing the first
pert of it. 1 never heard * espouse his cause so
. fer av te extricate him from the same, whether he

be right or wrong.”” This obligation econfines the
assistance to a worthy brother. )

[@Note. The High Priest here admits that’ *
there is a clause in the Royal Arch oath embracing
this pointpviz :—+ 1 will assist a companion Royal
Arch Mason, when I sce him engaged in any diffi-
culty.” In this he accords preciely with the testi-
mony of Mr. Thacher, and establishes the substance
of the allegation that Royal Arch Masons arq bound
to assist each other in any difficulty, under all cir-
cumstances, and of course whether right or wrong
And yet it is a remarkable fact, that the rwritlen”
Royal Arch.oath handed in by the Rhode lsland |
Masons, does.not contain a word about assisting a
Royal Arch Companion, when engaged %8 any diffi-
culty. But the High Priest admits that there is
suchan obligation in the oath, though he says it is
confined to & worthy brother. What a tworthy
brother is, Past High Priest Wilkinson hes informed
us. Mr. Haile, in his thinutes, owits a part of the
witness’ answer to the aljove question, but retains
the substance of the admission that there is such
an_obligation, viz : -to assist a worthy brother com-
panion, whon engaged in any difficulty.|

oth. ¢1 will keep all the secrets of a Companio
Royal Arch Mason, when communiceted to me
such, without exception, or murder and treuson not
excepted.” Did you ever hean that clause?

Witness. Not the 1.ATTER PART of it. I never
heard the expressions in the lattcr part of this ex«
tract administered ! .

[0 Note. A very pregnant answer, and for ones
Mr Haile has taken down here the very words of the
witness. ¢ I never heard the expression ix the lat-.
ter part, that is without exception, or murder and
treason excepted. The inferrence is plain, I have
heard the first part, viz. * I will keep ail the socrets
of a Companion Royal Arch Mason when commu-
nicated to-me as such.! 4ll means all; precisely as
Mr Thacher, stated the obligation he took in the

.Royal Arch degree, viz. ¢ to keep all'the secrets of

a Companion committed to me as such.’ Mr Cran-
ston thus fully sustains the testimony of Mr Thagh-
er, and yet it is another remarkable mstance ot Ma-
sonic prevarication somewhere, that the wrnitten R.
Is!and oath, in the Royal Arch degree, as handed
ta the Committee, contains n®t a"word about keep-
ing the secrets of & companion, of any description
or under any cizcumstances! Had the oath always
beenadministered without any.reference to keeping
secrets, would not the answer of the High Priest
have been, *Inever heard that clause, or any part
of it;’ instead of ¢ I never heard the expressions in
the latter part ¥] :

[The following question in Mr Hallett’s hand
writing, Mr Haile was here requested to put. Mr
Hazard had stepped out at this moment, and Mr
Haile read the question. 1t was afterwards incor.
porated among the variations marked E.}

10th. In the obligation of the Royal Arch de
gree, as read to you from paper marked B, is.this
sentsnce. 7th. ¢That T will not give the grand
Royal Arch word in any manner except that in
which I may receive it.’ Is the manner there ra-
ferred to the same described in thia obligstion as
given in Allyn’s Ritual, viz, ¢in the presence of
thres Companion Royal Arch Masons, mysell ma-
king one of the number, and then by three times
three under a living arch, and at low breath ?’

* Witness. ‘The obligation is, that I will not give
the word, except in the manner I have received it.

Mr Hallett. To show that the oaths are alike,
we want to know if the ¢ manner' is the same as 13
described in the Royal Arch oath given in Allyn’s
Ritual, :

Witness.
tion.

Mr. Hallett. Where is it answered ?

Mr. Haile. The question is whether the manner

I think I have answered that ques-

alluded to in the written oath is the same described
in the printed oath. .

L4
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Witness. After a pause. Woll, sir, 1 shoald an-
swer -that the first part is correct, and decline an-
swering the rest.

{@F Aoute. This witness had taken a civil oathto
make true answers to such questions as should be
put to him, under the peril of the penalty of perju-
ry ! ‘and yet he vefused to answer a question put to
him by Mr Haile, one of the Committee, because
he had sworn as & Mason to conceal and never re-
veal. Which oath did he regard most biuding in
this case; his civi! or his Masonic oath!]

Witness was asked by request, if the penalty in the
Past Master’s degree was ever given, to have my
tongue split from tip to root ?

Witness. 1 never so heard it.

Mr Hallett here observed that in the written
statement banded in by Mr Cranston, he had given
an acconot of the charities of the Lodge for several
years. Inorder to judge of thosc charities it was
necessary to ascertain for what purpose the money
was applied, and also the relative proportion of those
charities to the receipts and to other expenditures
of the Lodge. He wished this question to be par-
ticularly asked, viz. .

o What was the amount of the receipts of your
" Lodge arising from fees, quarterly dues and all other
sources, during the years in which you state certain
sumns were paid out as charities, and what were the
expenditures, during that period for all other pur-

poses ? .

. Mr John Miller, and Mr Peter Grinnell, high Ma-
sons, who were sitting at the table, both objected
to this as a very impropmuestion. QOne of them
gsemarked cloud, 1if the ge had done so much,
avhy not give them the credit of it. It was suffi-
«<icad tostate what they had done. We had no more
zight to inquire into their privats expenses, than we
had into the expenses of an individual.

Witness. 1 am gnable to state. The records will

show. i
Mr Hullett. Then the records ought to be pro-
ductd; and the statement shown. These Lodges are
chartcred as charitable societies, and we canuot
judge whether they have wasted their funds or.not,
. unless we canx eee how much money they have had
" to-expend, end what proportion has gone for chari-
ties and for other pdrposes. Mr Cranston has taken
pdins to collect all the charities, as he calls them,
* and we ask to see the receipts and expenditures.

[Mr. Hazard, who had been absegt a short time,
as above stated, came in and took his seat, about
1his time, which put an end to all further attempts
to get at the facts of the case. The following
.question was put by request.] Can you ‘state any
instance in wirich a brother or his family his receiv-
ed more in chari‘y than he paid inin fees, quarterly
dues, &e. “If so state theinstaneq ?

Witness. I think 1 could with the assistance of
the records, and the ord>ts drawn by the charitable
committees on the Treasury’;as Yudited and record-
cd at the end of the ycar. 1 Mow nothingof quar-
terly dues being paid. . .

[After this occurrence in the examiation, a writ-
ten request was sent to the Committee, 178 they
would require Mr Cranston to produce a staic.ment
of the receipts and expenditures of the Lodge for
each year, to accampauy the statement mnade in his
deposition of the sums paid out in those years, for
charities, and alse for what churities they were paid.
1f was also suggested that ihe guins set down for
charities in 1826 anid 1827, ought to be explained.
1t is remarkable that the charities of those two
years, the period of Morgan’s abduction and the trial

_of the western sufferers, amount o $283 42, a much
larger sum than in any other two years in the es-
timate. -

['l‘ho] Committee took no notice of this request,
(calling for an exhibit of the receints and expendi-
+upes) but permitted Mr Crariston’s statement to go

and other expenditures. And not only in this thi
did they evince their determination to evade fay,
investigation, but they afterwards allowed thiy
same Mr Cranston, to append to his deposition, o
under oath, a note in which he gives at second kand,
from*Jason Williamu,a pretended statement of char.
ities to individuals, from the Lodge ; and this her-
say account, notsworn to by any one or even certi.
fied, is appended to this deposition of Mr Cranstas,
and appears io the published report of the Com
mittee as a part of the testimony ! And yet thi
candid Committee could not get from the Secre
ry of Mount Vernon Lodge a statement of the re.
ceipts and expenditures of that Lodge! That the
Committee might-have no excuse for evading this
inquiry into the receipts. and expenditures of the
Lodge, 8 call was made upon them in the Provi.
‘dence Daily Advertiser, of December 15, 1831, thel
day after they had refused to comply with a writ
ten reéquest to procure that evidence. The call
in the Advertiser was as foliows :

I beg leave to make one suggestion either
the Committee on Masoanry, or to the public, I do
mueh care which, if it is understoood. It is this.
Tu the testimony of the Secretary of Mount Ver
non Lodge, there is a statement carefally drawn u
of what is called the ckarities, for thirty oane yean:,
amounting to $1700, or about $58 per year. A call
was made [by Antimasons] for the account of re
ceipts of the Lodge during that time, together with
its amount of funds and the sums expended for 2!
other purposes except - charity, but has not yet been
comphed with. Now I agree this is the best exhib-
it of masonic charity, ever made by a Lodge, if it
be all real charity ; but at the same time we ought
to see the other items of the account to understand
it. If this statement is to be appended to the Sec-
retary’s deposition, an exhibit of receipts and ex-
penditures ought to go with it, or itis not raiz
PLAY.” .

A newspaper containing the above paragraph,was
laid on the table of the Colmitteé, Friday morn-
ing, Dec. 16. They still persisted in their deter-
mination not to permit the statements called for to
be given to the public, and they afterwards put in-
to their published report a hearsay story from this
same witness about charitigs, without requiring him
to make the exhibit that had been so repeatedly and
so publicly called for! This is one specimen of
their fairness, and of their boasted irdmigence, to
Antimasons, in putting all question they were de-
sired ta ! -

Another fact should be mentioned in this con-
nexion, that will show the determinatien of the Ma-
sons, in which they were upheld by the Committee,

TO KEEP THEIR RECORDS SECRKT.

One or two large Ledgers, purporting to be the
records df the Lodge, were observed on the table,
but no one had examined them.. The day after the

h, without calling upon him to show the receipts

\]
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Commiittee had refused to make any inquiry into
the funds and expenditure of Lodges, &c. Mr
Haltett took up one of these books of records, with
a view to examine the accouunts of receipts and ex-
penditures. He had just began to make a note with
a pencil from a part ofthe records when Moses Rich-
ardson, (Treasurer of the Grand Encampment)
#mne up and seized the book with some violence,
sayig, that book is in my custody, we dont allow
the Recovds of St. John's Odﬁ: to be seen by you
or any other .Antimason.” The records were not
afterwards seen, ad as the Committee woyld pot
look at themn, and others could mot, they werp as
effectually sealed as if they hiad been buried under
the Altar with the Master’s lost word! Immedi-
ately after Mr Richardson had seized the records, a
note was written signed by Willjam Sprague, Abra-
ham Wilkinson #William Harris, Walter Paine, Jr.
and B. F. Hallett, stating that all access wae tfeni-
ed to the rvecords of the ge, which we presumed
had becn brought there for inspection, and desiring



.

- to know if the Comunittee sanctioned this proceed-

ing ? The note was placed before Mr Haile, but no
notice whatever was taken of the statement it con-
tuined, by the majority of the Committee. .
After this transaction,. it was found utterly im-,
possible to get, threugh this committee, any inquiry
into the wastetul and ‘useless sxpenditures of Lod-
ges, or the amount of their funds, and the Fommit-
tee were loft to pursue their own partial course.—
Had the Committee been disposed to act fairly, it is
believed that seame other charities might have been
proved, where at least a thousand dollars had bepn
-expended in the mummeries of a Masonic funeral,
and the widow of the deceased Mason left des-
dtate ; with but trifling if any assistance from
Masonic bodies.] ' ' )
The followinf question was put by request. You
state that the forms-of oaths presented here, were
agreed to by most of those who consulted about

forming them. Who were the persons who con- |

sulted together and agreed to thvse forms, and di-
rected them to be exhibited as your obligations ?

Witness. Joseph S. Cooke [Grand Master], Peter
Grinnell [General Grand Treasurer], Wm. C. Bar-
ker [Grand Commander], James Salisbury [Master
of the Veils, we believe], Christian MV Nestell
[Grand Recorder], Cyrus Fisher, John Andrews
former officers in the Chapter], Moses Richardson
Treasurer of the Grand Encampment], Samuel
Jackson, 2d. [Past High Priest], and Bazillai Cran-
ston [High Priest]. [The witness did not state
their Masonic titles. They are given here to show
the source from whence the written vaths came,
and the Masonic power and influence which these
who framed them could exert to induce all other
Masqns to believe they comprised the exact forms
as administered to them. A few omissions, under
such circumstances, would not be called in ques-
tion, That there were omissions in the Royal
Arch oath, is plainly shown by the statements of
Messrs. Wilkinson and Cranston, relative to obliga-’
tions of that oath requiring them to assist a brolﬁer
in any difficalty, and to keep his secrets.]

Witness—afler giving the above names. I don't
know that I can name any others at present. It
was_the intention to give them as they have been
administered in St. John's Lodge, Chapter and
Council, and Mount Vernon Lodge, for a number
.of years. Thers were no objections to reporting
them as the form of oaths. 1 found I bad used the
word unless, where others had exzcept, and there
were some such other immaterial variations.

[0Z7Mr John Andrews, one of the above num-
per, stated to John Hall and B. F. Hallett, after the
investigation, that there were objections in this
coancil or committes against giving the oaths at all.
That one of them said he. would sooner have his
arm cut off than do it, and that a great many Ma-
sons still considered the oaths as much thé secrets
of Masonry, as any ather part of the institution.]

Mr. Hazard. Have, to your knowledge, any of
the funds of -these two Lodges been misapplied,
and directed to ether than the legitunate objects of
‘the Lodge ?

Witness. I believe they have not. Not to my
knowledge. Not one individual out of ten hus-
‘bauds his funds better than these Lodges do.

Question ‘from John Miller, (Mason). Have
not sums been volumtarily paid by members of
the Lodges, in charities, exclusive of the funds ?

Witness. Formerly, when the funds were small,
and the ‘members few, this was the case. ‘fhe
Lodges appointed a comuittee to solicit contribu-
tlons, to be applied for the relief of distressed mem-
bers and their families. [ have been under the im-
pression that the papers were returned to.the.Lodge,
Jut they cannot be found. ,

As the subject of the funds and charities had
been brought up here by masons, it was thonght’
bost £ propose some questions on the other side, to

~

draw out facts, if possibie, on a subject which the -
Committee seemed resolyed to Keep.in the dark.—.
The- following question was handed by W. Paine,
Jr. Whatare the legitimate objects of expenditure
to which the funds of a Lodge are -applied? Mr
Hazard hasitated, and put the question very reluct-
antly.
undzr the question ‘as to the general objects of Ma-
sonry. Mvr Sprague wished it put, and it was read
to wilness. . -
Witness. The legitimate objeots I understand to
be, that they are to be applied to charities, und
other purposes. [$_F Mr Haile has put this down
charitable purposes, which waa not the language
of witness.] o : . ‘

‘Mr Hazard. Do you mean to say that they are
applied to charity, and the ordinary necessary ex-
‘penses of tha Lodge ?

Witness. 1do. : .

It was here remarked aside, by Antimasons, that
this explained nothing, unless you could get at the
receipts, and all the expenditures of the Lodge ?

Mr Hazard overheard the remark, and said—It
seens that is not satisfactory.

tion if you please.
necessary expenses of a Lodge or Chapter ?-
Witness. It would take sometime to answer that-
question in full. I should consider if they wanted
fuel, oil, printing, and suck like, they wduld be-
bound to -pay for them. Also repairs of building,
tools, trowels—and a good mawy things I mﬁl
think of if I had time. [Mr Haile ornits all thesa
particulars in his minutes.] - .
Mr. Hazard. By necessary and ordinary ex-
enses do you include any other than those you
gnve enuméerated and things of that character ?
| Witness. 1 bave never known any entertain-
ments that had been paid for out of the funds;—not .
in the Lodges in this town. 3
Question by "Jum' What do you medn by
saying, in the Lodges? c
Witness. [ thidk there have been instances in
the Chapter. I have never known it in the Lodges,
I am pretty sure. I have heard the members of the
Chapter say that it was sometimes necessary to have
some refreshments irra long sitting—crackers and
cheese. The sittings of the Chapters were longer
than the Lodges. There was a supper paid for by
the Chapter recently, on the orcasion of an election..
1t was an unpleasant evening, few persons were
present, and we voted to-pay the person who provi-
dec the supper out of the funds.
butions were paid to the Grand Lodge from subor-
dinate Lodges, and from Chapters to the Grand .
Chapter. r Hazard said it was unnecessary, and
would be embraced in some other question. He
would now propose the general interrogatories. My
Haile, read Mr. Wilkineon’s deposition! It was ac-
cordingly read to witness. ) :

Witness. * In reference to the cable tow, the defi-
nition I have given and heard others, is that we
were at liberty to bring it within the line of our
duty. - The declaration that the obligations were
not to'interfere with my duty to God or my country,
has always been impressed on my mind asa duty.
The decfaration coming from the same source that
the obligations-did, I considered them ae explain-
ing each other.” I did not consider I gave a right to
tgﬁe life, or bound myself to take that of others.
I believe the address was always given hefore the
oaths in the degrees above master. I think it was.
It was' considered proper that it should be given.

I can say for myself I always had an aversion to
oaths, but for form’s sake I have submitted to
them. I do not consider the Masonic oaths as in-
compalibie with my religious or civl!'dutielf

1 nave proposed questiops respecting the nature

He said he considered it aiready answered _

Mr Hallett. No Sir. You may put this: ques-
What do you understand by the ordix;ar} and -

W. Paine, Jr. offered a question, whether contr;.f

-~
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and extont of Masonie penaltivs, and heard the seme
argnuwments used by Masons, whieh | have before
stated. Have heard them explained in the manner
as { have before stated. . ! .

Mr. Sprague asked if he had ever done this in
open Lodge?

Witness. 1 don’t reinember that I ever did. in
opon Lodge, but either before or after the- opening
and closing of the Lodge. 1 think I have in open
Lodge. . -

Mr. Spraganc. When was this, and on what oc-

+ casion? : . :

Witness. 1f my recollection serves me, I Lave
done it occasionally ever since I wasa Nfl.son, to
the teading members,

Mr. Sprague. What was the construction put
upon the penalties? ) ’

IWitness. 1 have heard the arguments used as 1

- have before stated. - : o

Mr. Huzard. Waa the construction you have put
upon the penalties, the same put upon them:by the
meinbers? T .

Witness. 1 might say, without vanity, that the
youuger members lookeéd up t0 me for correct Ma-
sonic information generally. [Mr. Hauile added
something here the witness did not say.] .

Question by request. Was there ever any dis-
tinct proposition to revise or alter these obligations?

TWitness. | do not remember ever hearing any.
‘made.to Masonic bodies, while in session.

Qaestion from B. F. Hallett. You say the
younger members looked'up to you for Masonic in-
atruction. Did you ever insfruct a younger mem-

" ber, that if he were to reveal his masonic secrets,
. he would not beliable to the penalties of his obliga-
tions? . -

Witnéss. (In'some embarrdssment.) 1 don’t re-
meinber as [ ever did. I don’t remember ever giv-
ing a Mason suchk instruction. The bylaws of the
Lodges in this town regognize no other punishment
than ‘expulsion. I have generally referred to the
bylaws for-instruction. ! never remember to have
‘heara any such question proposed.

[0 Query. 1s itnot plain from this declaration,
‘that before the, murder of Morgan, Masons were
left with the impression that their penalties would
be inflioted if they revealed the secrets, and that
no intimation was given by the leading Masons,
that the penalties did not mean just as thoy read
—death?] o

Quastion by request. If you had a vote to give,
or favor to grant, were you bound to prefer a Ma-
son to one who was ngt, in similar circumstances?
[This] question witness was not required to an-
swer. N

Question by request. Do you know when Royal
Arch Maronry originated? [This question witness
did not answer.%

In answer to 27th interrogatory, relative to com-
municating expulsions to Lodges in other States,
witness says,

I believe the custom is, for the Lodges in this
state to give, notice to the Grand Lodge, and they

" to com nunicate it to all other Grand Lodges.’

Mr. Hazard. What order is taken on the expnl-

sion of & member, being commuuicated from one
. Lo,d'ge toanother?
itness. -1 am not able to stdle.

Mr. Huzard. But if it is communicated from a
Lodge in another state?

Witness. When a menber'is expelled, his name
is reported to the Grand body to which he is subor-
dinate, and they communicate it to similar Masonic
bodies in other states.

Mr. Hazard. What course is then taken?

. Witness. I believe the Grand Lodge here has
made a practice of l")utting[ down.the names of per-
sons expelled from Lodges in other states, and com-
rounicating the names printed with their anfual
proceedings, ind distributing them Lo their subor-
dinate Loggeu. ‘Of Jate thie haw not béén done. I

can't recollect of having seen or hesrd of ‘a list of
expulsion for a year or two. :

Mr. Hazard.” Has any Masonie body in this
State, to your knowledge, received any communi-
cation relative_to the abduction or murder ot Mor-
ran? .
g Witness. 1should answer that quastion the same
as Mra Wilkinson has. .

Question. Is not a Mason, so long as he belongs
to a Lodge, entitled to be received in all Lodges,
as a visiting brother, and if a conspicuous. Mason
in another gtate, were found to be guily of a crime,
would he afterwards be admitted to a Lodge in this
State? S

Witness. Mr. Wilkinson’s answer is not pre-
cisaly such as I should give. I think that a visiter

would not be admitted unless he was supposed to be

a worthy brother.

Mr. Hazard. The object of this question is to
ascertain whether all Djasons are_not received in
Lodges, who have an appearance of respectability,
and’if that is the case, whether when it is got to
notorious that ‘any Mason has committed a -high
crime, it is not customary to take some order in t
Lodges, that if he presents himself for admission he
ma) be known? For fnstance, suppose De Witt
Clinton had been proved to have been concerned in
the abduction of Morgan, was conviéted and the
trial published. In such acase would.not the Lodges
here feel it their duty to take some order about it,
to prevent his admission ? .

(03> Mr Huzard here put the question fairly.—
Mark the answer, which we give in the precise
words of the High Priest.] . .

Witness. 1 sHOULD THINK THEY WOULD sAY

[ NOTHING ABOUT IT UNLESS HE HAD BEXN EXPELL-

ED WHERE HE BELONGED. THEY WouLD TaxE
NO NOTICE OF IT! . )

Mr. Hazard. But if he wis convicted of a
crime ? .

Witnéss. 1 should say lie would iot be admitted,
unless ke twas supposed to be a Wortny brother.

Mr Hazard. Hasany Masonic body in this State
disapproved of the conduct of those masons, engaged
in the abduction and murder ot Morgan ?

Witness. 1 should think the Graud Lodge had

-expressed their 'disapprobatioh of the ‘killing of

Morgan.

% Hallett. Where ?

Witness. 1In their Address to the people of tlie
State, (June, 1831.) . '

Mr Hallett. What part of tHe Address? Witness
did not answer. The question was handed to com-
mittee in writing. Please inquire in what part of
that Address ? Mr Hazard refused to put the ques-
tion. N

Mr Hazard. Are the funds of any Lodges or
Chaptars, or any of them diverted to the use of
Grand Lodges, Grand Chapters, or Grand Encamp-
ments

Witness. They ave not.

Mr Hazard. 1thought so. Here is a charge
in this Memorial (referring to the Antimasonic Me-
morial,) about 'diverting the funds.

Mr Hallett suggested that if the object was to dis-
pruve the assertion in the Memortal, the word funds,
would not cover it. 1t'should be fees or receipts.

Mr Hazard. Itis all the same thing.

Mr Hallett. The witness don’t think so. Ask
htm if the subordinate Lodges and Chapters don't
pay fees, in the form of tribute to the Grand Lodge
and Chapter. Mr Hazard did so, using the terms
funds, fees, or receipta ?

Witness, Two dollars for every initiation in a

subordinate Lodge is paid to the Grand Lodge.

® Mr Huzard. That is a part of the fee which the

individual pays to the Grand Lodge.

Mr. Hallett observed that it was not so. The
Lodgs pa.l it to the Grind Lodge, in the form of a
tax or tribute.

Mr Hazard.” 1 don’t understand it so. The |
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subordinate  Lodge takes tho fee, and hauds
over two dollars of it, which belongs to the Grand

ge.

Mr Hallett. 1t is ot so. Ask the witness. The
Lodge s taxed by the Grand Lodge two dollars for
the right to initiate each member, and the Lodge
pays two dollars a head to the Grand Lodge, wheth-
er it receives a cent itself or not.

Mr.Hazard. Well, how is that? What does the
Lodge receive for making Masous, and what part is
paid to the Grand Lodge ? -

Mr. Hallett insisted that it was nota pert of what
was received, but a distinct tax upon the subordi-
nate Lodge. - A seceding Mason, who was by, re-
marked that he had known notes given for initiatory
fees, which were never paid, but the Lodge bad to
pay two doNars for the candidate. .

,  Mr Hazard. How is it, Mr Cranston?

Witness. The candidate pays twenty four dollars
for initiation in_ the 3 degrees to tho subordinate
Lodge, and that Lodfe pays two.dollars to the Grand
Lodge, for every initiation; thatis for every can-
didate initiated. I am not acquainted with the reg-
ulations of the Chapter. Do not know what the
Chapters pay to the Grand Chapter.

[And yetthe witness is High Prieet of a Chapter,
and superintended all its concerns!]

.The 11th Interrogatory passed over by Mr Haz-
ard, he was requested to put. -

Mr. Hazard. What do you consider the secrcts
of Masonry to be ? What do you consider o be
the nature and extent of the secrets of Masonry?—
We do not wish you to ezplain them, but to say
whether they have any bearing upon the rest of the
community,

Witness. I have always considered the main ob-
ject charitable. The secrets are auch as will. secure
the bencfits and objects of the institution to those to
whom they belong, its members. ~ ~

Mr Hazard. Can these secrets affect the rights
orintcrents of any person, who Is not a member of
that Association ?

Witness, [ should think not.

Mr Hazard was here requested to present {o wit-
ness Cross’s Masonic Chart approved by Masons,
page 33, an emblem of the ceremony in the Royal
Arch degree representing God appearing to Moses
in the burning bush. ' o

Mr Hazard. I consider that trenching on those
Parts of their secrets they ought not to disclose.

Mr Hallett. We think the truth ought to be dis-
oclosed. This is asrepresentation of one of their
exhibitions, which is considered highly blasphe-
mous, and which., if pertormed publicly, would sub-
ject any person guilty of taking a part in it, to in-
dictment for blasphemy. .

Witness. 1 dont know any thing aboutit. I
never saw such a picture.

This seemed to relieve Mr Hazard, and he put
the question. 1s this picture in Cross’s Chart, a
representation of one of the secret ceremonies you
do not feel at liberty to disclose ?

Witness. 1 dont know whether it is meant to
represent any thing in Masonry or not !

W. Paine, Jr. here unrolled before witness the
8ymbolical Chart and Masonic Mirror, by Com-
panion 8. Converse, represonting the same picture
of the burning bush. .

Witness. Idonot know what this picture rep-
tesents. I never siw any such representation .in

asonry !

l[j'.%’ou. This answer is remarkable. The sym-
bol which this High Priest of a Chapter says he
knows nothing about, is contained in Crosa’s Chart,
which is certified to be correct Masonry, by twenty
of fhe highest Masonie officers in the U. S. and by
the General Grand Chapter, who say that it is ¢ a
valuablo assistant in elucidating the various masonic
emblems.” The Chaptér of Connecticut also say
ot this book that it contains ¢* an elsgant and com-
prehensive visw of all the symbels used in lecture

ing upon the several degrees.” One of theae em

blems and symbols, used in lecturing,is the burn-
ing bush. ¢ Every character, figure and emblem
in a Lodge, (says Webb, p. 40) has a maral tenden-
cy.” And yet High Priest Cranston does not know
what a picture in Cross’s Chart, of God appearing
to'‘Moses in the byrning bush, represents !}

In reply to a question from the Committee, for
witness to confirm the statement made by Mr Wil-
kinson in his examination, witness says— .
t I have heard the deposition of William Wilkin-
son read over deliberately, and the statements and
facts therein contained are -correct, so far as they
relate to the degrees 1 have taken, and so far as my
knowledge extends, where they are.not varied by
explanations I-have given. . o

A pamphlet printed in Cypher, supposed to be a
book containing Masonic Lectures and vaths in the
three first degrees, was presented to witness, by re-
quest and he was asked if he knew any thing about
it.

Witness. 1 do not. 1 have heard something
aboat there being such a book. I never looked at
it,and do not know what it contains. It was never
consulted by Masons, or used in any Lodge to my
knowledge. 1 saw such a book once, eight or ten
years ago, I believe, in possession of John Hol-
royd, a Mason, who had then recently retuined
from the West. I do not know what it contained.
The testimony of Mr Cranston here clogsed. Na
addition was made to his itatements, atuny sub.
soquent time, under oath. ' :

Wednesday afternoon, December, 14th, 1831. My
Hazard absent. |

PuiLip ALLEN, Esq. 13th witness, wassworn.
He had not been in a Lodge for 20 years. Had
been o Royal Arch Mason. Never knew Masonry
used for rolitical purposes, not being much engag-
ed in politics himself, and of course did not know
much about it, one way or the other, He p:esum-
ed, at the time, it was ineaat” for a charitable insti-
tution. So far as his recollection seryes he did not
consider there was any thing in the secrets that af.
fected the rights of others. .

Mr. Huile. When you took the oaths did you
consider that they interfered with your civil, reli-
gious or social duties? Answer. I'have no recol-
lection what the oaths were. I did not comsider
they made me any better or worse. I considered
after | became a member, 4 had a.right to actin
the same way as before I was a momber.

SamuEL GREENE, 14th witness.)

Adhering Mason. -Sworn to answer all such
questions as may be asked.

Mr Haile read to him the part of the deposition of
Abraham Wilkinson, in which it is stated that he
Lad heard Mr Greene say thatif Morgan had been
killed for disclosing the secrets of Masonry, hs did
not see why any
suffered no more than his just deserts, or what he
had agreed to. The same remark is eworn to by
William Harris, who heard Mr Greene muke it.—
Mr Haile inquired of witness if he ever said this ?

Mr Greene. 1will state to the honorable com-
mittee that in general terms, 1 have never bsen an
advocate of murder. 1 have alwaysbeen a pecea-
ble citizen, and I refer to those who have known
me for forty years, for my character. I have re-
solved never to converse with A. Wilkinson or W.
Harris. I said something like this to another pet-
son ; that Morgan wasa good for nothing fellow,
and according to his own s, IF-HE HAD BEEN
KILLED HE DESERVED IT, and if the Masons only
killed one another, the Antimasons had ne right to
complain ! | am in the habit of talking with warmth
but asto justifying murder 1 never bave. I ap.
peal to my life for 40 years in Pawtucket, and de!
any oneto say If [ have not been a good citizen
and obedient to the laws. I am a Mason and have
taken several do'grm,iu Masonry, ineluding the de-
greey of Knighthood. I canttell how many.

y need complain, for he had *
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[Note. The witness expressed himselt with
gteat warmth and feeling. The fact that his char-
actor as a citizen stood so high, (he being one - of
the most intelligent Manufacturers in the state of R.
Island, and until the distresses of 1828, one of the
most extensively engaged employers in that busi-
ness) rendered hip justification of the killing of
Morgan still more convincing as a proof of the real
sueaning of Masonic penalties. No circumstances
cbuld bave irritated Mr Greene into a justification
of a cruel murder upon any - person not a seceding
Mason, and yet he admits that he fully justified
the killing of Willihm Morgan, at the same time
assuming the right of Masonry to execute her own
criminalg, -without regard to the civil laws. We
repeat, that this witness is a very respecgable man,
and we should do him injastice to belicve that any
thing but the pernicious influence of his Masonie
oaths, made him so forget all moral principle as to
julti’(y a cruel and unprovoked inurder of the father
of a family, who had committed no offence against
the laws or the marals of society.] ,

" Mr. Haile, of the Committee, put this question
to witness: Did you say these words, ¢ If Mor-
an had been killeg he had no reason to complain,
or he had suffered no more than his just deserts?’

Answer. No sir. I never said these words. -

Mr. Haile. At no time? .

Answer. . Only in'explaining to him what he had
represented. I did say. .

Mr. Haile. Did you ever use expressions like
these ? )

Answer. ‘There was some conversation about
Morgan, and a good deal of warmth between my-
self and the other persons. The expression I made
use of, as near as I can recollect, was that Morgan
was a great scoundrel according to his own show-
ing, and perhaps got- no more than justice, and I
further said tod, I thought the Antimasons ought

. not to complain as long as the Masons only killed |.

Masons, and perhaps that would be the better way
to get rid of such scamps as we Masans were. That
was the substance of what I said as rightly as [ can
recolleet. I have no recollection that Mr. Harris
was ever present. ' .

My. Haile. Was that your deliberate opinion, or
uttered in a state of irritgtion ? '

Note. What a question! If a man was so un-
principléd as to justify murder, would he be so
. weak as to confess it before an Investigatiog Com-
mittee ? The answer of the witness was, however,
an evasion, thus.] :

Answer. 1 generally when I talk on this subject
become irritated. I think I was so then. It was nev-
er my intention to advocate murder anywhere, or to
approbafe the killing of Morgan: I detested it as
much as any man. [ am pretty confident thatI
never said the above to Mr Wilkinson except in en-
deavoring to explain after I'bad heard it reported
that 1 (witness) had justified the murder of Mor-

L fan, 1 then had a conversation with Mr. Wilkinson
n the' Pacific Bank. He (Wilkinson) had called
Masonry an abominable, blood stained, stinking-Or.
der. It would do no harm where I and A. Wilkin-
son are known. He charged me with having said
these things, and I told him it was a misrepresenta-
tion, and endeavored to explain how T said it.
I rather think the person I had the talk with, was
a chap of the name of Claflin, who had been in the
employment of Mr. Wilkinson. He would tell
what | said to Wilkinson, and what W. said to me,
and I was fool enotgh to ‘talk to him. Ihaveno
knowledge of ever making use of any of these ex-
ressions to William Harris or in his presence. I
Km told William Harris uniformly that [ was un-
der no obligation that would inflience me to do any
thingllmpropet as a good citizen or neighbor, and
that I considered myself b by my Masonic obli-
gations to support.the laws of the government under
which I lived, and to be a good, quiet and peacea-
“'- sitizen. He replied at the time that was prob-

ably the case with me ; that he did not doubt it was
the case with me, but believed it was different with
some other Masons. That he said be would teke
my word in anything till it come to Masonry,'and
then he would not believe me, bécause he consider-
ed I was sworn to lie. . '

In answer to a queation, By request, witness says:
I have no recollection of having made expressions
ng:‘tifﬁying the murder'of Morgan to any ‘one buf

n

[Mr.' Hazard came in and took his seat a short
time before this.]

he had taken? . X

Ans. 1don't know as 1 can tell.

The Committée were asked three several times,
to read’the Royal Arch oath to witness from Allyn,"
and ask him to point out what part of it he had
never taken.

Mr. Hazard refused to put the oath from Allyn,
until he had first read to witness the oath’ written
out for the Committee, which he (Hezard) insisted
was the Rhode Island oath. .

Myr. Hallett said he had supposed that was a ques-
tion to be settled by evidence, not to be taken for
granted beforehand. If the oath was correct, the
witness could tell it without having it read to him,
as if to prevent his making a mistake. The oaths;
from Allyn had been read to Messrs. Thacher and
Chase, without giving them the benefit of the writ-
ten oaths, and he did not see what the objection’
cot::d be to trying the witness first on the printed
oaths. .

Mr. Hazard made sowe insulting and sneering

remark relative to Messrs. Thacher and Chase. He’
insisted that the oaths were ptecisely ds they were
written out by the Grand Lodgs. It was an in-’
sult to doubt that the oaths were cerrectly written’
out.
Mr. Hallett. Very well. We only wished to’
see if the Committee were disposed to treat all wit-
nesses alike. If it is thought best to tell’ them’
what to swear to, we have no objection. .

Mr. Hazard became uneasy. The feeling of the’
spectators was evidently against his partial and un-
fair proceeding. To obviate it, he took up Allyn
and read the Royal Arch oath to witness, at the end
of every sentence saying, ‘that is in the R. Island
oath,’ ¢ that is not in the R. Island oath,’as the case
happened to be. Thus instructed, the witness ger. -
erally confirmed thé written oath,and did not recol-
lect any portions of Allyn’s oath which Mr. Hazard
informed him were not in the K. Island oath.

Witness. That which was first read, sounds most,
to me like the oath I'took. The variations read
from Allyn I do not remember to have heard.

Question from-B. F. Hallett. Is there any thing
in the Royal Atch oath, which bound you to keep
the secrets of a companion Royal Arch Mason ?

JAnswer. 1 could not say whether there was or’
was not. I have not been in the habit of visit-
ing the -Chapters for several years, excépt occa-
sionally. ) -

In answer to question by request— °

The Thrice Illustrious Knights of the Cross I
bave not taken. [The Committee took no painsto
ascertain how far the witness had gone or what the
oaths were above the Royal Arch. Mr Hazard dis-
couraged all questions of that kind.] o,

Question from W. Paine, Jr. Were you in the
Lodge in Pawtucket in 1826 or 1827, when what is
called a test oath or new pass word or check was
given ? and if so, what was its objeot > -

Answer. 1 was present at a Lodge in Pawtuck-
et. It was considered an addition, something in-
stitated to prevent imposition. I cannot recollect
what yenr, .

M;- Hazard. You are not bound fto tell what it
was

Witness. I so understand it !

Quastion by request. Why was it introduced ?

.

Witness was gsked, by request, iow many degrees’




. Answer. I understood it was given to prevent
1mpositions. Thinks he has heard it called a check.

Question by request. Was it not.a new thing,
and what reason was given for introducing it into
the Lodge ¢ * What authority did it come from ?

Answer. It was necessary to prevent imposition.
1t was given by some one from this State. I con-
sider that a fair answer, dnd submit it to the Com-
mittee. [Mr Hazard, the Committee, was satisfied
of couise,but one more effort was made to get an an-
swer-  The. following question was proposed
through Mr Sprague.] "

Question. Was the chéck introduced in conse-
quence of the disclosures made by Morgan ?
, Witness askod to be excused from answering that
guestion, . . .

Mr Hazard said I HavE No DounT THAT ALLyN
Is correct.; but as the Musons have pledged them-
:c{uu to one another. not to reveal tl,eir secrets, §
think they ought to keep them.

The witness was excused. Mr Hazard here in-
guired if any one wished to ask further questions.

he reply was, it wasno use to ask questions under
such circumstances. The witness then withd: ew.
TestinoNy oF Wu. Russecr.—[13th witness)

William Russell of Providence, merchant, sworn
toanswer questions. Is a Royal Arch Mason. Was
initiated in 1808, in Providence, Mount_ Vernon
Lodge. Isstill a Mason.

Question by request, from Walter Paine, Jr.—

esoe you ever captured, and if so, please state min-
utely the circumstances relative to an occurrence
that happened to you in the late war, when at sea ?

Ans. I never was captured. I wasin the ship

ary Ann, as Commander, in 1810 or 11, during the
Berlin and Milan decrees, from Va. for Cowes and
a market, not asoul on board that knew where [
was bound but myself. My papers were fictitious.
If they had known where I was bound I” shoyld
have been a prize. By my papers I was bound for
Tonningen. If my genuine papers had been known
I'should have been a prize to a French man-of-war.

was ordered on board a French privateer, got my

t out, and went on board. As soon as I got on
board, 1 was taken into the cabin. They examined
ill of the boats créw apart, to find where we were
bound. There were 20 in the cabin. I handed my
papers and letters for Tonningen. Every thing was
Ecrfect. I was detained there and the boat sent
ack to my vessel, and directly there was acry of
good prize! I wag then inforied that my boat was
stove, which was the only one I had. The Captain
said he would put me on board. When I got on
board I found they had stripped my baggage, &e. I
told the officer that the Captain said he woulJ take
nothing from me ; hé said it was the people. Bo-
fore I left the privateer, and after the examination,
we drank a glass of wine together, and ke knew me
tobs a Freemason, and I knew him to be one. This
Wwas before they robbed fie of iy clothes, and valia-

ble articles. He promised to take nothing from me, |

but upen going on board 1 found. I was robbed. I
did not apply to him to gol the articles back. It was
no time for him to-show me a favor, if he had been
so disposed.  After the boat got on board, tha Cap-
tain advised me to-make sail. It was very pleas-
ant to find 4 man at sea I felt acquainted with, but
received no favor from him in consequehce of his
being a mason. :
Question by request. Have yo&
this circumstanice as a prool that
instithtion ? ) . N
dns. I dont know that I have to that ecircum-
stance in particular. I have said I thought it a good
institution because [ cou!d reet with friends abroad.
I have been in Masonic Lodges in the four quarters
of the globe, and have found it sn. 1 have found,
in consequence of it, friends in different parts of the
world. I bave frequentod®Lodges in different parts

ever alluded to
asonry is a good
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tinued going tosea. 1 have been in some Lodged
where I could not understand a word that was said;
being ignorant of the languagespoken. 1 was nev-
er a biight Mason. My object was to be able to visit
Lodges alroad. 1 have beenin Lodges in Europe,
Asia, Africa, and America. 'The Lodge in Africa_
was in the Isle of France . .

Question by request. Please state w hether, the
Masonic ceremonies, signs, &c. and obligations, and
mode of working, are.the sawe in all the Lodges you
Rave ever visited ? N .

Ans. Thoy are.all similar, as it respects the
signs, ceremonies and mode of working. I was ne-

.| ver at the initiation of a candidate in a foreign

Lodge. .

Mr. Hazard. Have you ever considered your
Masonic obligations incompatible with yvar moral,
civil and religious duties? .

Ans. Never. . L o

. [Vote.—This was a favorite questiom with Mr.
Hazard. Its import, and the answer, go about as
far to acquit Masoury as the question put to a crim
inal arraigned on his trial —Are you guilty, or naot
guilty? The answer, even_ if he be guilly,is ex-
pected to be—not guilty. So if ¢ Mason had be:
lieved his oaths to be incompatible with his civildu~
ty, and had so ysed them, he could not be expected
to confessit. It is against all rules of evidence to
compel a witness to criminato himself. This ques-
tion, therefore, was clearly improper. The design
of it was to.impose upon the public the apinions of -
individual Masons, for fucts, which Mr. Hazard in.
tended to use in thereport, to éxonerate the Mason- *
ic Fraternity, asa body. ‘The position Mr. Hazard
took was, in effect, this—You must either prove ev-
ery Mason to be a rogue, by his own cenfesgion,
or the Committee will decide that Masonry is a
good institution!] . Rk

_In answer to interrogatory, witness never consid-
ered that he gave or received jurisdiction over life,
according to the penalties. He considered them
merely designed to make the abligations binding!
Heo never heard any Mason construe thewm as giv-
ing a right to take lile. ' ‘ .

Question. Did you ever promise to keep the se-
crets of a companion, without exception, or mur-
der and treason not excepted ?

Ans. 1 neverdid. : L ,

Mr. Hazard was then asked to put to the witness
the list of variations found in Allyn. .

Waitness said he had never read the oath of any
degree in a book, or in print. Dont think be ever
read one. He had avoided reading anything about
the controvers‘y. .

Mr. Haile here began to read the list of varia-
tions. Mr. Hazard stopped him, and directed hini
first to read the Rhode Island oaths to the witness.
Witness said if he heard the oaths read Wity u1s )

'xYES sHUT, he could recollect if anything read was,

difforent from what he had received.

The written oaths were then read.
they were correct. . )

Mr. Hazard. In this book Allyn has these addi-
tions, and you can judge if they were in the oaths
you took. i R

Mr. Haile then read the variations in the Master
Mason's aath, to each of which witaess answered in
the negative. ‘

Mr. Haile. Do vou recollect in the Master’s
oath the words, “will upprize him of all approach-
ing danger®’ .

Ans. I HAVE No RECOLLECTION of THAT.

[05*8reciaL, Nork. This answer is remarka:
able. The witness was caught in the contradistion
contrived purposely by putting into the va:iations
a part of the Master’s oath, as written out by thd
Grand Lodge, with a slight variation in’ phrasec!-
ogy. The object was to show that Masonic wit®
nesses would swear to the written oaths when to

Witness said

ot the world, and in this counitry. Ihave not visited
Lodges much for the last ten years, sinte [ dl;con-

they were the R. Island oaths, and yet would deny

-
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ts of those very oaths, it presented as variations
- feund in Aflyn’s book ? Such is the force of prej-
udice. . Thus this respectable witness swore that
the Master Mason’s oath as written, was correet.
One clause of that oath is, “That I will not wrong
a brother, or deprive him of his good name ; nor
suffer it to be .dene by others, if in my power to
yuvnt it; but will apprize kim of all approach-
danger, so far us it shall come to my knowl-
" witness swore this was correct. The
wariation put to him from Al}l{n is, “That T will
not speak evil of a brother Master Mason, neither
bqbindbl::s bac.k& nor before hl:lafiee. lgut 'ﬁ‘ill ap-
ize him o) approaching or! is the
’wrimu denies wholly. M. Hli,lle‘ put these last
- words “apprize of approaching danger,” directly to
th) witness, and he swears, ‘I have no recollection
of that!” Even Mr. Haile’s accommodating report
of the testimony has pinned the witness to this con-
tradietion. See page 121 of that Report. He there
makes the witness say, ‘““as to Nos. 2, 3, 4 and 5,
on paper marked E witness says, I do not recol-
lect these expressions.” No. 2. is this very expres-
- gion; um of all approaching danger. Several
other ic witnesses were caught in the same
contradictien.)

[t is mecessary heres to state the Tact, that a short
time previous to this, Wm. Sprague Jr. one of the
Committee, has left his seat at’ the table with the
Committee, and gone out, it being the hour for sup-
per. He did riot take his seat at the table during
the gubsequent examination of this witness, at the
olose of which the Committes adjourned.]

The variations in the Royal Arch Oath were then
read to the ‘witness, to all of which he amswered
that he bad no recollection of them.

After much urging and hesitation, Mr. Hazard
permitted the 11th variation to be put, viz: In the
written oath, you swear not to give the Grand
Royat Archi word, in any other manner, than as yoa
received it. - Is the manner there reférred to the
same as is described in the Royal Arch Oath, giv-
en in Allyn, viz: in the presence of three compan-
jons, and then by three times three, under. 4 living
srch, and wt Ww breath ? d

Ans. I have no recollection of that being in the

obligation. : \

én.m'on from B. F. Hallett. ls the manner there
referred to, the same as that deseribed in Allyn’s
obligation ? .

. I should not be willing to answer that.

M. Hazard soid the question ought not to be
answered. .

Mr. Hallett Yemarked that the object of pytting
this question, was to identify the two oaths, b
showing that the Rhode Isiand Oath, in this partic-
ular, meant precisely the same thitg described in
Allyn’s vegsion of the oath.

. Mr.” Hazard. [excited] If there are any witnes-
sos who choose to come here and disgrace themselves
by betraying thejr honor, let them come, and we will
swear.them! I consider a man has a right to be

otegted in refusing to tell what he has pledged

18 honor to keep secret. - ’

Mr. Hezard was then esked if he chose to put the
. followihg question :--Is there any thing in the obli-

gation you took as a Royal Arch Mason, relating to
keeping the secrets of a Companion- Royal Arch

Mason ? -It was put to the witness.

Ans. -1 do not reegllect if there was.

Mr. Hazard insistéd that the Royal Arch oath
was proved, as it was written out by the masons.
He should take no other. He would ask the wit-
ness one -question, which would set this matter
right. lathere any thing In the secrets of Masonry
w icl,l interferes with the rights of othets not Ma-
sons? . T

Ans. There is notbing which I so consider.

Mr. Hazard. That is sufficient. 'The Committee

feel no futerest in ascertaining what Masonic seerots
are.

.

Mr. J. S. Harris. We suppospd that was the
very thing the Committe wes appointed to do. The
public are much interested in knowing what these
“fu“ are, that they may judge of them for them-
selves. : .
My Hazard,) very muchexeited.) The Committee
have no idle curiosity to plz into the secrets of thess
entlemen. They have sworn that their secrets re-
ate to themselves, and do not interfere with the
rights of others, and we ought to be satisfied. The
object seems to be to make them contradict them-
selves, and .draw out something that they consider
they are bound in honor, on oath, not to disclose,
an

CURIOBITY, to inquire into their secrets. .

Mr. Mallett. ‘That remark will doubtless have a
tendency to promote the object for which this Com-
mjttee was appointed—to allay the excitement. To
avoid farther insult from Mr. Hazard, Mr. Hallett
then rose, and left his seat at the table.

Mr. Hazard. If it had been alleged that there

was any thing criminal in these secrets, there might
be apretence for prying into them. But this is
not pretended. ) .
. Mr. Hallett, who was standing near the table,
said this was the very questien. The secrets were
the medium through which the oaths were carried
into effect, and we consider them of 2 highly dan-
gerous tendency. T

Mr. Hazard. The Committee have resolved from
the beginning, that if the masons gave in their
oaths, they should not be questioned as to their se-
crets. We have indulged the other side in putting
questions on thathoh\t, too far already.

Mr. Hallett. ere the Committee unasimous
in that decision ? . ’ : .

Mr. Hazard. Yes. -

Some one among the spectators said, Idoubt that.

Mr. Hazerd. The Committee so understood it.
Mr. Cornell was not present when the Committee
agreed toit, and Mr. Sprague made some objec-
tions. ) .

Mr. Harris said the Mabons had shown that the
considered their Masonic oath superior to their civil
oath, by refusing to answer. It agreed with the
trial in Newport (in the case of :ﬁ\duonic juror)
where Masonic witnesses refused to answer ques-
tions under civil oath, which the Court decided they
were bound to answer. '

Mr. Hazard said he was glad that case had been
alluded to. . He was engaged in that trial and knew
all about it. Mr. Cranston [a Masonic witness who
volunteered to disprove the oaths in Bernard,] was
examined by him, and answered all kis questiens.—

y | Mr. Pearce (the opposite counsel) wanted bim to

read and exphin the oaths from Berpard, which he
declined doing, but he, auswered every question
which the Court said -it was proper for him to an-
swer. Mr. Boes, (another Masonic witness, Master
of the Lodge) when he came on the stand and was
sworn, refased to answer at all! :

Mr. Harris. 'That is just what I said.

he Committee were standing, aund considerable

feeling wae manifested.) i

M. Haile, of the Committee, said he agreed with
Mr. Hazard. He saw no propriety in asking Ma-
sons to disclose their secrets. 'Fhey had stated, their
secrets related entirely to themselves, and did not
affect otbers, and were harmless! Some of the spec-
tators replied, so they would say to tHeir oaths. )

Mr. Moses Richardson, a high Mason, said he
wished to be heard one word. He wap glad to see
the Committee do their daty. He wished to inform
thé Committee that Walter Paine, Jr. told him that
when- he got us before the Committee be would
sorew it out of us! :
The Committee here broke upin s much
confusion and disorder, that the form of adjourn-

 ment was forgotten by the Chairman.

It was past 9 o’clock in the evening, when the
Committee retired. . :

’

if that is the case, ] copsider it A NASTY.
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It is proper hets to state that Mr. Sprague of the
Committee, who was not present during the scene,
expréssly denied, (as he had previously done while
Mr. Wilkinson was under examination,) having as-
sented to any agreemént to scregn the Masons Irom
answering questions relating to their secrets. In

“his report to the General Assembly, Mr. Sprague
says, page 8: ‘I never entered inte any understand-
ing that Masonic witnesses were . to be protected
from answering any questions, touching their se-
crets or institution, which might be put t6 them.—
The Chairman has so stated the fact in presence of
Mr. Cornell.’

This Mr. Cornell subsequently eonﬁl:med, in a
note whch has been published. Immediately on
Mr. Sprague’s learning that Mr. Hazard bad declared

the Committee were unanimous in agreeing to|

screen Masenic witnesses, he (Mr. S.) called upon
him to make the correction.. Mr. Hazard wrote a
corréction to give to Mr. Sprague, which was seen
by Mr. Sprague and Mr. Cornell _After promising
it to Mr. Sprague, and retaining it to make ‘some
alteration : he altered his mind and withheld it, and
then attempted, by the assistance ol Messrs. Sim-
mons and Haile, to - convict Mr.. Sprague of false-
hood. This attempt was completely frustrated, and
recoiled upon the heads of its authers and abettors.
M. Hazard and his associates have been re?eatedly
challenged by Mr. Spragueto deny asingle asser-
tion made in his minority: report, but they have
shrunk from this test, and resorted to personal abuse
The Rhode Island public understand this, and are
fully satisfied that the assertions made ih Mr. 8's
report, are strietly true. It has had as decided an
- effect upon the majority of the Investigating Com-
mittge, in exposing thejr partial and- indecent pro-
ceedings, as the minbrity report on the U. S. Bank
investigation, by Mr. Adams, has had upon the ma-
jority of that Committee. - .

Thursday Dec. 15.—[In ¢onsequence of the
abusive treatment of witdesses by Mr. Hazard, and
his iefusal to put questions fairly, Mr. Sprague, one
of the Comnmittee, who had remonstrated in vain
against this course, declined taking his seéat with
the Committee, though he was present in the room.
Mr. Hazard was absent, nearly all the afternoon.—
Upan his assurance that the proceedings should be
conducted in a different manncr from what they had
been, Mr. Sprague finally resumed his seat. It
should here -be remarked, that all the Masonic wit-
nesses, with, the gxception-of William Wilkinson,
and twe others were sworn only to answersuch
questions as should be put to them. All other wit-
nesses were sworn to tell the truth, the whole truth
and nothing but the gruth. This distinction may
fc;!lm a‘n important precedent hereafter, for Courts
of law! - .

This morning Mn Hazatd -announced that no
question would be ‘received, unless signed by the
gemu who wiehed it to be put, a provisien which

e supposed would restrict the investigation.]

Joun GArpNER—I15th Witness.
John Gardncﬁ, of North Providence, Manufactur-
er, sworn in tull.". .
Was asked by request, if he had ever heard any
Mason justify the murder of Morgan ?
Ans. [ can't say I have other than this: About
four years ago, I obtained Morgan's book and some,
other disclosures of Masonry, and about tbhat time
had a conversation with Samuel Greene, [Grand
Marehal of the Grand Lodge,] then of N. Provi-
dence, now residing in Smithfield. I asked him
respecting the truth of the disclosures by Morgan
and others, and he gave me rather an evasive an-
swer, and very soon began in.this way. ¢ He said
any person that would take them oaths, and then
disclose them, ought tosuffer deatA’ The con-
versation there stopped. I said no more to him
nor he to me.on the subject. This conversa-

tion took place in the store of Mr. Greene ; his fath-

er, be, and mysell were then in business together.
t.ilgf; Haile, Did his feelings appear to be-ox.'
oited ? ’ . .
Ans. No sir. He naid it deliberately. He went
out of the store, and a few days after met me in the
same store, atMl he then asked me if 1 had reported
that he had said it was good enough for. Morgan if .
he was murdered? I told him I never had. I then
asked him if there was such a report in cireulation. -
He said there was.” [told him then that he need
not lay itto me, for I never had said anything about
the conversation that took place a few days beforeto
any person. .He then went out of the store, t&d
said no more about it. '
Mr. Haile. Do you belong to that political party --
called political Antimasong ? ' K
‘Ans. Yes sir. There is no mistake about that,
Question by request. . Were you a political An-
timasou at the time of this conversation ?
" Ans. 1 wgsnot. 1 had rather a favorable opin-
ion of Masonry at that time, and had had for a num-
ber of years. Since that time | have examined the

subject, and read both sides, which made me-an An- . -

timason. [ have never been a Mason.
-/Asked by request of Masens, if he ever heard A.
Wilkinson er an{ other person say anythi
a murder said to ha
R. Island? .

Ans. Has never heard Mr. Wilkinson say any -
thing about it,and has only heard some rawmors;
nothing particular .about it, but I hav¢ heard the
subject conversed of frequently.
counts in the papers.

Joun A. Kxgnt, 16th Witness. .

Jokn A. Kent, of Pawtucket, sworn in full; was
asked, Have you ever heard a Mason of respectable
standing as a man, justify or palliate the murder
of William Morgan? .

Answer. Sometime last summer, in the Machine
shop in Pawtucket, Mr. Henry Lord stated to me, .
that “if Morgan had revealed the secrets and ob-"
Ii‘gatinns, he had just what ke agreed to-have done.

If any man would take such obligations as he had,
and reveal them, ke ought to suffer death” Mr.
Lord told me he was a Mason, and said he had tak-
en twenty degrees, and if he had money he would
go clear up. He is a mechanic and painter. This
conversation was in presence of three otliers, Wil-
liam Bagley, Mr. Child, and Jonathan West. Mr.
West dig not stay to hear the whole conversation.
I began to talk with Mr. Lord abeut Masonry.
Was ?eaking of the murder of Morgan.
him if it was so good a society, how it came to take
the life of Morgan? . ’ .

Grand Master Cook suggested the following (hﬂ.l-
tion, which Mr. Hazard immediately put: How
long have you been attending here, during the sit-
ting of the Committee? )

Ans. 1 have been here, and about the room,
more or less every day, since the Committee have
been sitting. . . : ’

Mr. Hazard, as if to apologize for this question
said, it is the duty of the Committee to understand
all the circumstances under which this sort of tes-
timony is given. -

Mr. Hazard. Were you instigated to come here
by any one? . - - -

Ans. Noone asked me to come. I come fnd go
of my own accord.

Mr. Hazard. Yes; you, have been here a fort-
night of your own accord, toimpeach a man, "This .
is poor business, impeaching a person, to implicate
biw in justifyinglmurder. .

In answer to a question from Mr. Hazard, witness

“says he has been’engltged in Manufacturing. Wag

}:l Ill:,e employment of David Wilkinson, until he
ed.

Mr. Hazard. Well—I suppose ’tis no reason
why a man should not tell the truth, because he has
been in the employ of Abraham Wilkinson. :

. Mr. Abraham Wilkinson. I thank your homor,

about .-
ve been committed hy Masons in |

I read the ae-

I apked -

N
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he nover was in iy _employ; .and as he never.was
" in yours, 1 find no difficulty in believing him.
It was here explained, that the witness had said
- he had been in the employ of David Wilkinson, a
Mason. . .
Jonun Havrr, 17th, Witness.

Resides in North-Kingstown, R, I.
torney and Counsellor at law.

Quastion by request. Have you ever heard an
Mason, of respectable standing as an individual,
justify or palliate the murder of William Morgan.

Ans. gome time in the summer of 1827, 1 think,
in a conversation with the Rev. Lépuel Burge, of
Borth Kingston, R. I. (whom I understand to be a
R. A. Mason,) respecting the death of William Mor-
gan, 1 told him 1 believed that Morgan was dead,
and that I had na doubt but that he was murdered
by Masone, for Letraying the recrets of Masonry, or
words to that import.. He asked me if 1 believed
Morgan’s book to be true? 1 replied that 1 did, and
that I had not the least doubt of it. He then said
that if Morgan had taken the oaths he there ac-
knowledged hedid, sin the book he had written,)
ke kad forfeited hLis life, according to the letter of
the oaths he had taken, and that according to- his

- own confessions, he had become a traitor and vio-
.lated his obligations as a Mason. In another con-
versation with Capt. Joseph Northop, of Newport,
at Wickford, respecting: Masonry, I told him that I
was opposed to the institution, I believed it to ke
wicked and corrupt. He said he' knew it to be a
ood institutian for he had received benefit from it.

e srid at this conversation that he was a Mason.
He told mo that when he was at sea, one time, he
was taken and carried off on board an armed vessel,
X do not yecollect what vessel. He made himself
known as a Mason to the captain, and that conse-

_quently, the captain took him into the cabin, and
treated him with a great Jeal of care, and did not
take®from him any of his property.” I do not reco)-
lect any other eonversation of this kind. )

[A question was here asked through a Mason,
whether witness had not said that he joined the
Antimasonic party in order to get into office, to
which he answered in the.negative.

[The Rev. Mr._Burge referred to in the foregoing
deposition, is a respectable clergyman of the Epis-
- qopal Church. Immediately after the examination
of Mr. Hall, an express was sent to Mr. Burge,
(either by Masons, of asis believed, through the
Comniittee,) wlio resided about twonty miles from
Providence, Mr. B. did not come before thé Com-
mittee at Providence, nor subsequently when the
Committce metut Newport,which is within an hour
gail of Mr B’s residence. It was known, however,
that Mr B. had sent to Mr Hazard a deposition ta-
ken privately, which deposition Mr Hazard said in
.conversation, made the matter worse. This affi-
davit,tuken in this private manner, before a Justice
of peace, when the party might ea readily have
been summoned to attend on the Committee in per-
son, is not entitled to be censidered a part of the
examination. It nevertheless appears in Mr.
Haile's minutes.  ‘The only part ot fhe private
aflidavit of Mr. Burge, that bears upon the sate-
ment made by Mr. Hall, is this:

“On one occasion, happening to meet John Hall,
Esq., and hearing the said Hall make sundrg decla-
rations copcerning Morgan's book and death, I said
to him, Do you really believe that Morgan is dead?
His answer was, I have no doubt of it. Do you
helieve that the bock said to be written by him,’is a
.correct représentation of Freemaseonry? [ do, was
hisreply. You believe, then, that he was murder-
ed, and that by Masons, for having violated the ob-
ligutions he there says he had voluntarily taken?
He replied, to be sure I do. 1 then asked him (sole-
&y for the purpose of sceing what answer would be

‘given!) [indeed!] whether, as a mason, he was not
guilty, and if guilty, WHETUER 5IE HAD NOT MET
WITH THE' FATE HE JUSTLY MERITED?
for am answer, but there was no erswer glren!

Is an At-

1 waited |_

1 fugther depose and eay, that this is the ground I
hve uniforinly taken, in order to avoid a declara-
tion, or amy thing that might lead to @ decluration of
my opinion respecting the supposed death of William
Morgan, or his illustrations. >’ - :

[032NorkE. This confession from a christian minis-
ter,is sufficiently remarkable. Headmits that he put
the case to Mr. Hall, in such a manner.as to leave
him to infer, that he, Mr. Burge, did consider that
if @ Magon were guilty of revealing. Masonry, he
justly merited death. ~ And this he did, solely for
the purpese of seeing what answer would be given!"
He explains nothing, but leaves his hearer to infer
that'he, a minister of .the gospel, justifies murder,
and this he does, solely to see what answer would be
given! No answer was given. This fact demon-
strates tHat Mr. Burge. did not put the case in the
form of a question, but as his own opirion. Had
be put it in the form of a question, would Mr. Hall,
an Antimason, have been so puzaled as not to be
able to answer it? The fact that he did not answer
it, proves that it was not a question.

Another admission by this clergyman, is cven
miore appalling. He says he took this ground, (viz:
putting a case which was designed fo compel his
hearer to admit that Morgan was justly murdered,)
tn order to awoid a deelaration of his apinion re-
specting a_cruel murder! ! Is this possible ? A
minister of the gospel resorts to subterfuges to a-
void giving his opinion of an outrageous murder,
and to evade telling the truth! When Masonry
leads such men to such shifts, what will it not do
with men of loose or bad principles !]

Joun PRENTICE, 18th Witness.

[Mr. Hazard was absent. Mr. Haile conducted
the examination.]

Jokn Prentice affirmed to tell the whole truth.—
Resides in Providencé, is a Merchant Taylor. Has
been a Freemason, and taken three degrees in St.
John’s Lodge, No. 1, Providence, about eighteen
years ago. . ,

Question by Mr. Haile. Are you a Mason now ?

JAns. 1 understood unofficially that I was expell-
ed from the Lodge, but for what I was never in-
formed. 1 had no notice of the proceedings.

Mr, Haile. Are you now an adhering Mason ?

Aus. 1 consider myself altogether opposed to
Masonry. .,

Mr. Haile. Are you a political Antimason ?

#Ans. I have nover voted, not having been ad-
mitted a voter by the laws of this dtate, tuough a
freeholder. 1f being opposed to Masonry, consti-
tutes an Antimason, I am one. °

Question proposed by Masons. At-what time did
you become opposed to it. o

Ans. : After 1 had ratisfied my mind, by in-
vesligation, that the whole. fabric was based upon
falsehood and deception. - My mind was also deeply
impressed with the influence of the Masonic prin-+
ciples, as they were legitimately carried out in the
forcible abduction and murder of William Morgan,
and also in the obstructions, that were thrown 1n
the way, by Masons, in obedience to their Masonic
principles, of the conviction of those who were en-
goged in that wieked transaction. During the winter
ot 1820, I became first interested to loquire into
the truth or falsehood .of Masonry.

Mr. Haile inquired if witness should be examin-
ed respecting the oaths ?

Grand Commander Barker said it would be as
well, and handed Allyn to Mr. Haile.

Mr. Haile ssked il an oath was administered in
each degree ?

Ans. It was. I recollect distinctly that when
took the first degree, the preliminary remarks were
made to.me that the oath was not to interfere with
my roligion or politics. In refercnce to the other
two degrees, | cannot say whether they were or not,
1 think it probable they wero.

Mr. Haile. Can you Tepeat tae obligations ?

~
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vAns. 1donot think I' could witheut omitting
some parts.

AMr. Haile read to witness the written Rhade
Island oaths, declining to state that they were the
oaths furnished by the Rhode Island Masons, as had
been done to all adhering Masons. _ Entered Ap-
prentice’s oath was read.

Witness. 1 never heard the word affirm used.—
The phrase taAT buried alluding to the penalty that
the tongne is to be buried, was given to me ‘my
body buried,’ &e. ™ . :

Fellow Crafl's oath read.

IWitness-has no recollection of ‘within the angle
or square of my work. 1t may however be an im-
provement. .

Master’s Oath read, and witness asked, do you
recollect any variations ? .

Answer. 1 recollect there is one important omis-,
sion in that oath,-which I will name. The oaths
read to me aresubstantially the same as I received,
with such variations as I have pointed out, above,
and will point out. They are these. The word
affirm was not used in either of them.

In the Master’s Oath as read to me, in the penal-
ty, there is an important omission, as I received it,
viz. ¢ that there might not be the least track, trace
or remembrance, of so vile and perjured a wretch
as I should be, were I wilfully to violate these my

~solemn oblipations.” )

M- Haile then read the variations, ashad been
done to other wituesses. - ’ -

1st. Relating to Grand Hailing sign of distress.

Witness. That I took.

2d. But will apprise him of all approaching dan-

er.
& Fitness, That I recollect, also to keep the se-
crets of a brother, murder and treason excepted.

3d. “And they left to my election,”” was not ad-
ministered to me.

4th. To go on a brother’s errand.

Witness. 1 have no recollection of that.

Question by Grand Commander Barker., Hew
many points are there in the Master’s oath ?

Ans. 1 donot recollect. ‘1 never heard that
question asked by one Mason of another.

Mr Hazard here came in and commenced the
Couwinittee’s interrogatories. The first charge from

Webb’s Monitor was read. Witness believes that

. charge was read to him at his initiation in the first
degree. The ather two charges of initiation of the
other degrees,were read to witness,and he presumes
they were read to him.

Witness. The moral principlesincalcated in thosé
eharges 1 considered were binding on me before, as
a moral man. I consider them as the advice and
instruction of the Master of the Lodge.

6th Interrogatory. Witness had no means of as-
certaining what he was to swear to, hefore he took

the obligations. He had no means of ascertaining
whetlier he had an oath to take, before he went to
the Lodge, and had no idea of an oath being requir-
ed until afier he was brought into the Hall with a
rope round his neck, blind folded, and placed at the
DMaster’s desk. It was not then until [ was told I had
an oath to take. ' '

Mr Huzard. It is unnccessary fo state the silu-
ation you were in ! Did you strictly attend to the
oaths when taking them ? N -

Ans. The situation-in which I was placed, and
the manver in which the oaths were communicated,

were such as to render it impossible for me to un-
derstand them. 1 made no inquiry respecting the
oaths, at the time I took them. -

The first degrco was taken by itself, the other two
in the same evening. 1 expressed no scruples to
the Lodge at the time of taking the oaths, and I had
none at thatelime. .

10th. Relating to jurisdiction over kfe ?

Ans. 1 dont know that [ ever came to any defi-
nite conclusion relative to these points I never
believed” that if I breke the oaths, the Lodge to

Ay

cr
which I belonged would themselves infiict (he penad-
ties. I considered that, as a moral, being, I had no
right to take the life ot any individual.

In answer to the 11th Interrogatory.

I dont know of any other secrets in -Masonry
than those contained in Bernard and Allyn. I have
always ¢onsidered that the oaths were as much the
socrets of Masonry, as the signs, jnitiation and man-
ner of working? 'The form of the different Lodges,
their arrangement when at work, &¢. are also a
part of the sccrets. )

Question. Did you at the time you took {he oaths

ider them i patible’ with your daties as a
citizen ? -

Ans.  No individual could form his judgment -

of the oaths, until after he had takentliem. § did not
consider them incompatible with my religious and
civil duties, until I bad an opportunity to investigate -
them. My mind was under a:suspicion. in rofer-
ence to them, as I presume has been the case with
many who still adhere, to thae institution.- When
they were placed before me in print, as [ had taken
tben|x, I had an opportunity to consider thom delibe-
rately. .
Question by Grand Commander Barker. When
did you first see them placed before you n print 2
Ans. [ think I saw.them sodn after my initia-
tion, in Jachin and Boaz, which some Masons used
to have in the Lodge. It wasconsidered rather un- -

masonic to study Jachin and Boaz in the Lodge.—

In that book the oaths were printed. But I did not
study the oaths for the purpose of forming any opin-
ion on them, but rather to refresh my memory. In
the wintar of 1829, I formed an opinion upon'the
character of Masonic oaths. In answer to a ques-
tion from Mr Barker, witness says, for the first two
or three years after I joined the Lodge, I heard
these frequently administered, but I did not under-
stand them. - ’

Question. What do you consider 'the objects of
Masonry to be ? : . ’ '

Ans. What the objec's of Masons now are, in
upholdinf tho Institution, it would puzzle any body
to tell. 1 believe the original object of Masons to
have been to meet togéther to have a high frolick,
and look after each other’s interests, to the exclusion
of all othersof the community. To protect each
other at all points. Such I believe to have been
its original object. I should be sorry to attribute
sach motive: to the Masons in this town. [ also
believe one of the original objects was to bring the
religion of the New T'estament into contempt. { do
not beliove that those who now uphold it are fully.
aware ‘ that this js the legitimate design and ten-
dency of Masonic principles and ceremonies.

[This statesiient produced much sensation, among
the Masons. The Grand Commander proposed this
question :]

‘Where do you find your proofs 'of this,-and on
what de you found your opision ?

Ans: In all the prayers used in the Lodge, the
name of Jesus CuRrIsT is most studiously left out.
There is no reference made to him in any of the
ceremonies of. the seven first degrees. =

Mr. Haile. To whom are the prayers addressed ?

Ans. To God.

Question from a Muson. In what otherrespects
does Masonry conflict with the religion of the New
Testament ? .

4Ans, The one I"believe to be a system of truth,
the other to bé a system of falschood. .

Mr. Hallett heve presented, in writing, two ques-
tions, relative to the disavowal of revealed religion,
in Masonic charges, and the erasure of the name of’

Christ from the passages of scripture used in the
Royal Arch degree. No notice was taken of it.—
Grand Master Cooke, referred to the questions asked
Mu. Chase, a former witness, touching his belief in
the relative existence of the personages in the Trin-
ity, and inscisted on having them™ put. Mr. Hallgtt
requested that his questions might be put. Mr.
.

.
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‘Haile, who Weld the laller quesiions before him,
paused for some moments, and seemed undecided
*what course, to adopt. Mr. Haile, Mr. Sprague and
Mr. Cornell were the only members of the Comn-
mittee present, Messrs. Hazard and.Simmons being
absent. The curiosity of the spéctators, was strong-
1y excited, to discover what the difficulty was.—
After evincing iderable uneasi , Mr. Haile
put the qaestion, with evident reluctance. Up to
this time the impression of some of the Conimiltee
and the spectators, seemed to be that the witness
bhad made a charge against the Institution, of its ir-
religious tendency, which it was impossible for him
to prove. Even the Masons who knew better, were
confident the witness would be put down in making
this chargo. '

The questions and answer, Howeuer, produced an
entire revulsion in the opinion of all candid persons
present, and fully ststained the witiices. Mr. Haile
put this question fivst :] N

Do you know of a quotation or passages from the
New Testament in a Masonic book, from which the
name of the'\Savior is excluded, although it -appears
in the original as printed in the Naw Testament ?

Ars. Tunoneof Paul’s Epistles; which is used in
the ceremonies as a lesson, the name of ¢ our Lord
Jesus Christ, which occurs in the original text is
The second question was then put :

Did you ever read, or hear read to you, the Charge
to Masons in- the first part of the Records of St.
John’s Lodge, in which the following instruction is
given to the candidate? ‘Religious disputes are nev-
ef to be introduced into a Lodge. For as Masons we
only pursue the uNIvERSAL RELIGION OR THE RE-
r1610N oF NATORE "—{Extract from a short charge
to be given to the Candidate on his_initiation, as
found in the Records of St. John’s Lodge, Provi-
dence, and also published in Books of Masonic Con-
stitutions.]

Witness does not
him. . .
[Mr. Hallett hero called for the Book of Records
of St. John’s Lodge,which was produced after some
hesitation, and referred to the passage as avove

remember it was read to

quoted, which he read, aloud, and kanded to Mr.’

Haile. Mr. Haile has entirely omitted this fact in
his Minutes. .
NOTE.

[Toillustrate this iinportant point, that Masonry,
in the seven original degrees, as they are called,
carefully excludes revealed teligion, and the name
of Jesus Christ, in order o accommodate itself to
Turks, Jews and Pagans the following, facts are
subjoined. 1n one of Lthe principal Masonic charges,
is found this passage, above referred to.] :

¢ As Masons, we only pursue the UNIVERSAL RE-
LIGION, OR THE RELIGION oF NATURE. Thisisa
cement which unites men of the most different
principles in one sacred bond, and brings together
those who were the mast distant from ene anuther.’

The same principle is fully avowed irr the De-
cluration of the twelve hundred Masons of Massa-
chusetts. ) .

¢ [Masonry] simply requires of the candidate his
assent to one great fundamental religious truth :-the
existence and Provideace of God, and a practical ac-
knowledgement*of those infallible doctrines for
the government ol life, which are written by the
finger of God on the heart o{: man.’

o says orator Brainard. ¢ The only religious test
‘[in Masonry] is this, that men should have a sense
of their ithmortal accountability, so that their obli-
gation can begonfided in. .

A still stronger illustration of this Masonic prin-
ciple, is found in the original ¢harge at initiation
into the first, degree, p. 175 of the Massachusetts

. Book of’Cdnstitutions, compiled by the learned Dr.

Harris, and approved by the Grand Lodge of Mas-
sachusetts.

“ Asa gentlewan and a Mason you are fo bea
strict observer of the moral law, as ceptained in the

- -
. .
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Holy writings”’ In a note by Dr. Harris, he thus
gives the Masonic definition ot Hely Writings, vix :
*The Bible, and in countries whereit is not known,
ANY OTHER BOOK WHICH 18 UNDERSTOOD TO CON--

TAIN"THE WOoRD or Gop.”

Thus the Koran'and the Shaster are accounted of
eual and concurrent authority with the Bible, in
the rdigion of Masonry ! Hear also what brother
James Hardie says in his Monitor, approved by all
good Masons :

¢ Masonry excludes all distinctions of rank, as
well as of religion. The Roman Catholic, the
Episcopalian, the Presbyterian, the Methodists, the
Baptists, the Unitarian, the Hesrew, the Gexnroo,
the Inp1AN, &c. may bere sit together in harmony
"and peace.” . .

In Webb’s Monitor, page 140, at the opening of
the Royal Arch Chapter, passages of scripture are
set apart to be read, 2d Thessalonians 3d chapter,
from the 6th to the 17th verses. The 6th verse
reads in the New Testament thus: “ Now we com
mand you, brethren, in the name of exr Lord Jésus
Christ, that ye withdraw yourselves from every
brother who walketh disorderly." :

In -Webb’s version, it reads thus: “ Now we
command you, brethren, that ye withdraw your-
selves from every brother,” &c. °

12th verse. In the original : * Now them that are
such we command and exhort, by our Lord Jesus
Christ, that with quietness they work and eat their
own bread.” ’

Same verse as.altered in Wehb: ¢ Now them
that are such we command and cxhort, that with
quietness they work,” &c. N

The 18th verse in the original is wholly omitted,
viz: ‘ The grace of our Lord Jesus Christ be with
you all.’ Here, in one chapter, the name of Jesus
Christ, which occurs three times, is expunged by
Masonry, in otder to accommudate 1itself to the Jew,
the Tark and the Hindoo. .

Again in Webb, p. 154, a part of the 9th chapter
of Hebrews is read during the ceremony of lower-
ing the candidate through a trapdoor, in the wicked
farce of represonting ¢ the tabernacle called the Ho
liest of a}l the manna, Aaron’s rod that budded,’and
the tables of the covenant.” In the original the
aame and effice of Christ occurs ssven times, but no
allusion is made to hiin in Webb's version. One of
the verses omitted is remarkable. * 11, Buat Christ
being come a bigh priest of good things to come,
by a greater'and more perfect Tabernacle, not made
with hands, that is to say, not of this building.”

Grand Master Cooke now called for his question,
which Mr, Haile-put as follows : .

Mr. Haile. 1 have no right te ask y6uany ques-
tions relating to your religious views, but in order
to explain how you ider the M ic Institu-
tion as excluding=the religion of Jasus Christ, I
wi‘l)t1 ask you what you understand by the word

?

Ars. Perhaps the best answer 1 can give, is,
that being who created and upholds the universe.

Myr. Huile. What do you understand is meant
by the words Jesus Christ ?

Ans. Do you wish to divide them or take them
together? Jesus Christ was the son of God.

Mr. Haile. No, take them together.

Mr. Haile. What do you understand by the ex-
pression, God the Father, God the Son, and God
the Holy Ghost ?

[Mr. Harris here refarred to the bill of rights of
Rhode Island, which expressly says that no wman
llmllrbe’ called in question, touching his religious
belief. } i

Mr. Haile. 1 have no right to question you on
your religious belief, but it is netessary to under-
stand how you comprehdnd the word God.

Ans. If the object is to involve me in a meta-

physical inqnit{, for the purpose of misrepresenting
my views of religion, 1 sball claim my rights as a

.
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ditizen. As a bolieverin the religion of Christ, I

can approach God in no other way, than in the

tiame of Jesus Christ. .
Mr. Haile. That is not an answer to the "ques-

tion. If you decline answering it, I shall so state |

it.

have not refused to aaswer. ,

Mr Haile. The witness has charged a large and
respectable body of men with infidelity.

Mr Hallett. The witness has made no such
charge against individuals. He has stated the
principles laid down in. Masonic charges and cen-
stitutions, .

Mr Haile. 1 cannot understand any distinction
between charging an Institution witl: inculcating
deism, or charging the men who belong to it.

Mr Hallett. at is your own inference. The
witness has oaly stated the facts.

Mr Haile, addressing the witness. Is it under-
stood, by any portion of the religious community,
that the word God includes Father, Son aund Holy

Ans. 1do not understand the drift of the ques-’
tion, or the reason for asking it. 1 decline answer-
ing the question, if it is intended, as I presume it

'is, to involve an inquiry into my religious opinions.

3hdo not think that this is a proper place to explain
om. . -

[Mr. Haile here remarked with some severity,
upon the circumstance of Mr. Harris having hand-
ed to witness the R. L bill of rights, relating to re-
ligious fnerlom'.il

Mr. Haile. hen you decline nnsworin:g?

-Witness. 1 beg leave to remark, that if that ques-
tion has the remotest connexion with the matter
now under legal investigation, I am willing to an-
swar it. I feel myself bound to answer every
thing that comes under my civil obligation to tell the
whele truth; net to tell a'part of ths truth, as other
witnesses have done, and excuse myself by sayinﬁ
that the Cofamittee agreed to ask me only suc
and such questions.

Mr. He For my own part, I consider it has a
bearing. .
Witness. 1 believe there is no sect of Christians

who do not consider Christ the only medium of
intercession between God and man.

Mr. Haile. That is not an answer. . .

Witness. 1 thiok it important. Tn Masonic
prayere the Savior is excluded, which is evidently
not accidentally but purposely, in conformity to the
principles of the Institution, which exclude the re-
ligion of Jesus Christ, and adopt only natural relig-
ion.

Mr. Haile. That is net the question. -

Grand Commaiider Barker handed the following
question, which Mr. Haile put. .

In whose name are witnesses sworn ina Ceart of
aw? :

You are not to judge. :

[WNote. The Masonic witnesses, however, by a
special contract with Mr. Hazard, were allowed to
jadge, and to withhold answers to all questions
which they judsid to be improper.]

Mr. Haile. De you decline answering? .

Witness. I have ne .objection to answer the
question, but I have an objection to heing trifled
with. If the Committee will so far relieve my
mind as to point out any relation it has to my duty
l‘ll:re ag a witness,. I should be greatly obliged to

em. - .

Mr Haile. 1 cannot consider the question im-
portant other than to ascertain whether you are ac-
quainted with the manner" in which oaths are ad-
ministered in Courts of law. All kindw of questions
have been pat.

Witness. 1f the design was spparent in the

. .
. 6s N
. .

Witness. You will thet not state it ‘correctly. I[

- .

swer
but the object is todraw an inforence, to be used to
my injury elsewhere. . L .

Mr. Haile. ~ Do you decline an'swering, then? -

Witness. 1 do. . : .

Mr Huile wrote this down. -

Mr Hullett said, tbat if Mr Haile put down the
refusal of the witness to answer, he ought ulso to
state fhe reason given by him,for the refusal.

[Note. The above examination took place in the
absence of Mr. Hazard and. Mr. Simmons. The
impropriety and unfairness of the proceeding, are
sufficiently apparent,especially to any one acquaint-
ed with the laws of Rhode 1sland, which exprossly
declare that no witness shall be called in question,
toucwg his religious telief. < Even this violation
of law} by Mr. Haile, is, however, less improper in

put down any thing initis minutes, but the simple
question, and the refusal of the witness to answer,
though he was specially requested t6 give the whole
of the witness’ answer. It yould seem hardly
credible that Mr. Haile should have condensed the
whole of this inquiry touching the religious views

answers, und yet it is every word of it that is given
in his lglrinl.ed report of the testimony. See page
62 of the Committee’s published report of the tes-
timony. i

<« Question by. Committee. What do you ynder-
stand is meantby the word God 2-

Ans. I understand it td mean that being who
created and upholds the Universe. .
Question by request.
sworn in a court of law ?
dns. 1 decline answering this question.”]

[Mr. Hazard resumed his seat at the table.]

In whose name isa witness

ed he had a cogversation a year ago, with a Mason,
Benajah Warren, of this town, on the subject of
keeping secret a crime, if communicated. to him
Macsonically. ‘He asked me why I had renounced
Masonry. Itold him, one reason why I had re-
nounced it was, that I considered the principles of
Masenry were inconsistent with the duties of a man
agacitizen. He asked me to show him in what re-
spect. I stated to him a case, by way ot illustra.
tion, referring him to that

- Master
treason. -

If a brother Mason should be guilty of burning.
his neighbor’s house, and should communicate to
him the fact, and require him to keep secret, as
Mason, the transaction,-how he could, consistently
with his ebligation as a gitizen, keep his Masonie
obligation? I asked him what he would do in such.
a case. He replied, ke would not teld of it, let peo-
ple find it out as they 2ould, he would never tell of
it

n, in every respect save murder and

a trial in a Court of Justice.

JAns. Thero was none, . .

" In answer to 18th interrogatory, witness says—

I have no recolleetion of ever hearing politics dis-
cusgsed in a Lodge, nor knew a Lodge to combine
to elect a caadidate to office. ,

21st Interrogatory.— :

I have aonsidercd my mordl duties paramé@@nt to
all others, and have never favored a Mason to th®
injury of one who was not, in consequence of my

asonic obl;’gatiom. - . o

Question by request. ave you known any in-
stance, wherz tahqominﬂuonco o{ Masoury has been
used to the injury of those who were not Masons?
If s0 state it.

JAns. Sometime in thewummer of 1830, I was
called upon by a young man of the name of William
Hall, then a resident of this town, now in Connee-
ticut, to become his bail, he having been sued by

question itself, I' should have no objection. toan-

.

Griffin Child, of this town. Not being suffigient

- 2

aperson acting as a magistrate, than his refusal to -

In answer to a question by request, witness. stat-.

"Mr. Haile inquired if there wasany reference to’

though the fact is known to svery school boy,

-~

of the witness, into the following questions and

art’ of the obligation °
which requires him to keep the secrets of a brother .
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Yail myself, (two belnz required by law,) I called

on Mr. Lowell Adawms, to be bail with me. He

did so. A few days aftcr we had become bail, said
Adams remarked to me, that he.was apprehensive

" 'wo had got ourselves into Jifficulty, for that this
Hall was a great villain. I asked him how he
koew that fact. He replied, hte was told it by a
brother Mason, as a Mason,” I asked himm who the
man was. He refused telling his name, saying it
was communicated to himn as a Mason, or upon the
principles of Masonry. - I ascertained afterwards
that it was the very man who had caused the writ
to be served on said Hall. This man was Griffin
Child. The suit that was brought was for slander.
Aftef the suit was withdrawn, Mr. Adams told me
he got the information from Mr. Child. -

[WNote. The bearing of this will be seen, by ob-
serving that it 'was. the.interest ot Child to injure
the character of Hall, and induce his bail to surren-
der him, which would have placed him at tle mer-
ey of Child. He therefore Masonically commu-

_ nicated suspicions tg.the mind of Adams, who did
not know that Child had caused the writ to be is-
sued. ’

~ Mr. Hazard, about this time, wasextremely civil
to -witness, and made this remark, ‘I presume that
nobody who hears your testimony, will doubt it. It
is givenvery fairly.] -

Witness.. Never-knew thé Grand Hailing Sign
of Distress to be made in a Court, or a Judge to
practice upon that construction.

Question by request. Was the duty of obeying

_the Grand Hailing Sign of distress inculcated in
the Lectures?

"Ans. I recollect at the close of receiving the’

Master’s degree, the DMaster of the Lodge, in ex-
‘plaining the Grand Hailing Sign, told me that
- whenever I saw that sign, or heard the words ac-
companyingit, I was to fly to the relief of the per-
son making it, if there was a greater probability of
“saving bis life than losing my own. The sign is
made by misinf both hands above the head. The
words are, My Lord, three times repeated.

[The witness here represented the motion, at
‘which the Masons present exhibited indications of
distress as though they had witnessed some awful
sacrilege.] ’ . :

-Witness. It is the custom for Masons to be re-
ceived as visiting brethren into all Lodges of their
degree. ~ . . :
 Question by request. What is understood by a
worthy ‘brother ? ) : -

Ans. T presume it is to be understoad that every
Mason js to be considered a worthy brother until he
is declared to.be otherwise by the Lodge to which
he belengs.- C

Answer to 33d Interrogatory. I have had repeat-
ed conversations with different Masons, at different
times, upon the subject of the Morgan outrage..—
The impression that several of them left on my
mind was that they justified the abduetion and mur-
der of Morgan, on Masonic prinefples. My recol-
Jection is so indefinite that I should not frame any
individual. These conversations were within two
years past, in this town. I do not recollect any par-
ticular plaee, nor do I recolléct any particular ex-
pressions that led me to these impressions.

Mr. Hazard seemed very desirops, just at this
time, % do away the unfavorable inipression left
upon the publie, by pressing the witness as to his
religious opinions. He'evidently did not like to have
any one abuse the witnesses but himself. . He said,
wvery politely, that he hoped the witness would not

- consider that the Committee were disposed to press
hini. He thought the public ought to be possessed
of all the information in reference to such a subject,
as the justification of murder. This saas all he de-
sired. Mr. Hazard here asked if a single question
had been refused, if it had it should be put now.]

Question by the Grand Master. In what form
wers you notified previous to your expulsion ?

N

Ans. 1was not notified at all, ard knew ot wly
[ was expelled. .

Question from . Paine, Jr.~ Had you mad
known previous to your expulsion, the Masonic
oaths, and did you suppose . you were expelled fo:
declaring the truth of the revelations of Masonry,
before the public. - . ' ’

Ans.« [ had, and [
why I was expelled.

Question from the same.. Have.you ever bee
told in a friendly or threatening manner by Masons
that your speaking against Masonry would injur
you in your business ? ‘ .

Ans. 1 have, but whether in afriendly or threa-
ening manner { cannot tell. .

Question by request. -Was it explained to you.
as you advanced in the degrees, that the reason of
the cable tow being increased in each degree, in the
number of times it was wound round you, wast:
impress upon you'the additional binding force o
your obligations ? .

Ans. it was so explain2d. - :

. The testimony here closed, and it being 9 o’cloci
in the evening, the Committee adjourned.

Friday morning Dec. 16.—~Present all the com:
mittee, except Mr. Potter. Rev. Mr. Greene, a By
tist Clergyman and adhering Mason,was called agaiz,
having béen previously examined and excused. -

TestimoNy oF Rev. DANIEL GREENE.
The general interrogatories being put,witness ans
wered in the form adopted by most of the Masonic
witnesses, who had the benefit of each others testi-
mony. : .

Question by request. Did you ever hear of the
murder or intended murder of Morgan, in the, Lodge,
or did you ever hear a Mason justify or palliate th:
murder ? .

Ans. I do not kndw any thing about it, except
what I read in the papersand publications.

Question by request. What are the signs made cn
entering and leaving a lodge, and what reference
have they to the penalty ? -

Ans. There are signs and ceremonies on leaving
a Lodge ; I never inquired whether they had refer-
ence to the penalty or not. - I presume the lecture:
will tell all about it. .

[Witness, however, declined. stating what the
sigms were ; or what explanation was given of them
in the Leetures.]

Question by requéest. Were you taught in the Lec-
tures, to obey the grand hailing sign of distress ?

Ans. T presume they are taught to obey the signs,
in the Lectures, &e. ) ’

Question by request. To whom did‘you consider
you bound yourself, in the penaity of your Entered
Apprentice’s oath, to have your throat cut, &e. if
you revealed the secrgts? to yourself, or to the
Lodge? -~ .

Ans. 1 do not consider 1 gave power to any onc
to inflict the penalty upon me. .

By request. Have you ever Had any evidence to
satisfy you that Speculative Masonry existed previ-
ous to 1717, and have you ever held out the opinion
to others, or helieved it yourself, that the Institution
was 5831 years old ?

presume that was the reaso

Ans. I hive always held it to be an dncient Insti- |

tution. I have no particular evidence other than
the Masonic Monitor; I do not remember to have
stated exactly how old it was.

By request. Do yan considsr yourself, as a Royal
Arch Mason, under stronger obligations as respects

charity to a brother Royal Arch tlfan to an Entered

Apprentice > What is the objgct of having so many
degrees, in which Masons are bound to keep secrets,
not only fram the world, but from each other.
Ans. I do not know. . -
‘Question. How'do you answer the first part of
the question? . .
Ans. 1 do not know that T do. .
Question by request. 1If you have taken the de-
gree of Knight Templar, &s you say, do you remem-



ber the l'oilowi:i'g obligation administered to you,

_ while going through the cérémouies? * This pure

.

‘the testimony of Lewis C. Brown.

difficaities.] ,

wine,” &e. [Ante p.49.] .

Ans. I canunot recollect any thing about what is.

read to me from that book, .

Question by request. Can you recollect ever
drinking’ wine, or- its répresentative, out of a nu-
MAN SKULL, in the ceremonies of being made a
Knight Tomplar? = -

Ans., | do not kndbw that it tan effect the inter-
ests of any one, WuETHER I DRANK WiNE OUT
dF A SKULL; A TIN ¢YP, OR A BASIN!

(6F Truly a worthy answer for a reverend ¢ler-
gywan, under a solemn civil oath, to answer all
sich qnestions as should be put to him! How
strangely Masonic principles pervert the under-
standings and cdnsciences of pious men, and even
ministers of the gospel of TroT! A list of ques:
tions had been nadé out for thiv witness, but they
had been torn up by Mr. Hazard, and it was deem-
ed useless to press them, where the witness was pro-
tected by tld  committee from telling the truth,
end where it was apparent hd would not answer
any question, under civil oath; which his Masoni¢e
oath required him ta concodl. ' One of these ques-
tions, if put, must have involved the witness in di-
rect contradiction/ He had testified; that the ob-
ject of the.check degree was to keep people out of
the Lodge, who might gét in by studying the books
of impostois, 8&e. The question was, whether a
man who told the trutk could be an impostor, and
how it was necessary to'guard against the admis-
sion of impostors, if they bad not got tho real se-
trots of Masonry, from Morgan’s discldsures ?

(It has been alleged that among the charges
brought against the ih-ona of Rhode Island, by
Antimasons, was the murder of a man for having
made a Mason illegally. Mr. Hazatd; (though he
carefully avoided inquiries into the actudl charges
made by Antimasons, and though he twice refused
4 written request to summon the Grahd Master and
Grand Commander of the year 1826, and question
them as to their knowle‘f;e of the Morgan conspir-

acy, and the dispositian of the extra approptiations:

made from their funds in that year,) was never-
theless. eager to”represent the Antimasons as hav-
mg charged the Rhode Island Masons, with ‘tlie ac-
tual commission of murder. The-fact was, this

. charge originited fiom Caleb Sayles, a high adher-

ing mason, ard but for him would never have beén

presented to the public at all. We deemn it wholly b

foreign to the subject of inquiry before the Com-
tnittee, but as Mr. Hazard was particularly zealous
in his investigations into @ matter which he knew
the Antimasons did not rely upon at all, or expect
to prove ; it may be proper to give the testimony.

The witnesses on this point were gnf before the
Committee, with great difficulty, and only upon an
extra summons for them to appear. They were ad-
RlerinEansons, and testified with great reluctance.

rs
questions that might draw out more than it weuld
be prudent to have disclosed

There is one fact, particulaily deserving notice in
It will be seen
that a Mason, who did not collect his debt in a dis-
tribution of the witnesses pperty, accused him to
the Lodge, evidently for not tomplying with the
spirit of his obligation to favor a brother Mason, to
the exclusior of other creditors, and the Lodge con-
domned him for it. Could this subject be fully de-
veloped, many a creditor, net a Mason, would learn
how it has happened that he has been overlooked in
the distribution or attachment of his debtor’s prop-
erty, while others, less deserving, have heen fully

secured. .

It will also be ebserved fromt this testimony, that
the witaess was rather suddenly restored to the
Lodge, just after the Morgan outrage, when it be-
came nacessary for Magons to settle all their smaller

9

axdrd throughout avoided proposing any A

~was created by it.

TesTiMoNY or LEwts C. Broww. [20th Witnibes.]

Lewis C. Brewn, Smithfield, Valley. Falla, mill.
wright, sworn—I am a Magon, have taken the de-
gree to the R. A. I ans stiil an adhering maron.

Ques. Did yod ever have any difficulty with the
Lodge, if so what was it, and what wers the pro-
teedings ? — ) ’

_ JAns. I never had an+ difficulty with the Grand
Lodge of this State. Aa t6 the Morning Star Lodge .
there was at one time some Hifficulty in 1814, It -
began by some of the membérs being it variance
with me: That happened in consaquencé of a cor-
tain one, who [ was owing a sum of money to, and * .
I was gone to New York and some persons aitached

ny property ; amongst them some masons, and one

in conssquence of not getting his money, accused

me of cheating him. - ) o

Ho made n complaint to the Tadge for defrand.
ing him, and they took notice of it. They appoint-
ed a committee to investigato the subject. The com-
mittee or an investigation reported sgainst me unan-
imbusly: I appealed as I had a right to do, accord-
ing to the by laws of the Lodgé, to a second com-
mittee. The second committee investigated the
affair and also reported against me. As ['was a
member of 4 Chapter in Pravidence st the same
time, the same complaint was entered there. After
the report of the second committoe, the Chapter
appointed a committee of thtee to report on the
same. Jobn Carlile, Péter Grinnell, and Mr. Jackson
of thil town, I think were the Committee. After
hearing the parties they reported wnanimouslv in
my favor.. Then I went back to the Morning Star
Lodge, ahd insisted on being reinstated, which was
refused. thétt made compldint to the Grand
Lodge. The grand Lodge anpointed a committee
of three to investigate the affair and report. This
committee cited the Morning :Star Lodge to show
causé why I should not bu reinafated in said Lodge:
The Lodge at Cumberiand appointed a committes
to appear before the committee of the Grand Lodge.
They accordingly appeared with mvself’ before daid
committee. There was a full ipvestipation of the
subject befora the dommittee, and they reported,
That the said Lewis C. Brown be reinstafed into
the Lodge-and all the privileges of Masonry. and
liave a right to visit any Lodge under the jurisdic-
tion of the Grand Lodge. Thisreport was sccent-
ed. I then went back to-the Morning Star Lodoe,

ut they insisted on holding ma as an expelled
momﬁ')er, and contended that the Grand I.odge had
no right to reinstate an expelled member of any
subordinate Lodge. Their by laws required the
unanimous vote of all the members present to re-
instate an expelled member, and the rearen why
the Lodge did not comply with the reanisitions of
the Grand Lodge were these: the hrother mesnn
opposed to me always. put in a negative vate, and [
believe that some others voted alwavs n~ainst me.

fler these repeated requests, in 1€27! nr 28!
they finally restored me to all my former richts and
privileges in said lodge hy a vote. the person who
made the complaint havine moved awny. .

, Ques. Af.\er this, or before, or at anv other time,
did you write any thing about or agaiast the institu-
tion of Masonrv, which gnt before persone who were
Masons, or hefore the Lodge, and created the sane
or another difficulty . -

ns. It is true whila the affair was pending in
Morning Star Lodge. T kept a journal and made
somé comments on it, but I believe no difficulty
s The comments were on points
which I deemed illezal and npmasonic. At this
time 1 wrote nome letters to the Lodge on this sub-
iect, which the lodge did not approve. These pro-
ceedings are all on record

Ques. Did the Lodge some two or three years
.3g0. or any thasons pay or offer to pay all the money

back agsin which you had paid the Lodge upon

,:'i'o';:i" conditions ; if so, state the reason or condi-

-



-

-

Ans. There was no such offer ever made. The
person represented that I had written against Ma-
.soury, but the Committee of the Grand ge de-
cided 1 had not written any thing against Masonry ;
1 pever had written or said any thing against Ma-
sonry. - i
Ques. Have you ever known any person to ob-
tain the secrets of Masonry illegally, or as they
say clandestinely ?
what was his name, what became of him, when was
he tried if tried at all ? :
Anrs. I know of nosuch case that ever came un-
der.my knowledge.

. Ques. Did you ever kear of such a case,or
have evidence given you to convince you that such

. . 4 case ever happened in this State.

Ans. There bas been frequent reports, but noth-
ing that ever satisfied my mind that such a case
ever took place in this State. There.was a report
that a Mr. Joseph Follet, of Cumberland, now
dead, did once obtain Masonry illegally. Itis very
difficult to tell whether people meant it for a fact,
or only a rumor. This report 1 had from my fath-

. er and ‘others. My father was not a Mason. These
circumstances happened about thirty two years
age, since which time there has been something
said about it. - )

- The report has been revived within about 5 years
ifh a Verment paper, but I bave heard no new cir-
cumstance about it Mr. Follett has been dead

something like twenty years. - He left two daught: | to

&rs. The youngestis married te my brother. She
is aboat thirty years old, and resides in Cumber.
land. My father died in 1800. I was.well acquint-
ed with Mr Follett. My brother’s wife said that
her mother told hér that a stranger came to board
with her, and soon after disappeared. No name
was mentioned in the Vermont report, who made
Follett a Mason. I dont know as 1 can tell. In

- conversation with my brother’s wife, she stated her

’

- the stranger but

mothér washed this man’s clothes, who boarded

there, the stranger, and his shirt was bloody. Her

mother has been dead five or six years. .Can’t tell
that her -mother stated the time when. this man
* boardéd there. This man soon after disappeared.

It was'supposed by them that no other person knew

iir.‘ Follett. They were often in

4 room together alone.

Ques. What has been represented by Mr. Follett's
Jamily, as his feelings and views upon this subject,
during his last sickness. - ’ .

Ans. Never has been represented by him, any
thing against Masonry. He was buried with Ma-
sonic honors! { don’t recollect ever hearing his
family say any thing about what his feelings were
upon this subject. Sty brother’s wife says that
her mother told her they, the stranger and Mr. Fol-
lett, were intimate together, and often in the room
together by themselves. 1 was well adquainted
with Mr. F., but never heard Mr. F. say that any
Mason or any body else suffered by Masons on his
account. I was twenty or twenty five years old
at the time Follett died.

Adjourned till afternoon.

" Ques. Were you mot restored to your Masonic
privileges by the Grand Lodge, from fear you
wonld publish your difficulties to the woild ?

JAns.” 1t is very difficult for me to say what the

' cause was. ' It was sufficient for me to know that I

was'restored. I should rather think it was because
justice required it to be done.

Ques. Did you tbreaten to publish the preceed-
ings of the Lodge, and was it talked in the Grand
Lodge that you would do so, if you were not re-
stored. . ]

JAns. Seems though there was something said
léyoc' Committee in 5:9 Morning Star Lodge, to a

mmittee in the G. Lodge. -1 do not know what
effect thai had. [ should have published the. pro-
coudings, if they had not restored me. -

. )

Who was it, where did he live, |

P9 N ‘

Mr. Haile. Was there any thing improper in
those proceedings ?

Ans. - Nothing more than to show a private diff-
culty, and the inconsistency of the proceedings of
the Lodge. Nothing that would injure the princi-
ples of Masoary, I conclude, if these proceedings
were made public. It would show their inconsist.
ent conrdtlxct. 4 & diﬁ. . M :

[This last was got down wi ifficult 3
Haile asking if witness was satisfied.] i

In answer to a question, witness has read some
;utl of Morgan's {llustrations; of Bernard’s none.

think that Morgan wrote as well as he knew.

Ques. What do you mean by saying he wrote as
well as he knew bow ? :

Ans. My impreasion is he wrote to get money by
it, and of course he would write as well as he knew.
In that part I read I found some variation.

Mr. Hails. What is your meaning, well or cor-
rect 7 R

Ans.- 1 find some errors in it in my opinion.

Mr. Hails. Can you state the errors. *

. Ans. 1 can’t do it without they are pointed out.

Mr. Paine wished the Committee to read the
Royal Arch Oath from Allyn.

Mr. Hazard said the proper cath to read to the
witness, who was a Rhede Island Mason, was the
Rbhode Island oath, as handed.in to the committee.

Mr. Paine thought the witness ought not to be
instructed in this way, as to what he was to swear

Mr. Hazard. It don’t have a very good a .
ance to attempt to discard the oaths proved be':l;:;fy
R. I. Lodges and Chapters. Itisnot in my opinon
fair treatment. - .

Mr. Paine. If it was fair treatment to make sece-
ding Masons testify from the oaths given in the
books, I don’t see why it is not as fair-to question
adhering masons in the same way. -

Mr. Hazard replied by biting his lips and shuf-
flling his spectacles with great vehemence. The
witness relieved him by saying,

I wen’t trouble you to- read the oaths, they are
nearly correct in Morgan. It is so long since I read
the Royal Arch Oath, that I cannot undertake to
point out any part. [The reading of the oath was
waived.] ) .

. Ques. Have you ever taken the Check degree or
pass word, since 1826 if so, when and from whom,
an,d what did you understand was the occasion-of
it? .

JAns. 1 received such a degree in Morning Star
Lodge, Camberland, sometime in 1828, from Rev.
Mr. Cutler, an Universalist minister, Master of the

There was little said about it at the time.
1 suppose the real object was to keep out those who
we did not know but might getinformation enough
from Morgan’s book and others to workinto the
Lodge. .

Ques. Did you understand where it came from ?

Ans. I understood it had been lately received,
but from whence it was not told to me.

TzsTIMONY oF JEsse Brown—R1st witness.

Friday morning, Dec. 15.—[Nearly every ques-
tion put to this witnegs, was by request. Mr. Haz-
;n'dl appeared very reflictant to examine him close-

y . ‘ .

Jesse Brown, an adhering” Mason, sworn in- full.
Resides in Cumberland, is a farmer. * I call myself
a Freemason. ] have faken 3 degrees in St. John's
Lodge, thirty five years or more ago. R

.Ques. Do you know of ‘any person having been
made a Mason clandestinely ! .

JAns. 1 do not of my own knowledge. I never
saw one made. I bave heard.it reported. It was
the common report in Cumberland that one Joseph
Follett, who lived in my neighborhood, had been
made a $fason clandestinely. Follett is now dead.
If I can recollect the man’s name who made Follett
a Mawon, it was Adams. IAcn’t'molleq:t his first




.
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name; I will not be quite positive that his name
‘was Adams.

Ques. What became of Mr. Adams?

JAxrs. The report was that Adams sometime af-
terwards toek a vessel at Providence and went off—
removed to the west with his family. Thinks this
was within a fow months after he had made Follett
a Mason. He was a transient man. It was said
that Fellett was made a Mason clandestinely in
Massachusetts. Adamns®represented himself as a

ason. ,

Ques. Did Follett get into the Lodge after Ad-
ams made him a Mason ? Did he pay any fee for
admission ?

Ans. They received Follett iri the Lodge. I do
not know whether hé
not satisfied with the Masonry he got. He got sick
of it himself, and came forward and was admitted
to the' Morning Star Lodge in Cumberland in the
legal way. 1 have sat in the Lodge with him.

JAns. Where did you understand Adams went to.

Ques.It was some distance 1 heard Adams was to
move ?* I'wont be sure it was Ohio.. I Aave mever
heard of him since He was rather transient.

Ques. How did you kuow he had gone to Ohio ?

Ans. I conversed with some of our Masonic breth-
ren who told me that he had gone to the West, and
they saw him go on board the vessel in Providence
with his family ! He had been with us in the Lodge,
and was some acquainted, and of course it would
lead us to speak about him, was the occasion of the
brethren telling me where he had gone. Witness
does not know Caleb Sayles.

.. Quss. Did you ever know or hear of Adams ma-
king any other. Mason ? . .

JAns. By veport1 heard that Adams made another
Mason clandestinely besides Follett. I don't recol-
lect who it was. It was not in my neighborhood.
This circumstance was generally known in Cum-
berland, by Masons, and- 1 guess other people too.
It was not a very privats thing. _

Ques. Did you ever hear that Adams way called
‘umn by any Lodge, for what he had done, or that
Masons had any thing to do with his going away?

J4ns. I never knew that the Lodge in Cumber-
land or any other l.odge called upon Adams about
this. Some of the members did. I understood sev-
eral Masons conversed with him. '

Ques. What was the nature of the conversation ?

4ns. Why, they asked him why he came to do
00, I understood he plead poverty, and wented to

et funds to move. I never heard that the Lodge
ad any thing to do with his going away, or paid
any thing for it. Said Adams did not visit the Lodge
after these transactions. This was more thau twen-
Ly years ago. ' )
ues. by.J. S. Harrie. Have you not frequently
said or thought there was something wrong about
this so far as Masonry is concerned ?

Jns. No farther than I have heard it said, Adams
did wrong, in getting said Follett’s money.

Ques. Did you eveér kiear or know that Adams ev-
er suffered in consequence of making Follett a Ma-
son ? .

Ans. I know nothing further than that the breth-
ren talked with him aboat it, and told him it was a

- breach of his trust. Adams gave Follett three de-

grees in one evening.

[Mr. Simmons here asked if there were any more
questions. The Committeo propongl none and
evinced no wish to inquire inte the subject.]

Ques, by W. Harris. Have you ever heard any
thing respecting a stranger that boarded with Fol-
lott, And went away wd%enly, and Mrs. Follett die-
covering blood on his clothing. .

Ans. 1 never did. The witness was here dis-

d. -

Tesrinony or Benajan Warnen—22d Witness.

Benajah Warner—sworn ia full. Residesin Prov-
idence, is & shipwright, and an adltering Mason.
The deposition of John Prentice was read, relating a

.
-

aid his fee or not. He was

conversation, in which Warner had said if a Mason
communicated a crime to him, he should fee! bound
to keep it secret, anc let others find it out.
 Witness. 1 had no sich conversation as that. We
bad a conversation about the obligation, but not in
that way.” He never put that question to me; and [
never answered it in that way. Iasked him why
he had renounced Masonry. He wasa young fellow
that I felt an interest in. I had always heard him
well spoken of, and I thought it would be an in-
jury to him to renounce Masonry. I asked him
why he fell back. He said that the obligations were
dangerous, especially the higher ones. He said that
there was such a thing as that Masons would up-
hold one another in the higher degrees. I told him
I believed no luch,lhinﬁ; and asked him if he found
any thing ungentlemanly, or unchristian in the ob-
ligations he had taken ? 1t appeared that he signi-
fied I was right in the lower degrees,but in the
higher degrees which we had not taken, one Mason
was bound to uphold apother, let him do what he
would. I told him 1 did not believe it. It did not
look congistent with the other degrees. Hoe said he
had a book that would convince me. I told him I
did not believe the book. It was not consistent. A
talked with him out of friendship. He was a youn
man, and had no one te help him. 1 told him
[theught his seceding from Masonry would injure
him. I thoufht he had taken a miff, and that in-
stead of injuring others he would injure hitself, I -
hyd always heard a good name of him_ before, from
a child. He was much liked.

Ques. by W. Paine, Jr. How did you consider it *
would injure him to secede from Masonry, especial-
ly as you say you had always heard a good name of
bim before # : .

. 4ns. I considered that he would say things that
he ought not to, and would lose the confidence of
Masons—not only of them, but all judicious men. -

Question by W. Paine'Jr. What character did Mr.
Prentice bear among Masons, after he seceded ?
[The witness did not answer this question.]

Question by the same. Did you sweéar in your
Muster Mason's oath, to keep the secrects of a
Master Maeon, when committed to you, mu rder and
treason excepted ? -

Witness hesitated. Mr. Hazard read that part of
the R. lsland oath to him. Witness admitted he
had sworn viz: “to keep n brother’s secrets as my
own when committed to me, as such, murder and
trezeon not accepted.’ -

Question from the same. Well, then, does rot
the expression, ‘‘murder and treason excepted
show that no other secret, but murder and treasorf,
is allowed to be disclosed, when communicated by
one Mason to another, as such? By murder and
treason being only excepted, ate not all other crimes
included? Please explain how you reconcile this
with keeping your Masonic oath, and being a good
citE'zrol:l. .

e witness did not appear prepared with an
explanation. There was a short ppu‘::o, wheroupofn
Mr. Hasard said it was the hour appointed for the
funeral of soine person, and the Committee would
adjourn till 8 o'cleck.]

Friday JAfternoori. ‘The committee met, and
called Benajah Warner again, who appeard te have
been provided with an answer to the interrogation.
b‘ﬂd';& I d:o n:t consider this part of the obligation

inding me to keep secret any crime i
a brothger Mason, & a crimo._y ! commitied by

_?umiou tl:(y the .mma'.' ‘Iif & Mason should eom-
mit a secret to you on the five points of fullowshi
which was a crinfe against th:o laws of thewSu:le):
should you reveal that secret before you had made
it known to the Lodge ? .

Ans. I should %ot.

/

would not receive any such a see
and would eqmmunie{tc it if nm;:t' l:. ':.‘ucr“o't,
give his precise words.]

.

[This, witness afterwards altered, by saying, I |
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Quastion by the same. What, then,
keeping a brother’s secrets? ™y
Ans. Why, what ke promises to keep. . 1f a bro-
ther communicates a secret to another brother, if
he is a man of honor he will_kecp it; but he js not
\bound to recesve such a secret. His Masonic obli-
ation does not bind him to. recetves any secret that
18 unlawiul. I conceive for myself, that it does
npot. I don’t know how it is considered.
Bl:? This is & valuable distinction.
obliged X
crime, but if he does receive it, he must then keep
it.
%nmnzs SeanLx, 234 Witness. '(Introduced
by the Treasurer of the EncAmpment, Moses Rich-

is meant by

Hoe is not

ardson. .
Quu%wn roposed by him. Did you ever hear
Abraham Wilkinson say, that there had been 500,

miore or less, murders committed in Providence Ma-
ronic Hall, or Pawtucket? )
Ans. Last summer, S. S. Southworth and A Wil-
kinson, were talking by. the Market House. A
large collection was present in the street. They
yere conversing on Masonry. Mr. Southworth
inted io St. John's Liodge, and asked Mr. Wilkinson
ow many murders he supposed had been commit-
ted in that Lodge. Hie answer was, shakiug his
fioger, more than five hundred, you puppy. He
said it in an ironical way, and raised a considerable
laugh. They both appeared to be excited.
- Ques. by Mr. Wilkinson.” Do you know thbt
Mr. Wilkinson saw him point to the Hall ?
Ans. 1 cannot say that he did. They were both
facing each other. .

Ques. Did not my answer apply to the Institu-
. tion ? ‘- :
Ans. 1 do not know how others understood it. I

understood it as applying to Masons.

. 24th Witness.
" BugRrinGTON ANTHONY, ‘introduced by Mases
Richardson, for the.same purpose. To the same

. question answers— .

I was coming out of Mr. Searle’s office, some-
time ago. I am ashamed to be called o -tell the
story new, and should not i{ I bad not supposed .1
was compelled 1o come upon the summons of the
Comuuittee. I heard loud talk in the street, and
went to the market window. Mr. Wilkinson and
Mr. Southworth were conversing- with warmth
upon the subject of Masonry. The'only words 1
recullect were, Southworth said how maay do you
think have been wmurdered in this Hall ?

Mr. W. replied to it very quick, and rather in a
passion, five hundred,you puppy. I did aot under.
stand that he intended to convey the idea that he
believed five hundred persons had been murdered
there.” ~

[1t was here suggested, that as this expressien
of Mr. Wilkinson, was introduced as an offset to the
justification of the murder of Morgan by Masong, it
might be that Mr. Wilkinson referred to the candi-
dates who hdd represented Hiram, Jubela, Jubelo
and Jubeluin and been murdered in the ceremonies
in that Hall.] R L

In answer to a quesiion from Mr. Wilkinson,
witness says, I nevor béard hiin apply his opinions
of the institution to its mewmbers individually.

[Mr. W. Puine Jr. here stated to the Committee,
in"answar to some inquiry, that Me. Moses Rich-

_ ardyon had in his possession certain doings of the
Grand Chapter and Encampment in New Yok, in
1826, which were printed.] - .

Loth Witness.

SamuEeL Younc was called by the Masons and
sworn in full. Is a Mason. Questioned by Mr, Haz-
a1d if he had ever heard any reports about a Mason
being murdered? | . st

<ins. Yes. Twe years a%‘n there was a report
g:ovalent in this town, that there was.a man. mur-

~red in St. John's Hall, of the name of Smith,

’

by his oath (0 receive a secret, revealing a

v, s

Thomas or Thomas H. Some one was relating
this story to Anson Petter, and counsidered there
was no doubt of it. I have understood it to be the
same man Thacher alluded to, as having been mur-
dered in St. Johns Lodge.

Note. Thisis entirely a mistake. Mr. Young
in his zeal to, clear Masonry, had brought up a new
and luo'ricious case, of which Antimasens had nev-
er heard bgfore.] °

JVitness. It wds six orseven years ago he went
oft. Mr. Truesdell said he was in debt and run off
Judge Tourtellot (a mason) said he saw him in
Ciacinnati. 1 was acquainted with the wite of
Samiith, and I never heard her say or intimate that
her husband was murdered. She said he had gone
.off and absconded. 1 never talked mueh with her
about it, because I considered it a delicate- subject.

In answer to Question by request. Has no rea-
son for saying this was the man alluded to by Mr
Thacher and others as. having been murdered in
8t, John's Hall. He supposes it inust be, fas it is
the ouly man ke ever heard it talked about as hav-
ing been murdered there. I pevér heard it intima-
ted that any other person was murdered o St
Johu’s Hall, and [ drew the inference from that,
that Smith was the nan alluded to by Mr. Thacher
and others. Said Smith resided in Glocester m
this State. I never heard Smith’s wife say that her
husband had been summoned before the Ledge.

Mr. Moses Richardson was here called upon to
be sworn. He declined; said he had an objection
to be examined, to be wire-drawn by people on the
other side of the table, (meaning-Anl?:xaaous.) He
would not submit to it. The Committee waived
his examination, and said they should take hold of
the Masons tomorrow.—Adjourned.

Saturday, December 17.
Thoxas TruEspELL, of Providence, affirmed.
Gth Witness.]

Is not a mason. Has heard mentien made thatit
was supposed Thumas Smith was made way with,
in St. Jobn's Hall.  He heard such a report last
winter—about a year ago. Kuew Thomas Smith
well. In 1821, in February, he started to come to
Providence, from Glocester; and the report came
in town that he was robbed and made way with by
robbers. There was a comsiderable inquiry made
for him, and 1t was reported his horse and wagon
were found in Cranston or Johnston. The supposi-
tion, after this, was that he had gone to Ohib. Hs
was owing my firm about $500. We sent our ac-
counts out to a Mr. Drown, in Louisville. 1 never
heaid from Smith, (il Mr. Wilder, a partner of
Judge Toyrtellot, (a mason) returned from Qlio.
He said he had geen Thomas Smith, in New-Or-
leans. He said he did not speak to him. Smith
turned off when he approached him; but he was
sure it was he. I heard nothing jmore of him tilt
this fall, when I asked Judge Tourtellot if he had
seen him, mentioning the excitement there was
about Smith. He said be had not; but that Smith
had been in the neighborhood of Cincinnati, about
30 miles from there, with an acquaintance of Tour-
tellot’s, as said Tourtellot was informed by a friend.
Said Tourtellot is @ mason. .

Ques. Did Smith owe other debts, to induce him
to go off? ) N

Ans. | believe not; ours was the main-debt. [
have hearad it repeatedly reported that he was made
way with, - e

I;x aeply 't‘o a question, says— )

“dont know whether fis was the -m .
Thacher alluded to or not. o -man Mr

Ques. Did you ever hear from your correspan-
dent or any other source, what became of Smith >

Anrs. No. Mr. Wilder camg the nighest to him
of any person I ever knew. '

- -Witness has never henrd any report of any other

person having heen murdered in St. John’
any other Lodge In the State, but Smith. : lor

i
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Ray PorTer—sworn—called by the Committee.
. [27th Vitness.] S

Resides in Pawtucket. ls a clergyman. . Has
taken one degree in masonry. Does not consider
himself a inasou” now. Mr. Thacher called on wit-
ness some lime ago, in September or October 1831.
He shewed me a lotter trom a man in Maine or New
Hampshire, relative to the acceunt of the mnurder of
a mason in the Lodge in Rhode-Island: I heard
Mr. Thacher read the letter, ahd also saw it,except
the name of the writer. The writer enjoined se-
crecy as to bhis name. The author of tho letter
siated that the pame of the man who was made a
mason, illegally, was Delton C. Smith, a brother-in-
law of Calcb Sayles, who now resides in New-York,
and has an clder brother residing in Glocester, R. 1.
The writer of the lotter said he had forgotten the
name of the person who made Smith a mason, and
wished to learn his name. The transaction was
about thirty -years ago. The writer of the letter
lived in this State formerly. I presume Mr. Thach-
er did not intend that I should know the nawe of the
writer.” He had been requested mot to give the
name. The man had written him in consequence
of the statement he had scen in a newspaper. Ho
formerly resided in Rhode-lsland, and he wrote as
if the circumstances were once familiar to him. Mr.
Thacher called on me, to preach for me. In the,
course of that call, I inquired-ot him relative to the
statement be had 1nade, and he shewed me the let-
ter. The writer assigned as the reason for not hav-
ing his mame made public, that hé did not wish to
get into the excitement. ,

Ques by Mr. Hazard. Did Mr. Thacher intimate
to you any other facts and circumnstances than those
you have here stated, about the murder ? *

Jus. He stéted the conversation between him and
Mr. Saylcs, the same as has been published in the
‘papers. T have not heard that Mr. Thacher ever
made this letter known.

Ques. by Mr. Simmons. From all you found in
that letter, and all that Moses Thacher added to it,
did you come to the conclusion and believe that any
such murder as was by said Thacher, or the writer
of the letter, hinted at or alluded to, had everbeen
committed ? . .

Ans. 1 have not come here to insinuate that the
Grand Lodge, or any other person, has committed
murder I lrave not come to such a conclusion.

Ques. Have you ever before apoken of the facts
and circumstances here alluded to : have you donc
so frequently and publicly ?

Ans. Yes: 1 have a number of liines today, and
before. ’

Ques When you have related these circumstances
bave you expressed an opinion decidedly ?

/Ans. 1 have never expressed an opinien decidedly;
but I have had some suspicious and some fears that
a murder was eommitted, and 1 will give iy reasons,

Ques. Will you tell the Committee what those
fears and suspicivns were ?

#Ans. My reasons and suspicious were—in the first
place, I knew tho penalty of the nasonic obligation
to be death, in case of revealing the secrets ; and if
masous thought it right to anuex such a penalty,
they would of course think it right to inflict the
penalty, as it evidently appeared to me they did, in
the case of Morgan; and [ think they arc not con-
sistent unless they do-it, These are the reasons for
my fears and suspicions.

By Mr. Simmons. Do you consider an anonymous
letter ought to be received by any man as evidence
in relation to so high a charge as murder ; especial-
ly when the person who shews such a letter, is in
some degrec comaniied by inaking the charge, and
i3 to be benefitted by the contents of such a lettor,
or the impression it may make ?

Ans. 1 should thiik not. 1 hdve referred to the
letter us pioot of the nume of the person nade a ma-
son, but uever as proof of muider.

1Tho lagt part of hisanswer Mr. Haile has en-

.o

tirely suppressed i his report, wiGi unpm"don:ﬁ)lq
Gnfairness.} ) )

By Mr. Simmons. Was it not Mr. Thacher’s in-_

tention to corroborate or substantiate the charges he
had made, and which have been referred to by you,
by shewing you this letter ? )

Jdns. 1 can't say what his intention was: I asked
him about his stateinent, and be afierwards shewed
me this lotter. In consequenee of that inquiry, Mr
Thacher produced i, in the course of the conversa-
tion. .

By Mr. Hazerd. Did you and Mr. Thacher havi
any conversation about the miurder itself, and about
the circumstancey attending it ; and who probably
comniitted the murder ? - -

Ans. 1 don't recolleet that we did—the conversa-
tion soon ended—we were.soon called to tea.

Ques. Did you suppose Mr. ‘I'hacher put his
thumb on the namo in the letter, for the purposs of
coneealing it? :

Ans. 1aid: I bave no doubt of that. .

" Ques. Did you, notwithstanding it waa concealed,

endeavor to seothe name : what part of it did you

see ; and was you desirons of secing the name ?

Ans. 1 looked at it desigpedly, because I was de-
sirous of soeing the namc, and saw the clirisuan
nams, but can’t recollect it: it was not an ordinary
name—it began with O, something like Orin.

By the Commilttec. Did you make any enquiry
about this transaction alter this tiwe ?

Ans. 1did vot; because 1 did hot know where to°
go. § knew if I went to the murderers they would
not tell me. .

Witness took one degree in masonry in Pawtuck-
ot,in this State ; and renounced 1t four or five years
ago, doon after the abduction of Morgan.

Witness continued a mason about five years. Dur.
ing that timo, he considered that the penalty of vio-
lating his masonic obligation was dcuth ; but did net
reflect seriously upon it. Whon he did, he renounc-
cd. He never entered a Lodge after the first time.

[Mr. Hazard trcated this respectable witness with
great harshness and gross insukt.  He took the pa-
per from Mr. Haile, and wrote down the questious
and answers to suit himself, continually muttering
that the witness had come there to charge respecta
ble witnesses with murder, and he would see tha”
they were protected. )

Mr. Potter replied with perfect propriety and
calmness, that he.did not come there o accuse any

ersen or persons of murder. That Mr. Hazard
rimsell had called him, und pyt questions to him,
which he had answered, -under his oath, to the best
ot his knowledge and beliet. That he was not res:
ponsible to Mr. Hazard or any other man for his
opinions, the grounds of which he had frankly sta-
tod, and that he considered himself, entitled as a
witness, before a committee of the Honorable Leg-
islature of Rhode Islund to decent.treatnent.]

Mr. Hazard—in great anger. ‘Thero is your de-
position, Sir; it will speak for itaelf, :

Mr. Potter. 1f it is corvectly stated, it is all I wish
to speak for me. :

Mr. Hazard. Very woll, Sir; we shall see.

' The Counnittee here adjourned until Saturday
morning, in a state of very considerable excite-
ment, and unusual spirit ou the part of tho Chair-
man. . .

TesrimoNy or CaLes SAYLEs—28th Witness.

Saturday Dec. 17.—[Mr. Sayles cither presented
himself voluntarily or had been sont for by the Ma-

song, by express, and made his appearance cvidently -

for the purpose of contradicting Mr. Thacher.}
Caleb Sayles, of North Wrentham, Mass. a Ma-
son sworn to answeér questions, .

' By the Committce. Have you seen a statement in
tbe ngwspapers, published by Rev. Moses ‘Ihacher,
which relates & comversation said to have taken
place between yourself and him on the alleged inur-
der of a man in St. Jobn's Hall, and if eo, is that
statement a correct gccount. :
dns. T have sven the account/. It is not correct
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He has added to it. I have published a reply to said
‘Thacher’s stateshent in tho M ic Mirror, Boston,
which is correct. 1 never heard the .name of the
pernon supposed to have been put out of the way by
the Lodge. I am a Freemason. Have taken some-
thing like 23 ur 26 degrces [ took the three first
in Watertown, New York, I took all the other de-
grees in Rhode Island, except -some ineffable de-
grees.
lishied in the Mirror, and is substantially true in ev-
ery respect. 1 huve made inquiries but have never
been-able to find out the name of the person said to
have been murdered. I heard during this examina-
tion that his name was Smith. My brother in law
Delwin Smith, told me the circumstances ahout the
murder, sope dozen years since. ' He then lived in
Watertown, New York. I do not know whether he

* -is mow living or not, Have not heard from him:

since

By Mr. Hazard. At the time ef your conver-
sation with Mr. Thacher, what reply did he make.
Did he express any opinion favorable ot unfavorable
to Masonry, or any belief in the story. Did he
signify any intention ot leaving the Fraternity ?

4Ans. 1doa't recollect whether Mr. Thacher made
ong reply or not, when | made the communication
.o him, or whether, he expressed any opinion favora-
ble or tnfavorable to Masonry, or intimated any in-
tention to leave the fraternity. I think he did not,
for if he had I think I should temember it. I have
had no conversation with him on this subject, since
that time. I do not recollect what reply he madeif
any.

By W. Paine, Jr. What led to this conversa-
tion, and under what circumstances was it intro-
duced ?

JAns. [ dg not recollect what led to this conversa-
sation. 1 and Mr. Thacher were in a chaise togeth-
er at the time, .

By the same, Did you know that Mr. Thacher
was a Mason, at the time you made this communi-
cation to him ?

JAns, Yes, sir.

o By the same. What was your motive in 'making
this communication ? )

Jns. After a pause—Why to give him informa-
tion of that circumstance, connected with the Mor-
&an affair ! That was my only motive !

Ques.- Have you ever assifoed any other rea-
aon?

dns. T have not as I recolleet, other than as stated
in my pablication.

J.’8. Harris proposed a request in writing, that
.the questions put by Mr. Thacher to Mr. Sayles, in
his sommunication, might be put to the witness.—
‘The communication of Mr. T. from the Boston Tel-
egraph, was then read, containing these queries.—

e Masonic Mirror was also handed in, and Mr.
Sayles referrcd to his reply to these queries.

Mr. Haile said the reply was a loog one. Does
it auswer these interrogatovies ?

Withess said it did. It took them into view.

Mr. Haile asked if that was satisfactory.

Mr. Harris said he should like to have ghe ques-
sions put and answered.

Mr. Hazard complained about giving ‘the Com-
mittes trouble. - .

n:lr. Sayles said perhaps they had better read his
zeply. .. .

- i ¢ Haile assented and commenced reading,
when Mr Sayles said that was not the communca-
tion -

’

Mr Hazard became quite angry. He said they
‘woulld put questions that come from the four quasters
of the globe.

Mr Harris observed that the questions were be-
fore him id print. - .

Mr Haxzard. What sort of a question is that?
‘Write it dewn, Mr. Haile, and annex the newspa-

_per . .
The following interrogatories were then put to

The statement read to me is the one pub- |

-| you woul

witness, from the Boatojl Free Press of October 12,
1831, referring to the story Mr Bayles told to Mr

Thacher, respecting the murdet of a mason in R. °

Island :

1. Did you relate. the same story.to other ina-
sons, besides members of 8t. Alban’s Lodge ?

Answer. 1 did relate the same story to other
members of St. Alban’s Lodge.

2. Did you, or did you not, as late "as the
Spring of 1829, relate the same story to a mason
who was not 2 member of St. Alban’s Lodge ?

Ans- In 1828 I did relste the same to a mason
not a member of St. Alban’s Lodge. .

To each of the following interrogatories witness
replied, ¢l shall answer thal in the negative,” viz:

3. Did a freemason,who was a Knight Templar,in
1829, ask you in substance if it was intended that
masonic penalties should be executed, in case the
oath of secrecy were violated ? and, )

4. Did you give your opinion in the affirmative ?

5. Did you give this as a reason, *“that masonic
law was older than civil law 2 .

6 Did you give this mason to nnderstand, that

Jy be willing to assist in executing the
mamngc penalty upon a,_ violator of his oath of se-
crecy P

7.”Did you bring the Grand Lodge of R. Island
as authority, by relating substantially the same sto-
ry, with which you say, in 1828, you ¢had pre-
cipitately alarmed your brethren ?”

By the Commiltes. Did you ansyer the communi-
cation of Mr. Thacher, containing these interroga-
tories ? ’

#Ans. 1 did in the Masonie Mirror of Oet. 12.

Mr. Hallett here reminded the Committee (hat
this witness stated he bad taken 26 degregs, and an
opportunity offered of ascertainipg the oaths of tho
higher .Jegrees, if the Committee wished tg devel-
ope the truth. The Committee evinced no dispo-
sition to make the inquiry. The following ques-
tion was handed to them and put:

Have you ever taken the degree of llluatrious
Knight of the Cross ? '

Witness wished to have the book to leok at.—
Bernard's Light was banded him, and after reading
the oath attentively and a cousiddrable pause, he
laid it down, saying'in an under tone, he did not
kunow as he had. The Comnmittee lgt it pass. The
oath of this degree contains the obligation to de-
range the business of a seceding mason, #nd hold
him up as a vagabond wherever he may go. Mr.
Sayles had apparently practiced so thoroughly on
this principle, in his treatment of Mr. Thacher, that
considerable anxiety was felt to ascertain if he had
ever taken this ogth. The Committee, however,
discountenanced the inqui?. < o

Mr. Hallgtt said,—he had supposed that if any
Mason were sworn here, who had gone higher than
the Knight Templar’s degree, the committee would
of course endeavor to ascertain the oaths of thase
bi;]l‘mr degrees.

be Committee did not nstrd the suggestion,
and the witness was dismissed.
TesriMoNy or BArxxy Mxrry. Past Graxp
’ MasteEr—[20tA Witmnﬂ

[Mr: Merry was Grand Master of Rhode Island
from 1828 to 1831, and was regarded as among the
most intelligent and influential masons of the State.
He may therefore fairly be supposed to be as capa-
ble of explaining masonic oaths and principles, as
aoy adhering mason can be. We invite' particular
attention to his testimony:]

Mr. Merry was called by Masons for the purposo
of eontradictin%the deposition of William Harris,
vig: that he, Harris, heard Merry say, ¢ that if
Morgan had reveslod the secrsts of maseary. he
deserved his fate.”” [See ante page 83.]

[Mr Hazard was absent, Mr Simmons presided.]

Barney Merry, of North Providence, Manufac-
turer, sworn to answer all such qubstions as may
be put to him. ' )
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By Mr. Haile. Do you recolleat the conversa-
. tion imputed to you bg William Harris ?

Ans. 1do not. Ibave tried, but cannot bring
any such conversation to my mind. _I never have
deliberately justified the murder of Morgan, at any
time to my recollection, or the conduct of those
masons who were concerned in-that transaction.

By Walter Pagne Jr. Did you not take in the
Knight Templar's degree an obligation called the
_ fifth libation? 1f so, is it not considered, and so
explainéd by Masons of that degree, to be the seal
of all your former obligations, administered in the
institution ? .

The witness did not answer.
tion was read to him as follows:

“ This pure wine I take from this cup, in testi-
mony of my belief of the mortality of the body,
and the immortality of the soul, and as the sins
of the whole world were laid upon the head of
our Saviowr, so may the sins of the person
whose skull this once was, be heaped upon my head

The sealed obliga-

inadditien to my own, .and' may they appear in

judgment against me, both here and hereafter,
should I violate or transgress any obligation in Ma-
sonry which 1 have heretofore taken, take at -this
time, or may hereafter be instracted in, 8o help me
God- Drinks the wine.””' [Seb ante page 49.]

The question as proposed by Mr. Paine, was |-

again put to witness, who continved to hesitate.

Ans. 1 SHALL DECLINE ANSWERING IT! .
- [Commxsr. This Past Grand Master had just
taken the following civil oath: “I swear to make
true answer to al? such questions as may be asked
me, touching the matter now under investigation,
80 help me God !”']

By Mr. Hailes Ditl
have read to you? - -

Ans.  1did not take that obligation. .

[NoTk the quibble ! Witness first declined to an-
swer at all, lga then denies that he took the obli-
£4qtion, because he and other masens do not consider
the fifth libation as a masonic obligation. The truth
of these words is admitted by two preceding wit-
. Desses [see ante pages 49, 65.]

By. Joseph S. Cooke, present Grand Master and
successor to the witness. Did you ever take any
obligation which you thought would conflict with
your moral or social duties ?

Ans. I did not. . . N

By Wm. Harris. Did you not, in this Court
House, say to me, after I had given my evidence,
that if you did make such a declaration, it must have
been ia reference to the oaths in Masoury ?

Ans. 1 had some conversation about your evi-
dence, and told you I could not recollect any such
declaration ; that if I ever made it, it must have
been under an excitement, produced by some un-
reasonable charge against Masons. .

By the sames. Have you at any time visited the
Lodges as Grand Master, to explain the oaths or ob-
ligations, and Induce them not to give up their
charters? Please explain the object of such visits?

JAns. 1 never have visited the lodges for that

Pl?h:,x: ¢ at the elections.

you take the obligation 1

s in italics Mr. Haile has suppressed.

the same. Have you ever as Grand Master
received any nic commaunication from the
Grand in other States, or their officers, and
if so, what was their import?

Jns. 1 never have as an individaal. The Grand
Lodge has never, while I was Grand Master, re-
ceived any communication, except on the election
of officers and masonic mattets. The communi-
cations are on file and may be seen by the Com-
mittes, Some of them are very long.

[Mr. Haile has misrepresented this answer. The
Committee never took any measures to get at these
v communications. A question was here
presented in writing, how long the witness had
been Grand Master. The Committee took no,no-
tice of it, leaving it to be inferred that Mr. Merry

was Grand Muster during the Morgan outrage.—
This was not so. He was not Grand Master till
1823. Richard Anthony was Grand Master in 1826,
27, and it is worthy remark, that thongh he lived.
w_ithin four miles, the Committee refused two epe-
cial requests in writing to summon him and exam-
ine him touching his knowledge of the Morgan
murder, derived from masonic bodies in New York !

B. F. Hallett here handed a question in writing
to Mr. Haile. Mr. Haile hesiated. Mr. Simmons
was then sitting at the stove, at a distance from ‘the
table. Moses Richardson (Treasurer of the Grand
Encampment) observed tne question, and went and
spoke to Mr. Simmons, who rose and resuned bis
seat at the table, and looked atthe question. Messrs.
Simmeons, Haile and Sprague were the only mem-
bers of the Committee present. ., Mr. Sprague
thought the question ought to be put. Mi. Sim- _
mons objected to the first part of it, which was in
these words: ‘A charge fromn Webb's Monitor has
repeatedly been read to seceding Masons, in the
course of this investigation, by the Committee, at
the request of Masons.”

Mr. Siminons refused to put the question, if it
stated that this charge had been read to seceders, at
the request of Masons. e said be had read the
charges himself in the Mouitor long ago. * -

B."F. Hallett. That part is not material ; butitis -
a fact that this charge was shown to yon by Moses.
Richardson, a mason, and read to seceders, by his.
suggestion, in order to show the excellent princi-
ples taught by maeonry ; and it has been used for
that purpose. We think, therefore, as it js <intro.
duced to justify masonry, it ought to be explained,
if it has any bhidden meaning.

W. Paine,Jr. and A. Wilkinson said they had wit-
nessed the fact stated by Mr. Hallett.

Mr. Simmons appeared at a loss how ta proceed.
He finally said he had no idea of putting a question
that implied a censure of the Committee.

Mr. Hallett said the truth ought to be no censure ;
but rather than lose the question, he . ould strike
out that part of it ; which he did; and Mr. Simmons
passed the question to Mr. Haile. - :

Mr. Haile—addressing the witness, It is request—
ed that I read to you (rom the charge to the master,
In Webb’s Monitor.

Mr. Hallett. I have made ne such request. I
wish the questious put, as they arestated in writing.

Thereupon, Mr. Haile finally read these formida-
ble questions, which had been subjected to so many
objections. The guestions were intended to be put
in ion, the d after the first was answer-
ed; bat Mr. Haile read them both at onee, as if to
give the witness the benefit of seeing the whole
ground, and that he might avoid a committal.

1. Ques. A chargefrom Webb’s Monitor, }nge 72,.
has repeatedly been read, in the eourse of this in- .
vestigation, by the Committee. In that charge, this
sentence occurs :— Be trus and faithful and imitats
the example of that celebrated Artist whom you thir
evening represent.” Please explain the allusion
and meaning of this part of said charge, and the na-
ture gnd object of the representation thers alluded
to, with its reference to masonic penalties?

2. Ques. Please state whether the following in
struetion, or the like, ocours in one of the Lectures
of the master mason’s dcgree referring to the same-
representation alluded to in the above charge, ad-
dressed to the candidate, viz:— . .

farther '

« Brother A. before we can proceed an

with you in this solemn ceremony, it will be neces-

sary for you te trave], in order to convince the breth-

ren of your fidelity and fortitude. In the eourse of
your travels yon may meet with ruffians who will en-

deavor to exfort from you the secrets of a Master Ma-

son. Some will goso far Br. A. as even to threaten.
to take your life, but yeu must be prepared oven to-
lay down your life, rather than to reveal any of the
soorots of Freemasonry that have been communiea-
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€ad to you ; therefore on yous firm fidelity and for

titnde rest oar further favors.”
vns. | SHALL DECIA%E ANSWERING THAT QUES-

TIoN ! 3 .
Mr. Spragus, (of tha Committee.) Do you de-

cline answoring the whole, or which part of the

questions - . ) : -
-Ans. 1 decline answering the whole of it.

[Mr. Haile - objected to writing down these
questions and answers. Ile complained that he had
been put to a great deal of trouble. Mr. Hallett
old him he would save him the trouble by writing
them himself, rather than they should not go in the
deposition. Mr. Haile finally assented, and Mr.
Hallett wrote thers on Mr. Hatle’s minutes.)

Present Grand Master Cooks, proposed “the fol-
lowing question, which Mr. Simmons put at cuce,
without showing it to any orie but Mr. Haile. -

Do you consider the question as alluding to that
part of tho ceremonies which you do mot con-
sider material lo the public, as a réason why you
decline answeting it? ’

Ans. 1do.

Mr. Simmons. You say then that the only reason
why you decline answering this question, is, that
the public have no interest in it ?

- Ans. I do. . ,

Mr. Haile. Can the masonic signs, ceremetties
and secrets, in dny way, directly or indirectly, af-
fact the rigfxts or interest of any person, nota Ma.

sornt ? L - X
Aus. They cannot, to hls injury, so fat as am

acquainted, never having had a cass.of the kind

ever coma to my knowledge. '

By B. F. Hallett. 1f a Mason is required to suffer

his life tobe taken rather than have the secrets of |-

Mazonry extorted from him, qught he not as a Ma-
zon to suffer imprisonment and deatk, sooner than
disclosa these secrets, if called upon in a Court of
Law, and compeélled to disclose. them undcr his
civil oath ?

as. Aftera pruse—That issupposing an extreme
case. Idon’t know as I can sa§ what a Mason ought
-to do in such a aeas¢. ’ '

[Comment. Here is an illustration of the obedi-
ence to the civil Magistrate tanght by Masonry. A
Grand Master is doubtful whether a Mason ought

" not to suffer imprisonment and fine, as Bruce and
Whitney and others did, sooner than _testify to the
¢ruth, under a civil oath, when required to do so by
the civil magistrate, provided that civil oath enjoins
upon him the disclosure of any secrets of Masons, or
of Masonry, which he has sworn ever to- conceal

“and never reveal! The principle goes the whole
length of making Masonic law superior to civil
law. Mr. Hdile saw this dilemma of the Grand
Master, and came to his aid with the following lead-
ing question.] ’

Mr. Haile. Can you

ive of any possible case

* in which it would be the duty of a Court to require |

a-Mason to revea) his Masonic secrets or in ‘which
a refusal to make such diselosure could affect the
rights or interests of any person. not 2 Mason ?
To these words thas put into the mouth of the
" witness would be of course answered No. .
[Here we again have the assumption that 2 Ma-
sonic witness, and not a Court of law, is to be the
-Judge of what questiohs it is preper for. him to ans
wer as a Mason, in such Court !] -
. B. F. Hallett. But suppose a jurgr should be' ob-
ectell to in a trial, on a charge that Masonic signs
ad passed between him and-the party, or that he
could not stand impartial with his masonic oath,might
.it not be necessary to call upon Masonic witnesses
- to testify what these signs and oaths were, in order
to prove that they had been uged in this case, or
would bias the juror > Under such circumstances

L4
-

Ans. That js an extreme case. 1 know nothing
about what a perdon mightdo. 1t would be left to
the‘mdlvidunlpto decide. 1 cannot tell what a per-
son might do in such'a case. .

B. F. Hallett. What would you de ?

‘Witness—rather angnily. If the gentleman wishes
to draw any thing out of me, derogatory to the prir
ciples of mesonry, he will find himself misiaken!

By Grand Chaplaint Frieze. If satisfied that ma
sonic secrets couflicled with- the duties ot a gout
citizen, would not your obligations and. charges, &
you understand them; require of yoo to give tip the
secrots in ebedience to your clvil oath ?

Ans. They would. . )

[[t-was liere suggosted that this witness had be
fore sworn that his masonic obligations never coui
conflict with his civil duties; and of course he ner-
er could - be “ satisfied,” as a ason, that he ought
to wbey his civil oath, if It required. him to disclose
what he had masonically sworn not to reveal.]

By B. F. Hallatt. You appear to be quite certin
that masonic secrets canno affect those who are
masons. R

If a mason, in a trial, were to give the masonic
sign of distress to a masonic juror, and. tlint juror be
induced thereby to favor him as a brather mason,in
preference to the opposite party, not a mason, woull
not this secret of masonry, in stich a case, affect the
rights of those who are not masons ?

Ans. That, Sir, i a curious kind of a guestimn.
No juror, who was an honest man; would receirs
such a sign. -

- Question by the same. But may not Masonic
signs and secrets be used by bad men, as a medi
um of communication and concert, dangerous
the rights of those who are not Magons?
4ns. A bad man might do a great many things.
B: F. Hallett. Are not many masons bad men!
That does not answer the question,

Witness. Well, Sir, I think not, if they acted o
the principles of Masonry.

Mr. Haile. Have you ever known such a case’

Witness. My answer is, Sir, that so far as [ an
acquainted, they never have. 1 do not know what
might be done by bad men. .

r. Sprague, (of the Commiltes.) That is not
an answer to the question. Itisa very plain one.
© Mr. Simmons. You said befare, that they could
not upon the principles of Masonry. Was not that
your meaning? ,

Ans. Yes, that was my meaning.

Mr. Huile. Then you say you think that Masons
could not use the secrets and signs in that way, anl
act upon the principles of Masonry. Is that your
meaning?

JAns. It is. i o "

_Mr. Sprague. 1Is not this- principle taught is
Masonry, to suffer death rathe': than discloie the
secrets? . -~
- Ans.. It 1s rvor.

. Mr. Sprague. You say so in the Grand Lodge
Address.

W_zltnen, after a pause. I shotild wish to amend
that-answer.  ““The words of the obligation maks
use of that, but as to the principles of Masonry in-
eulcating such a thing, I do not so understand it.”

Question from A. Wilkinson. Would not a muson,
on trial, have secret means of commupication with
a masonic judge or juror, which one net a mason
could not have ? . - N

Ans. 1 SHALL DECLINE ANSWERING THAT QuUEs-
TION! - N
. [A mason here spoke to the witness in a low voice.
itness thereupon said, « I should prefer answer-
ing that question, I think.” He then added, «1I

never knew any such case,it would not be likely to
ocour.”]

[Mr. Haile has made this witness say, in answer
to the question whether masonry teaches to suffer

»would a Mason be justified in withholding this im-
portant evidence from the Cqurt ? :

death rather than disclose its secrets, ““such a prin-

’
g
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ciple is not at all tsught in masoriry’ (See pa
3;. Halles’ minutes.) Mr. Merry hu( involv‘oﬁ
himself in a most extraordinary contradiction here.
He swears that no such principle as this is inculcat-
_ ed by Masonry, to suffer death rather than disclose.
rraioTc secrets. In June, 1881, the Grand Lodge
is signed Barnxy Murry, Grand Master. ltis to
be inferred, that Mr. Merry read this address, be-
 fore signing it. 1t contains the following; page5.

«No penalty rec¢ognized by a Mason, involves
any other principle than that of self-devotiva. The
instance .of John A. Custos may serve as a_noble
example. The cruel tortures of the’Spanish In-
quisition were insufficient to extort from him the
secroty of Masonry. He would bave suffered death
a8 an honorable man, rather than violate his integ-
rity. This every mason, and we add every man,
is in honor bound to do. A mason, like a Christsan,
promises to ‘be faithful unto deatk, but gives mo
right to take his life for infidelity."”

To the same point is the charge from Webb's
Monitor, page 72 which this same  witness admit-
ted to; be correct, viz: ¢ Be true and faithful, and
imita e the example of that celebrated Artist whom
you this evening represent.” This Artist was Hi.

ublished an Address to the people, which |-

T eficial tosoften the barbarous treatment towards

prisoners. .-
The Committes made noinquiries, as to the high- .
er degrees the witnesa had tuken. '

Norg.’

In a former pastof this Roport allusion has been
made to the tnwarrantable proceeding of the ma- -
jority of the Committee, in permitting Masonic wit-
nesses to take the interrogatories home with them,
and write out at their leisure, such answers as they
might think best calculated to evade.a thorough ex- .
amination. This proceeding -is, the more excdp-
tionable, from the pattial relation in which these

‘witnesses stood, they being, in fact, parties to the

investiga ion, and their persondl reputation, as well
as the reputation of Masonry, depeading upon their
answers. Under such circumstances, it was not
in human natire to avoid taking advantage, of the
peculiar privilege extended to them, of arranging
their answers by consultations among themselves,.
and exerting all their ingenuity to evade ‘making

ram Abiff, who suffered death, as Masonry teaches,
vather than disclose the secrets of Masonry. Grand
Master Merry had enacted this resurrection farce
perhaps an hundred times, to teach a Master Mason
that he should suffer death rather than disclose the
secrets of Masonry; and yet on his civil cath he
swears, that ‘“‘such a principleis not at all taught
in Musonry !I"*.

In August, 1831, Barney Merry signed a second
Addross, of the R. I. Grand Lodge to the people.
He thepa says, * the true form is, ¢ hinding ny-
self to suffer thus and so, rather than I would vio-
late, &c.”” ¢¢.Tt is so understood in all our Lodges.”

ain. “A mason isunderstood as pledging
himself tobe faithful to his trust, cven to death.”

And yet, swears this same Grand Master, whose
signatuse is placed to the above declarations, « such
@ principle is not at all taught in masonry ” Can
there be presented a more palpable and direct con-
tradiction? Such is the influence of the  principlés
taught in masonry” upon the minds of men who
pass in society for upright, respectable and unim-
peachable citizens !] -

Tesrimory or HENrRY Lorp.—29th Witness.

" I havetaken something like fifteen or sixteen de-
grees. The higher degrees I took in Norwich, Con.
of J. L. Cross. I took the degrees in regular order
to Royal Arch ; I was then inade a Selectand Roy-
al Maater, Perfect Master, Roman Eagle, and Med-
iteranean Pass.

Question bytke Commitice. Do you recollect the
conversation with Mr. J. A. Kent, relalive to justi-
fying the murder of Morgan? ’

Ans He hore upon me one day quite hérd, in re-

lation ‘to the subject, and I thought it deserved a:

reply, because 1 had found out that said Kent was
on antimason.- I told him he did not know that Mor-
gan was dead; and if he bad been murdered that it

was done by low masons; but I ‘ncver uttered the-

expressions attributed to me by Kent. I cannotre-
member the conversation alluded to, so as tostate it.

By High Pricst Cranston. Has not said Kent
gpent most of his time in abusing masons ?

Ans. - His whole theme was abuse.

1n answer to a questien from J. 8. Harris,—

At the time [ took the degree of Mediterranean
Pass; I took it with the officers of Com. Decatur’s
ship, At that time we were at war with the Alge-
Tines, and this pass it was thought, would benefit
those who might fall into their hands. I do not
know how it would benefit them. It appeared to
be the object of the degree to get released fiom
prison, should I be so situated. "

Grand Master Cooke here said, it wou)d be bén-

any discl that would implicate the Intita-
tion or themselves. The benefits of a cross exam-
ination and uapremeditated answers to* questiogs,
were thus entirely lost to the public. No such
privilege was extended to the witnesses who teatf-
fied against the Institution. They were required
to answer all’sorts of questions upon the spur of the
moment, without delfberation or consu!tation.

-Neither were the majority of the Committee sat-
isfied with even this partiality to Masonic witnesses.
In several iunstances they have admitted into their
published minutes, letters, from Masons withoat
any formality of oaih attatched to them. In others
they have allowed a Mason to give his deposition,
and to interlard it with affidavits, «taken by his sug-
gestion from other adhering Masons. Unattested,,
certificates of pretended charitable disiributions
have also been published, without any explanation
or authentication, while, at the same time, the
Committee resolutely refused to make any inquiry
into the amouni of funds, and the appropriation of
those fuads. ) ’ .

In one instance, the majority of the Committee
have gone even further than this., Abraham Wil.
kioson and-~William Harris, two unimpeachable
witnesses, testified to certain threats made by Saw-
uel E. Garduer, Master™of a Lodge, to deter Mr
Wilkineon from giving his countenance to the es-
tablishment of an Antimasonic Press. .(Ante pp.
33, 34.) This Mr. Gardncr was present at the tinie
one or both of these witnesses gave- their testimony,
and on the last day of tho examination, he was in
the room where the investigation was going on,
for several hours. Every member of the Commit
tee knew him, and several, if not all'of them, con-
versed with him, Yet no attempt was made to put
him under oath, nor was he asked publicly for any
explanation of the testinony against him.

‘The inference of course, was that he could neith.
er ‘deny or explain It. Nevertbelves, we find in
the published report of Mr. Hazard’s investigation,
p. 33, a formal letter from this same Samue] E-
Gardner, ';i;hout date, addressed “to the hovorabl-
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Committes, &c. for the purpess of investigatiiig the
charges against Freemasonry.”- The letter com-
mences thus : #Gentlemen, I should not presume
to trouble you, were it not for the fact, that wy
name has been made use of by Messrs. Wilkinson’
and Harris, in their examination before you, in

Psovidende. That only ymust be my apology for

{respassing on your time, by stating the conversa.'

tion I had with them.””

. + Now as the examination of Messrs. Wilkinson
and Harris had not been published, it is evident
thet Mr. Gardoer 1oust either have heard it, or that

" it was handed to him by the Committee in order to
get him to draw up some counter statement. He
did not venture ‘to trouble the Committee’ with a
statement on oath, which he might have made
with half the trouble he wrote this letter. Even:
this statement, prepared evidently so as to evade
the responsibility of an oath, and at the sane time
enable the Committee to use it as contradictory
testimony, does not deny, but confirms the thre'a}.
Mr. Gardoer admits that when Mr. Wilkinson in-
formed him he had subscribed to the stock of a
free press, he, Gardner, told him “it was the worst
business he ever undertook, and that he oould ot
discover the hand that might injure him, or words
to that import.” Mr. Gardner adds; “Mr. Wilkin-
son said in reply, greatly agitated, My God! am I to
have my throat cut, and I aot know it?””  This re-
p'y shows how Mr. Gardner’s threat was under-
.stood, and how he meant it should be reeeived,
for he says in his letter, the conversation here
ended. . -

Such are the subterfuges te which an honor-
ble Committee of an honorable Legislature have

" resorted, to pulliate and explain away the foree of

* - the testimony they were compelled to record agamst

Masonry.

On the one hand, in favor of Masonry,; we find
them furnishing witnesses with interrogatories to
answer in writing at their leisure, and publishing
letters and explanations not under oath, as if they
constituted a part of the testimony. On the other
' band, we find them suppressing some of tho most
essential purts of the testimony of Masons and Anti-
masons, against the Institution, misrepresenting
their answers, and refusing to publish in their mi-
nutes the deposition of Jarvis F. IHanks, regular.
ly sworn to befere a magistrate, declaring that he
was present at Jerusalem Chapter No. 8, New
York, when it was voled to pay $500 out of its
funds, for the-ielief of the kidnappers of William
Morgan! (Ante p. 26.) The committee also refus-

ceedings, they shall be met, in any form In which
the truth ean be tested, and by individuals, in
all respects as responsible, and as much entitled to
credit as themselves.

We have now gone through with the testimony
of every witness examined before the Committee
in their investigation at Providenee, from the 7th
to the 17th of December. At the close of the ex-
amination, on Satarday evening, about 10 o’clock,
Mr. Hazard made an attempt to exhibit a show of
fairness, by stating that the Committee would meet
again at Newport, and if any questions had been
omitted, which were at all important, they should
theg be put. This, however, was impossible, as
Mr. H. well knew,because the witnesses to whom he
had refused to put questions, were residing 30 miles
from Newport, and would not be present at the ex-
amination there ; and further to prevent the possi-
bility of any attempt to urge the rejected questiona .
at Newport, Mr."Hazard, (without any consultatiop
with Mr. Sprague, one of the Committee) ‘caused
a notice to be published in the newspapers of Mon-
day, December 19th, signed by himself as Chair-
man of the Committee, in which he states that the
Committee would meet at Newport.on the 25th
inst. when they would examine the witnesses sum-
moned before them, on all matters, except those re-
lating to the forms, ceremonies, secrets and myste-
ries-of FREEMAsonRrY ! In other words, he would
examine the witnesses upon such matters as they
chose! After this annunciation, ho further attempt
was made to get at the truth, beyond an attendance
on the part of Mr. Turner at Newport, as some
check upon the gross partiality openly exhibited by
Mr. Hazard throughout the whole proceedings. -

The investigation at Newport was held by Mr.
Hazard alone, with the occasional presence of Mr
Cornell. Another private and exparte examination
was made by Mr. Haile, of masons in Warren, R. I.
A third (notified in such a manner as to egcape the
observation of Mr. 8prague, one of the Committee)
was held in Providence, by Mi. ﬂmmm, alone.
The object of most of these exXaminations was mere.
ly to receive written dissertations drawn up by ma.
sons, in favor of their institution, substituting their
own epinions for facts. The only examination en-
titled to be consideied regular, is that taken before
the Committee at Providence, as above reported.
The minority examinations were all informal, and
not entitled to equal consideration. There are, how-
ever, several important points established and de.
veloped, in those examinations,a summary of whieh

ed to publish the communication made to them by ) will be pruented. as an appendix to this report,

William Sprague, Esgq. setting forth the allegations
. aguinst Masonry, and the facts and evxdencc by
which they could be sustained.
. We take no pleasure in prmnhng this evndcnce,
of the utter violation of every principle of fairness
and impartislity, whioh govemd the proceedings
of this Committee, but it is due to the publie that
they should be made known. If the Committee,
or either of them, will deny a single allegation
made.in this report, touching their course of pro-




APP
EXAMINATION AT NEWPORT.

Mr. Hazard, Chairman of the Committee, held an
i nformal examination alone, at Newport, with the
occasional attendance of Mr. Cornell, another ot
the Committee, which was continued from Dec. 31
to January 7th.” It chiefly consisted of written
dissertations, furnished by Masons in answer to
questions which Mr. Hazard permitted them to take
privately, together with ‘the examination of the
Providence Masons, the answets to which were
agreed upon in a regular Lodge meeting previoas
to their being handed in to the Committee! Such
concerted and premeditated evidence, cannot be en-
Aitled to much.credit, as a fall development of fucts
1t consisted chiefly of a mere echo to the answers
ma-le by the Providenee Masons, with some excep-

tions. :
George Turner attended the investigation ut
Newport, and attempted to elicit the truth, but wae
met with the sams obstacles and insult Mr. Hazard
had dealt so largely In, at Providence. An abstract
of the testimony is taken from netes by Mr. T'urner.

Wednesday, December 21. -
TESTIMONY OF NICHOLA® G.-BOSS, ESQ.

Mr. Boss is a Counsellor at Law, and Past Master
of a Lodge. Has gone as high as Royal Master.
He testified as follows: ) :
The written oaths, as read to him are correct,
except as follows. In the Entered Apprentice’s
enalty, the words were added to the oath as teken
y me, * ere 1 would divulge the secrets_about to
be committed to me,” and the like words were in the
other penalties, as I took them. Also, after injury

to mysell, “or those who have a prior claim to my |.

benevolence.” In the Master’s obligation, these
wordas were used, whenever 1 have heard it admin-
istered: R

¢¢1 will keep the secrets of a Master Mason,when
communicated tone, murder and treason excepted,
AND THAT TO BE LEFT TO MY OWN DISCRETION.”
“1 will a rdse of all approaching danger,”
not in my Kalter’s obligation-”

The Pagt Master's obligation binds, “not to wrong
the Lodge, over which 1 may be called to preside,
ner see it wronged by others, if in my power to
preventit.” In this obligation I was sworn to ap-
prise the Lodge of all approaching danger.

I have heard the Master's oath administered, to
hold myselt amenable to any part of the obligation
omitted, when informed of the sanie; but this was
only when the Master did not feel confidentshat he
could recollect the wholé obligation.

" When I was placed in a situatioh to recsive the
obligation, the person presiding said,

« You are.now il a situation to receive the obli-
gation of an entered apprentice, which all others-
have dane, who have gone this way before you. It
contains nothing contrary to religion, moralily, or
the lawa of your country, but is founded on aith,
hope and charity.” - :

n the Royal drch Qath, the words were used,
« will not shed the blood of a R. A. Mason in

was

‘anger,” instead of ‘‘ unlawfully,” as given in the &

manuscript oath, by the Providence Masons. .
1 never heard.the word ¥ omnific” used. I pro-
misgd to not repest the R. A. word, except’in the
manner I received it. The manner was then ex-
plained to me, and I did not consider the ezplana-
tion as part of the onth !~
Question by Geo. Turner. ' Was the explanation
iven before the oath was completed, and if so how
ou separate it from the oath?
r. The person presiding would state the
-manner, and the candidate did not repeat this ex-
planation, but it was given atter the words except
s 1 shall receive it. ’
Nore.  Neither does the eandidate repeat the
eplanation as g. is ealled, preceding the Entered

s

NDIX.
1 Apprentice’s Oath. How convenient, matonic con:
| struction is! When a Mason is told that his eath is
not to interfore. with religion or politics, he .assures
us that explanation is a part of the oath, and
equally binding; but the explanation of the man-
ner af giving dgu R. A. word made in the midst of
his oath, he swears is no part of that cath ? In the
first case, it belgsmcover over the enormity of
the oaths now they are revealed ; therefore, it is
to be construed as a part of the oath! In the lat-
ter case, if admittéd to be a part .of the oath, the
witness wonld be required to disclose it, therefore
he construes this explanation to be no part of “his
oath!]

¢ The words whether he be right or wrong, were,
not used in any Lodge or Chipter 1 have Been in
I never have heard the words, *“ murder and treason
not excepted,” and [ don’t believe any other mason
ever did. When I took the degree of Royal Arch
Mason, I promised to keep the secrets of a R. &,
Mason, knowing them to be such 5 but muirder and
treason were excepted, and they left to my orwn elec-
tion. ] have been present in Chapters in New York
Philadelphia and this town, and never beard «“ mug-
der and treason not excepted.”-

{17 The Providence Masons handed in the Roy- -
al Arch ogth without a single word relating to
keeping sectets, and swore it was ‘all the oath
though they admitted, on cross examination, that:
they were bound 10 keep-a R. A. Mason's secrets.
The Newport Masons swore that this obligation te
keep all secrets of a Royal Arch, at their discretion,
was always in the oath!] .

N « T could not repeat any single degree of knight-
ood.” . -

Question as to the 5th libation, and drinking
out of a skull?

Ans. None such was ever tised to ms, and I havo
never beena in an Encampment since. 1 took that
degree in presence of Rev. Mr. Mudge, and others.
No such cercmony was uced at the time, and no
such words In any ceremony of inithation I ever
took. 1o the Kmght Templar’s ebligation,the words
« without reservation, self evasion, mental reser-
valion,” &ec. I think were used, and in several de-
grees of Knighthood, which, by the by, we never
considered any part of Masonry. Refers to Webb,
208. 1 never beard such an expression, as when
or until the last trump. shall sound.”

[The Providence Masons all swore to this exprus-
sion in the Knight of the'Red Cross.]. )
What do you consider the secrets of masonry ? .
Ans. 1 feel bound, as a good citizen .and a good
mason, to answer al! questions. I consider the way
in which masons know each other as the secret of
mnor':ry; bat Aow they know I do not feel at hberty
to tell. . .
Mr Hazard. If any person wishes lo know how
macons shake hands,they ate not on this Committee.
Witness. There are certain waysin which eve ma-
son can know amother—certain signs, tokens,words,

wine
’ : ’

. ,
Mr Hazard. T suspect it is not so now —you have
been obliged to adopt a check word. )

Witness. No Sir, we have net! .

[This is in direct contradiction of the Provideyce
masons.] : .

Tn answer to a question respecting superiority of '
civil or masonic obligation, witness says—I should
have obeyed my civil and moral obligations, if they
came in conflict ; but I do not consider that my ma
sonic obligations could ever.ceme .in conflict with
my teligious, moral, or civil ones, but always
strengthen them:

{Norz. This same Mr. Boss, as will be seen at
the close of his testimony, had plumply refpsed
one year beford, to answer questions, when under
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e1vil oath, as  witness, which interfered with his

ic oaths !] )

Witness has visited three master mason’s lodges
in New York, and a chapter in New York, in 1822,
Philadelphia in 1823, and some in Baltimore, and
believes the {cersmontes, 7
to be the SAME as these used in Newport! [ con-
sider masonry & charitabte-socisty, and designed to
discuss the mutual concerns of freemasons.

In answer to question whether it is not the cus-
tom to receive into the lodges, as a visiting brother,
all masous net expelled from their respective lodges,
witness replies— Yes ! - Those whom we know 10 be
unworthy, we reject,

. Ques. by Mr Turner. If convicted of crime,
would you reject them, though not expelled ?
_ Jns. The Lodges where tliey belong will in-
vestigate the' charges, and if found true will ezpel
them ! The lodges never pass votes of censure as a
prohibition upon masons, until they are at first dealt
with by their own e !

Ques. Has your Lodge or Chapter ever passed
any resolution disapproving of the murder of Mor-
gan, by masons?

JAns. We have never taken any order about it.
1 NEVER BELIEVED THE MASONS HAD ANY THING
20 DO WITH IT !

(67> Truly an enlightened man !]

Ques. Did you ever hear a mason justify the ab-
duction or killing of Morgan !

Jns. 1 never heard any mason justify or pailiate
it, admitting it had been done by masons ! If it hud
been done, no people would have been more willing
%0 have ferretied it out than masons would. [ As
for example, the witngsses who refused to’ tusiify,
the Chapter that voted $500 to the abductors, and
the Grand Lodge, who agpropriated $1000, for the
velief of the Western sufferers!!]

Ques. Isthére a chain of communicstion be-
tween the lodges in this Stale and the lodges of
other States and between the order in this country
and of other countries or any of them ?

Ans. The ges communicats to the Grand

¢ of the state in which they are Jocated, and
each Grand Lodge communicates with the others.
1 know of no communication between them and far-
eign countries. There is a Gen. Chapter and a Gen.
G. Encampment, but having no communication to
my knowledga with foreign countries. I know of
no connexion between the higher Masonic orders,
(so called) and those in Europe or elsewhere. The
Masonic fraternity in this country are 1ot subject to
one common head or power !

[Mi Wilkinson swore they wero. See Ante page
47, and the Constitutions suy the same.j X

cstion by G. Turner. Does not a mason make

= sign on entering and leaving a lodge, indicating a

part of the penalty of that particular degree ? -
4Ans. They do not, only a mark of obeisancé to

thd master. .

" Ques. If Freemasonry is only a charitable society,

why have they so many degrees, and so much se-

oresy, not only from others but from themselves ?

Ans. I donot know.

By G. Turrer. Can you not, 23 a Mason, com-
munpicate with a judge, juror or officer in Court,
who are Masons? ) .

Ans. I can muke myself known to a Mason, as
being a Muson at any tiine. .

Ques. Are you bound by oath, to support the
Grand Lodge ? ‘

#Ans. [ am a member of the Grand Lodge, being
a Past Master of St. John’s Lodge No. 1, and am
bound by no other oath, than that taken in my in-
duction to the office of Master, which is similar to
the Past Master,

By G. Turner. 1Is every Mason, if a Lodge, re-
quired to make the Masonic signs of each degree,

practices, and obligations

Sethe.”’

Wiiness refuses to answer this question!
considers his civil oaths superior to his M[m‘
ocaths, 50 As ny:..’] -

By Mr Hezard. Were you a witness, inthe
of Bateman Monros, 1 juror, objected to on
of being a Mason, in November, 1830, and did
decline answering questions, and ifso why ?

JAns. I was called as a witness in that case,
entered the court room withont knowing the
tion on trial. I was enquiréd of by B. Hazard,Ex
state the obligations, and declined doing it. M
Pearce and Turner then required me to read
obligations as printed in Bernard’s book, and
the difference ifany. I did read it, and immed:
ly refused, plumply to answer or explain the dif
ence ; because I considered the question as aon i
K:m’ucnt antd unauthorized one, not Rolding my:

upd to arswer individuals in suvh matiers;
always to be subject to the constituted authorities!

By the same. Did the eourt require you to m‘
wer—did they find any fault with you for not s
wering ? - {

4Ans. 1did not consider the court as requiring m
toanswer the questions, and no fanlt has been founl
in relation thereto. If ] had committed a contempt!
of court, I should have beea fined, imprisoned o
reprimanded, which was pot done.

NOTE.

[3To show how strangely this witness conin.
dicts facts,"and to prove the superior force of his
masouic over his civil obligations, we subjoin 1
certified report of the case alluded to, which ot
curred at the November Term, 1830 of the Cout
of Common Pleas for Newport County, R. I. In
the case of R. Shaw vs. John C. Borden, Messs.
Gsorge Turner and Dutee J. Pearce, counsel for
PIft. objected to Bateman Munroe, one of the jury,
on the ground that Munroe and Borden, being
Freemasons, and Shaw not a Mason, the juror wu
under masonic oaths incompatible with his ciril
oath to decide impartially between the parties—
Mr. B. Hazard was ceunsel for Borden. The point
was argued, and four of the five Judges decided
that the juror was disqoalified, and must come ofl.
We now quote from tife published report of tht
case. .

¢ Nicholas G. Boss, a distinguished Mason, i
next sworn. He was asked by Mr. Hazard if the
oaths aa stated in Bernard's Light on Masonry,
were truly the obligations taken' by Masons, in the
three first degrees.

Ans. (after hearing them read,) No, they ar
not. | . .

By the same. What part of thent do you deny,
ordo you deny them wholly ? ’

Ans. 1 deny them wholly !

Mr. Pearce. 'What particular part of thess oaths
do you deny to be cosrect ?

ns. The whole of them, except that some words
in both are the.same. -

By the same. . What words are they ?

@ns. Why such words as ‘“of”’ and “and”

By the same. Will you state in terms, the obli-

gations of Masons as you have taken or know then’
Ans. 1do not think I shall. I do not feel myself

atahlibertyw do so. That is a masonic affair altv-

gether ! .

By the same. If 1 read these obligations to Yoo,

sentence by sentence, will you show me in what

respect they differ ? to.

Ars. If you expect that of me, I consider my

being called here, as a witness, an insult, and mi

as well at once decline all further answer.

The Court said M?. Pearce’s question was a pro-
m’!’

[Here isa singular development of Masonic ve-

racity! Mr. Boss,as a witness in Court, in No-

vember, 1830, denied the whole. of the oaths of the

three first degrees in Bernard, except anp and THE

efore the Lodge is declared to be opened on that
degree! X

and or. In Degember, 1831, he swore that the oaths

LY R )
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written out by the Providence Masons §which are
almost verbatim the same as the oaths of the three
first g‘eﬁroel in Bernard,) were correct, except sev-
ecal itions which he made, conforming the eaths
still more to Bernard’s! He also refased in* 1830
to obey his civil oath in preference to his Masonic
oath, though the-Court declared he was bound, to
answer the questiens, and would bave punished him
for contempt, had Mr. Pdarce (who was his brqther
in hw,z' insisted upon his answering. And yet, in
1831, the Masons of Providence declare that the
oaths, which Mr. Boss so * plumply”’ refused to ex-
plain, v%cre never coasidered a part of Masonic se-
crets!! i : .
As a voucher of the rorrectness of the report
above quoted, we cite the certificate of Joseph
Childs, Crizr Justick of the Court befere ,which
the case was tried.

«“The undersigned has read and carefully.exam- | ti

ined the report of the challenge of Bateman Mun-
ro, as a juror, published in the R. Island American
of the 16th,and is persuaded, from his own recol-
lectioms, that it presents a nearly correct outline of
the case, aud that no material fact or argument is
omitted. The ;f)oints made, are truly stated, and
the substance of tlie argument, and the testimony
of the witnesses, nearly word for word.
JOSEPH CHILDS.

Portsmouth, Nov. 19, 1830.

Nine persons, all adbering masons, were called,
and several swore to the cory ss, of the deposi
tion made by Nicholas G. Boss, so far as their know-
ledge extended, sid deposition baving been exam-
ined by them, and the answers agreed upon, in a
regular Lodge Meeting the night previous, by an
arrangement with Mr. Hazard ! —

STEPuEN A. RoBiNser Royal and Select Master.
He does not recolleet the Royal Arch obligation to
keep a brother companion’s secrets, precisely as Mr.
Boss states it, but has heard it so given sometimes
in our chapter. ln other respects agrees to the

, deposition.

Peleg Clarke, of eight degrees, and Stephen Ca-
Roone, of three degrees, assent to the deposition.

Mr. ne at first denied several clavses which
were in the Providence oaths, before he had heard
them read, whereupon Mr. Hazard undertook to
sxplain the difference between the oaths in Provi-
dence and Newport, apparently to apprize the wit-
ness (who bad not been present at the Lodge

meeting,) of what had been testified by the prece-
ding witness.

Henry Hudson, Royal Arch Mason, had heard the
oaths and Boss’s deposition read last evening (at
the Lodge meeting) and agrees to the truth of them
substantially.

[While this witness was under examination,
George Tarner asked a queation, relative to a pro-
posed assaulit on the person of Dr. Case, a se-
ceding mason. Mr. Hazard refused to put down
the anawer, in* witness's words, substituting bis
own, which witness says is satisfactory. Mr. Tar-
ner here ped asking questions, for what use
could it be, if the answers were to.be Mr. Hazard’s
and not the witness’s.]

James R. Gardner and Jokn Stankops, Master

[asons, swear to Bosa's deposition. .
Stephen T. Northam, a Master Mason, made in
Carolina, 42 years ago, swears to the same, but

. s norecollection of phrassology.

By G. Turnér, Do you swear that the substance

d ‘principles of the oathe, include penalties as

oll aw promises ? i

/ins. [ have no recollection of phraseology. Ido

10¢ consider the penalty as any part of the obliga-

tion! [ have no recollection of the penalties being
there, and if I had, should not eonsider it any part
of the obligation !

Bythe same. Did you not swear to submit to
some penalty, as well as to perform your promises,

Ans. T have no recollection of the oaths'at ull!
Enj'and yet he swore Mr. Boss gave them correct-

o not think I did—No'I did not! )
Jeremiah N. Potter, and John G. Whitehorne
0 assent to the deposition of Mr. Boss.
TesTiMoNY or BATENAN MUxro.
[This witness was the juror who was challenged,
on acconnt of his ‘Masonic oaths, in the
Shaw vs Berden, before the Court of Common
Pleas in Newport. (See ante page 72.) The Court
decided that a person who had taken the oaths
there proved (which were. the same in substance
as proved in this investigation) could not stand im-
partial between a Mason, and one not a Mason, and

ale

decision ¢an not be doubted after examinifig the
views which this man entertains of Masonic obliga-
ons. Munro is a respectable man, and really
thowght he was doing Masonry at service, by
avewing the advantages that might be derived from
it,in the manner he has described. He has so
declared, after he had given the de on.

Bateman Munro, of Portamoutb, in the County of
Newport, being solemnly sworn, testifies as fol-
lows: I am a Masotof three degrees. Took the
first in Charleston, 8. Carolina, fo l{m ago, the
others in St. Alban’s Lodge, Bi L .

By request of G. Turner. Have you ever said that
Masonry has been of little use to you as a Farmer,
but that while you went to sea and traded, you
found it of great service? If'so please explain in
what manner. .

JAns. Masonry hag been of use to me in foreign
countries, in Spain, 1n France, and in England.

From the same. In what manner did you find ‘it
serviceable ?

Ans. 1 have entered ports, since I have been
ship Master, and would show myself as a Masqn,
so as to get information what the markets were,
what I could do, and what 1 could not, so as to
make my owners a good voyage. I have been
favored by Port Officers on account of my being a
Mason, and have been aided and assisted in smug-
gling goods, by making myself known as a Masen,
and have been introduced to the Bishop and Gov-
ernor, in the Spanish dominions—but never im
this country— The Custam House q
the Governor himself, have been aiding me in so
doing * and the Bishop elsa. I have been for four
years and upwards, wﬂinie::d of this State,
a memorandum from i (the Governor and
Bishop) of contraband articles, to bring. them,
making three or four voyages a i1;«»-, and nevér
paid any duties on them! James 1)’ Wolf and my
other owners were benefitted by it. This was trans-

I have, through Masonry, always derived great
benefit to my owners and myself, ﬁ’;fanigu coun-~
tries, and have-always turned my masonry to ac-
count---made use of my monryfzr that purposs!
[Nore. Let any honest man say,if sueh s man ought
to decide a cause ss a juror, between a mason and
one not a mason? And yet the Court who decided
that this man was disqualified as a juror (frem the
influence they inferred his masonic ocaths might
have upon him, as well as every other mason, and
before they knew the use he admits he always
made of his Masonry) were denounced in the bit-
terest terms & their names held up to scomn in large
capitals, in tnasonic newspapers. The lawyers w!
sustained the motion were denounced as utterly
abandoned, and the whole fabric of justice declared
to.be prostrated, and the Masons disfranchised, as
citizens, by the unrighteous proscription of Antima-

aou;y!
If this man, a respectable ship master, and of

* ] farthermore promise and swear that 1 will be

at the time you took each of the oaths ?

»

aiding and assisting, all. worthy distressed Mas
.m”§', &e. Jl:‘:g- Meason's Jcﬂx.] X tor Ma-

\

] I mever submitted to_any such penalty—f.

case of

must come offi the jury. The correctness ef this .

s, and cven *

with

acted in the port of Havana, in the fsland of Cuba, '
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. thimpeachible character aside Trom his Masonry,
“thus ¢onstrued and acted upon his Masonic oaths,
io striet conformity to their fair and literal import,
and if Governors arid Bishops, in other couatries,
concurred with him in this construction, where is
the recurity which men not masons have in busi-
ness, in Courts of law or @laewhere, so long as the
wecret means of Masonic co-operation and conspi-
racy exist ?] ’

Secret concert between Mr. IHazxard and the Newport
Musons.

[It has been stated on a preceeding page that
Mr. Hazard coneulted the Masonic witnesses at
Newport, in order to give them an epportunity to
concert their answers to his interrogateries, which
were handed to Mr. Boss, Past Muster of the
Lodye, for that purpose, and that a regular Lodge
meeting was held to arrange the form in which
the Masons should give their deposilions to avoid
contradiction. This fact was brought out, in the
investigation, by cross questions fromx Mr. Turner,

as will appear from the following answers of wit-

nesses, on the first day of the examination at New-
port.]

StepueN CaHOONE—Sworn. "~

Question by G. Turner. For what purpose did
you meet.with the Lodge last night ?

- JAus. I met for the purpose of hearing read the
forms of oathe and other papers referred to in Mr,
Boss's deposition. - ;

Questior by do. By whom were they read.

Ans. Mr. ﬂou read the interrogatories and gaths,
and Mr. Rabinson, (present Grand -Master) read
the answers and depositions.

_Question by do. Can you repeat all or either of
your Masvnic oaths ?

ns. No, I ecannot, anp 17 I courp I sHouLD
Not! For 1¥ I COULD MY CONSCIENCE WOULD NoOT
LET ME.

[Here again we find the Masonic conscience not
to tell, stronger thau the.civil oath to tell the whole
tiuth!]

Question by do. If you cannot repeat your oaths,
how can you undertuke to swear that Mr. Boss has
stated them correctly ? .

Mr. Hazard, (to witness) you perceive this is
rather screwing. It is a Justice’s way of doing bu-
siness ! . .

Witness. 1 should have answered as to what per-
tains to Masonry, according to my recollection, as
Mr. Boss had done. :

[On further inguiry it appeared in proof, that on
the 27th of December, before the examination
commenced, Mr. Hazard had sent in his form of
oaths, variatiéns, and interroﬁatoriel, which with
Mr. Boss's deposition were all sent to St John's
Lodge for perusal and.digestion.

Here Mr. Hazard askod Mr Boss where the pa-

rs were, and he thereupon produced them from

is pocket.] .
Joun R. StaNHOPE—Sworn.

Question by G. Turner. When, where, and by
whom, were the forins of oaths, interrogatories, &c.
read in your presence aad at whose request?

Ans. At the e, last night, they were read
by Mr. Boss and Mr. Robinson, and at the request
of the Chairman of the Committes (Mr. Hazard) as

have heard him (Mr. Hazard) say !

Question by do. Was the Lodge reﬁnly open,
when the said papers were read, was there any dis-
cussion or conversation oo the subject of said pa-
pers, if so state particularly what it was. -

Ans. Whether the Lodge had been regularly
opened or not, he cannot tell. He recollects hear-
ing the Master declare the Lodge to be open, but
cant remember the timie. The business of reading,
was done at the beginning. The members sat
round and heard the papers read, the object of da-
ing which being smentioned. There was no dis-
cussion about it ; except that it was observed gen-

1

erally that Mr. Boss hid answered the Qquestions
properly ! . -

Question by the same. Was the Lodge duly tyled
or not ? : :

Witnass evaded the
not see the Tyler. ;

Question by do. Is there or is thére not always
some ceremony observed on opening and olosinga
Lodge, and was it parformed last night?

JAns. The first part | answer, yes, the last partl
have said before I do not recollect ! '

Nicuoras G. Boss

Being ralled again, by Mr. Hazard, attempted to
explain. He said he received the papers, (the in-
terrogatories, cross questions, forms of oaths, &c.)
together with his own deposition, from Mr. Hazard,
on Tuesday morning, witha request to read the
questions and answers &c. to the Masons who
would Ye sumnoned as witnesses, in order to faczli-
tate the ezamination. He at first proposed to have
a meeting of the Masons at his house, hut con-
cluded to meet at the Lodge for the election of of-
ficers that evening. The Lodge was duly opened,
and he then stated the business to the brethren
who had been .requested to attend as witnesses.
The Tyler was directed to adwit all Masons, and 1
read the questions, &c. and brother Robinson the
answers. We then proceeded to the rogular busi-
ness of the Lodge.

[t would be difficult to imagine a greater ont-
rage than this, upon a fair igvestigation, by «
legislative, or any other tribnnal. Here - were
all the witnesses met together, the form of exam-
ination put into their hands, and they tutored so
that all might say yes or no to the same questions.
What would have been said of the wminority report
of the Committee appointed by Congress to investi-

#te the concerns of the United States Bank, if

r. Adams had given a list of interrogatories pri-
vately Lo the President of the Bank, together with
all the testimony against it, and desired him to hold
a consultation with all the witnesses connected
with the Bank, who were to be summoned; before
the Committee, that they might have an opportu-

que-iion, by saying he did

nity Lo concert their answers, and all get their les- *

sons alike, under pretence of * fasililating the ez-
aminafion!" Where would be the difference be-
tween such a proceeding and the conduct of Mr.
Hazard with the Newport Masons ?]

Tux uost SovEREIGN GRAND CoNsIsTORY.
The existence of a Consistory ~ of Sovereign
Priaces of the Royal secret, derived from the most
Sovereign Grand Consistory of the United States,
and to them from the Imperial Consistory in France,
was established, by the following testimony.]
TresTiMony or Isaac StarLy.
I do not know who introduced the higher de-
ees into this Country. I know who did into this
ﬁwn. They were introduced into this town {rom
New York. I assisted in the matter. The Chapter
was introduced here, say twenty years ago, by
James Perry, John A. Shaw and others. The first
Encampment was established here by .authority
derived from New York, and pretty soon after that
we established the ConsiaTory, and after a while
the Encampment was placed under the authority
of Massachusetts and Rhode Island. The Consis-
ToRY is the sum #nd summit of Masonry in this
Country. ’
. All subordinate Lodges pay a small fee to the
Grand Lodge, for every candidate they receive.
Cerlain fees are -paid by the Lodge, Chapter, En-
campment or Counsistory, upon receiving their dis-
rnuﬁon or charter, and the same rule governs the
iqher orders as is applicable to the lower orders.
believe that the Grand Lodges correspond
throughout the States. There is 2 General Grand
Encampment in the United States. The Grand
Encampment of es¢h State is subordinate to the
General Grand Encampment. ’
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’ WiLtiiu CoacXsf AL Lx-Sworn.

- [A Sovereign Prinee of the Royal Secret,and
also a bar keeper in a respectable "Hotel.] In an
swer to questions, relactantly says, He is a mém-
ber of the Consistory of Rhode Island. Cannot
say where it originated. Expects they have regu-
lar meetings for choice of officers, but cannot say
who they are. Thinks they kept records, but does
. not know who has them. Does not recollect what
amount of fees the Rhode Island Masons paid to the
Grand Consistory of the Urfited States. Could not
make any guess about it now. Never eard thereyq
was 2 Grand Consistory of the United States, or it
had escaped his memory, it was so leng ago.
There is a Grand Consistory in New York, having
jurisdiction over its subordinate . Consistories.
Does not know of any higher degree in this Coun-
try than Princes of the Royal Secret, and members
of the Grand Conuistor{. :

Stephen Deblois, John Brown, David M. Cog-|
geshall, and Jeremiah Bliss, members of the Con-

sistory, testified to the origin and existence of the|’

Consistory, in Rhode lsland. The latter was pres-
ent four or five years ago, at the ehoice of officers..
He surely considers the Consistory In existence,
because they were in possession of the Charter, and
had never surrendered it. Deblois was formerly
Recorder, and kept the books. He paid $150 to-
ward fees, and for getting the Charter from N.York.

[Peleg Clark's diploma of the 28th degree, was
presented, dated 7781, and 3312 yeurs after the res-
toration !] .

Alexander M. McGregor, testified that he had
taken three degrees of Masonry in Scotland. The
oaths he tookrthere are substantially the same as he
has heard administered in Liodges in Rhode Island.

George Howland, swore he had attended a Lodge
in Curracoa, and a French and American Lodge in
Norfolk, Va. and in various other places in the
Islauds and in Europe. Their ceremories and
mode of working, with few variations, are the same
a8 in Lodges here. -~

‘[Masons justifying the murder of Morgan.]
Samuer 8. PeckaAM—Sworn. .

Is not a Mason. Testifies that two months ago,
in Capt. Vars store, in presence of Capt. W. and
Capt. J. Vars, he heard James M. Tuell a Mason,
. say, ¢ thatif any man should do as Morgan had
done, he ought to have Ris throat cut; and that if
any man belonged to a religious society, and should
come out and strive to tear it down he would de-
setve the same.” Witness saw Mr. Tuell afew
days after, and told him what he had said. He
then said, if he had said that about a churck mem-
ber, he ought not to have done it, and was sor1y
for it—but he ngver denied what he had said about
Morgan. That appeared to be his deliberate opin-
ion, for I had spoken to him several times about it.

. .70

his shop, T heard Mr. Tuell say that Morgean tad
been served right. ' .

Sworn. Isnot a Mason. Pretty soon. after the
people here began to talk about it, [ heard Mr.
Henry Moork, a Mison, say, * he did not believe.

more than he (Morgan) deserved.”

Questéon by Mr. B. Hazard. Did Mr. Moore say
this as his sober, deliberate sentiment? -

‘Ads. He said it apparently in earnest, and pretty
warmly, and he said it more than once ; and thers
had been no provocation given to him for saying
8o, to my knowledge. I have rePeatedly. asked
Mr. Moore it he thouﬁln Morgan had been carried
off by Masons, and he would always evade the
question by saying, *“ it had never been proved.”

Mr. B. Hazard hete made some insulting remark
to the witness, who claimed to' be treated with the
civility due to a witness, or he should leave the
room. . - N .
Mr. B. Hazard retorted that this was a bad place
for him to flinch. The witness replied that he would
never find him flinching. o I

Mr. B. Hazard asked witness his opinien of Ma-
sonry, as conpected with the murder of Morgan.

Wilness. The Institution of. Masonry, in my be-.
lief, has screened the  perpetratorsof that deed. I
have said so, and I believe so now.

There was some further cross examination, which
did not vary the testimony in the east. .

Tazormrus Tornam, sworn,—says he is a Ma~
son and has taken twelve degrees. Being asked if
he could repeat the oaths accurately, says—: L
could repeat them as high as the Royal Arch, in~
clusive, but I decline repeating them. I have.al~
u;:z: understood that I was btound not to repeas
‘ "’ -

[Mr. Hazard suffered this excuse fo pags.]

Samurr S. PxcruaM statés, that after his return-
to Nowport, from the Antimasonic Convention held.
at Providence, Sept. 1831, he had a conversation

. |with Capt. Benjamin Marshall, a Mason, of New-

port. In the course of the conversation, Capt.
Marshall said, that the Masons, *if they wanted
power, could bave as much as they pleased, and
that the General Assembly dare not take up the An
timasonic Memorial, and try it; and that the Ma-
sons could command a myjority, if they pleased, in
every town in the State. I asked Capt. Muarshait
if I should remind him of these assertions a month
hence, he would acknowledge having made them
and he replied, ¢ I will not only do that, but I wilt
repeat them,” and he thereupon did repeat what he
had said about the power of the Masonic. body, and
the fears of the General Assembly. X

[There wero several other witnesses examined at

I had heard he had said that there were three or
four men in- this town, he should like to have serv-
od as Morgan was. .

Jamxs M. ToxrL—sworn, to tell the whole truth.
Is a Mason of three degrees. As te the conversa-
tion referred to in Peckham’s deposition, about
Morgan, witnoss recollects being in Var's store, at
the time Peckham was, ¢ and to tell you the truth
1 cannot recollect what the conversation was, more
than a child, for I was in a hurry and was not in
the store more than three minutes.”” Has no re-
eoll egtion of saying there were three or four oth-
wrs “he would like to have served as Morgan bad
boe n. Witness did not deny the remark respect-
ing Mergan. . . '
WiLLiau Vars—Sworn.

Is not & mason. Was present when Peckham
and Tuell had the conversation. Mr. Tuell said
he thought there were some in Newport who
eught to be served in the mme-way, as Morgan.

George Bowen affirmed. What conversation 1
have had, was in & jokin way. [ think that once, in

Newport, but their statements did sot vary the ev-
idence given in the above abstract of the testimon:
taken at that place. The Deposition of K
Dr. Bensamin W. Casx, of Newport, a seceding
Master of a Lodge, was very minute and sccurate,
detailing all the ceremonies and forms and onths of

ular, the disolosures of Morgan, Bernard and Al-
lyn. Dr Case testified, that sometime in 1829,
;apt. George Howland, a Royal Arch Mason, told
him that’ he (Howland) was ‘at sea at the time of
Morgan’s death. On’ his return ‘be visited the
Royal Arch Chapter in Providence;and inquired in-
tathe truth of the story. They told him it was
true, and that Morgan had justly come to his death
and on that night the Chapter raised meney to bell;
the Western sufferers, then imprisoned on aecount
of the Morgan business. - ‘The opinion was wniform

.
apt. Howland, an adhering. M. being calfed
and put on' oath, podtin;‘;‘denid he had ever

made such & statemen

1847

NicuoLs Hassarp (Sheriff of Newport County} -

a word of the murder, and if it was so, it was no -

the Lodge. It confirmed in every essontial partic- -

awiong Masons, at first, that- Morgan had been Just.:




.
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Dr. Case further testified, thatin the Master's
oath are these wcrds: * J will give a brother Mas-
ter Mason a preference in his trade or calling.”’
This he well recollected, for he had repeated it at
least sixty times. Laving initiated over that number
of Members, hesides repeating all the three first
oathe twice a year, as is required of the Master by
the by-laws, who repeats them to the members, and

repeat after him. .

3 connecting link between the Lodge and the
Chapter, is the Master’s oath, not to sit in a
Lodge of which the Master is not of that d ,
and that he wijll sq the Constitution of the
Grand Royal Arch Chapter.}

PELEG ALuY—Sworn.
Is net

a .
Ques. Did you ever know aany ju or juror,
being a Mason, to give a ptofercné‘c ?:: Man{n, m

Jns. 1 did not know until lately who were Ma-
sons, or who were not, nor did I know any thing of
the obligations Ma-ons were wnder to each other.

Ques. Have you now any reason to believe such
preference has ever been given ? :
ns. 1 have bad cases in Court that went differ-
ently from what I and others expected. There was
some mystery about it, but whether it was Mason-
g ornot I eannot tell. One was a case against
benezer Davenport, who I have since learned was
a Mason. There were several Masons on the jury.
During the trial, 1 took notice that Davenport was
often dowa in the store of J. B. Newton (a Mason)
and I was in there after the trial, when Newton
told me he was satiafied the witness lied against
me, and that the jury decided against the evidence,
but that they could not give it the other way, be-
eause it would prove forgery,on the part of Dav-

TxsTimony or HENry Y. CRANSTON.

[Mr. Cranston is an Attorney at Law, Clerk of
the Court of Common Pleas, for Newport, and a
Mason of twenty-three degrees. Tn the challenge
of Bateman Manro (November 1830) as a Masonic
juror, before mentioned, Mr. Cranston was Counsel
for Borden, the Masonic party, and volunteered as
3 witness to prevent Munro being taken off the ju-
ry. In his examination he denied that he had ever
taken the three first caths given in Bernard as

"such,” refused to state what the oaths he had taken

were, on the that he did not know as he was
at Nberty to do o, tho: by the Court;
declaring to the Court he would subject him-

self to every kind of punishment, that he would

Erhh utterly and foréver rather than violate his

ic obligations ! Mr. Cranston was selected by

the Grand of Rhode Island to deliver the

Address on the last eelebration of St. Jehn’s day, so
_called, by the Masoas of Rhode Island.}

H. Y. Cranston, beiag called upon by Mr. Haz.
ard to take the civil cath, before the Committee,
made a speech to the Commitiee declining to sub-
mil to an ezamination.

Mr. Hazard said, you can tell whether you are a
Masen, or not, and proposed to put the oath to him.
Mr. Cransten refused o take the oath, and he and
Mr. Hazard conferred about it.~ Mr. Hazard then

to administer an oath to answer questions
putto him about the Bateman Muuro case, and
‘Wwitness consented te be sworn in that form. Mr.
Hazard then put some irrelevant questions to him
about his a witness in that case, after which
be asked Mr. Turner if he had any questionste ask
the witness ?

My. Turner, I bave not, until the witness is sworn
gonerally, and thea I should like to ask him several

[Mr. Hazard &jd net swear him any farther, and
thus this wijtness, who declares that his civil duty is
pemmennt to his Masonie duty, doubted in one case
vader ejvil ogsh, whether he was at liderty to-tell

and in another case, refused to be sworn at all,
where his Masonic obligations were to be called ia
question, unless the cath could be narrowed dowa
to suit his views as to the questions he choose t
answer > What a scene would couris of law pre.
sent, it members of ail other societies, were to ex.
ercise the prerogative claimed by Masons, to
;mko the supremacy of civil law, yield to Masonic
aw !}

SECOND EXAMINATION,

ar Provinxnce.

v

Held by James F. Simmons, solus. |
[On Friday evening, January Gth, the following |
Detice appeared in the Providence Daily Advertiser
and American.] i
“ The Committee appointed by the General As
sembly to inquire into the charges against Freem-
sonry and Masons in this State, will attend at the
State House in Providence, on Sa7vrDAY, the T
instant, at 10 o’olock, A. M. for the purpose of re-
ceiving the testimony of sach witnessss as may
there appear before them.
I behalf of the Comumittee:
" JAMES F. SIMMONS.”
[This netice was given only 24 hours before the
examination. Mr. ue, one of the Comnmit-
tee, who resided but a few miles from Providence,
was not personally notified, and knew nothing of
the intention of Mr. Simmons to hold this addition-
al examination, until it had passed by. Thear
rangement appears to have been made with a de-
.I?n ot;getﬁnéorid of Mr. Spn‘fne's attendance.
one of the Committee appeared’ on Saturday, ex-
ceg‘t James F. Simmons.]
he objeet of this pretended meeting of the Com-
mittee was to carry into effect the_pre-concerted
plan between the Committee and the Masons, of
giving the formal solemnity of sworn depositions
to certain disquisitions and essays in favor of Free-
masenry, which some of the principal Masons bad
gropued, by the consent of Messrs. Hazard and
immons, to hand in oo this occasion. Accordingly
when Mr. Simmons called the first witness, Wi
liam C. Barker, Grand Commander, and swore him
to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but
the truth, the witness said he had testimony soritten
which he wished to offer, and handed a bundle of
papers to Mr. Simmons. This testimony, in his
case, as in that of the other witnesses, had been
written out, compared and giﬁpslea, doubtless in
the Lodge, with all the benefit of ‘the preceding
examinations and questions furnished them by the
Committee. In this light it is not evidence as to
facts,but merely individual opinions. The wit-
nesses might with equal propriety have handed in
VhVebb’a moniu:lr and Cross’s wpl:art, and swore to
them as their depositions. t transpired epen- -
ly before the Committee, we shall record ﬁitheﬁgﬁy. ‘
e written essays are ‘ne evidence.] .
WicLriam C, BArker,
Grend Commander, being sworn, was questioned.
tan by Walter Paine, jr. Cannot a person

aine, jr.
be a member of a chapter, encampment and lodge
at the same time ?

Ans. He can. ‘

Question by same. If Freemasonry is a charita-
ble institution, why does it refuse to admit those
as members who are most likely to need the as-
sistance of their fellow men, such as are deformed
or dismembered in body, and not ef hale and entire |
limbs, as a man ought to be? . 1

JAns. Ihavelno answer to make to this question
other than this, that Freemasons choose to make
such rules and regulations as they please, of their
own affairs.
Question by J. S. Harris. You ssy you have
never received any inforimation from Lodges or Ma-
sonic bodies, of Morgan’s death, Have you ever

"2 truth, where his Masonic oath enjoined secreey,

heard Masonjes™y or otherwise, that Mergan had

’



written, or- was ,about writing a book™ diselosing
Masonry, and that he had suffered either by con.
fineiuent or otherwise in consequence ?

Aas. 1fthe word Masonically was stricken out, I
might answer that question. | have heard such
reports and seen them in the newspapers fre-
quently. .

Mr, Simmons s3id the question must-be answer-
ed s it stood: Nothing éould be stricken out
Witness made no farther answer.

- Question by John S. Hurris. Did you ever your-
self as presiding officer of a Lodge, or know others
in that eapacity, to inform the candidaté when in-
itiated, what was the cath he was about to take, or
the substante or natare of such oath, previous to
taking it ? ‘ r
’ JAas. We inform them that they are to take an
oath, and that it is not to interfere with their poli-
tics or religion. The oath is not read nor repeated
before initiation. .

Question-by Walter Painme, jr. Did you in the
Knight Templar's de take an obligation called
the ““5th Hbation™? If so, is it not considered as a
seal to all your former olligations, and the most
binclgng oath administered by the Masopic Iostitu-
tion -

Ans. I have alluded 1o all the obligations that 1
bkave @aken, and handed them to the Committee.

Question by Samson Almy. You sy you never
knew an uprigit adhering Mason, to consider his
obligations as bipdiug him to inflict any punish.
meat except expulsion from the lodge. Did you
ever know any Mason to consider them in any
other light 2 .

Ans. 1 aever did.

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Is there such an
obl‘l.ﬁuﬁon adivinistered in the Masonic Institution
ag the ¢ 5th libation”? :

Ans. I have referred to all the obligations 1
kaow of ia Masonry, and handed them te the Com-
mittee.

ion by Wallter Paine, jr. Is there in the cer-
emonies of the Masonic Institution any oath, obli-
gation or affirmation called the “5th libation’’?

Ans. | have relersed to all the obligations in
Masonry that { know of, and handed them to the
Comauittee—and as to the cerdmonies of Freemason-
ry, 1 have pothing to say about them: -

Question by Samson Almy. If a Masonic sign is
given by one brother Mason to another, is he not
bound 1o obey it?

Ans. That is a point that I am cot at present de-
cided on. I waat time to consider of it. I should
sather thigk not, but am not at gresent preparad to
answer, had rather take time.

fWitness took the question for consideration, by

. -coi:sontof the Committee, but he never answered
Tt

Question by George W, Juckson. Were not the
oaths aad ol tions as administered in the Mason:
ic Lastitution, considered as pirt of the Masonic
secrets prior to 1826 ? ’

Jns. [ canvot tell ; they might have bsen by
some.

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Did you, prior to
1826, feel yourself at liberty to repeat the oaths of
Masonry to any but a Mason ?

JAxs. I never thought of the subject before that,
time. If the question had cofgg under my considera-
tion, I thiok I should have tsncluded they were
not secrets, [hiere adding in & low tone, *“ if I war

the same opinion I am now."’)

Question by George W.Jackson. Did you ever
kmow prior to 1826, of an instance of s Mason re-
peating to any but Masons, the vaths and obligations
as administered in the Institation? .

Answer. 1 don’t recollect of any such instanee.
If I bad, L should have ht upon the subject.

Question by. Walter Pains, jr. -Do you know,
how many masons have been initiated into the ma-

11

| .

sonie bodies to which you refer in your deposition— -

R

and what is the charge for suc
please state the number and price ? ,

Answer. In answer to this question, T should
say generally, that | do not kuow. Thereare some
uther facts enquired of, that I do know. ‘The price
of initiation is 24 dollars for she thres first degrees,
and 30 dollars for the four succeeding degrees, nnd
30 for the thtee next, making ten degrees. The
pricé T understand,” varies in different places, and
has varied in thie town, not Jately hewever, not
since I have been a member.

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Has there been a
new oath introdaced iito the Masonic Institution
which is now used in confering a cheek degree, oc
pess-word since the year 18267

Answer. 1 have alluded to all the oaths in ma.
sonry that'I know of, and they have beeu handedto
the committee.

Question by Geo. V. Jugl:son. Do youn counsidec
youraelf 2a bound by your masonie abligations,or did
you ever know any mason that did ider himself
as bound to repder any pecuniary or other assist-
ance to a mavon giving the sigo of distress, without
inquiring how he came in such a situation?

Answer. 1 never did. .

(This is the close of this deposition. Mr. Bar-
ker then said, 1 give that depnaition to you, Mr.
Chairoman, not to 2o out of your hands, at least not
to go into the hands of any Antimason.”) .

Adjourned until } past 2 o’clock, P. M.

[After the committee -had adjoarned, Mr. Moses
Rickardson called Mr. Simmons aside and shew
itios a paper.

‘The paper read as follows: ¢ 1. M. Richaidson
of Providence, promise that I will answer ull fuir
‘questions upon iy Aonor, that may be put to me
by the committee, but gone that may be asked or

roposed by B. I'. Hallett, Walter Puine, jr. John
f-hr-ris. —— Almy, or —— Jackson, &c,” (Al
Antimasons.)} :

AFTERNOON,
James F. Simmoas. .

Joseru 8. CovkE, Grand Master, sworn to ¢ tell
the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
trath.” Mr. Coeke hantled a buudle of paper to the
comimittee as his essay upon Freemasoory. lss
Royal and 8elact Master.

Question by Jokn S. Harris. Was the words,
¢ of your duty to your God and country,” coutain-
ed in the Magter’s assurance to you before your
fnitiation, used ? or only the words that the oath
would “ notinterfere with your politics or religion 2*

Answer. 1 do not recollect certainly.

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Do you under-
stand that the penalties of Masonic oaths are in
any way binding upon those who bave taken them ?
if 80, in what way ? .

Answer. I will refer you to Mr. Barker’s depo-
sition, and agree with hiw in what be has said upon
the pature of the penalties and obligations, [viz.
that they mean only expulsion, when they.ssy noth-
ing bat death.] :

Question by the Committes. Do you consider by
the principles ot the institution, that you aie tocon-
sider the claims of indigent brethren or the families
of sueh, when they are deceased, as having a claim
on your jndividual charities, as well as the funls of
the Lodge ? -

Answer. Not a special claim, but we should
feel bound certainly in dispensing our charities to
help a brother’s widow and children sooner than
any others.

degrae ? if so;_

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Do you consider

that asa mason, you are under any obligation to
answer a masonic sign that is given you by a stran-
ger or aoy other person that is a mason ?

. Answer. [ dont know how far I should be bound
—1I never had any such made me, but if one shou!d
be made, J .vlwu{d notise i of course; and should

act according lo the circumstances !

Jan. 7. Present of the Committes, |
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" be freely admitted into any Lod
‘Mosxs Rrcaarnson was called, and said before |

Witness says, ‘“ a worthy ‘umoq ean at all times
, 84 a visiter.”

‘taking the oath, he weuld observe that he would
answer the thirty-four questions the committee bad
repared, and twelve .more which he had prepared
Eimsolf, but he woull nut unswer any questions
{rom that side of the house, (pointing to thuse who
were proposing soMe questions as autimasons.)
The committce, Mr. Siinmons, suid he could not
makeany uew rules,end if he declined ta be exain,
ined, ha had no power to compel any bedy to an ex:
aniination. They could only swear people, and if
they rofused to answer there was no power in the
committee to wake them—any, body might lead a
horse to water, but it would be hard to make him

“ drink aiter he got him thers. . Mr. Richardson then

sat down,

Pcter Grianell, General Grand Treasurer,was call-
ed,and before being sworn, said, that with the under-
standing that the committee had heretofore put upon
the ceremonies. ho would cheerfully be sworr, and
state truly all he knew about the obligations : but
having been entrusted with certain forms and se-
cret ceremonies, that he did not think could affect
any but masons, he must claim to be excused from
answering any such questions as was calculated to
disclose them. o '

Mr Paine said he would state what questions he

- wished to have nssons answer.” He wisired to

*know if the signs giveu on entering and leaving a
ledge were not designed to impress upon the minds
of the members that their penalties are te be un-
'derstood ‘literally—and also, whether many of the
teremonies, lectures and charges™ did not directly
impress the mind of the menbers with a literal ez-
ecution of the penalties for divulging their secrets. -

The committee, (Mr Simmons,) said the commit-
tee hiad concluded that they had not a riGHT to ask
any thing abowt the signs or ceremonics, unless they

" went to explain their obligations.

Mr, Harris. ‘The words of the obligations them-
selves,if communicated from one to another openly
as other people communijcaté, would not be so dan-
gerous, but we consider the ceremonies and signs:
very important to shew how these oaths can be
weed to effect other people or the public’; and the
means of secrat concert and conspiracy which they
give to Fieemasons. :

: Mr. Simmons sail that thé committed thought

* differently. . 1t would be right 1o ask these gentle-

4

men if there was any sizn or eeremony in masonr
which could effect any body but masons ; or to u{
them. whether there is any (hing in masonry which
would exghin the oaths, or give any other con-
struction than they had already given, or whether
it had everaffected them differently from that which
had been stated.

" This explination seemed to satisfy and pacify
Mr. Richardson, and Mr. Grinaell gave way for
Lim to be examined. .

Moszs Ricaarpsox,
Treasurer of the Grand Encampment, sworn to

"¢ Lol the truth, the' whole ‘truth, and nothing but
. the truth.”—Presented his written discourse, which

he i:roposed to read himself, Mr. Simmons said he
could better understend -it if he read it himself.
He then read-it.

HMr Rickardson,in his dissertation, swore to the

.whole of Preston’s history of the Antiguity of Free-

inssonry, the same as he would have sworn to facts
within his own knowledge. Ho also swore that
¢ every Major General in the army of the Revelu-

tion, except Arnold the traitor, with all those worth- | th,

ics who signed the Declaration of Independence,
except four, a/l the Presidents of the United States
except two,’ [the Adamses] were Freemasons. He
slso swore that political Antimasons were ¢ anti to
evory thing that is charitable, friendly, social, in-
structive, or beneficial to the community.’

.| ter were in session, a Mason ?

He alse swore to the following very important
fact :— .o .

¢ I'was a member of the General Grand Chapter
which was in’ session in the city of New York, in
September. 1826, when the news was received that
Welliam Morgan had been abducted, and the Jament-
ed De Witt Clinton, who presided at the meeting,
immediately issued his.proclamation, and offered
fifteen hundred dollars reward for the apprehension
of the culprits, and it was published the next day
in the newspaper, WHICH WAS THOUGHT BUFFI-
CIENT. .

Commrsts on Dx Wirr Crintom.

[The fact sworn to so distinctly by Mr Richardson,
that on the 17th of Sept. 1826, the General Grand
Chapter, sitting in New York, were informed, by a
Masen, of the abduction of Morgan, is very impor-
tant. It brings home to that body a knowledge of
the outrage from the first, and asilent sanction of
the crime from the beginning. Mr. Richardson had
somelime previous, inadvertently stated this fact, in
presence of three persons, in order to show as he
thought, how prompt De Witt Clinten and the Ma-
sons were, in offering rewards to detect the kid-
naprers. Knowing that this fact would be stated, he
anticipated it in his-deposition. De Witt Clinton,
however, instead of being so prompt, was in fact
compelled to make hig first proclamation, which be
didOctober 7 1826,0n a petition from the West,siﬁn-
by so many persons, he could not disregard it. But

he effered no reward then. The first reward he

offered, was October 26, 1628, more than a month
after the deed, and the sum was thres hundred and
not fifteen hundred dollars. The second reward of-
fered 19th of March 1827, was $1000. Now il Moses
Richardson swears truly that Clinton, knew asa
Mason that Mor'gaq‘ was abducted, five days after
the abduction, and held back from offering a re-
ward as Chifef Magistrate for a month after, until
pressed to it by petitions he could not resist—how
stands his relative duties as a Mason and 'a Gover-
nor? Even the apologist of Masons, Mr. Hazard
bimself, condemns De Witt Clintons conduct. He
says, in his report, p.71: :

“¢ It was testified by Mr. M. Richardson, that he
was present In the General Grand Royal Arch
Chapter in New York, when the news of the ab-
duction of Morgan was communicated in that body,

to the late Governor Clinton, who presided, and that

he, the next day, advertised a reward of $1500, for
the apprehension of the culprits, which Mr. R. said
was thought sufficient. But was it sufficient? Gov.
Clinton acted as Chief Magistrate of the State, not
a8 head of the Masonic' Chapter. The criminals
were Masons, and members of the Masonie bodies,
subordinate to the body then in session. The ciime
bhad been committed in the name of Masonry, and
as the perpetrators contended, under Masonic au-
thority 2 Yet it does not- appear that- any neice
whatever was taken of it by thatbody.” .

- Here isthe delinquency of De Witt Clinton.—

Though he knew, as a Mason in Sept. 1826, of this
crime,hetook no means,as the head of the Masons,to
deteet or punish it, anJ‘ was forced by petitions to
all the means he did take as & civil magistrate, to
detact the offenders. Such is the pernicious infla-
ence of Masonry upon the most entted minds.]

Question by W Paine, Jr.—Was the person
qbo brought the ne s of Morgan’s abduction to the
city of New York, while the General Grand Chap-

: ] If 80, was the news
considered official by the Chapter? and what was
e doings in relation to the affair ? !

Ans. 1 presume he was. 1 dont say whether it
was considerca official. 1 sat0 the young man that
brought the mews and the offer of lﬁva reward-that I
havé stated;and thatis all | know about it. *

Question by the same. Was you.in the Masonic
meoting which adopted and published an address of




83 C “

the Grand Lodio to the: people of Rhode Island,
signed by Joseph S. Cooke and others ?
Ans. Yes, | was there at the time. .

[Nore —In the meating here referred to, held i
August 1831, an address was adopted, in which it is
asserted that * of ‘that supposed uct’ [the outrage
upoa William Morgan by msons] ¢ we can only say
we can neither affirm nor deny, BecAvSsE WE XNOW
NOTRING ABoUT1T I And yet Mnses Richardson,
who represcnted the Rhode Island Masons, in the
Geuneral Grand Chapter, at N. York, in 18206, swears
that he saw the Masonic messenger who brou*ht
to that body, news of the abduction of Morgan. [y
fact he could not have led from his B
brethren, when he retarned to Rhode Island. New-
ertheless thissame Moses Richardson and these Ma-
sons, solemny reselve and assert, in a meeting of
Masons, that they know notliing about tile suppesed
outrage on Morgan! ¢ Supposed act?’ yes ¢ sup-
poscd,” when in I826 they knew he was stolen by
Masons, and when the Lockport trials which proved
his murder, had been published in the Rhode Island
American, right under their eyea! And yet these
innocent souls had got no further than ¢ suppased,
in their knowledge of the violence done to Morgan.
The Cretans tust have beec Freemasons !]

Question by Sumson Almy. What was the name
of the young_man who brought the information to
the General Grand Chapter? -

. Jns. I do not know.

Qucstion by do. Would you, rather than re-
nounce Masonty, suffer the penalties annexed to
your obligations ?

Ans.  Yes, eight times over, if it were possible.

[Norxr.—After he had finished his examination,
Mr Richardson took this answer and struck out the
words ¢ eight times over if it were possible,’ and
inserted ¢ T would suffer all the punishment the
lodge ceuld inflict, viz. expulsion.’ .

é‘unu’on by John S. Harris.—Was the check de-
gree and test oath communicated to the Rhode Isl-
and delegation in the General- Grand Encampment
ar General Grand Chapter in New York, or at any
other place at that time in that State or city, to be
engrafled in Rhode Island Masonry, as a necessary
guoard-in consequence of the Morgan difficulties ?

Ans. 1 should like to make two answers to that
question, and first I would answer Mr. Harris and
tell him it is none of his business, and then [ would
answer the Committee that I never heard any thing
of this in New York. - '

Question by Walter Paine, gr. Are there my
ceremonies in the Institution of ¥'recmasonry which
refer to, or in any manner explain the oaths ? ifso,
what sre those ceremonies ?

Mr. S8immons refused to put this question, and
agked witness, la there any thing in Freemasonry
that is designed to give a diffurent construction to
the oblizations, than you have given, and if o, has
it ever had its effect to give to them a diffrent con-
struction by you?

4ns. No, I have no knowledge of any such thing.

Question by George W. Jackson. Would net the
Masons who were concerned in the abduction and
mutder of William Morgan of New York, and who
have not as yet been expelled from the Masonic
Institution, go received in full communion by the
lodges in this State ?

}m. If we know them to be the murderers of
William Morgan, instead«of receiving them into
comwunion, we would seize them and carry them
to the proper place for trial; or if we knew them
to have had any concern in it, we would do the
nm:a I would, and presume all good Masons
would.

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Should Eli Bruce,
James Gauson, Burrage Smith and Loton Lawson
apply to your lodge and give-the requisite signs,
should yoy admit them ?

Ans. liuh koow any thing about the men, and
of course dont know whether they were concern-

ed. If Mr Paine knows, he ean answer for hiim-
self. In the last question my answer covers this
completely. . :

‘Question by same. I9 the history of Freamnsan:
which yeu have given in your deposition, suer
profane or Masonic history ?

JAns. I take it would be called profane ; alt histo-
ry { take is groféne that is not sacred. :

Question by George IV. Jucksim. Have you ever
known or heard the penalties attached to the Ma-
sonic obligations, inflicted in the slightest degree
upon delinquents ? . ' .

Ans. It is an impertient quection, I never knew
of any other pennlt’ts Yeing inflicted than what is
contained in the 15:h article of the by-laws of St.
Jouhn’s lodge, and dont believe there isany one that
docs; and that is explanation enough. [g7And
yet he swears that he knew in 1820, that Morgan
was kidoapped by Masons for violating his oatha!] *

Question by Samson Almy. What is the ‘object of
the naths and obligations taken by Masons ?

Ans. | have already answered this question—
when 1 said, what construction | put upon iny obli-
gations. '

Question by John S. Harris. Where did yon get
the information, that all the signers of the Declar-
ation of Independence except four, and all the Ma-
jor Generals of the Revolution excopt Benedict Ai-
nold were Masons—nnd also, which two of the
Presidents were not Masons ? 1

Ans. I shall answer and say to the gentleman, s¢
is none of your business. (The Cominitteesaid, that
answer would not do ) Well, 1 nave got history for
it, and il any gentleman vishes to see it, 1 will
show it to him. [Mr. Richardson has pever pro-
duced the history.]

- CurstTiaxy M. NEsrzii,

As a citizen, in a chair painter. As & Mason, he
holds the following smong other titles. Grand Re-
corder, Super-Excellent Master, High. Priest, Ro-
wan Eagle, Knight of Jericho, Knight of the
Mediterranean Pass, and Trreg Kines !

Mr. Nestell, betng called, snid, I wisk to be dis-
tinetly understood, Mr. Chairman, that the obligation
you are about to administer, cannot compel me to di-
vulge in the least degres, the secret principles and
ceremonies of Freemagonry.

Mr. Simmons asked Mr.yN. if he had heard what

bad been said on that subject to other gentlemen
who had been examined.

Mr. Nestell said ho had, and with that under
standing had no objection to being swora. .

He was then sworn ‘‘to tell the truth, the whole
truth, and nothing but the truth,” and produced his
written essay on Freemasonry.

In this essay, he swears, among other things,
“The internal secret forms and ceremonics attached
to each degree, 1 view as a spocies of private prop-
eny, whicE I have justly and lawfully purchased
PG”S«: has the countetfeiter lawfully purchssed,
\is dies) and which I ncver will consenlto yield up
to any man or. body of smen, who are not as justly
and lawtully entitled to the same as [ am myself,
even were my. life and property to be the forfeit-
ure.”
disclose theso secrets, under sny requirement of a
court of law, and yet ke too affic;s that hie holds his
civil obligations paramount to his Masonic obligs-
tions! This witness also asscrts that he has doubts
whether any outrage has been committed on Wm.
Margan.] :

Question o? Walter Paine, jr. Have you not
visited the lodges in this State since the year 1826
to give the check word or toet cath ?

.5»:. I was appointed Graxp Lrcrunznr for
two years successively, and during that time 1 vis-
ited the lodges several times.
which it was my duty to commuuicate in lectures
to the lodges were the s:crets of Masonry—and it
being the scerets and ceremonies; I cammot now €

-

[Ot caurse, then, this witness would nover -

he information"
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wulge ;&cm. {This man had sworn to'tell the whole
druth.

Question by snme. Do you kuow where the check
degree originated, and for what purpose it was
formed, and when it was received in this State, and
by whom ? it s0, pleaso state it. :

4ns. 1 dont know any thing about that degree—
the check degree.

Question by same. Do you know of a choek

word, test oath, or any thing instituted in the Ma-.

. sonic [nstitution since the year 1826,or any addition

of any kind since that year?

. JAns. Wehavca great many different locks on our
doors, but 1 dont feel 1t my dity to state what they

are, or to let others know how to open them.
[Afterwards Mr. Nestell asked liberty of the

Committee to strike ont the word diffarent in his last

answer, which was dane.]} .

PrTER GRINNELL,

Is the General Grand Treasurer of the General

Grand Royal Arch Chapter.
* Mr. Grinnell was called and sworn to “tell the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing- but the truth.”
On being asked il he had his deposition written
out, he snii he had began-one, but had not finished
it—he could add nothing, however, to what liad
been told by those who preceded himn, Mr. Wilkip-
-.son and others. What he had written was then
handed to the Committee as evidence.

Question by -John S. Harris. Did you ever your-
selve as presiding officer -of a lodge, or have you
known others in that capacity, to inform the candi-
date when initiated, what was the oath he was about
to take ur she substanee of such oath, previous to
his taking it? .

Ans. No, the oath was never repeated before his
fnitintion—he was assured that it would nat inter-
fere with his politics or religion.

Joun WrLvER, - -

Of Providence, Innkeeper, sworn “to tell thé
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth,”
said ho has no deposition written out—has taken
sixteen or eighteen degrees.

Question gy High Prist, Barzillai Cranston.
Will you give your views ol the Masonic Institution

" and of the obligations?

Ans. 1 will. My own opinion of the inatitution is,
that it is the besat maral institution under heaven—I1
should not call it second to none except the chiiatian
religion—{ would willingly subseribe to the testi-
mony of those who have gone befoie me, as it re-
spects Lhe obligations.

Lutuer Woobpwarp,

Of North Providence, Iron master, sworn,

Has taken twelve regular degrees up to the or-
der of St John, [being here prompted by the breth-
ren ha said up to the degree of Knight Templars

_inclusive.] He swears to the saine statements as

preceding witnesses, .

Question by Juhn S. Hurris. Do you know any

. individual Mason in this State or any where, that

subscribed money to carry on the election in Bris-

tol district in Massachusetts, in favor of Mr.
Hodges ?

Answer.. 1 do not.

[Nore., Hero Mr. Moses Richardson asked Mr.

- Bimmons, if he did not waut to rest a lew moments.

Ho wanted to ask” Mr. Harris one question, as we

heard a good deal about bluody shirts &c. and as M.

Wilkinson and Mr. Paine seemed to be gone he
would ask Mr. Harris the question,

Says Mr.R.we have read some number of years ago
of one John Rogers who was burnt at the stake, and
his wife a1 d nine children, one at the breast, follow-
ed him. Now he would ask Mr. Harris how many
the re was in the whole, being one at tl‘le breast,
mioe or ten?

This dignified and grave interlude created some

Jaughter at the timo from the members of the ‘best.

woral institution that ever existed under heaven.’]
\

< Question by Johm 8 Harris. Do you considcr
that the oaths and obligations improve the merals? or
what part of masoury is it ? .

Answer. The goneral principles of masonry, ta-
ken collectively as it is practised. '

.« [Mr. Richardson, by Mr. Simmons’ consent,
took his deposition and the questions and answers
home to compile, and 1eturn on Monday follawing!]

My. Simwons here adjourned without day.

I3 NOTE.

MuasoNrY usEp ro SMuUGGLING.—The deposi-
tion of Bateman Munro, [see p. 77,] has excited
some inquiry in the minds of many, hitherto indif-
ferent to the influence of Freemasonry upon soci-
oly. ' .

It mustbe obvious to every one who examined
the tontrivance of Masonic caths and secrecy, that
it would be impossible to devise a more ingenious
system than this for eartying on smuggling, or any
other viglation of the laws, requiring secrecy and
caution, and certain mysterious obligations and pen-
ulties, to bind together rogues and desperadoes,
who could have nothing else to pledge gach other to
mautual fidelity in crime. Hence it is that frater-
nilies of thieves, robbers, pirates and desperadoes,
are always found bound together by mysterious
oaths and penalties. Honest men need no such
pledges from each other, in alt law(ul enterprides. -

There have unguestionably been innumerable vi
olations of the revenue laws, through the influence
of Masonic oaths and secrecy, which the ingenious
contrivances possessed by Masons will forever eon-
ceal from the world. A person detected in smug-
gling was asked how he had contrived to evade the
laws so long, when so many persons must have
been engaged in assisting him? He replied that
he employed none but Freemasons ! -

The deposition of Batemnan Munro justifies us in
believing, thatif a man of acknowledged good char-
acter, as he is, would use his Masonry to violate ths
laws of other countries, there are not ﬁmling very
good Masons, who would not hesitate to make a
profit, through their Masonuy, at the expense of the
revenne of their own country; and hence it is that
we find Freemasons generally so loth to give up an
institutlon through whieh they have been enabled
to derive so many unfair advgntages over the rest
of wankind.

The character of Bateman Munro, and bis motive
in giving his deposition, will appear from the follow-
ing certificate.

- NewprorT, March 25, 1832,

Bateman Munro js a very respectable man; an old
sea captaiu, for many yoars in the employ of James D.
Walf, f:,.q. of Bristol, and was in his employ at the time
testified to by him in his_deposition. This deposition
was given under a sincere impression that he was doin
the Masonic eause good service, and the most elevates
sense of the exccllence and value of the Masonic Iasti-
tution, and he has sincé expressed the same opinion in
public, when I was prosent and several others, who wi
testify to the fact. He is now the proprietor of the
Turmpike Estele, at the north end'of this island, snd the
same man who was rejected as a juror, on Masonic
grounds, by the Court of Common Pleas for this county.

Gxorex TUuRNER.

1t is believed that some strong light was thrown
upon the means resorted to by Masons to evade the

rovenue, in a deposition, which Mr., Hazard took

'
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privataly, and concealed, and suppressed, so that no
one has been able to ascertain where it is, or what
are its contents! Euough transpired however, to
induce a belief that they related to Maseaic smug-
gling. The Depouent was a Mr. Penniman, of
New Beédford, then in-Newport, who had been na-
med to Mr. Hazard, as a witness, by Dr. Case, a
seceding Masdn. Instead, however, of examining
this witness in a public munner, Mr. Hazard, (who
appeared to have antlcipated that the fuctshe might
disclose must be suppressed, or they would put it
out of even Ais power to justify Masonry) teok the
deposition of Mr. Petniman, one evening alone at the
Tavern of Nichols Hassard, in Newport. For this
purpose he took the witness into & back room. by HIM-
SELF, without giving notice to any person of his inten-
tion to take the deposition, and no person was present,
but Mr. B. Hazxard and the witness! The deposition,
or whatever Mr. Hazard drew froin the witness, in
this mysterious interview, was never shewn to any
person, not in the Masonic secrets, and it has been

entirely suppressed in Mr, Hazard's repett, lie-hav-
ing-paid no attention to repeated cills by individ-
uals and in the newspapers, to explain this extraord-
inary conduct, in the Chairman of a Legislative
Committee! The public must draw the infcrence.

Concrum~a Norr. .
The above is a farthful narrative of the extrdor-
Gmary and important investig ation it details, ,The
report wof Mr. Hazard, on one part, and of Mr.
Spragug Jr.on the other, werg drawn from these
facte. ‘ﬁr. Hazard attempted to ju<tify, but closed
with condemning Freemasonry, and Mr. Sprague in
his minority report, fully-explained the dangerous
tendeney and principles of the lnstitution. That re-
port is more than- sustained by the facts above re-
corded, drawn from the testimony under the
civil oath of more than one hundred persons , s .
majority of them adhering Muasons. oo
The principal Reporter of this Investigation has
only to add, that it any ot the matenal facts herein
stated, are called in question, by any man or hady
otwen, he is fully prepared to substantiate them in
any form calculated “to establigh truth and expose
inposition.” Brxsawin F. Harwerr, °

.
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aile, Scribe,in thirteen instan-
ces, 15, 44; 46,47, 48, 50, 53, 62,
69, 71, 72, 73, 77. .

SEcCRETS, keeping them, 44, 48
— ongg'd Arch, 49,50,56, 61, 63,
67, 68, 75. :

— nature of] 12,14
~ Entered Apgrentice, 6, %
— Fellow Cratt, 6,
- lglou;gr Mason, 6,28, 35, 36,43,
) 5.
~ Royal Arch, 7, 41, 43,
~— Mark Master, 40, 43
~— Past Master, 40, 42
— Most Excellent, 40, 43

Firta LiBaATION.—Drinking wine
frstmé l‘ skull,—p. 35, 49, 65, 71,
75. 81.

~— Mediterranean Pass 73
— Knight of the Red Cross, 4]
— Knight Templar, 4]
— Select Master, - 4%
— Royal Master, 4%
~ mannerof taking oaths, 17,61

— not secrets .39, 49,

— refusal to disclose them, 78, 7¢

~— Comgmittee refuse to question on
high oaths,

— variations in oaths,

~ inconsistent with civil duties
45, 48.

— da.nge; of, in Courts, &c. 8,63,
- 79, 76. -
— what are secrets, 55, 78, 79,

Signs, on-entering a Lodge, 48, 64
— explaining them, and secrets,

81, 82.
mug’glh;g, Masonie 77,84, 85

T
Mr. Thacher and Sayles, 14,70
Mr. T. compelled fo sign Mr.

ile’s minutes,
Abuse of Mr. T. by Masons 17
Testi: of Newport Masons
concerted in the lodge, i
Titles of Masons, viz.

— Knight Templar’s.penalty, 44{

U

Uni“pn degrea, n

w

Worthy Masons, so long as’ not

expelled, 44, §7, 54, 64

WirNrssks, at Providence:

Anthony, Burrington
Allen, I{hillip-

‘Ballou, Willard
Brown, John
Brown, Lewis C.

Brown, Jessee -
Cranston, Barzillai
Chase, Levi, Rev.
Greene, Samuel
Gardner, John

- Greene, Daniel, Rev.
Hall, John .

Kent, John A.

- Lord, Henry
Merry, Barne
Potter, Ray, Rev.
Potter, Anson - -
Prentiece, John
Phelps, ﬁamey
Packard, Oran
Russell, William*
Searle, Charles
Sayles, Caleb
Thacher, MosessRev.
Treadwell, Thomas
+Wilkinson, William
‘Wilkinson, Abraham
Whiting, Nathan
‘Warner, Benajah
Young, Samuel

Second examination at Providen:

Barker, William C.

Cooke, Joseph 8.

Richardson, Moses

Grinnell, Peter L

Nestell, Christian M.

Wilder, John

‘Woodward, Luther

N Total, 37.

Wrrxesses, at Newport. -
Almy, Peleg
Bliss, Jefemieh
Boss, Nichols G.

.Brown, John
Clark, Peleg
Goggeshall, William

ogges|
Cosen B. W
Coggéshall, David
Cranston, Henry Y.
Deblois, Stephen
Gardner, James R.
How_lami George
Hudson, henry
Hassard, Nichols
Munro, Bateman
M’ Gregor, Alexander
Northam, 8. T.
Potter, Jeremiah N.
Peckham, Samuel 8.
Robinson, 8. A.
Stanhope, J. R..
8tall, Isaac
'Neli, James M.
Vars, William
Whitehorn, Johm G.

- Total, 26.
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“Sovereign Prince,” & bar-kee]

70,73} . er

er,” a tailor,
¢ Three Kings,” a chair painter, 83

Witnesses—difference  between -
swearing and examinations of
Masons and others, 50, 56,59, 61,
63, 67, 73,74, 83, 84
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